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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The bidder shall submit an executive summary/introduction that provides the Evaluation Committee and state management with 
a clear understanding of the contents of the entire Bid Proposal. The executive summary/introduction should briefly summarize 
the strengths of the bidder and key features of its proposed approach to meet the requirements of this RFP. This section shall 
also include a summary of the bidder’s project management plans for the resulting contract. 

LogistiCare can ensure the Iowa Medicaid Enterprise (“the Department”) an on-
time implementation and long-term success for Iowa and its Members based on 
our extensive national experience, proven best practices, and depth of talent and 
resources.  

INTRODUCTION Why LogistiCare is the best 
choice for Iowa The Department is transitioning from a decentralized 

transportation network to a statewide, single broker 
system to increase accessibility for Members in all 
markets, including rural areas—where public 
transportation is limited or non-existent—and to 
enhance the quality and efficiency of its non-
emergency medical transportation (NEMT) program 
for Members and the state. LogistiCare is confident 
our team, our qualifications, our systems, and our 
methods make us the right choice as the contractor 
for the Department. Our performance for similar 
clients demonstrates we can deliver the provider 
network, customer care, and quality that Iowa 
requires.  

We have demonstrated our ability, in 
numerous states and over many years, to: 

• Smoothly implement new brokerage 
programs and achieve early buy-in from 
program stakeholders 

• Expand and enhance NEMT service  
statewide,  especially in low  access  
areas  

• Maintain high service quality through 
comprehensive performance monitoring 
and continuous outreach to Members 

LogistiCare has carefully reviewed the Request for Proposal (RFP) requirements and the Iowa NEMT 
System Review and Options for Improvements Study developed by the University of Iowa Public Policy 
Center, (“the Iowa Study). We possess the technical expertise—as evidenced by our multiple statewide 
NEMT contracts—and resources needed to help Iowa make a successful transition to a NEMT brokerage 
program and minimize risk to the Department. We stand ready to assign our best-of-breed NEMT 
implementation team the task of resolving the following Medicaid transportation service issues as borne 
out by the Iowa Study: 

Lack of Member education about Medicaid rules: The Iowa Study reports that 43 percent of Medicaid 
Members don’t know that their trips can be reimbursed. The Members (especially those with disabilities) 
have a fairly good opinion of the Medicaid workers’ ability to arrange transportation, but they are 
unaware of the overall process and reimbursement procedures. Case Managers (CM) and Service 
Workers (SW) have identified lack of Members understanding regarding how to follow the programs’ 
rules. 

Inadequate transportation services for Members across the state living in urban and rural areas, 
and particularly for those with disabilities: In urban areas, some Medicaid-eligible Members with 
access to fixed route transit struggle to keep their medical appointments. In rural areas, there are 
Medicaid-eligible Members who do not have access to service in rural areas because transportation 
providers do not provide demand-response services to these areas. These Members tend to rely heavily on 
family Members and friends for transportation to medical appointments. 
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Unavailability or limited service of transit and other transportation services after hours and during 
the weekends: According to the Medicaid workers, the lack of availability after regular business hours 
negatively impacts Medicaid Members’ health and welfare.  

Member eligibility verification is a time-consuming task for the Income Maintenance (IM) worker: 
Claim verification is one of the most burdensome tasks that a NEMT broker can remove from an IM 
worker. In the typical verification process the IM workers check (1) if the transportation purpose and 
mode is eligible for reimbursement based on the Member’s plan; (2) if the trip is taken by the most 
appropriate and economical mode; (3) that the trip is outside the Member’s community (trip distance); 
and (4) verifies that the trip is taken. Based on the survey results from the Iowa Study, the verification 
process is somewhat fragmented which suggests the potential for fraud. Removing the transportation 
claims processing burden from the IM workers would enable them to focus more on medical services. 

LOGISTICARE’S NEMT SOLUTION RECOMMENDATION  
Our proposal provides a description of the approach that we recommend for ensuring a successful 
adoption of a NEMT brokerage model. We base our proposed approach on LogistiCare’s experience 
implementing NEMT for more than two decades, as well as on our thorough understanding of the 
Department’s program expectations. Our solution is a comprehensive model that addresses the needs of 
all stakeholders including eligible Medicaid Members, the Department’s IM workers, CMs and SWs, as 
well as community advocates, transportation providers, healthcare facilities, and volunteers. 

 
Figure 1. Results-focused. LogistiCare has traveled the road many times and can bring the Department the 
critical results required for its NEMT program. 

We believe the following key elements of our proposal make LogistiCare the best choice for the 
Department to implement and manage its NEMT program. Highlights of our solution include: 

MEMBER EDUCATION 
LogistiCare will engage in an intensive and continuous outreach and education campaign to Members to 
increase their understanding of, and compliance with, NEMT regulations and procedures. We will 
produce informative bi-lingual educational materials in various formats, written at appropriate reading 
levels, for Members. These educational materials will also be made available on a Member website. We 
will counsel Members about appointment no-shows and other noncompliant behavior. LogistiCare has 
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created a wide-ranging portfolio of easy-to-understand program materials for the benefit of NEMT-
eligible riders. 

In addition, we will place educational material on easily accessible websites for healthcare professionals, 
and case workers. We will conduct weekly webinars during the implementation phase for the benefit of 
healthcare facility staff. During implementation, our Healthcare Manager will visit healthcare facility 
partners to provide training and information about our NEMT management process. The Healthcare 
Manager will continue regular visits and conduct webinars to the healthcare facilities throughout the life 
of the contract to resolve any concerns and provide continued education about our program.  

TRANSPORTATION SERVICE EXPANSION  
All Medicaid-eligible Members deserve access to transportation—and the appropriate level of service—
regardless of their geographic location. LogistiCare will develop a transportation network that provides 
more than adequate service to Medicaid-eligible Members residing in urban and rural areas throughout 
the state. We will also ensure that our providers are especially responsive to those Members with 
disabilities. LogistiCare has extensive experience providing NEMT services to remote rural areas in states 
such as Colorado, Nevada, Oklahoma, Missouri, Georgia, and Virginia. In fact, LogistiCare is the only 
NEMT broker with exclusive responsibility for large statewide service areas such as those involved with 
this contract. We have demonstrated the ability to create NEMT service in underserved rural areas 
through innovative pricing, technical assistance to providers, enhancing gas reimbursement, energetic 
recruitment of volunteer drivers through highlighting and marketing reimbursement opportunities, 
cooperative arrangements with tribal groups, and other effective means.  

Provider relationship management is the cornerstone of our business and the basis of our successful 
provider networks. We invest heavily in fostering positive relationships with providers, providing unique 
network support and benefit programs, e.g., free access to LogistiCare’s Transportation Provider Website, 
our web-based Provado Dispatch Manager Software, and online driver training, as well as cost savings 
through our bulk purchasing capacity that contributes to affordable services. Our experienced Network 
Development staff will work in partnership with the local management team to build a sufficient provider 
network for implementation. Our Provider Relations Group, which in addition to the local management, 
acts as an on-going liaison to providers nationwide, will also perform outreach, recruiting, and contract 
development in Iowa. 

We have reached out to Iowa’s current NEMT transportation providers and potential new providers to 
establish an understanding of Iowa’s existing network and prepare ourselves for a statewide, effective 
NEMT brokerage implementation. To effectively begin our network development effort in Iowa, we sent 
recruitment packages to approximately 200 providers. To date, we have hosted nine meetings throughout 
the state to introduce providers to our company. We will work with current and new providers to meet the 
licensing, insurance, driver, and vehicle standards to ensure the safety and well-being of Members. It is 
critical that transportation providers in Iowa continue to seamlessly provide services and that new 
providers are able to start delivering services as needed beginning day one. We help ensure public transit 
agencies and small commercial providers continue to transport their current Members—without 
interruption. Members who rely on drivers for regular trips for dialysis, cancer treatment, or rehabilitation 
cannot afford to be without service. We go to great lengths to maintain network continuity so the 
relationships between drivers and Members are preserved. 

AFTER HOURS AND WEEKEND SERVICE 
Ensuring the availability of after hours and weekend service is standard practice for LogistiCare. As part 
of our transportation provider development process, we work with providers and transit agencies to 
ensure that transportation is available to Members when they need it. LogistiCare understands the 
Department’s concern regarding this deficiency in NEMT services, and we will devote the resources 
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necessary to close this gap as quickly as possible. We provide live operator services for urgent care 
requests and ride assistance calls 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, through our toll-free phone lines. Typical 
after hours and weekend service includes early evening trips that are run by the original transportation 
provider. That is, the provider that takes a Member to a late afternoon dialysis treatment appointment 
(4:00 p.m.) will also run the return trip when the Member’s treatment is complete (8:00 p.m.). Late night 
trips are 99% hospital discharges. The majority of weekend trips are on Saturday and largely servicing 
dialysis patients on a regular treatment schedule. The balance of the weekend trips are hospital 
discharges. We specifically contract with transportation providers to perform these trips and the after-
hours call center is aware of the available provider options to perform late night and weekend service.  

VERIFICATION SERVICES 
LogistiCare will review all requests for NEMT services and authorize them in accordance with the 
Department’s benefit rules. Whether its screening for program eligibility, covered service, medical 
provider enrollment, closest appropriate medical provider, alternate means of transportation, service 
limitations, or medically appropriate levels of service, NEMT verification rules are detailed in a Scope of 
Work document with sign-off requirements for both the Department and LogistiCare. Our approach to 
verification mitigates fraud and other abuses for the Department and reserves NEMT services for 
Members who truly qualify. Additionally, the Department’s verification requirements will be built into 
our systems, operations manuals, and staff training programs, and validated continually through audits.  

OUR PROJECT MANAGEMENT EXCELLENCE 
Project management is the cornerstone of all LogistiCare’s implementations. A successful 
implementation effort requires a solid, trusting, and mutually helpful relationship between the state 
agency and the broker, as well as careful attention to the special interests and issues of all stakeholders in 
the NEMT program process. We look forward to working closely with the Department during the 
requirements analysis process to further hone our implementation strategy for Iowa. These best practices 
allow us to focus the implementation on creating and sustaining value. 

We have developed a detailed project schedule that includes all tasks and milestones necessary for the 
successful implementation and operation of the Department’s NEMT program. Figure 2 below is a very 
high-level view of our proposed implementation work plan. 
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Figure 2. Proposed Timeline. Our project management approach has resulted in 100% successful on-time
program implementations. 

QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 Quality is a key component of our project management 

methodology. We utilize a well-developed and robust quality 
assurance program that has proven its effectiveness in all of our 
operations. We believe that quality assurance is achieved by 
having comprehensive policies and procedures in place to 
ensure that standards are maintained or bettered, designing quality goals into all of our standard operation 
procedures to “get it right the first time”, and fostering an organizational culture that recognizes and 
values the benefits that quality assurance brings. As part of our quality commitment, LogistiCare has 
attained URAC accreditation. URAC is a nonprofit organization that promotes healthcare quality by 
accrediting healthcare organizations. URAC's mission is to promote continuous improvement in the 
quality and efficiency of healthcare management through processes of accreditation and education. In 
2006, LogistiCare became the first NEMT broker to achieve URAC accreditation and was successfully 
re-accredited in 2009. We have been operating under URAC standards longer than any other medical 
transportation organization. Besides being a visible symbol of our corporate commitment to quality in 
every aspect of our business, the URAC accreditation of our operations ensures continued outside 
scrutiny and evaluation of our performance by a non-related third party. 

CONCLUSION 
LogistiCare has developed a strong reputation in the marketplace for transitioning, implementing, and 
managing NEMT programs successfully—on-time and with no disruption to service. We have the right 
talent, experience, and depth of capabilities to deliver that same high level of performance for the 
Department and Iowa’s Medicaid-eligible Member population. Our people, processes, technologies, 
innovations, and relationships for performing every task outlined in the RFP have been developed and 
finely tuned over 20 years — with documented, successful results. In all of our contracts, we leverage our 
expertise in providing NEMT brokerage management to improve and enhance service quality, expand 
access, and contain costs. We are committed and prepared to deliver similar benefits to Iowa if the 
Department chooses to partner with us. 
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3.2 SCOPE OF WORK 
LogistiCare’s demonstrated experience developing provider networks for 14 
statewide non-emergency medical transportation (NEMT) programs ensures Iowa will 
have a seamless transition to a new program with a comprehensive, credentialed, 
varied, and well-managed statewide NEMT provider network. 

 3.2.1 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
The Broker will be required to ensure that all eligible Medicaid Members receive transportation services that 
are safe, reliable, and on time by providers who are licensed, qualified, competent, and courteous. This section 
sets forth the duties and responsibilities of the Broker under this RFP and the resulting contract. 

 
LogistiCare currently manages 63 transportation 
brokerage projects in 39 states and the District of 
Columbia, which gives us broad experience 
developing and managing provider networks, 
addressing the needs of geographically dispersed 
populations, and providing the full array of 
NEMT gatekeeper services. Because we have 
successfully addressed the challenges of statewide 
NEMT contracts numerous times, we have the 
people, processes, and tools in place to address 
the logistics of serving both urban and rural 
populations in Iowa. Our expertise will enable us 
to share with the Department best practices we 
have learned as a result of managing similar 
transitions, with the end goal of providing Iowa 
Medicaid members with high quality NEMT 
services that meet their individual needs. 

HIGHLIGHTS 
• More than 20 years of NEMT brokerage 

experience nationwide 

• Consistently cost-effective, high-quality 
service through systematic policies and 
procedures approach  

• 100% successful on-time program 
implementations 

• LogistiCAD database handles millions of 
members and transactions 24x7 with 
speed and reliability  

• Comprehensive credentialing oversight 
assisted by LogistiCAD data system 

We intend to impress upon the Department that LogistiCare has already demonstrated our 
capability for successfully managing large-scale NEMT brokerage programs more frequently and 
convincingly than any other potential bidder. Our proficiency and reputation as the country’s 
leading brokerage management firm—which sets LogistiCare apart from all other potential 
bidders—speak for themselves.  

LogistiCare Brokerage Management Proficiency:  

• 2009 gross trips: more than 25 million 

• More than 425,000 calls answered monthly 

• 2.2 million reservations scheduled monthly 

• 1.5 million NEMT trips made monthly 

• Call center Average Call Abandonment rate : 3.6% 

• Call center Average Speed to Answer (ASA): 45 seconds 

• 0.023%  rider complaint rating 

• 80 million trips with an accident claim to trip percentage of less than  .000000225% 
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Upon contract award, LogistiCare will apply our technical expertise and human services delivery 
philosophy to ensure that Medicaid members in Iowa who request NEMT services receive 
transportation that is safe, reliable, and on-time, by providers who are licensed, qualified, 
competent, and courteous. We understand and willingly embrace the duties and responsibilities 
associated with providing NEMT services to Iowans whose health and well-being are dependent 
upon transportation.  

3.2.1.1 CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 
State oversight of the contractor’s performance and payments to the contractor are tied to meeting the 
performance standards in the contract awarded through this RFP. 
LogistiCare understands and agrees that state oversight of the contractor’s performance and 
payment to the contractor are tied to meeting the performance standards in the contract awarded 
through this RFP. Our business practices revolve around the objective of exceeding performance 
standards, both those set by the client, as well as those set by ourselves. Our record of consistent 
high performance, customer satisfaction, and timely implementation is unequaled. This is 
demonstrated, in part, by our extremely high client retention rate (95%) over the past 15 years.  

LogistiCare has won all our contracts on the strength of our technical evaluations, and we have 
never had a contract terminated for default. In addition, we have met all our start-up dates, met or 
exceeded all our contract obligations, and established positive, lasting working relationships with 
our clients. In all our contracts, we have worked to reduce our clients’ costs while improving 
service quality and access. Please refer to Attachment 1 for sample letters of support and 
appreciation from our clients, providers, and health care partners around the country.  

3.2.1.2 PERFORMANCE REPORTING AND QUALITY ASSURANCE 
a. The contract awarded through this RFP will contain performance standards that reflect the performance 
requirements in this RFP. 
1. The standards will include timeliness, accuracy, and completeness for performance of reporting operational 
functions. 
2. These performance standards must be quantifiable and reported using as much automation as possible. 
b. Meeting the performance standard in the selected indicators will represent average performance. 
1. The Department and the contractor will finalize specific performance reporting and measurements during the 
first year of operation. 
c. In addition the contractor is responsible for internal quality assurance activities. The scope of these activities 
includes the following:  
1. Identify deficiencies and improvement opportunities within the contractor’s area of responsibility.  
2. Provide the Department with a corrective action plan within ten business days of discovery of a problem  
through the internal quality control reviews.  
3. Agree upon time frames for corrective actions. 
4. Meet all corrective action commitments within the agreed upon time frames.  
LogistiCare acknowledges that the contract awarded through this RFP will contain performance 
standards that reflect the performance requirements of this RFP. We understand that meeting the 
performance standards in the selected indicators will represent average performance; however, 
our business model is rooted in the practice of continually striving to exceed performance 
standards while enhancing NEMT service delivery to our state clients and their members.  
 
Our strong commitment to service excellence, customer satisfaction, and high levels of 
accountability are at the heart of our ongoing quality improvement process. From corporate-level 
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oversight of policies and procedures, to strict quality standards, to conscientious performance 
monitoring, to clear feedback for providers and staff, LogistiCare will combine a broad spectrum 
of quality assurance (QA) initiatives and methodologies to support the Department’s goals for a 
highly effective NEMT program.  
 
As part of our primary business function, LogistiCare collects, manages, and analyzes data for the 
purposes of complying with contract requirements and monitoring performance. We will use our 
proprietary information management system, LogistiCAD, to maintain complete records of all 
NEMT activities and to document that our operations adhere to all applicable Iowa Medicaid 
medical transportation rules and regulations. This robust system will also serve as the source for 
providing the Department with timely, accurate, and complete reports on all aspects of the 
program, as require, within the requested time frames. LogistiCAD offers the flexibility to 
produce any type of operational, management, or ad hoc report that might be used to examine and 
strengthen our performance and procedures, as well as to provide the Department with insights 
into program functioning.  
 
Based on these capabilities, LogistiCare has created standard reports that encompass a broad 
range of requirements specified by our NEMT contracts. These standard reports address issues 
such as verification, eligibility, utilization and trip details, compliance, performance, and denials 
and fair hearings. In addition to the standard reports we already produce, LogistiCare has the 
capability to produce any type of report that the Department may wish to introduce. We can also 
provide the Department with comprehensive electronic encounter data on a regular basis, as we 
do for most of our state clients.  

LogistiCare is fully aware that the Department is entering new and uncharted territory by 
transitioning to a NEMT brokerage model. We commend the Department for being willing to 
implement this change for the betterment of the NEMT program and the Medicaid members 
utilizing it. We would like to assure the Department that they can fully rely on LogistiCare’s 
expertise and dedicated team of professionals to add clarity to the process and thus contribute to a 
smooth transition across all levels of stakeholders in Iowa.  

LOGISTICARE’S CORPORATE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES AND QUALITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE   
Our Corporate Policies and Procedures and Quality Management Committee (PnP&QMC) directs 
our QA program. This committee consists of senior management representatives, who oversee 
such functions as: 
  
 Operations 
 Risk Management 
 Information Technology 

 Finance 
 Claims 

 Business Development 
 Training 

 
The function of the PnP&QMC is to assess the strengths and weaknesses of the quality 
monitoring and review processes used in our transportation operations, and to facilitate their 
improvement. The PnP&QMC is responsible for ensuring that the development and improvement 
of processes are coordinated across the entire organization, and that process improvements are 
institutionalized.  

The PnP&QMC identifies industry best practices, communicates them throughout the entire 
organization, and maintains policies and procedures and other quality-related documentation. To 
meet the specific requirements of each of our state clients, local managers develop customized 
QA programs and quality improvement (QI) plans, which are then submitted to the PnP&QMC 
for approval. While our QA program was developed to maintain our corporate commitment to 
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quality service for both our riders and our state clients, goals and standards may be supplemented 
or modified in response to the needs of individual client organizations. For Iowa, our program 
will include all the Department’s quality assessment and improvement criteria stated in the RFP, 
including feedback from members and providers relative to customer satisfaction. 

All LogistiCare Iowa employees will participate in and be held accountable for meeting our QA 
goals and objectives. Depending on the type of issue involved, the responsibilities for quality 
assurance activities will be performed by a range of managers and staff, under the overall 
responsibility of the Iowa Account Manager (known as the General Manager in LogistiCare’s 
organizational hierarchy). LogistiCare’s   management staff in Iowa will act as a steering 
committee to review, revise, and supervise all QA activities. The next level of management, 
which will include supervisors and leads/specialists, will be responsible for taking the plan to the 
staff and monitoring the day-to-day activities. 

LogistiCare will work with the Department to finalize specific performance reporting and 
measurements during the first year of operation. If, as a result of our internal quality assurance 
activities, we identify program deficiencies within our areas of responsibility, we will provide the 
Department with a corrective action plan within 10 days of discovery of a problem. We will also 
meet all corrective action commitments within the agreed upon time frames.  

3.2.1.3 STATE RESPONSIBILITIES 
a. The Department’s Contract Administrator for the IME is the principal contact with the transportation Broker 
and coordinates interaction between the Department and the Broker. The Department’s Contract Administrator 
is responsible for the following activities: 
1. Monitor the contract performance and compliance with contract terms and conditions. 
2. Service as a liaison between the Broker and the Department. 
3. Review and approve operational procedure manual and any updates to the manual. 
4. Review and approve documentation as required by the Department. 
5. With participation from the Contractor, develop the report of the contractor’s compliance with performance 
standards, negotiate reporting requirements, and measure compliance for the contractor’s responsibilities. 
6. Coordinate State and federal reviews and assessments. 
7. Consult with the contractor on quality improvement measures and determination of areas to be reviewed. 
8. Review, approve, and monitor proposed corrective action plans. 
9. Direct Broker to attend transportation meetings or seminars (statewide, regional, or local). 
LogistiCare looks forward to working with the Department to provide much-needed services in 
the form of NEMT transportation to Iowa Medicaid members. We are committed to ensuring 
these members receive high quality service, and we understand that establishing a close, 
collaborative relationship with the Department’s Contract Administrator will help make this 
possible. LogistiCare practices an “open-door policy” with all our state clients, and we will 
designate an onsite office at the Iowa call center/regional office for the Department’s Contract 
Administrator use.  
 
LogistiCare has extensive experience developing policy and procedures manuals for state clients, 
and our corporate-level Policy and Procedures and Quality Management Team, discussed at 
length in Section 3.2.1.2 Performance Reporting and Quality Assurance, oversees this process. 
Having worked with various state clients, we understand the issues that face large-state NEMT 
programs, and we will meet with the Department to develop contract-specific processes for Iowa. 
We have included a sample of our client Operational Procedures Manual in Attachment 2. Our 
agility and adaptability make it possible for us to adjust operations to accommodate any required 
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changes made by our state clients to their NEMT programs. LogistiCare has participated in 
dozens of audits and completed them successfully. For the purposes of transparency, we provide 
our state clients will full access to those audits. LogistiCare is very receptive to the performance 
review process, as one of our goals is to constantly seek ways to increase efficiencies, reduce 
costs, and optimize customer service. 
 
LogistiCare has leveraged its extensive and varied NEMT management experience in working 
cooperatively with state clients to develop and implement protocols for every aspect of NEMT 
program management. The Account Manager for Iowa (known as the General Manager in 
LogistiCare’s organizational hierarchy) will be the primary contact for the Department’s Contract 
Administrator and will work with this individual to develop compliance reports, negotiate 
reporting requirements, and measure compliance.  
 
The Iowa Account Manager (known as the General Manager in LogistiCare’s organizational 
hierarchy) will have overall responsibility and authority to manage all operations within the state, 
and will be our Contract or Business/Budget Manager for the Department. This person will 
ensure that LogistiCare meets or exceeds all contractual standards and goals, and that our 
transportation network provides complete, high quality coverage throughout the state. The Iowa 
Account Manager will consult regularly with the Contract Administrator regarding quality 
improvement measures and other areas to be reviewed. He or she will host quarterly regional 
Health Care Facility Advisory Meetings and quarterly meetings with subcontracted transportation 
providers to which the Contract Administrator will be invited, and he or she will be fully 
accessible to the Department to participate in telephonic or face-to-face operational status 
conferences as requested. The Iowa Account Manager, who will report directly to LogistiCare’s 
Vice President of Operations, will have the support of a strong Director of Operations (DOR). 
The DOR will be available to take full responsibility for the Iowa operation in the Account 
Manager’s absence.  

3.2.1.4 BROKER RESPONSIBILITIES 
The Broker is responsible for the following contract management activities: 
a. Develop an operational procedures manual for the Department’s review and approval, in the format required. 
b. Update the operational procedures manual when changes are made, for the Department’s review and 
approval, and in the format required.  
c. Develop and maintain a database for tracking NEMT. Reports will be developed from the database 
information that will include, but may not be limited to, the following: 
1. Name and state identification number of Medicaid Member 
2. Name of Network transportation provider or Member/individual/volunteer providing the transportation 
3. Type of transportation provided (ambulance, wheelchair van, stretcher van, ambulance, air ambulance, 
commercial air, etc.) 
4. Time/location of Member pick-up, plus on-time verification 
5. Time/name of Medicaid service provider and location of Member drop-off, plus on-time verification 
6. Number of miles driven/flown 
7. Meals and lodging reimbursement, if any: 
  a) Name and address of lodging provider 
   b) Date(s) of stay 
   c) Daily rate, including taxes, and total cost of lodging 
   d) Cost of meals for each (Breakfast, Lunch, and Dinner) 
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d. Develop, maintain, and provide access to records required by the Department, State, and federal 
auditors/reviewers. 
e. Develop an electronic billing invoice and system that will allow Members/individuals/volunteers and 
Transportation agencies to bill electronically through the Internet. 
1. Develop and provide a paper billing invoice and system that will allow Members/individuals/volunteers and  
 Transportation agencies to bill by paper if Internet access is not available to them. 
f. Provide reports necessary to show compliance with all performance standards and other contract 
requirements. 
g. Provide to the Department reports/updates regarding the Broker’s activities. 
h. Ensure that effective and efficient communication protocols and lines of communication are established and 
maintained both internally and with Department staff. No action shall be taken that has the appearance of or 
the effect of reducing open communication and association between the Department and the Broker. 
i. Meet regularly with the Contract Administrator and/or other staffs/units of the IME to review account 
performance and resolve issues between the Broker and the State. 
j. Meet all federal and state privacy and security requirements within the Broker’s operation. 
k. Work with the Department to implement quality improvement procedures that are based on proactive 
improvements rather than retroactive responses. The Broker must understand the nature of and participate in 
quality improvement procedures that may occur in response to critical situations and will assist in the planning 
and implementation of quality improvement procedures based on proactive improvement.  
l. Monitor the quality and accuracy of the Broker’s own work. 
m. Submit quarterly reports (available electronically) of the quality assurance activities, findings, and corrective 
actions (if any) to the Department.  
n. For any performance falling below a State-specified level, explain the problems and identify the corrective 
action to improve the rating.  
1. Implement a State-approved corrective action plan within the time frame negotiated with the State. 
2. Provide documentation to the Department demonstrating the corrective action is complete and meets the 
State requirements. 
3. Meet the corrective action commitments within the agreed upon time frame.  
o. Maintain Department-approved documentation of the methodology used to measure and report completion of 
all requirements and attainment of all performance standards.  
LogistiCare has accumulated years of experience performing every management task required in 
the scope of work of this RFP. Our Scope of Work Experience table in Attachment 3, Task 
Experience Table details the major management tasks and performance standards included in our 
other LogistiCare contracts. The following table (Figure 3.2.1) provides some selected details 
from this larger document. Each number in the table represents the number of LogistiCare 
contracts that include the corresponding task. For example, the graphic shows that all 63 of our 
current contracts require us to recruit and manage subcontractors, monitor and report on our 
performance, and provide responsive call center services.   
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Figure 3.2.1 – LogistiCare NEMT Task Experience. LogistiCare has 
successfully managed all aspects of NEMT service delivery for 63  

 

 

 
OPERATIONAL PROCEDURES MANUAL  
For each of the 63 NEMT projects LogistiCare manages, we produce a set of written policies and 
procedures that encompasses both contract-specific policies and procedures and those that apply 
to all contracts nationwide. For the Department, the contract-specific policies and procedures will 
address each requirement stated in the RFP, as well as any additional contractual requirements.  

Currently, LogistiCare maintains more than 500 total policies and procedures across 63 
comprehensive policies and procedures manuals, and more than 50 supporting process flows that 
address NEMT programs and operations. We will use our vast standardized documentation 
library as the foundation of our Iowa Operational Procedures Manual. This practice will be 
beneficial both to the Department and LogistiCare, because it enables us to:  

• Share with the Department best practices gained through our more than 20 years 
of experience providing medical transportation services 

• Produce the new manuals quickly, efficiently, and accurately 
• Ensure a smooth project implementation by facilitating the rapid training of 

providers and new project staff based on the policies and procedures 

LogistiCare is practiced in addressing areas that are critical for the clear understanding and 
effective execution of an NEMT contract. We use a statement of work (SOW) chart to ensure that 
each policy and procedure for a specific client operation is represented. Our implementation 
leadership team will work closely with the Department to define and finalize the SOW. The team 
will leverage our past experience and existing documentation as we identify and develop key 
functionalities and measurements for the Iowa NEMT program. Draft policies and procedures 
will be developed, shared with key stakeholders, and then amended as appropriate. This process 
will continue until all policies and procedures are drafted and approved by the Department in the 
format required at least 30 days prior to implementation. Once fully approved, a final 
comprehensive Iowa Operational Procedures Manual will be released to the Department and the 
local operation to ensure that all expectations have been consistently addressed and applied. Once 
the contract is underway, LogistiCare will ensure that any changes proposed for the Manual will 
be approved by the Department prior to their implementation.  
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As with all LogistiCare projects, the Iowa Operational Manual will include policies and 
procedures that apply universally to the management and operation of any NEMT program. These 
universal policies and procedures include common practices that ensure proper application of 
federal, state, and other relevant laws such as the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability 
Act (HIPAA). The manual will also include administrative guidelines that LogistiCare applies 
across all contracts to ensure consistent service delivery. With the same efficiency with which we 
deploy comprehensive policies and procedures, we will also integrate them into a custom training 
solution that ensures Iowa’s specific business and contractual needs are met. 

THE LOGISTICAD DATABASE SYSTEM  
Program data will be managed through our data management system, LogistiCAD. LogistiCAD is 
the only system used in the industry that was specifically built for integrating all the functions of 
the transportation broker. Consequently, LogistiCAD has several comparative advantages over 
other systems, including the following demonstrated and proven ability to: 

• Handle millions of members and needed transactions 24x7 with speed and reliability 
• Permit maximum data integration of member, trip, and provider information for detailed 

analysis and reporting purposes, avoiding the complications and limitations associated with 
systems that rely on interfacing several different software products 

• Easily and quickly modify data fields, functionality, and reporting to suit new demands 
• Generate both electronic and hard copy reports in Excel format, as well as PDF and Word 
• Capture all data at the level of each individual leg of a trip, unlike other systems that are built 

on whole trip data (whether coded as a round trip or one-way trip) 
• Provide detailed control over billing, on-time performance analysis, driver and vehicle 

compliance, no-show behavior, class of service assignment, and many other aspects of 
utilization review and quality assurance 

• Meet all HIPAA privacy requirements  
 
The system is housed in our hardened Network Operation Centers (NOCs).  System data is 
replicated real-time to our backup NOC to ensure that no data is ever lost and to enable our 
extensive disaster recovery capabilities. 

THE LOGISTICAD SOFTWARE SYSTEM 
Management and control over many aspects of our NEMT operations are greatly enabled by our 
LogistiCAD information management system. LogistiCAD is a sophisticated, multi-user, 
transaction-based, and scalable application suite that provides all the capabilities needed to 
manage the processing and delivery of transportation and logistics services. LogistiCAD is 
integral to LogistiCare’s success; it is instrumental in capturing member data and determining 
member eligibility, facilitating ride authorization, managing complaints and ensuring compliance, 
managing transportation subcontractors, and reconciling billing. Information can be retrieved and 
reported by member ID, member name and date of trips, health care facility attended, 
transportation provider, meals and lodging expenditure details, and many other data fields.  

LogistiCare will use its proprietary information management system, LogistiCAD, to maintain 
complete records of all NEMT activities and to document that our operations adhere to all 
applicable Iowa Medicaid medical transportation rules and regulations. The information captured 
and stored in LogistiCAD will generate comprehensive reports for the Department on all aspects 
of the NEMT program within the required time frames.  

Virtually all functions in LogistiCAD can be completed with limited keystrokes or by using a 
combination of mouse movements and clicks. Limited keystrokes activate drop-down menus for 
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most fields, which expedite trip bookings. The software automatically fills in a majority of the 
information needed to schedule a reservation, based on existing set-up and historical information, 
enabling a trip to be booked very efficiently. This “quick reservation” feature of LogistiCAD 
enhances the productivity of call center Customer Service Representatives and leads to higher 
satisfaction among members. 

While we describe key functions of the LogistiCAD system in some detail, we do not attempt to 
provide a complete description of every LogistiCAD data field. Additional details about the 
definition and purpose of LogistiCAD data fields may be obtained from the annotated screen 
prints contained in Attachment 4.  

LOGISTICAD RESERVATIONS EDITOR 
The LogistiCAD Reservations Editor is the basic data input screen for reservation details and 
includes all features necessary for trip entry, editing, and auditing. The Reservations Editor 
shown below in Figure 3.2.2 consists of two basic modules: 

1. Trip Screen 

2. Rider Screen 

TRIP SCREEN FEATURES 
During the call intake process, Customer Service Representatives (CSRs) greet the caller, identify 
themselves, and offer assistance. Once the caller has indicated the intention to schedule a trip, the 
CSR will display the Trip screen on their computer and begin the process of entering the trip 
request into the LogistiCAD system. It is on the Trip screen that the CSR handling the reservation 
call will capture the name and state ID number of the Medicaid member, level of service (LOS) 
needed, pick-up location and time, name of Medicaid service provider, drop-off location and 
time, and trip miles. 

The first two lines of the Trip screen capture basic information about the Medicaid member for 
whom the trip request is being made. As is true throughout LogistiCAD, the white fields in the 
screen are filled in by the CSR and the gray fields are automatically filled in by LogistiCAD, 
based on other data contained in the member record, the facility record, the transportation 
provider record, or other LogistiCAD modules. The member record data can be triggered by 
entering either the caller’s Medicaid number or name. As the CSR begins to type in either piece 
of information, a drop down menu will display from which the CSR can select the desired 
number or name without having to type the whole record. This speeds up the reservation process 
and eliminates data entry errors. The Trip screen has six sub-screens that a CSR can access to 
input specific trip details.  
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Figure 3.2.2 (CONFIDENTIAL) – LogistiCAD Reservations Editor. The 
Reservations Editor’s Trip Screen captures important member data for 

scheduling NEMT services. 

 

RIDER SCREEN FEATURES 
The Rider screen (Figure 3.2.3) is used to enter, edit, and view information about a member. It 
includes all the fields necessary to enter new riders so that reservations can be made for them. In 
most of our business lines, an eligibility check must be done before entering a new rider. We 
describe our authorization procedures for determining caller eligibility, authorizing trip requests, 
and assigning the appropriate mode of service in Section 3.2.2 NEMT: Brokerage Process.   
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Figure 3.2.3 (CONFIDENTIAL) – LogistiCAD Reservations Editor. The 
Reservations Editor’s Rider Screen employs eight sub-screens to 
provide CSRs with at-a-glance views of member-specific data. 

 

LOGISTICAD’S UNIQUE AND INNOVATIVE FEATURES 
The most important feature of LogistiCAD is that it was designed and developed to be one thing: 
a transportation brokerage management solution. Instead of being designed as a routing solution 
or transit solution and then being “adjusted” to a broker solution, we designed all the business 
process flows of the system based on the fact that the broker generally does not perform the 
transportation.  

Another innovative feature of LogistiCAD is that we keep data for all our books of business in 
two IBM DB2 databases on enterprise-level database clusters.  Data is replicated in real-time 
between the two databases.  To implement a new contract, we do not have to create another copy 
of our database or system. We simply “set up” the new contract in our existing system using the 
system’s built-in editors. This saves implementation time and ensures we are prepared to start a 
new contract with minimal notice if needed. Over our history, LogistiCare has performed 
“emergency” go-lives for state clients within 30 days. Without our enterprise system, this would 
have been difficult. 

REPORTING  
LogistiCAD offers the flexibility to produce any type of operational, management, or ad hoc 
report that might be used to examine and strengthen our performance and procedures, as well as 
to provide the Department with insights into program functioning. Information in the LogistiCAD 
system is tracked on a real-time basis, and is immediately accessible for a number of uses: daily 
operations, service authorization, trip scheduling, provider reimbursement, member monitoring, 
and reporting. Not only does LogistiCAD have numerous real-time monitoring screens, the 
system also has almost 250 standard reports that help us to manage all aspects of the program. 
These standard reports address issues such as verification, eligibility, utilization and trip details, 
compliance, performance, and denials and fair hearings. In addition to the standard reports we 
already produce, LogistiCare has the capability to produce any type of report that the Department 
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may wish to introduce. We can also provide the Department with comprehensive electronic 
encounter data on a regular basis, as we do for most of our state clients.  

Our managers use standard utilization reports to analyze patterns and create reports for our state 
clients. LogistiCAD also produces numerous reports useful for assessing the quality of providers’ 
performance and their compliance with contract requirements. In addition, our Avaya Taske ACD 
reporting system and our Cacti digital recorder enable us to report in detail on every aspect of call 
center service quality. We leverage the data found in these reports to identify and correct 
deficiencies, as well as to determine what we are doing exceptionally well in maintaining 
performance standards that meet or exceed the Department’s requirements.  

LogistiCare management relies on the extensive reporting capabilities of our LogistiCAD system 
to guide our quality improvement activities. LogistiCAD stores input not only from our 
employees, but also from our transportation providers, field monitors, health care providers and 
client constituency. Summaries and analyses of this information will be made available to the 
Department in the time frame specified by the RFP – and at any other time as requested – for 
determining necessary measures that will improve the delivery of NEMT services. The following 
tables briefly describe some of the standards reports produced by our LogistiCAD system and 
used by our staff for managerial and reporting purposes. A complete listing of all LogistiCAD 
reports is located in Attachment 5, LogistiCAD Reports. 
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TRIP REPORTS 
This group of reports includes various trip denials reports, on-time performance, and utilization 
data reports based on selected criteria.  

Figure 3.2.4 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Standard Trip Reports. 
STANDARD TRIP REPORTS 

REPORT DESCRIPTION 
Trip Denial 
Report 

• This report prints the rider information for all the trips with a denial date within 
the user-provided date range.  

• The report is grouped by region/county. There is a subtotal after each region 
break and a grand total at the end of the report. 

Trip 
Cancellation 
Report 

• This report will accumulate the number of cancellations for each cancellation 
type and provide the totals at the end of the report. 

On-Time 
Performance 
Detail 

• This report provides a detailed listing of trips that exceed the on-time 
performance setting of the client. The data can be based on the pick-up or drop-
off times. The user provides a date range, an overage or floor limit, and what to 
compare the actual pick-up or drop-off time to.  

• Either clients or transportation providers can group the report data. 
On-Time 
Performance 
Summary 

• This summary report allows the user to break up trip data into overtime 
categories based on degree of lateness. The user provides a date range and the 
overtime period values, and the report displays a summary of those trips as a 
total count, time, and average time of the trips that fit into each defined time 
overage category. 

• Data can be grouped by either client or transportation provider. 
 

Figure 3.2.4 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Standard Trip Reports. 
STANDARD TRIP REPORTS 

REPORT DESCRIPTION 
Trip Counts By 
Month 

These reports show trip counts and percents by month. If more than a 12-month date 
range is selected only the first 12 months will show. The reports can be run by: 
• Gross Trips– shows all trips including cancellations 
• Net Authorized Trips  
• Net Authorized Trips by Health Care Facility Type 
• Cancelled Trips  
• Denied Trips  
• Mileage– shows mileage by month 

COMPLIANCE REPORTS 
Before a provider receives a trip assignment, LogistiCare requires that information be provided 
on each driver (criminal background, motor vehicle record, drug/alcohol screening, training) and 
each vehicle (vehicle identification number, registration, insurance, inspections). This 
information is entered into the LogistiCAD compliance module, which then allows quality 
assurance staff to run reports based upon the expiration date of each item. Each month, a list of 
upcoming driver or vehicle expirations is sent to each provider to ensure contract compliance. If 
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the requested information is not received, the provider may receive a reduction in trips, liquidated 
damages, or may be removed from the network until all information is received.   

Figure 3.2.5 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Standard Compliance Reports. 
STANDARD COMPLIANCE REPORTS 

REPORT DESCRIPTION 
Vehicle by 
Provider 

• Shows a detailed record of all vehicles registered to each transportation 
provider which are used to transport LogistiCare riders. 

Expired 
Insurance Detail 

Lists a provider’s insurances and associated expiration dates. This report can be 
broken down further by: 
• Expired Vehicle Insurance 
• Expired General Liability Insurance 
• Expired Worker’s Compensation Insurance 

Expired Vehicle 
Insurance 

• Shows a listing of vehicle insurance, of the transportation provider, which is 
expired by the given date.  

• The report is generated for the selected list of providers and can be sorted by 
provider or expiration date. 

Expired General 
Liability 

• Shows a listing of general liability insurance, of the transportation provider, 
which is expired by the given date.  

• The report is generated for the selected list of providers and can be sorted by 
provider or expiration date. 

Vehicles by 
Provider by Date 

• This report shows vehicles by provider as of the selected date. 

COMPLAINT REPORTS 
Since LogistiCAD uses a high-performance relational database management system, complaints 
can be analyzed according to any field of interest. Any employee of LogistiCare can enter a 
complaint into the LogistiCAD system at any time. Each complaint is coded by type and then 
imported into the LogistiCAD system. The Quality Assurance (QA) Representative will 
investigate each complaint, determine its validity, make an entry for each step of the complaint 
investigation, and assign a complaint closing code that describes the complaint’s final disposition.  

Managers may access multiple types of complaint reports, including valid complaints, non-valid 
complaints, and complaints by region, type, member, provider, date, closing code, complainant, 
and health care facility. Based on the information on the complaint reports, affected providers 
may be required to submit a written plan of action, be assessed liquidated damages, or may be 
required to bar a driver from NEMT service depending on the severity of a complaint. If the 
complaint involves a LogistiCare employee, that employee’s manager will be notified and given a 
time frame in which to submit a plan of action that may include written discipline, retraining, or 
termination.  
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Figure 3.2.6 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Standard Complaint Reports. 
STANDARD COMPLAINT REPORTS 

REPORT DESCRIPTION 
Individual 
Complaint Data 

• Provides a detailed record of user-selected complaints including detailed 
information on a complaint, the complaining party, whom the complaint was 
against, trip information, and the complete complaint activity listing along with 
the closing code. 

Provider Detail • Shows a listing, grouped by provider, of the complaint type, date, trip 
identifiers, and closing code of complaints made during a user-specified date 
range. It also provides totals by complaint type and transportation provider. 
The report is generated for complaints that are open, closed, or both. 

Region by 
Closing Code 

• Summarizes the number of complaints sorted by region, complaint type, and 
closing codes.  

• The complaints are further segmented by the complaining party and grouped 
by region and complaint type.  

• The report data is generated for complaints made during a user selected date 
range, for user-selected regions, and for complaints that are open, closed, or 
both. 

Rider • Shows a detailed listing of complaints grouped by rider.  
• The user can specify a minimum number of complaints per rider, which limits 

the report to those riders with complaints at or in excess of the established 
threshold.  

• Selection criteria include date ranges, regions, and complaint status. 
Resolution 
Letters 

• Generates all complaint resolution letters requested by the user. 

OTHER REPORTS 
LogistiCare has also developed a variety of other analytical reports to help us manage NEMT 
programs. These include, for example, Matrix reports for trip trend analysis, Destination Address 
reports to help with more efficient trip assignments, and Facility Pre-schedule reports, which are 
used by our Facility Coordinators to confirm standing order attendance with health care facilities.  
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Figure 3.2.7 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Other Standard Reports. 

OTHER STANDARD REPORTS 
REPORT DESCRIPTION 

Matrix Reports • These reports are multifaceted and include trip data by provider, member, and 
level of service, cost, and county and health care facility type. This report 
group that our management team uses to analyze month-end trip data for 
trending, cost comparison, and utilization—to make adjustments as necessary 
for a successful and cost efficient operation. 

Health Care 
Facility Pre-
schedule Report  

• This report lists each recipient, their address, appointment time, appointment 
days, level of service, and transportation provider. The report is sent monthly 
to all facilities that have standing-order patients (subscription trips) to allow the 
health care facility social workers and case managers to make changes to 
several patients’ changes at one time.  

• This report also allows the facility coordinators to confirm that the information 
in the LogistiCAD system is correct to avoid missed appointments or incorrect 
vehicles being dispatched (i.e., sending an ambulatory vehicle for a wheelchair 
bound patient). 

Standing Order 
Verification 
Report 

• This report is also sent monthly with the Facility Pre-schedule Report to all 
facilities with standing order patients. This report lists each patient assigned to 
that health care facility and the days of the month. The health care facility will 
circle the days of the month the member did not attend his/her regularly 
scheduled appointment and then fax it back to the health care facility 
department.  

• The returned information is then forwarded to the Fraud and Abuse 
Department to compare to billing records. Historically, standing orders have 
been the area where most fraudulent trips occur. If it is determined that a 
patient did not attend his/her appointment on a certain day, but the 
transportation provider billed LogistiCare for the trip, then further investigation 
will ensue. If, after a complete investigation, it is determined that the provider 
billed the trip fraudulently, the provider may be assessed liquidated damages, 
receive a decreased trip volume, and/or be removed from the network.  

Reports of 
Service Denial 
and Fair 
Hearings 

• Currently, when a denial of service occurs during the call-taking process, the 
CSR will record the reason for the denial in the LogistiCAD system, which will 
automatically generate a denial letter explaining both the decision to deny 
service and LogistiCare’s Formal Member Appeals process. LogistiCare keeps 
a copy of the denial letter on file and mails the original to the member within 
one working day of the decision. 

• Reasons for the denial will remain in the system as part of the individual 
member’s historical data until modified or deleted, showing all denials for 
transportation, past and present, for each member. 

 

All records related to the execution of the Iowa contract will be stored in LogistiCAD and made 
readily available to the Department, State, and federal auditors/reviewers. We can respond to 
requests for information generally in one business day. 

ELECTRONIC AND PAPER BILLING SYSTEM 
LogistiCare processes millions of provider payments each year, including payments to 
subcontracted providers, volunteer drivers, and transit companies. LogistiCAD allows us to 
quickly process cleans claims and provide prompt payment to transportation providers and 
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members, individuals, and volunteers. In compliance with the requirements of the RFP, we will 
develop a web-based, fillable claim form for members, volunteers, individuals, and transportation 
providers to submit their claims to LogistiCare via a secure website. Those without Internet 
access will be able to submit a paper invoice for payment. 
 
All transportation providers will submit to LogistiCare weekly invoices summarizing the number 
and type of trips performed and the amount to be paid. All invoices will be accompanied by 
detailed drivers’ logs. These logs will include:  the driver’s full name; driver signature; vehicle 
ID; pick-up and drop-off times; pick-up and destination addresses; name of the member (and if 
applicable, escort name), the member’s signature, job number (assigned by LogistiCare), and 
other essential information as specified in the RFP.  
 
Providers will also have the option of submitting their completed trips through our provider 
website.  By submitting trips via the website, providers get instantaneous feedback on potential 
billing issues that can be corrected up front.  If providers submit trips via the website, they must 
still submit an invoice and their driver logs as proof of trip completion. 
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Figure 3.2.8 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Invoice Editor Screen. The invoices of providers, 
members, individuals, and volunteers are processed via LogistiCAD. 

 
  

COMMUNICATIONS AND MEETINGS 
LogistiCare will establish and maintain efficient and effective communication protocols internally 
for our Iowa operations, as well as with the Department. The Iowa Account Manager (known as 
the General Manager in LogistiCare’s organizational hierarchy) will be the primary point of 
contact for the Department’s Contract Manager. We will designate an office onsite at the Iowa 
call center/regional office for the Contract Manager’s use. With all our state clients, we operate in 
an environment of transparency and at no time during contract execution shall LogistiCare 
undertake any action that has the appearance or effect of reducing open communication and 
association between the Department and us. We will make information readily accessible to the 
Department and provide updates and reports regarding our activities, communicating through the 
Iowa Account Manager and through technology.  
 
For example, LogistiCare currently provides read-only access to our LogistiCAD system for a 
number of our state clients. Clients can access the system remotely using our enterprise Citrix 
Presentation Server system. The Citrix system can be accessed using any Windows computer 
with a browser and Internet connection. Communications with the remote user are performed 
using Citrix’s Secure Access Gateway appliances and secured using SSL 256-bit encryption. 
Running applications from Citrix requires only the installation of a small browser plug-in making 
set-up easy. We take the privacy of Medicaid members seriously, and all LogistiCAD 
communication methods meet HIPAA and state privacy and security requirements. 
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LogistiCare will meet regularly with the Contract Administrator and/or other staff/units of the 
IME throughout the term of the contract as needed and upon request by the Department to discuss 
the NEMT program and to resolve any administrative or operational issues. We will meet with 
Department representatives in person, by teleconference, or by videoconference as directed by the 
Department.  

QUALITY ASSURANCE APPROACH 
At LogistiCare, defined standards and rigorous corporate oversight guide our comprehensive 
Quality Assurance (QA) program. Based on this foundation, we will implement a Quality 
Assurance Plan for the Iowa NEMT program that will include the following four categories of 
activity:  
 
• Operational Procedures - Quality-oriented operating processes that help ensure we “get it 

right the first time” 
• Real-time Service Monitoring and Response - Continuous monitoring and immediately 

responsive actions that enable us to correct service problems as they occur 
• QA Audit and Review - Retrospective reports and analysis used to identify service issues 

and devise quality improvement plans 
• Corrective Action and Service Improvement Plans - Plans for communication, training, 

and procedural change to bring about specific performance improvements 
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Figure 3.2.9 – LogistiCare’s Quality Assessment and Improvement Approach. 
Primary features of each aspect of our QA approach are described below. 

LOGISTICARE QA APPROACH HIGHLIGHTS 
QA COMPONENTS COMPONENT DESCRIPTIONS 

Quality Standards and Corporate Oversight 
Corporate QMC Management  
Internal QA Reporting  
QI Plans 

We manage the QAP at the corporate level, care-
fully monitor local operations, and regularly en-
hance QAPs. 

Quality-Oriented Operational Procedures 
Recruitment and Training  
Written Policies and Procedures  
Explicit Provider Contracts  
Data Management and Call Center Technology  

We hire qualified people and contract with quali-
fied NEMT providers, clearly communicate our 
expectations, and give them the tools and training 
to perform with excellence.  

Real-time Monitoring and Response 
Call Center Performance  
Live Queue Monitoring  
Live Call Monitoring and Intervention 
Escalation of Problem Calls  

We monitor all call queues and CSRs, and inter-
vene when necessary to deliver superior customer 
service.  

Transportation Provider Credentials Compliance 
Provider Credentials Monitoring  
Driver Credentials and Screening Verification  
Vehicle Inspections and Insurance Notifications  

We carefully track licenses and insurance and no-
tify when renewals are coming due. We ensure 
that vehicles are safe, comfortable, and reliable.  

Transportation Provider Performance 
Field Observations 
Live Response to Late Trips  
Incident and Accident Management  

We observe drivers first-hand, immediately re-
spond to calls about late-running trips, and effec-
tively manage critical issues using defined proce-
dures.  

Quality Audits and Reviews 
Call Center Audit Measures  
Transportation Service Monitoring  
Complaint Management 
Customer Satisfaction Surveys  

We compare performance metrics with estab-
lished standards. We track and resolve all com-
plaints. We survey NEMT stakeholders for addi-
tional feedback.  

Quality Enforcement and Corrective Actions 
Call Center and Provider Network Improvements 

Call Center Corrective Actions 
Provider Credentials Enforcement 
Provider Performance Improvements  

When the need for improvement has been identi-
fied, we create educational and other action plans 
to ensure future improved performance. 

URAC ACCREDITATION 
In May 2006, LogistiCare was certified by the Utilization Review Accreditation Commission 
(URAC), a primary utilization review and quality assurance accreditation agency for managed 
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care organizations of all types. LogistiCare was eligible for the accreditation because our business 
model comprises many of the same operational practices used by HMOs, such as 
customer/member services, compliance, fraud and abuse monitoring, data analysis, network 
development, and credentialing. This accreditation makes us the first non-emergency 
transportation management company to earn the Core Standards accreditation from URAC. 
Additional information about URAC and the certification process is included in Attachment 6. 

Core Standards are basic standards with which all URAC-accredited entities must comply. These 
standards address several key organizational management functions that are important for any 
health care organization. The Core Standards provide the basic structures and processes any 
organization must have to maintain a level of quality expected in a URAC-accredited 
organization.  

URAC uses the Core Standards in two distinct ways. First, the Core Standards serve as a common 
foundation for all of URAC’s accreditation programs. This means that all URAC-accredited 
companies will need to meet the basic requirements of the Core Standards, as well as the 
function-specific requirements for a particular accreditation program. For example, a UM-
accredited company will need to meet Core Standards and UM Standards.  

Second, URAC offers stand-alone accreditation under the Core Standards for any health care 
organization that does not otherwise qualify for a URAC accreditation program. The health care 
marketplace is very diverse, and many types of health care organizations have not had an 
opportunity to demonstrate a commitment to quality by seeking accreditation simply because 
there was no accreditation program appropriate for them. URAC Core Accreditation provides a 
general set of quality requirements that can be applied in any health care organization setting.  

LogistiCare will work closely with the Department to implement quality improvement procedures 
that are based on proactive improvements rather than retroactive responses. In our more than 20 
years of NEMT brokerage experience, we have faced and overcome a vast array of challenges in 
managing 63 programs. This expertise places us in the unique position of being able to anticipate 
potential critical problems and implement procedures that circumvent them.  

We have previously discussed our LogistiCAD database system’s capacity for generating a broad 
range of utilization, compliance, and performance reports. LogistiCare will leverage the powerful 
reporting capabilities of LogistiCAD to produce reports for the Department. As required by the 
RFP, we will submit quarterly reports, which will also be available electronically, to the 
Department about our quality assurance activities, findings, and any corrective actions taken. 

LogistiCAD will play a key role in our performance monitoring activities. We will analyze data 
stored in LogistiCAD to ensure that we remain compliant with performance standards throughout 
contract duration. In the event a deficiency or deficiencies become apparent, we will explain the 
problem and identify the corrective action to the Department. We will implement a State-
approved corrective action plan within a time frame negotiated with the State. Appropriate 
documentation demonstrating that the plan is complete and compliant with State requirements 
will be made available to the Department, and all corrective action time frames will be met. 
LogistiCare will maintain Department-approved documentation of our methodology used to 
measure and report compliance, as well as attainment of all performance standards.  

As clearly indicated by our discussion above, LogistiCAD is the linchpin of our brokerage 
business. It allows us to capture and store member data, exchange information with state clients, 
analyze data with a view to identifying and correcting any performance-related issues, and 
generate reports that assist us in determining our strengths and any weaknesses in our brokerage 
system. This unique and powerful database system allows LogistiCare to focus on the most 
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important aspect of NEMT service delivery—the members we transport to and from their medical 
appointments.  

3.2.1.5 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
The following performance standards apply: 
a. Reporting Deadline 
1. Provide the required reports within ten business days of the end of the reporting period.  
b. Documentation 
1. Develop operational procedure manuals in the state-prescribed format for Department review and approval 
at least 20 business days prior to the start of operations.  
 2. Update operational procedure manuals in the state-prescribed format within ten business days of the 
implementation of a change. 
3. Develop and maintain a database for tracking NEMT. The database will be updated monthly.  
4. Identify deficiencies and provide the Department with a corrective action plan within ten business days of 
discovery of a problem found through the internal quality control reviews.  
c. Annual Performance Reporting: 
The Broker will provide annual performance reporting no later than October 15 of each contract year for the 
state fiscal year that ended in the prior month of June. (The first Annual Performance Report is due October 15, 
2011, for the start of operations through June 30, 2011). The Broker will present the required data in 
Department-approved format and content for the annually reported performance standards. DHS may publish 
the annual measurements or make them available online through the IME website.  
LogistiCare will provide the required reports to the Department within 10 days of the end of the 
reporting period. A discussion about the full range of LogistiCAD’s reporting capabilities is 
located in Section 3.2.1.4 Broker Responsibilities. We will develop operational procedure 
manuals in the state-prescribed format for Department review and approval at least 20 business 
days prior to the start of operations and make any updates to operational procedure manuals in the 
state-prescribed format within 10 days of the implementation of change. For a discussion of our 
policy and procedures methodology, please refer to Section 3.2.1.4 Broker Responsibilities. We 
will also identify deficiencies and provide the Department with a corrective action plan within 10 
business days of discovery of a problem found through internal quality control reviews. 

As with all our projects, Iowa NEMT data tracking will be managed through our data 
management system, LogistiCAD. Member data from Iowa will be incorporated into our 
LogistiCAD database and updated monthly. Trip outcome, complaint, compliance, and 
billing/payment data will also be captured and reported by this one database system. The 
capabilities of our LogistiCAD database is discussed at length in Section 3.2.1.4 Broker 
Responsibilities. 

In compliance with the requirements of the RFP, LogistiCare will provide annual performance 
reports to the Department no later than October 15 of each contract year for the state fiscal year 
that ended in the prior month of June. We currently generate similar reports for our 63 existing 
contracts, which should assure the Department that we can accommodate its reporting needs.  We 
will present the required data in Department-approved format and content for the annually 
reported performance standards. LogistiCare also acknowledges that the Department may publish 
the annual measurements or make them available online through the IME website. 

3.2.2 NEMT: BROKERAGE PROCESS 
The basic steps the Broker will follow in arranging advance notice transportation (i.e. advance notice is defined as 
three (3) or more business days or more than 72 hours. Urgent care is defined as any transportation less than 
72 hours.), verifying eligibility, and, if applicable, reimbursing transportation providers for services, are as follows:  
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a. The Broker is contacted by the Member or the Member’s representative, either through a telephone call or 
electronic mail, requesting NEMT transportation services. The Broker obtains and tracks the request and trip 
information, including the date and time of the request, the date, time and place of the appointment, and 
whether it is a recurring or one-time trip. 

b. The Broker reviews the trip request and verifies the Member’s Medicaid eligibility for the requested date of 
service. 

c. The Broker assesses the Member’s eligibility for transportation services in accordance with current NEMT 
transportation policy. This includes a determination that the Member has also met program requirements as 
defined in 441 IAC 78.13. 

d. Any special needs of the Member are noted that may affect the mode of transportation, and the Broker 
selects the appropriate mode of transportation. 

e. Upon completion of the screening of a Member and determination of trip eligibility, the Broker authorizes the 
transportation service and informs the Member or his or her representative of the scheduled pick-up time. 

f. The Broker assigns the trip to the most appropriate cost-effective transportation provider available, consistent 
with the transportation needs of the Member. The transportation provider is notified of the assignment in 
sufficient time to accept the trip or reject it, in which case there must be sufficient time to assign the trip to 
another provider. 

g. The Broker will have an established method of effectively identifying, scheduling, and coordinating standing 
orders, or recurring trips, especially as it applies to those Members who are disabled or have special needs.  

h. The Broker informs the Member or his or her representative of the transportation arrangements. 

i. After the trip occurs, the Broker makes payment to the transportation provider. The Broker may contact the 
service provider to verify that the Member received the authorized transportation service.  
 
These procedures are generally applicable when network transportation providers are used. The procedures 
may vary when fixed-route public transportation (bus passes and tickets), mileage reimbursement, or other 
appropriate transportation services are used. 
LogistiCare recognizes that not all individuals receiving medical assistance are eligible for 
NEMT services. We have already developed a proven gatekeeping system that will allow us to 
determine whether a member is eligible for the transportation requested, based on eligibility 
information provided by the Department, as well as the program requirements defined in 441 IAC 
78.13. The Iowa Study indicated that because of their workload, IM workers simply don’t have 
the bandwidth to manage all aspects of NEMT eligibility screening.  LogistiCare’s capable 
oversight of the NEMT screening, verification, scheduling, authorization, and reimbursement 
process will ensure that each trip is valid under current Medicaid rules, as well as relieve IM 
workers from the burden of performing these tasks. We will utilize LogistiCAD, our proprietary 
data management system, to capture data required for screening, assigning, dispatching, and 
monitoring Iowa NEMT services for this contract. A team of well-trained, knowledgeable, and 
compassionate Customer Services Representatives will guide Medicaid members through the 
reservation process. 

As reservation calls or emails come into the Iowa call center, the Customer Service 
Representative (CSR) will enter the member’s name or Medicaid state identification number (ID) 
into our LogistiCAD reservations intake screen. Typically, when an NEMT trip request is made, 
information about the member will already be contained in our database as a result of regular data 
file downloads from the Department, which will include member eligibility data. A critical aspect 
of LogistiCare’s quality assurance monitoring is ensuring that our CSRs are in compliance with 
contractual and internal performance standards. LogistiCare develops a unique call script for each 
contract, based on our existing templates, which CSRs are required to follow during the call 
intake process. We have included a sample of our CSR Call Center Script in Attachment 7, Staff 
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Training Materials. The call script, coupled with our QA process, validates that CSRs follow the 
script on every call so that every trip request is processed properly and efficiently. We have also 
included a sample CSR Quality Evaluation Form in Attachment 7. 

Based on data stored in our system, the member’s specific eligibility information will 
automatically display on the reservation screen, enabling the CSR to quickly verify that the 
member is eligible for transportation services. Upon verification of eligibility, basic member data 
will automatically populate the relevant reservation data fields. Details on our call intake screens 
that will be used by CSRs are provided later in this section. If the member is a first-time requestor 
of transportation services or the member’s name or identification number is not in our 
LogistiCAD database, the CSR will attempt to verify eligibility through alternative data sources 
provided by the Department. When eligibility is confirmed, the CSR will continue with the 
authorization process. If we are unable to determine eligibility, we will contact the Department 
for verification.  

The CSR will obtain and/or verify details of the member’s request, including the time and date of 
the request; trip date and time; the name, address, and phone number of the medical appointment; 
the member’s name, phone number and Medicaid number; whether it is a routine or standing 
order trip; and any special needs which may affect the type of transportation needed. All of our 
procedures, including eligibility determination, are fully documented (with process flow) in our 
Policies and Procedures, in which our CSRs will be well-versed. 

The CSR will also verify and log that the trip is covered under the Iowa NEMT benefit rules, 
determining whether: 

• The medical service being performed is a Medicaid-covered service 
• Transportation to the designated medical service is a covered service 
• The member has alternative means of transport 
• The distance to the designated medical practitioner’s location is appropriate 
• Any trip limitation rules render an otherwise eligible trip ineligible 

LogistiCare will screen each trip request for Medicaid member eligibility and for compliance 
with the Department’s NEMT covered services definitions. The mode of service we assign to the 
trip will be determined by medical necessity and will represent the least costly, medically 
appropriate mode of service. Trips will be assigned to transportation providers to ensure 
efficiency in routing, overall cost effectiveness, and continuity for both member and 
transportation provider. Iowa geobase information will be incorporated into our system to 
validate addresses and to calculate trip miles automatically. Member data from Iowa will be 
incorporated into our LogistiCAD database. Trip outcome, complaint, compliance, and 
billing/payment data will also be captured and reported by this one database system. Upon 
contract award, LogistiCare will ensure that the LogistiCAD system is fully operational for Iowa 
prior to the execution date of the contract.  

DOCUMENTING AUTHORIZATION DECISIONS 
Covered service authorization starts with determining whether the requested trip is Medicaid 
compensable for the caller’s medical condition. Utilizing a script designed to obtain pertinent 
member information in the most efficient and direct manner, our CSRs will ask the caller for a 
description both of the basic service to be rendered by the medical provider and the medical 
condition of the rider. If the caller is unable to provide the necessary information, the CSR will 
request the information from the medical provider.  

LogistiCare is well aware of and highly sensitive to the fact that the health and well-being of 
Iowa’s Medicaid members are dependent upon their ability to access medical care via NEMT ser-
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vices.  For this reason, we will never allow the physician verification process to interfere with a 
member receiving the needed transportation. If requested authorization from the medical practi-
tioner is delayed, we will give the benefit of the doubt to the member and provide the requested 
transportation as we work with the medical practitioner to receive the requested information. If 
documentation problems persist, we will consult with the Department about how best to resolve 
the issue. 
 
In determining NEMT service eligibility, the health care provider’s Medicaid certification status 
and licensing credentials are important factors. For contracts that require proof of licensing and 
certification of the individual medical service provider as a component of the authorization 
process, LogistiCAD stores the required certification information in a separate Medical Persons 
Editor screen. 

LEVEL OF SERVICE ELIGIBILITY  
The final step in the NEMT authorization process is determining the least costly, medically 
appropriate mode of service for the requested trip. This involves selecting the appropriate type of 
vehicle, provider, and level of assistance. By level of assistance we mean the level of assistance 
required of the driver (curb-to-curb, door-to-door, hand-to-hand), possible use of escorts, 
attendants, or child car seats, or ancillary services such as meals.  

LogistiCAD has specific fields in which this data can be entered, where it can be readily viewed 
by both the CSR and the transportation provider. The Trip Detail screen of LogistiCAD’s 
Reservations Editor (see Figure 3.2.2) has fields for Level of Service, Escort, and Car Seat, as 
well as a Directions field which can contain text notes for the transportation provider. The 
Medical Info, Notes, and Restrictions sub-screens of the Rider screen can also be used to record 
medical and other information that helps inform the level-of-service authorization decision.  

ADVANCED RESERVATIONS 
LogistiCare has special authorization procedures for standing order and urgent care trips. We will 
describe how the LogistiCAD system facilitates data entry and recordkeeping in support of these 
special authorization procedures using the Preschedule Editor. 

SUBSCRIPTION (STANDING ORDER) RESERVATIONS 
LogistiCare’s Facility Coordinators are responsible for entering subscription (or standing order) 
trips, such as for dialysis treatments, in the LogistiCAD system. Typically, these types of 
reservations are faxed to us by case workers from the medical facility. The Facility Coordinators 
initially enter the standing order request data into the Trip Details screen to create the first trip for 
the member, and then copy this first trip enough times to create at least two weeks worth of 
standing order trips for the caller. A sample standing order from is included in Attachment 8, 
Sample Authorization Forms. 
 
The Facility Coordinator also uses a special Preschedule Editor screen to (1) capture additional 
information about the standing order reservation, (2) initiate the automatic propagation (self-
renewal) process for the standing order, and (3) insert a termination date for the standing order. 
Even if the standing order has not been given an end date by the authorizing physician, a 
termination date will be inserted in order to trigger a mandatory reauthorization at some time in 
the future.  
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Figure 3.2.10 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Special Screen for Recording Standing Order 
Trips. The Preschedule Editor has sub-screens for trip details and notes. 

 

URGENT AND SAME-DAY RESERVATIONS 
As indicated in Section 3.2.1.4 Broker Responsibilities  in our discussion of the Trip Details 
screen, the amount of advance notice given for a reservation results in the reservation being 
prioritized according to the following categories: “Urgent,” “Same Day,” “One Day,” “Two 
Days,” “3+ Days,” or “Prescheduled.” All urgent and same day trips are immediately flagged on 
the Trip Assignment screens of the transportation staff, who immediately work to place the trip 
with a provider (“dispatch”). Urgent trips must be responded to within three hours of the request 
for service. 

CONFIRMING AND SAVING THE RESERVATION 
Once all necessary information is entered, the CSR verifies accuracy with the caller and saves the 
reservation in the LogistiCAD database. LogistiCAD automatically assigns a Reference Number 
to the reservation, which the CSR provides to the Medicaid member or the individual making the 
reservation on behalf of the member. LogistiCare will confirm all details of the scheduled trip at 
the time the reservation is made. If for any reason the initially assigned provider has to be 
changed, we will make every effort to notify the member in advance. 

FINDING AND MODIFYING THE RESERVATION 
If it is ever necessary to review and/or modify a reservation, the LogistiCAD Find function makes 
it easy to retrieve a reservation from the LogistiCAD database in a number of ways, including by:  
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Figure 3.2.11 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Denial Letter Activation Screen. 

• Reference number  
• Member name 
• Medicaid ID number  
• Pick-up facility 
• Destination facility 
• Date 
• Transportation provider 

RESERVATION AUDIT TRAIL DIALOG 
It is important for quality control and accountability purposes to be able to track all changes made 
to a reservation, whether these involve notes, changed pick-up times, changed provider 
assignments, or any other modification. The LogistiCAD Reservation Audit Trail screen shows 
all the changes that have been made to a reservation or completed trip record, the users who 
completed those changes, and the date and time of changes. If a reservation has multiple trip legs, 
changes for each leg can also be viewed. 

DENYING A RESERVATION REQUEST 
If a reservation request for service must be denied, the CSR enters the complete reservation 
request data and then activates the denial Reason Dialog screen. When this process has been 
completed, the reservation acquires a “denied” status and the denial reason appears in the Denial 
Reason field of the Additional Information screen under the Trip Details screen. This, in turn, 
triggers the denial and appeals communication process more fully described in Section 3.3.2.1.2 
Broker Responsibilities: General. The CSR will inform the caller that the trip request is denied 
and the member will be sent a letter of explanation. Figure 3.2.11 below illustrates how denial-
related form letters can be stored in LogistiCAD and easily produced by the CSR.  
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THE TRIP ASSIGNMENT PROCESS 

t 

 and 

• L
 

 that result from using this automated trip assignment system: 

ent errors and re-routes.  

t 

es 

f county trips. In this example, each of the two providers selected 
ry trips 

LogistiCare assigns trips to providers in ways that promote the most efficient use of multi-loaded 
vehicles, while complying with strict standards for trip durations. The process of trip assignmen
is greatly assisted by the LogistiCAD Automated Trip Assignment Editor, but our trained 
Transportation Coordinators will review and adjust final trip assignments to ensure the fairest
most efficient outcomes. 

THE AUTOMATED TRIP ASSIGNMENT EDITOR 
LogistiCAD provides the CSR and transportation staff with a powerful tool for automatically 
assigning trips to providers based upon a set of assignment rules. LogistiCAD works through a 
hierarchy of trip assignment criteria until it finds a provider that matches one of the criteria or 
until all possibilities are exhausted. If LogistiCAD does not select a provider for a particular trip, 
the transportation department makes the assignment manually. As with all trip assignments, 
LogistiCAD-generated trip assignments are reviewed by the transportation department before 
being transmitted to providers. 

While trip assignment criteria are configurable, the hierarchy of criteria typically used by 
LogistiCAD is the following: 

• Standing order trip with transportation provider assigned 
• Rider-preferred transportation provider 
• Facility-preferred transportation provider  
• Preferred transportation provider by Zip Code 
• Preferred transportation provider by City 
• Preferred transportation provider by County 

owest cost transportation provider 

Multiple providers can be linked to each of these criteria, in accordance with adjustable volume 
percentages for each provider. For example, 20% of trips to a particular health care facility could 
be automatically assigned to one provider, with 30% going to a second provider, and 50% to a 
third provider.  

There are several benefits

• It greatly reduces the number of trip assignm
• It reduces average call time, allowing more calls to be taken with fewer staff.  
• It improves the productivity of our transportation providers by facilitating more efficien

vehicle routing, which in turn lowers their per-trip costs.  
 
The figure immediately below shows the Auto Assignment Editor screen, which is used to cus-
tomize trip parameters. In this example, the “County” tab is being used to link particular counti
with particular providers. Multiple providers can be linked with a county, and each can be as-
signed a particular percentage o
for automatic linking to Muscogee County is automatically allocated 50% of the ambulato
for that county. 
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Figure 3.2.12 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Automated Trip Assignment Screen. 

 

FINALIZING TRIP ASSIGNMENTS 
Trip assignment coordinators use the LogistiCAD Trip Assignment Editor to review the status of 
trip assignments and finalize assignments for the following service day. As displayed below, the 
Trip Assignment Editor contains five data review and entry screens. 
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Figure 3.2.13 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Trip Assignment Review and Edit Screen. 

 
The 1.Trips screen is an area used to view and modify trip assignments. On the left is the Original 
Source list, which shows a list of potential trips to assign or reassign based on their current stat

Unassigned trips: These are trips that do not yet have a transportation provider selected for the
Unassigned trips include recovery and reroute trips.  

Recovery trips: This is a special filter that shows only recovery (late running) trips, which are 
high priority trips assigned to a specific transportation coordinator (or “dispatcher”).  

us.  

m. 

Re-Route trips: These are trips that were originally assigned to a provider, but which the 
.  

The center section of the Trips screen is a grid that shows trips included under the source 
category selected in the Original Source window. The grid displays one trip per row, including 
detailed information in the bottom section of the Trip screen. The user can re-sort the grid by 
clicking on the heading of a column. Columns can also be re-ordered by clicking on a column 
heading and moving it to the right and left.  

The window on the far right of the Trip screen displays “pending” trips that have been re-
assigned but not yet stored in the database. Trips in this window are associated with the provider 
to whom they have been assigned. Pending work can be marked to fax or receive a cost or miles 
override when saved to the database. 

The 2. Summary of Trips screen shows a list of transportation providers with summaries of trips 
for each provider, broken down by level of service. The left window gives a level-of-service 
summary for all trips assigned to each provider. The right window displays each trip, one row at a 
time, with the associated trip detail in the bottom half of the Summary of Trips screen. This 
screen allows the transportation coordinator to quickly review trip assignments against the known 
level-of-service capacity of each provider.  

provider cannot accommodate

Original provider: This is a list of transportation providers. The coordinator can see the trips 
assigned to a specific provider on the display date by selecting one of the provider names in the 
list. 
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The r 
any ment.   

The 
previously

The  the 

transportation
organized b

basis. 

ong 
providers to p mix 

cated 

performance t

of 
a sample trip list. Note how any notes from the Directions (Dir) fields in the Trip Details screen 

3. Trip Notes screen displays the notes previously entered by the CSR (or anyone else) fo
trip. New notes can also be entered, such as those explaining the reason for a reassign

4. Rider Notes screen also displays any notes for the rider that may have been made 
, and also can be used to make additional notes. 

5. Filter/Sort Information screen shows the Filter/Sort settings currently being used by
transportation coordinator to filter and organize all the trips being viewed. For example, the 

 coordinator can choose just to deal with trips originating in certain zip codes, 
y pick-up time.  

LogistiCare CSRs use these LogistiCAD tools to finalize trip lists for providers on a daily 
Before trip lists are distributed, LogistiCare’s routing staff review the lists to ensure that 
appropriate volumes and trip types have been assigned. If necessary, trips will be adjusted am

optimize fairness and routing efficiency. In addition, we review each day’s tri
to ensure that trips are appropriately distributed throughout the day and appropriately lo
geographically, to allow the provider to route most efficiently. We also monitor provider 

o ensure that the provider is only sent the number of trips it can handle effectively. 

The trip lists contain all the information needed by the provider to select the most appropriate 
vehicle, driver, and additional assistance for the rider. See below for a screen print of a portion 

display on the trip list. 
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Figure 3.2.14 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Sample Provider Trip List. 

 
The finalized trip lists are then transmitted to providers via fax or the provider can download 
them over the Internet using our secure provider website. Trip lists can be sorted by time or 
region to facilitate driver assignment and routing by the transportation provider. Providers review 
their trip assignments in the evenings and create vehicle routes for the following days. Any trips 
that cannot be accommodated by the provider’s fleet are re-routed to the LogistiCare 
transportation coordinators, who then find an alternative provider to perform the trip. LogistiCare 
generally allows providers to see their assignments at least three days in advance.  This ensures 
any re-routes can be handled and re-assigned in time. 

Information about trip refusals is collected for each provider and regularly monitored to 
determine if a provider is refusing more trips than usual. LogistiCare will then investigate 
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whether the p king” rovider’s capacity has diminished or whether the provider is “cherry pic
among the assigned trips. In either case, appropriate corrective action will be taken. 
 
TRACKING THE TRANSMISSION OF TRIPS 
It is critically important, for quality assurance and accountability, to be able to track the transmis-
sion of faxed trip lists and individual trip assignments. This is especially true for time-sensitive 
trip requests, such as hospital discharges and other urgent care requests. The LogistiCAD Reser-
vation History function, which is activated by clicking on the Xmit History button on the Trip 
Assignment screen tool bar, provides LogistiCare managers with a list of faxes, downloads, and 
other transmissions associated with any given trip. Details displayed include when the trip was 
scheduled, the member current status (whether the trip was completed), sender, method, and more 
for each leg of a trip.  
 
TRANSPORTATION PROVIDER REIMBURSEMENT  
After the trip occurs, LogistiCare will make payment to the transportation provider after the trips 
have been verified. Our trip verification process for claims processing is discussed in Section 
3.3.2.4 NEMT: Reimbursement. LogistiCare acknowledges that the procedures for arranging 
transportation, verifying eligibility, and reimbursing transportation providers as cited in Section 
3.2.2 NEMT: Brokerage Process will apply when the transportation network is utilized. We also 
acknowledge that these procedures may vary when fixed route, mileage reimbursement, or other 
appropriate transportation services are used. 
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3.3 CONTRACT PHASES 
We are prop sing a 105-da  implementation timeline, which will enable the 

 benefits of a LogistiCare-managed NEMT program 
o y

Department to begin reaping the
more quickly than with the 143-day timeline specified in the RFP. 

3.3.1 IMPLEMENTATION 
The transition to a Brokerage system will begin the first business day following contract execution and extend until 
midnight of the day identified as the first business day of operations. This will be known as implementation.  

In our implementation activities, LogistiCare leaves 
nothing to chance and pays as much attention to the 
soft” tasks of training and outreach as we do to the 

service 
tart date. 

In addition, we work to ensure continuity and 
minimize disruption. In recruiting and credentialing a 
network of transportation providers, we reach out to 
all current providers first. We even offer technical 
assistance to some providers who might not otherwise qualify.  
To assist members with the transition, we make every effort to 
match them with the providers they are accustomed to using. 
 
Figure 3.3.1 – Implementation Experience. LogistiCare has broad experience with 

all of the critical components of implementing a new transportation brokerage 
system. 

“
technical tasks of creating a call center and 
contracting with providers.  

We ensure that local hires are fully trained both at the 
local site and at other LogistiCare operations in order 
to be ready to “hit the ground running” by the first 
business day of operations. LogistiCare will fully test 
all telephone and computer connections well in 
advance to ensure smooth functioning on the 
s

IMPLEMENTATION REQUIREMENTS NUMBER LOGISTICARE CONTRACTS 
Startup schedule of 90 days or less 58 
New call center creation and build out 14 
Transition to client’s first brokerage system 53 
Creation of a new provider network 33 

 

As Iowa moves to the efficiency of a centrally managed and coordinated statewide network, the 
contractor will initially operate without the benefit of detailed historic call volume and trip 
volume statistics. This means that the initial demands on the call center and provider network 
may vary greatly from that initially anticipated based on available RFP information. A new 
brokerage system can also produce an unanticipated spike in volume for a variety of reasons, 
including an increase in awareness of the services offered caused by promotion of the new 
program procedures. This unpredictability makes it even more important for the Department to 
select a contractor with demonstrated success in new statewide implementations, backed by the 

HIGHLIGHTS 
• Experienced onsite leadership and project 

 to ensure a smooth start-up 

lan 

ckly 
 

edures 
ilitate 

communication with the Department 

• More than 1,500 transportation providers 
currently under contract nationwide 

• Significant advance work already done on 
network development 

team

• Detailed 105-day implementation p

• Successful track record of qui
implementing numerous projects

• Proven project management proc
ensure status monitoring and fac
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, and staffing) and capacity (e.g., equipment, data 
ely, ongoing delivery of high-quality services.  

this program. This 
each task and subtask and shows the logistical 

sks. It contains specific due dates for deliverables and identifies key 
re 

k within 

resources (e.g., management, training
management system) to ensure the tim

Our implementation plan is included as the Gantt chart located in Exhibit 1, Implementation 
Materials. This implementation Gantt chart is a graphic and tabular presentation of the key task 
areas and the task completion schedule associated with the implementation of 
implementation plan shows start and end dates for 
dependency between subta
events. The chart has been created with Microsoft Project, a standard project scheduling softwa
package. The work plan narrative task descriptions provide an overview of each major tas
the work plan.  

3.3.1.1 STATE RESPONSIBILITIES 
a. Approve the Broker’s candidate for Account Manager. 
b. Approve the Broker’s call center and central business office location

rs
g Mem
orm

 education of 

. 
c. Review and approve the Broker’s Network plan. 
d. Provide computer equipment (Desktop computers and printe
e. Provide access to the appropriate State systems for verifyin
f. Review and approve the Broker-developed electronic claim f
g. Review and approve information that will assist in the
resulting from the brokerage system. 

). 
ber eligibility. 

. 
Members regarding NEMT changes 

LogistiCare acknowledges the State’s responsibilities cite in
9 states and th

w w
gers (kn s in the 

g call centers and regional business offices to 
 NEMT program educational 
 with the benefit of our insight 

ns. Our LogistiCAD architecture is 
esigned to interface seamlessly with other systems for the exchange of data. In meeting its 

r
a

3.3.1.2 BROKER RESPONSIBILITIES 

d  Section 3.3.1.1a-g. As the current 
e District of Columbia, LogistiCare manager of 63 NEMT brokerage programs in 3

possesses the breadth of experienced and technical kno
NEMT program in Iowa. From hiring Account Mana
LogistiCare organizational hierarchy) to establishin
developing and maintaining a transportation network to creating

-ho  required to implement a successful 
own as General Manager

materials for members, LogistiCare can provide the Department
gained from a track record of successful NEMT implementatio
d
esponsibilities, the Department can look to LogistiCare for guidance in the form of best practices 
nd real-world case studies.  

Th

supervise and manage the day-to-day operations of the brokerage 
ill be the Department’s point of contact th om the parties will 

h regarding the contract responsibi   

ithin five miles of the Iowa Medicaid Enterpr cility, which is located 
Army Post Road, Des Moines, Iowa. The location must meet the wiring specs for connectivity with DHS 

e Broker will: 

a. Identify and hire an Account Manager to 
and the contract. The Account Manager w rough wh
communicate, resolve issues, and negotiate wit lities.

b. Establish a central business office w ise fa
at 100 
systems. The Broker will bear the expenses of connecting to DHS systems and will provide first-level 
computer/technical support for those systems.  

c. Develop a Network plan for the Department’s review and approval. The plan must include an alternative 
access plan for rural areas or where services may not be readily available. 

d. Establish a call center. 

e. Develop an electronic claim form. 

f. Develop and provide information to the Department to assist in educating Members regarding:  
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  1. The availability of non-emergency medical transportation, 

  2. The process for single trips and standing orders, 

  3. How to access and use these services properly, and 

  4. Billing procedures in order to receive reimbursement for NEMT. 

These materials should be developed prior to the initiation of the brokerage system and ongoing, as updates 
are needed. The materials must be available in English and Spanish.  

LogistiCare will appoint an Account Manager (known as the General Manager in LogistiCare’s 
organizational hierarchy) for the Iowa contract. Once approved by the Department, the Account 
Manager will have overall responsibility and authority to manage all operations within the state. 

gistiCare meets or exceeds all contractual standards and goals, and 
, high quality coverage throughout the state. 
through whom the parties will communicate, 

 He or she will be fully available 
or face-to-face operational status conferences as 

 other individuals to respond to the 
ffice at the Iowa call 

which will give this person direct 

AL BUSINESS OFFICE 

 

irm 

ions. In compliance with the RFP, we acknowledge that the 
pecs for connectivity with DHS systems. LogistiCare also 

e expenses of connecting to DHS systems and will provide 
puter/technical support for those systems.  

e requests by 

 
erly. In addition: 

r 
for the hearing impaired.  

l center responsiveness standards that exceed the requirements of this 
agement system, LogistiCAD, will capture all reservation and 

This person will ensure that Lo
that our transportation network provides complete
The Account Manager will be the point of contact 
resolve issues, and negotiate regarding contract responsibilities.
to the Department to participate in telephone 
requested. This person will also have authority to designate
Department when he or she is not available. We will designate an onsite o
center/regional office for the Contract Administrator’s use, 
access to our Account Manager. 

ESTABLISH A CALL CENTER AND CENTR
LogistiCare has extensive experience scouting appropriate business sites, and we will establish 
and maintain a call center/central business office in the Des Moines area. Our key criteria for 
choosing the centrally located Iowa operations center will include the building being within five 
(5) miles of the Iowa Medicaid Enterprise facility located at 100 Army Post Road. The office 
space that we are currently evaluating is the Capitol Center facility located in the East Village 
area, on Court Avenue, just four (4) miles from the Department’s facility. We will need to occupy
approximately 3,500 to 4,000 square feet of the Capitol Center facility. Additional information 
about this facility can be viewed in Exhibit 1, Implementation Materials. 

We will identify potential office locations that meet all of our key selection criteria and conf
with local telecom vendors that voice and data T1s can be installed and activated within 30 days 
of order at each of these locat
location must meet the wiring s
acknowledges that we will bear th
first-level com

LogistiCare’s call center for the Iowa contract will provide toll-free service for all reservations, 
ride assistance, informational, complaint, and other calls and emails. Members will be able to 
make routine advance reservations, standing order reservations, and urgent car
calling the toll-free number or sending an email request. Program eligibility, covered service, and 
medical necessity rules will be carefully administered with both sensitivity and common sense. 
Specialized utilization review staff will perform constant internal audits to ensure that our
authorization procedures are working prop

• Our call center staff will include bilingual customer service resources, complete interprete
services for all language groups, and special accommodations 

• We will enforce cal
RFP. LogistiCare’s data man
trip assignment data electronically and store historical data for prompt recall. 
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er whose service request has been denied 
l rights. 

tands that the lack of extended and 

, 
ortation providers among 

 

ent 
 in Iowa in a way that will allow us to extend service hours and 

best providers and offer them a stable 
ir 

 

. 

stablishing and 

or 

• We will provide written explanations to any memb
and inform the individual of all their appea
 

DEVELOP A NETWORK PLAN 
As clearly elucidated by the Iowa Study, LogistiCare unders
weekend transportation service availability, as well as inadequate coverage in rural areas, 
represent key pain points for the Department’s current NEMT program. Under the current system
it has been reported that communication and coordination of transp
themselves and with transit and government agencies has hampered the efforts to provide 
sufficient NEMT services that are responsive to the specific transportation needs of  Iowa’s 
Medicaid members. Our equitable, systematic management of a statewide transportation program
will mitigate the factors that contribute to a lack of adequate, compliant NEMT services in Iowa. 
Coordinating services centrally will enable us to build on the current network while raising 
compliance and performance standards. Managing the program as a whole, we will optimize 
existing resources and add capacity and stability.  
 
LogistiCare has developed a truly unique, partnership-based approach to developing and 
maintaining provider networks nationwide that increases members’ access to transportation 
services—when and where they need them. In Iowa, our challenge will be to leverage the curr
supply of transportation providers
expand coverage in rural areas. We will identify the 
volume of trips carefully selected to enable efficient routing, thereby helping them to expand the
businesses. We will also enhance their operating efficiency by providing them productivity-
improving software at no cost. We will supply training, technology, and other technical assistance
to help providers meet higher standards for drivers, vehicles, trip reporting, and service delivery. 
We will also help providers develop new procedures that promote efficiency in their operations
Our online training resources and extensive support system will ensure the success of companies 
that commit themselves to improvement.  
 
LogistiCare has developed and follows a proven and successful process for e
maintaining adequate provider networks in large, statewide NEMT programs. In preparation for 
this proposal, LogistiCare has already begun meeting with transportation providers in Iowa. The 
relationships that have been initiated through this process will provide a good foundation f
creating and retaining our network for Iowa. Figure 3.3.2 outlines our approach to creating a 
provider network for the NEMT Program. 
 

Figure 3.3.2 – Creating and Maintaining an Adequate Network. LogistiCare will 
apply our proven methodology for network development to create a NEMT 

network in Iowa. 

ESTABLISHING AND MAINTAINING PROVIDER NETWORK FUNCTIONS 
•  

rs, for 
Actively reach out to the state’s commercial, nonprofit, and transit agencies, and establish
volunteer (individual) transportation providers, including all current Medicaid NEMT provide
potential inclusion in our transportation network 

• ds, Evaluate all potential network providers through site visits, data gathering, and reviews of recor
credentials, vehicles, operating procedures, and quality standards 

• nd 
wh f the 
Iow

Enter into contractual agreements with providers who satisfy LogistiCare’s recruitment criteria a
o are able to furnish the amount, types, and location of services needed to cover all needs o
a program 
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ESTABLISHING AND MAINTAINING PROVIDER NETWORK FUNCTIONS 
• En to rural, suburban, and urban areas sure that the network can provide adequate service 
• e’s expectations of providers and drivers Communicate LogistiCar
• Provide proper training to providers before transportation services begin and provide refresher 

training at specified intervals and when program changes are enacted, to ensure ongoing 
compliance with program expectations 

• s Train drivers in LogistiCare operating standards, IME requirements, and performance standard
• ensure Furnish transportation providers with training curricula which they will deliver to drivers to 

compliance with program requirements 
• 

 
Continually assess the adequacy and performance of the provider network through careful 
monitoring that covers driver/vehicle credentialing, vehicle inspections, driver behavior, and more

• um Make adjustments and additions to the transportation network as necessary to ensure optim
coverage of member needs, and communicate any program and network changes to providers as 
specified in the RFP 

• l service 

• 

Examine service complaints and monitor provider indicators for early warning of potentia
problems  
Offer ongoing feedback to providers through the monthly Provider Report Card process and 
quarterly review meetings 

• sistency Ensure network stability by adhering to principles of fairness and integrity; maintaining con
in all network operations; engaging in proper communications; and providing group purchasing 
opportunities, financial assistance, technology, and other benefits to support the success of our 
network members 

 
RURAL ACCESS PLAN 
LogistiCare will develop a rural access plan to ensure that these areas of Iowa receive adequate 
coverage from our NEMT network. Bringing adequate transportation services to remote and 
parsely populated regions is challenging, but doable. LogistiCare is highly experienced in 

r drivers using private vehicles are contracted to make 
long trips from rural areas into urban medical centers. 

• 
t
 

These well-ex at NEMT 
mem
L
t
U
c

L
M
d
the vehicle capacity information provided in the RFI responses. Any gaps in geographic coverage 

s
expanding NEMT service to include sparsely populated areas. In addition to our recruitment of 
commercial providers in all areas of Iowa, our approach to providing NEMT service in Iowa’s 
rural areas will include the development of: 

• Public Transit Programs – Coordinate with local transit agencies to develop a strategy for 
ensuring members maximize these services during normal hours of operations. 

 Private Volunteer Programs – Voluntee•

Gas Reimbursement Programs – Mileage reimbursement is provided to members with access 
o private vehicles for cost-effective transportation service. 

ecuted programs provide lower-cost transportation options and ensure th
e additional dependable choices for travel to their medical appointments.bers hav  

ogistiCare continues to expand these alternative access programs for NEMT state clients around 
he country, and the Iowa NEMT program will reap the benefits of our experience in this area. 
nder LogistiCare’s watchful eye, none of Iowa’s Medicaid-eligible members living in rural 

ommunities will miss an appointment as a result of inadequate NEMT coverage where they live. 

ogistiCare will constantly monitor the resources we need to provide optimum service to all 
edicaid members in Iowa. Our network development staff will continuously compare trip 

emand information received from state clients, health care facilities, and NEMT providers with 
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will be identi ing efforts 
i
n tlining the steps we will take 
t

E
LogistiCare has had extensive experience bringing transportation resources to underserved rural 
a
p
w ckets of inadequate service before LogistiCare took 
c ated 
s
r
o

LogistiCare has used a variety of solutions to ensure reliable transportation services to members 
i
available to state governments, such as providing new technology to providers to help them 
i
c and their services into these areas. Often, by providing overall trip 
v
n
v
a invest in new vehicles and expand their services.  

Figure 3.3.3 – LogistiCare’s Experience Providing Service to Rural Locations. 

fied and prioritized for intensified recruitment efforts. When our monitor
ndicate that additional providers need to be added to our network, or that a current provider 
eeds to be replaced, we will provide the Department with a plan ou
o further develop the network in that low access area.  

XPERIENCE PROVIDING SERVICE TO RURAL LOCATIONS 

reas. In Georgia, for example, LogistiCare brought new service to 29 rural counties that had 
reviously received no medical transportation services at all. In the mountainous rural areas of 
estern Virginia, there were numerous po

harge of the program. For our programs in Nevada, Oklahoma, and Mississippi, we have cre
tatewide transportation networks that adequately cover large and sparsely populated rural 
egions and Native American reservations as discussed below in Figure 3.3.3, which summarizes 
ur experience expanding rural service in some larger states.  

n rural locations throughout the country. As a broker, we frequently have tools not readily 

ncrease efficiency and lower administrative costs. We use these tools to help encourage 
ommercial providers to exp
olume guarantees, we can encourage providers to agree to cover a certain amount of otherwise 
on-economical rural runs. We have also been able to use pricing flexibility, such as purchasing 
ehicle capacity on a weekly basis as opposed to paying per trip, to give providers the financial 
ssurance needed to 

ESTABLISHING AND MAINTAINING PROVIDER NETWORK FUNCTIONS 
• B

so te-run 
N  reached 
ou  
m art of 
th
reimb ral areas, and we are pleased to say that now no 
N T

efore LogistiCare began providing services in Nevada, commercial taxi providers were the sole 
urce of transportation for Medicaid NEMT members. Many times it was impossible for the sta

EMT program to persuade taxi companies to make long trips to remote rural areas. We also
t to faith-based and other nonprofit organizations that had resources and interest in transporting

embers. Additionally, our Nevada operation promoted a gas reimbursement program as a new p
e rural solution. Currently, 5% of the service delivery in Nevada comes from volunteer and gas 

ursement trips in previously under-served ru
EM  service requests are denied for lack of transportation resources.  

• In e N rvations to vada, we also made a special effort to reach out to the Native American tribal rese
en rsu e that reservation residents under the federal Indian Health Services were also receiving the 
Medic ligible. By helping them to develop their aid NEMT transportation benefits for which they were e
ow t es.n ransportation resources, we provided both new employment and new transportation opportuniti

• Oklah nd 5311 transportation providers in 
rural areas, most of which contracted with LogistiCare when we began managing the program. We 
ha

oma is fortunate in having a large number of Section 5310 a

ve since added two more private, nonprofit transportation providers to our network.  
• Increasing the volunteer driver program in Mississippi was an imperative when we began operation 

there two years ago. At that time, about 30 volunteer drivers participated in the NEMT program. 
Lo e gistiCare has now more than tripled that number, to a total of 108 drivers. We followed the sam
re sts, cruitment procedures as in Oklahoma: posting fliers in senior centers, nursing homes, VFW po
Elks Club lodges, hospital lobbies, and even Laundromats, among other locations. The Mississippi 
op the eration also depends on word-of-mouth to promote the need for NEMT drivers, and many of 
volunteers seek out LogistiCare to volunteer their services.  

• In al 
no

 rural, mountainous, western Virginia, we created an innovative partnership relationship with a loc
nprofit social service agency to extend NEMT services in the area. By subcontracting with the 
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ESTABLISHING AND MAINTAINING PROVIDER NETWORK FUNCTIONS 
ag
m
ag mote multi-county area. Upon contract 
award, LogistiCare immediately began creating a network of volunteer drivers using private vehicles. 
W osted them in libraries, supermarkets, senior 
ci

ency for certain management functions such as vehicle inspection, driver training, volunteer 
anagement, and network development, we were able to create enough financial incentives for the 
ency to guarantee us complete service coverage in a re

e created flyers to publicize the need for drivers and p
tizen centers, and other places where potential to expand the network existed.  
 
By selecting LogistiCare to manage its NEMT program, the State of Iowa is assured that its 
statewide provider network will operate according to all contractual requirements and be 
continuously maintained and administered according to the established policies and procedures. 
The program will run efficiently and cost-effectively, while providing high quality service t
Iowa’s Medicaid members. Additionally, Iowa will gain an involved, informed, and proactive 
partner to support its human and public services transportation

o 

 coordination efforts. 

 

 
y Ride” card, and a 

“Welco
NE
access NEMT cational 

e 

s. We have found this type 

DEVELOP AN ELECTRONIC CLAIM FORM 
In compliance with the requirements of the RFP, LogistiCare will develop an electronic claim 
form to allow transportation providers, members, individuals, and volunteers to submit their
invoices electronically via a secure website. 

DEVELOP MEMBER EDUCATIONAL MATERIALS 
LogistiCare understands that a lack of understanding by members about Medicaid rules and how 
to appropriately access NEMT services is of great concern to the Department. In coordination 
with the Department, LogistiCare will develop educational materials for distribution to Medicaid
members that will include a general information brochure, a “Where’s M

me Letter” in both English and Spanish. These materials will discuss the availability of 
MT services, the reservation process for single trips and standing orders, how to properly 

 services, and invoicing procedures for reimbursement. Our member edu
portfolio will be developed prior to the start of the NEMT program, and it will be provided to th
Department for review and approval. We will review and revise these documents as updates are 
needed. Any required changes will be made and the documents resubmitted to the Department. 
We have included samples of these materials in Attachment 9, Outreach Education.  

We will also provide an informational brochure for all Medicaid medical providers whose 
patients need transportation. This brochure will describe the program and discuss what the 
medical provider should do to arrange for a ride for one of their patient
brochure to be very valuable in helping the medical provider community understand the NEMT 
program and its requirements.  

3.3.1.3 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
a. The Broker will develop a Network Plan, including alternative access information, and present it to the IME 
for approval 20 business days prior to the start of operations. 
b. The Broker will provide information that will assist in the education of Members regarding NEMT changes 
resulting from the brokerage system to the IME for approval 45 business days prior to the start of operations. 
The State of Iowa seeks a contractor experienced in managing a transportation provider network 
that provides safe, reliable, and on-time services to Medicaid members. This contractor should be 
able to optimize and expand the existing network in Iowa while raising compliance and 
performance standards. With more than 1,500 transportation providers currently under contract 
nationwide, LogistiCare is the country’s most experienced transportation company managing 
NEMT networks. We have established a reputation among our state clients as a collaborative 
partner that manages transportation providers for excellence. LogistiCare’s online training 
resources, effective trip assignment practices, and other productivity-enhancing technology will 
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promote effic oviders in 
y, 

e education of 
wa’s Medicaid-eligible members regarding NEMT changes as a result of LogistiCare assuming 

ials 

 
 

e materials in 

rly 
am works and what steps members need to follow to 

 will distribute mailings to all members to advise them 
 

iency and enhanced quality among both large and small transportation pr
Iowa. We will present our Network Plan, which will also include our alternative access strateg
to the IME for approval 20 business days prior to the start of operations. For an in-depth 
discussion of our Network Plan, please refer to Section 3.3.2.1.3 Broker Responsibilities: 
Network Transportation Providers. 

LogistiCare will provide Department-approved information that will assist in th
Io
management of the brokerage program at least 45 days prior to the provision of services (as 
determined by the effective date of the contract). We will also prepare special purpose mater
to inform members of new rules and transportation alternatives. For example, in Connecticut we 
greatly increased use of transit services through a comprehensive communications outreach to 
Medicaid members and health care facilities. LogistiCare’s member marketing plan will ensure
that all Iowa Medicaid members are aware of the NEMT program and know how to access and

terials will be available to anyone who requests thuse its services. Our marketing ma
Iowa. The Iowa Study indicated that the great majority of the Medicaid-eligible population in 
Iowa lacks understanding of how the NEMT program works and how they can access services 
and receive reimbursement. We will produce a body of member education materials that clea
and simply explain how Iowa’s NEMT progr
use it. As program changes are made, we
of such.  If approved by the Department, LogistiCare will also create an informational website for
members that will publish all member information and program forms online. 

3.3.2 OPERATIONS 
Operations begin when the State has authorized the contractor (Broker) to begin operation. The operational 
responsibilities will involve meeting performance standards set by the Department for the functions performe
by the Broker. All NEMT claims with dates of service on or after the first day of operations will be the 
responsibility of the Broker for reimbursement.  

d 

LogistiCare acknowledges that operations will commence when the State has authorized the 
contractor to begin operation, at which time the operational responsibilities will involve meeting 
performance standards set by the Department. We will take responsibility for all NEMT claims 
with dates of service on or after the first day of operations. 

3.3.2.1 NEMT: NETWORK PROVIDERS AND INDIVIDUALS 
3.3.2.1.1 STATE RESPONSIBILITIES 
a. Review and approval of Member (NEMT services) denial letter form. 
b. Review and approval and ongoing monitoring of the Broker’s Network Plan, and changes to it. 
LogistiCare acknowledges the State’s responsibilities as cited in Section 3.3.2.1.1.a-b. Our robus
and scalable database system, LogistiCAD, has built-in

t 

k Plan. 

 capabilities for generating various 
member letters, including service denials. LogistiCare will submit all member letters to the 
Department for approval prior to use.  Developing and maintaining networks is a core 
competency of LogistiCare, and we will work closely with the Department in continuously 
monitoring the adequacy of our network in Iowa. Please refer to Section 3.3.2.1.3 Broker 
Responsibilities: Network Transportation Providers for a discussion of our Iowa Networ
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3.3.2.1.2 BROKER RESPONSIBILITIES: GENERAL 
a. The Broker will make the transportation arrangements for all Medicaid Members who qualify for NEMT 
services. All NEMT transportation for eligible Members will be coordinated through the successful Brok
Broker may deny requests for transportation if: 
1. The Member doesn’t qualify for transpo

er. The 

rtation services, based on his/her Medicaid eligibility category (see 

 

Section 3.3.2.2.2 for eligibility guidelines). 
2. If the conditions for allowing transportation, as defined in 441 Iowa Admin. Code § 78.13 are not met. 
2. The Broker will send a Notice of Decision (NOD) letter to all Members who have been denied NEMT 
services. When the Broker has denied any Member’s request, the NOD letter must be postmarked within 72 
hours of the request. 
1. The Broker will develop a NOD letter template denying NEMT services. In a letter of denial, the Broker must
cite the applicable administrative code section. The letter will also identify the Member’s appeal rights as 
provided in 441 Iowa Admin. Code chapter 7. Please see 3.3.2.1.2.1 Notice of Adverse Action for Service 
Authorizations.  
2. The Broker will provide information for and represent the Department in appeal hearings. 
We will authorize the most appropriate and cost-effective mode of transportation for Medicaid-
eligible members requesting transportation services, consistent with the transportation needs of 
the member. However, LogistiCare will also deny or discontinue trips (if multiple trips have been 
authorized) for any member who is determined to be or becomes Medicaid-ineligible, or the 
conditions for allowing transportation as defined in 441 Iowa Admin. Code § 78.13 are not met.  

When a denial of service occurs during the call-taking process, the CSR will inform the member 
r the denial in our LogistiCAD system, which will 

te a denial letter explaining both the decision to deny service and the formal 

e member’s appeal rights as provided 
peal can be requested.  

ystem for recording denials and communicating denial 
ation request for service must be denied, the CSR fully enters the 

, the reservation acquires a 
al 
(Figure 

, and 

ent in 

ppropriate personnel from our local office available for testimony in administrative hearings or 
 work or decisions made by LogistiCare in the performance of 

our contract.  

of the denial and record the reason(s) fo
automatically genera
Departmental process for member appeals (see Figure 3.2.11). Our Utilization Review 
Representative will also run a daily denial report to ensure that our denial decisions and denial 
coding are appropriate.  

NOTICE OF DECISION 
LogistiCare will send Notice of Decision (NOD) letters to all members who have been denied 
service within 72 hours of the member’s request. This letter will also cite the applicable 
administrative code section and provide an explanation of th
in 441 Iowa Admin. Code chapter 7 and how that ap

LogistiCare has a well-developed s
decisions to members. If a reserv
reservation request data. When this process has been completed
“denied” status and the denial reason appears in the denial reason field of the Addition
Information screen under the Trip Details screen in LogistiCAD’s Reservation Editor 
3.2.2). This, in turn, triggers the denial and appeals communication process. Proper management 
of the denial process will be carefully described in our Iowa Operations Procedures manual
will constitute an important part of our customer service training curriculum. 

APPEALS AND HEARINGS 
LogistiCare acknowledges that we will provide information for and represent the Departm
appeal hearings conducted on behalf of any Iowa Medicaid-eligible member. We will make 
a
judicial hearings that result from
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pies of all records pertaining to the denial decisions 
de 

ion.  

 SERVICE AUTHORIZATIONS 
ny a 

We will make available to the Department co
we have made when requested. Where necessary, we will compile a case summary and provi
the summary to the Department. Following the decision of the Fair Hearing Officer, LogistiCare 
will implement and be bound by the decis

3.3.2.1.2.1 NOTICE OF ADVERSE ACTION FOR
The Broker will provide appropriate and timely written notice to the Member/Provider of any decision to de
service authorization request, or to authorize a service in an amount, duration, or scope that is less than
requested or agreed upon, or any action, as “action” is defined in section 3.3.2.6.2.1 Notice is not required to
the Member when an action is due to the Network provider’s failure to adhere to contractual requirements and 
there is no adverse ac

 
 

tion against the Member.  

LogistiCare will provide appropriate and timely written notice to the member/provider of any
decision to deny a service authorization, or to authorize a service in an amount, duration, or sc
that is less than

 
ope 

 requested or agreed upon, or any action, as “action” is defined in Section 
. 

e 

3.3.2.6.2.1. Please refer to Section 3.3.2.1.2 for a discussion of our denial process

We also acknowledge that notice will not be required to the member when an action is due to th
network providers’ failure to adhere to contractual requirements, and there is no adverse action 
against the member. 

3.3.2.1.2.1.1 THE NOD MUST EXPLAIN: 
a. the action the Broker has taken or intends to take and the reason(s) for the action; 
b. the Member’s or Provider’s right to grieve, complain, or request a State Fair Hearing as specified in Section 
3.3.2.6  
c. circumstances under which expedited resolution is available and how to request it; 
d. that during the state fair hearing, the Member/Provider may represent him(her)self or use legal counsel, a 
relative, a friend, or a spokesperson; 
e. the specific regulations that support, or the change in federal or state law that requires, the action, and 
In compliance with the requirements of the RFP, LogistiCare will send a Notice of Decision 

n, 
aring. 

t the member 
 use 

(NOD) letter to the member that explains the action we  have taken and the reason for the actio
as well as the member’s or provider’s right to grieve, complain, or request a State Fair He
The letter will also include the circumstances in which an expedited resolution is warranted and 
how a member can request an expedited solution. LogistiCare will ensure tha
understands that he or she may represent himself or herself during the State Fair Hearing or
legal counsel, a relative, a friend or spokesperson. The NOD letter will also explain the specific 
regulations that support the action. A sample NOD letter is located in Attachment 10.   

3.3.2.1.2.1.2 THE NOTICE MUST BE IN WRITING AND MUST MEET THE LANGUAGE REQUIREMENTS: 
a. the Broker in conjunction with DHS shall identify the non-English languages prevalent (i.e., spoken by  
 a significant number or percentage of the Member’s and potential population); 
b. the Broker must make available written information in each prevalent non-English language;  
c. the Broker must make oral interpretation services available for all languages free of charge, and 

mbers that oral interpretation is available for any language and written information d. the Broker must notify Me
is available in prevalent languages, and how to access those services. 
LogistiCare will work with the Department to identify the non-English languages prevalent and 
make available information available in each non-English prevalent language. For callers who are
non-English speaking, we will offer oral interpretive services through our call center operations 
by hiring Span

 

ish-speaking and other bilingual CSRs in our Des Moines call center.  
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reters are able to translate more than 150 
different languages. Members who need translation services are quickly connected, on an average 

e caller, analyzes the message, and 

 

r 
sted by the member.  

ntial members in all 

ish, thereby 

ORMAT REQUIREMENTS 
into 

We will also make oral interpretive services available free of charge to all language groups using 
our Language Line Over the Phone Interpretation (OPI) services. Language Line OPI is an 
excellent telephonic interpretation service available 24x7 to members calling LogistiCare call 
centers from any location. Language Line interp

of 10-20 seconds, to an experienced translator who listens to th
accurately conveys the meaning to LogistiCare’s CSR.  

Language Line interpreters are held to the highest standards. These standards include maintaining
patient confidentiality, ensuring accurate and complete translations, remaining impartial and 
unbiased during the conversation, interpreting for only the language(s) which he or she is 
authorized to interpret, providing excellent customer service, and continuing to improve his or her 
language skills. LogistiCare has chosen Language Line OPI as its interpreter partner because of 
its commitment to quality and customer care. For a brochure on Language Line services, please 
refer to Attachment 11, Call Center Technology. 

LogistiCare CSRs will work with Language Line OPI interpreters to communicate with the caller 
and ensure all information is clear, accurate, and most importantly, understood by the Medicaid 
member or other caller. When necessary, CSRs will communicate with a family member or othe
acquaintance as reque
 
In Iowa, we will promote our oral interpretive services to members and pote
written marketing materials, including brochures, information packets, and correspondence sent 
to members and providers. The call center’s voice automated message, which initially greets 
callers, will allow members to select an option to continue their call in Span
forwarding the call to a Spanish-speaking CSR. 

3.3.2.1.2.1.3 THE NOTICE MUST MEET F
a. Written material must use an easily understood format, and be available in alternative formats that take 
consideration those with special needs. 
b. Members must be informed of the availability of alternative formats and how to access those formats. 

LogistiCare has considerable experience producing informative brochures for NEMT members 
that are written at appropriate reading levels and in multiple languages. We understand that 
informing members about NEMT service availability and procedures helps members access
needed services. Such education efforts also enhance program efficiency and customer 
satisfaction by reducing problems related to behavioral expectations and member 
misunderstanding of rules. We will work closely with the Department to develop such m

 

aterials 

 

our 
 answer 

 languages 24 x7 using our 

tance as 
requested by the member.  

for the Iowa program.  

Additionally, we provide other options to communicate with members who may have special
needs, as enhancements to written communication:  

• For non-English speaking callers, LogistiCare offers oral interpretive services through 
call center operations by hiring Spanish-speaking and other bilingual CSRs who can
questions.  

• We provide free oral interpretive services in more than 150
Language Line services. Members who need translation services will be connected on 
average within 10-20 seconds to an experienced translator who listens to the caller, analyzes 
the message, and accurately conveys the meaning to LogistiCare’s CSR.  

• When necessary, CSRs will communicate with a family member or other acquain
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er 
is 

service options and information. 

• Our call centers servicing Iowa will use telecommunications relay services that provide full 
telephone accessibility to people who are hearing or speech impaired. Trained 
communication assistants will complete the calls and stay on the line to relay messages eith
electronically over a Text Telephone (TT/TTY) or verbally to LogistiCare’s CSRs. Th
service will be available 24 hours a day, 365 days a year, with no restrictions on the length or 
number of calls placed.  

• Our member website will be available 24x7 for self-

In compliance with the requirements of the RFP, LogistiCare will inform members of the 
availability of alternative formats and how to access these. 

3.3.2.1.3 BROKER RESPONSIBILITIES: NETWORK TRANSPORTATION PROVIDERS 
The Broker will assume responsibility for all applicable transportation of each eligible Member as of the start 
date of operations. The Broker will ensure the provision of necessary NEMT services by establishing a networ
panel. This provider panel will be referred to in this RFP a

k 
s “Network providers.” 

to the need and ability of the Member. The Broker will 
evelop and implement procedures to determine whether fixed-route public transportation is accessible to and 

ter 
 

, the services of volunteers, taxis, wheelchair 

tem that addresses the safety needs of the disabled or special needs 

 

 
 as need related to the ability to ambulate or utilization control, provided the 

e prohibited from providing transportation 
f 

inte
pan he following requirements:  

The Broker will develop a provider panel with Public Transit agencies, private transportation agencies and 
individuals to develop a statewide network of providers that will meet the needs of Iowa’s Medicaid members.  
The Broker will make use of public transportation when appropriate. The Broker will use fixed route public 
transit service whenever possible and appropriate 
d
appropriate for the Member requesting transportation services. Such procedures will take into account the 
distance from scheduled stops at facilities or service providers, the age and disability of the Member, any 
physical or cognitive impairment, inclement weather conditions and other pertinent factors. If public transit is 
appropriate, the Broker will allow the public transit provider first choice in compliance with Iowa Code chap
324A, as to whether they will accept the trip or deny it, as long as the referral otherwise complies with
obligations of 42 C.F.R. § 440.170(a). 
This network of providers may also include, but is not limited to
vans, stretcher vans, ambulances, and air ambulances (fixed wing and rotary). All transportation is to be 
provided with an occupant protection sys
individuals. 
Note: The Department will review and reimburse for air ambulance service. 
The Broker’s network will be such that the services are sufficient in amount, duration, or scope to reasonably 
be expected to achieve the purpose for which the services are furnished. NEMT is available to Members only 
when 441 IAC 78.13 rules are met. See 
http://www.dhs.state.ia.us/policyanalysis/PolicyManualPages/Manual_Documents/Rules/441-78.pdf.
The Broker will not arbitrarily deny or reduce the amount, duration, or scope of a required service solely 
because of cost savings, bias, or self-motivated reasons. The Broker may place appropriate limits on a service
on the basis of criteria such
services furnished can reasonably be expected to achieve their purpose.  
The Broker will negotiate fair and reasonable rates with the network providers and will be responsible for 
reimbursing the NEMT transportation claims. The Broker will b
services directly or making referrals to transportation providers if the relationship would constitute a conflict o

rest. See 42 C.F.R. § 440.170(a)(4)(ii)(B) for narrow exceptions to this prohibition. The Broker’s provider 
el must meet t

Developing and maintaining a robust transportation provider network requires well-defined
icies and procedures, effective recruitment and retention methods, and comprehensive tr
 monitoring practices. LogistiCare has developed a methodology that includes each of these 
ortant features. We have already sent recruitment packages to approximate

 
pol aining 
and
imp ly 200 NEMT 

day ns. 
providers in Iowa. LogistiCare will present our Network Plan to IME for approval 20 business 

s prior to the start of operatio
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par lish and 
mai
rem

• 

th 

ty sensitivity training, assistive 
ness, lift operation, 

 

bly 
erspective, LogistiCare network providers can rely on prompt 

 recognizes the diversity of Iowa’s geographic regions, and we have begun the 
well as reaching out to other  

hroughout the state to meet face-to-face with commercial and 

icating his/her interest in join-

iza-

k 
 terms) 

 

s-

We offer an unprecedented collection of benefits to transportation providers in our network. By 
tnering in a collaborative way to foster successful provider enterprises, we estab
ntain strong networks on behalf of our clients. Our provider partners have incentives to 
ain within the LogistiCare-managed network, including: 

Free access to LogistiCare’s Transportation Provider Website – provides trip management, 
online billing, and reporting capabilities 

• Free access to our web-based Provado Dispatch Manager (PDM) software – assists wi
routing, live dispatch, vehicle/driver management, and billing 

• Free online driver training – covers cultural and disabili
devices, wheelchair securement, defensive driving, disabilities aware
paperwork, legal issues, and more 

• Cost savings through LogistiCare’s bulk purchasing capacity – provides reduced costs for 
affordable services such as: 
• Business and vehicle insurance • Drug testing 
• Health care insurance 
• Surety bonds 

• Motor vehicle record checks 
• Criminal background checks 

• Vehicle purchase and leasing 
 

LogistiCare employs business practices that promote predictable business volume and provide a 
reliable additional revenue source for transportation providers. Providers who adhere to 
performance standards can expect to retain a stable work volume. Those for whom NEMT is not
the primary business can supplement their incomes and fill empty seats with revenue-producing 
trips. We do not require providers to dedicate vehicles exclusively to NEMT service. Possi
most important from a provider’s p
payment twice monthly. 

PROACTIVE OUTREACH 
LogistiCare
process of communicating with existing Iowa NEMT providers, as 
providers in the state that are not currently providing transportation services. Outreach efforts 
have included mailing approximately 200 providers in Iowa recruitment packages, as well as 
travel by LogistiCare staff to cities t
agency providers. Our recruitment package contains the following materials: 

• Letter of introduction, briefly explaining LogistiCare’s role in the new NEMT pro-
gram model and asking for the provider’s interest, consideration and feedback  

• A letter of intent to be completed by the provider, ind
ing the network, but not representing any binding commitment  

• A general questionnaire asking for basic information about the provider’s organ
tion and services  

• Rate sheet explanation (with definitions and information to help prospective networ
members understand program

• Rate proposal sheet that asks for providers to indicate their proposed rates for the
NEMT program  

• A DMBE questionnaire  
• Summary of transportation provider benefits and answers to frequently asked que

tions 
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“By signing on with LogistiCare, w
to give the clients quality, on time 
LogistiC

In March 2010, our network development team 
held meetings with transportation providers in 
Davenport, Dubuque, and Waterloo to 
introduce ourselves and discuss our model of 

e are able 
service. 

are personnel are great to work with 
wered, 
 

e more 
viders as 

 with 
e can all 

            South Carolina 

p

e

mee

contract to LogistiCare. The providers we have 
met h ’s 
decision to convert to a NEMT brokerage program. Th  April in 
the cities of Des Moines, Cedar Rapids, and Sioux Cit n ed. 

ase n rk development for large-state NEMT program 
plementations, the Department can be assured that all necessary providers will be enrolled with 

ENSURING NETWORK ADEQUACY 
elops our networks, we consider a comprehensive range of factors: the 

n-

ill 
 

l areas in states 
such as o
NEMT serv
inadequ  
flexible pric to expand services 
into the
long trips fr urban medical centers.  

LogistiC e
detailed dat cipate network coverage problems by closely 
tracking or 
additional provider recruitment in a specific area. By carefully examining any service complaints, 
re-routi tr ement issues, our experienced staff will know when it may 
be time s
need arises it additional providers in order to maintain a robust network, we will follow 
our three-phase credentialing policy for network development, as described below.  

and any questions that need to be ans
they will, with no problems. Same day

brokerage operation. During these meetings, 
we shared information about our collaborative 

roach to managing the provider network. appointments, we try to do 98% of the time. 
LogistiCare has helped us to provid
service and I’

ap
We also developed an understanding of the 

ds, issues, and challenges of providers in m sure for other pro
well. I’m looking forward to working
LogistiCare in years to come and w

ne
each region. Providers had the opportunity to 

t our team, ask questions, and view 
onstrations of the software tools tha grow together.” 

B-N-T Transportation Service LLC 
dem t would 
become available to them upon award of a 

                  wit  have been receptive to the State
ree more meetings will be held in 

y, a d others may be added as need

B
im

d o  our successful record of netwo

active provider agreements with the Department and transitioned, trained, and ready to provide 
service upon execution of the Iowa contract.  

By selecting LogistiCare to manage its NEMT program, the State of Iowa can be confident that 
its statewide provider network will operate according to all contractual requirements and will 
continuously maintain and administer policies and procedures. The program will run efficiently 
and cost-effectively, providing top-quality service to members. 

When LogistiCare dev
expected utilization of services by Medicaid-eligible members; the numbers and types of no
emergency transportation providers and vehicles required to furnish the contracted services; and 
the geographic distribution of providers and members, among other factors. For example, we w
create a network that ensures adequate coverage to Medicaid NEMT members in rural areas of
Iowa.  

LogistiCare has extensive experience bringing transportation resources to rura
Ge rgia, Nevada, Virginia, Mississippi, and Oklahoma. When we first began providing 

ices in these states, commercial NEMT transportation was either nonexistent or 
ate in certain rural areas. We used various incentives such as trip volume guarantees, 

ing, and technical assistance to encourage commercial providers 
se areas. We also created networks of volunteer drivers using private vehicles to make 

om rural areas into 

ar  will continually assess the adequacy of our provider network in Iowa by monitoring 
a and quality information. We will anti

 trends (such as declining service quality indicators) that might indicate a future need f

ng ends, and provider manag
 to hift trips to another provider or, if necessary, stop using a provider altogether. If the 

to recru
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 ide
eviews state

rces
s, gov

rofit
, send

or Iow

new
ex
, w
key transp
ch as an ope

provider oversight, re-pricing, technical 

 

ry, the third phase begins, which involves training the NEMT 
 is 
e 

rtation providers to visit the LogistiCare facility to meet with the whole management team 

ransportation Association of America 

s 
tes. Also, 

PHASE ONE: RECRUITMENT 
The first phase of the recruitment process is the
and initial data collection. LogistiCare r
media outlets, telephone listings, and other sou
including commercial transportation provider
transportation, rural transit agencies, and non-p
out to current transportation providers in Iowa
package. Our provider recruitment package f

PHASE TWO: CREDENTIALING 
Once the information has been reviewed and a 
criteria such as capacity, location, vehicle types, 
staff will initiate the second phase of the process
vehicles, and operating procedures, and to meet 
transportation provider must produce records su
insurance, criminal background checks for drivers, recent maintenance schedules, drivers’ 
licenses, and required business licensing. LogistiCare then inspects the transportation providers’ 
vehicles and engages in extended operations process discussions with the transportation provider 

ntification of existing transportation providers 
 program databases, published notices in local 

 for potential transportation providers, 
ernmental agencies wishing to perform 
 transportation providers. We have reached 
ing them our Request for Information (RFI) 

a is located in Attachment 12. 

 provider has been initially qualified (based on 
perience, references, and others), LogistiCare 
hich involves on-site visits to inspect records, 

ortation provider managers. The 
rational manual, certificate of 

management staff. 

LogistiCare ensures that transportation providers understand our service standards and are 
financially and organizationally able to meet these standards. An ounce of prevention in 
recruitment is worth a pound of cure in transportation 
assistance, and possible replacement. Additionally, LogistiCare will monitor NEMT provider 
credentials to ensure continued compliance with organizational, driver, and vehicle standards. 
 
PHASE THREE: CONTRACTING AND ORIENTATION 
If all such reviews are satisfacto
provider and its drivers and finalizing the contractual relationship. The transportation provider
given a thorough orientation that involves a walk-through of our transportation contract and th
NEMT Provider Manual (see Attachment 13, Provider Manual). These two important 
documents contain all the performance standards of the contract, as well as key forms and 
procedures. LogistiCare then schedules individual driver training sessions and invites the 
transpo
and with the particular billing staff assigned to each transportation provider. 
 
DRIVING TRAINING FOR TRANSPORTATION PROVIDERS 
In order to ensure compliance with safe driving, customer sensitivity, wheelchair safety, and other 
standards for conduct and performance, LogistiCare has developed an extensive curriculum of 
driver training for transportation providers in our network. Our training is developed around the 
Defensive Driving curriculum of the National Safety Council and the Passenger Service and 
Safety (PASS) program developed by the Community T
(CTAA). In addition, our PASS trainers are certified by CTAA to provide this course material. 
Copies of these two key curricula are located in Attachment 14, Driver/Provider Training.  
 
MAINTAINING NETWORK STABILITY 
LogistiCare places a high priority on maintaining a stable provider network. This is important for 
several reasons. Most important, many members become accustomed to riding with the same 
providers and come to trust and rely on their familiar drivers. Good relationships between driver
and members increase rider security and satisfaction and reduce member no-show ra
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 “LCI (LogistiCare) respects th
of transportation companies like 
mine…LCI has been there to help us:
they pay on time; t

 

Our ability to retain transportation providers is based on our commitment to fairness, consistency
communication, and investment. LogistiCare 
understands how important these issues are to 
the smaller companies that make up the bulk of 
the NEMT provider system. For example, a 
network provider in the LogistiCare system is 

e needs 

  
hey have provided 

technical assistance with our computer 
technology; since gas costs hit the 

 

viders 

ve 
pany 

funding, interest free, when we’ve 
needed to expand the fleet or make an 

velop good communications with health care facilities and make fewer 

 
 them succeed 

 through group purchasing benefits, technology sharing, and other 

, 

yment provides financial stability for 

experienced companies de
logistical mistakes, thus increasing service quality. In addition, low provider turnover helps 
contain administrative costs. Our track record of growing and maintaining transportation provider 
networks in programs nationwide is illustrated in Figure 3.3.4. 

Network provider retention starts with responsible provider recruitment and credentialing. We 
ensure that providers understand our service standards and are able, financially and 
organizationally, to meet these standards. After selecting our network providers, we work hard to
create long-term, stable business relationships with them, and look for ways to help
by lowering operating costs
means. 

 

Figure 3.3.4 – Provider Growth and Retention. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

a

roof, they have issued gas surcharge
checks to assist us;... their 
Performance Incentive Program 
provides financial rewards to pro
with the best on-time performance and 
fewest service complaints; they ha
been willing to advance my com

needed changes are made only after mutual 
discussion and sufficient advance notice to allow 
the provider to make preparations and 
adjustments. LogistiCare pays all accurately 
submitted provider invoices promptly. Our 
payment rate averages less than 20 days from 
receipt of the invoice. This consistently prompt 

ssured of a regular, negotiated volume of work 
as long as performance meets requirements. Any 

p

insurance payment.” 
TF & S Transport  

Hinesville, GA 
FAIRNESS/INTEGRITY 
Key fairness principles that LogistiCare 
emphasizes include honesty, keeping our 

a
providers in the network.  
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ct 

et realities, we strive to minimize 
n 
 or 

. 
reason, we strive to be consistent with network providers in all aspects of operations, 

cluding, but not limited to, daily ride volumes, payment schedules, and enforcement activities. 

For example, we do n y for assigning trips 
 transportation providers, as we do not believe this gives providers enough security to manage 
eir hiring and investment decisions efficiently and economically. Instead, we carefully track 

ssignment volumes with each provider to ensure that each gets the volume of work anticipated at 
e time of contracting. If we plan to cut back on a provider’s trip volume, or to phase the 

rovider out of the system entirely for performance reasons, we discuss this in advance and give 
e provider time to adjust without being forced into an economic crisis. 

 our enforcement activities, we are not arbitrary and inconsistent. We give due notice of any 
nds withholdings or contractual penalty assessments, and we enforce the same rules on all 

roviders. 

OMMUNICATION 
oblems stem from poor communication. We strive from the 

redentialing phase onward to be clear in the communication of our expectations, rules, and 
rocesses. This objective is demonstrated by the detailed provider manuals we give network 

bers, by the amount of written materials and meetings associated with our recruitment 

 on them
eet wit
pressu  

s to ensur

vide  
endors, a

tanc ering 
ler providers to r 

ported le
king these 

mpani

 insurance pro
percent off prevailing marke

 because research indicated that our providers were not being classified 
 that insurance losses for o

the medical transportation industry. Because of 

agreements, treating providers equally, and allowing providers due process on any enforcement or
sanction issues. For example, we do not make inflated promises to induce providers to contra
with us. We are scrupulous about fulfilling our contractual obligations. Although there may be 
some pricing variation among providers based on different mark
these variations. We neither get drawn into inter-company rivalries, nor do we assist providers i
any regulatory or business conflicts they may have with each other. In investigating complaints
performance problems, we give the providers full and fair hearings. 

CONSISTENCY 
LogistiCare understands how important it is for smaller businesses to have consistent cash flow
For that 
in

ot subscribe to the trip-by-trip price bidding methodolog
to
th
a
th
p
th

In
fu
p

C
Most network relations pr
c
p
mem
process, and by the provider newsletters we have produced. In addition, we solicit provider ideas 
for service and process improvements, and act
supervisors, and quality assurance specialists m
optimum working relationships in frequent high-
building at all levels of the organization help

INVESTMENT 
LogistiCare invests time and money to help its pro
creating relationships with insurers, vehicle v
to providers at discounted group rates. In other ins
new technology and bringing it to smal
administrative costs. LogistiCare has also sup
lowered costs for network providers. By ma
companies, LogistiCare has helped numerous co

LOGISTICARE VEHICLE INSURANCE PROGRAM 
LogistiCare has developed an affordable
allows them to save 10-30 

 whenever feasible. Our managers, 
h our providers’ staffs in order to facilitate 
re situations. Such personal relationship

e trust and quality service. 

rs succeed. In some instances, this involves
nd others, who will then offer vital services 
es, LogistiCare’s efforts involve pione
 help them increase efficiency and lowe
gislative and tax law changes that have 
investments, particularly in smaller 
es grow and solidify their businesses.  

gram for our network providers, which 
t rates. LogistiCare developed this 

successful program
appropriately by other insurers. We found
significantly lower than for other companies in 

ur providers were 
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, as desired, to all of our 
Iowa NEMT providers. This program is delivered through a multi-party partnership between 

nd leaders in the insurance industry including: 

 
ludes criminal 

ld 

G PROGRAM 
developed an extensive driver training process based on curricula from the 

a (CTAA), 

 No 
 in the country makes such a versatile and powerful software application available to 

 

ly distributed to users, and the database is easy to 

will 

LogistiCare’s stringent credentialing standards for drivers and vehicles, our providers have 
significantly fewer accidents, and, therefore, lower claim totals.  
 
Working with our insurance advisors and partners, we created a program that captured the value 
of this loss differential and passed the benefits on to our providers, while providing the same 
insurance coverage. We have now invested more than $4 million in this well-received program, 
which now operates in 23 states. We will offer our insurance program

LogistiCare a

• National Insurance Services, an Atlanta-based firm that specializes in serving the non-
emergency transportation industry 

• Discover Re, the leading specialized risk management firm in the country, a wholly owned 
subsidiary of St. Paul Travelers  

• Crawford, the world's largest independent provider of claims management services, with a 
global network of more than 700 offices in 63 countries  

DRIVER SCREENING PROGRAM 
LogistiCare has contracted with Occuscreen, a national employee screening services firm, to offer
cost-effective driver screening for providers in the network. Screening inc
background checks, motor vehicle record (MVR) checks, and drug testing. Iowa providers shou
realize a 50 percent savings over what they currently pay for screening. 

DRIVER TRAININ
LogistiCare has 
National Safety Council (NSC), the Community Transportation Association of Americ
and other nationally recognized driver training organizations. This training program is made 
available to all our network providers free of charge. The training includes instruction in 
defensive driving techniques, wheelchair securement and lift operation, passenger assistance 
techniques, and general customer service.  

AFFORDABLE MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE 
LogistiCare provides our transportation providers with free access to a web-based transportation 
management software tool, the Provado Dispatch Manager (PDM) system. Providers can use this 
software system for managing routing, billing, and vehicle and driver recordkeeping tasks.
other broker
its network providers at no cost.  

In addition to the PDM tool, transportation providers in the network have no-cost access to the 
LogistiCare Transportation Provider Website. From this easy-to-use portal, transportation 
providers can retrieve and manage information about trips they have been assigned, download 
training material, and access reports and documents necessary to support their relationship with
LogistiCare. 

The PDM software is web-based and accessible from any PC with an Internet connection. 
Modifications and enhancements are easi
maintain and secure. Security is achieved through secure SSL 128-bit encryption for all web 
communications, as well as log-in and password procedures that ensure that each provider 
only have access to its own trip information. 

Transportation providers can import their LogistiCare trips into the PDM website and also 
manually enter non-LogistiCare trips. Automated trip assignment features and drag-and-drop 
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icles on a secure website. It also 

ives them the ability to produce various business management reports, which allows them 

•

•

• 

technology make it easy for providers to build and change vehicle routes. The system allows
providers to store and organize information about drivers and veh
g
quicker and more detailed access to their key operational statistics. 

Key PDM features enable users to: 

• Manage vehicles 
• Manage drivers 
• Manage riders (“members”) 
• Import trips 
 Enter one-time and recurring trips 
• Build daily routes 
 Automate routing in one click 
• Print driver manifests and trip logs 

View revenue per vehicle 



 
Section 5 – Service Requirements

 

Iowa Medicaid Enterprise NEMT Brokerage Services   
RFP MED-10-011 Page 53 

s Figure 3.3.5 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Provado Dispatch Manager. PDM software allow
transportation providers to easily schedule and manage their trips online. 

 

RECRUITMENT CONSIDERATIONS 
In a transition situation such as in Iowa, LogistiCare places great emphasis on continuity of 
service relationships for all members. For this reason, LogistiCare will initially rely as much as 
possible on current Medicaid transportation providers. In recruiting and certifying existing Iowa 
providers, we will follow the process described previously in this section.  

LogistiCare believes it is crucial in implementing a new NEMT brokerage program to specifically 
target recruitment efforts to match the expected geographic distribution of trips. Dealing only 
with overall recruitment targets may mask important gaps in particular areas. For that reason, we 
try to predict likely trip volumes on a local level using the best available information. At this 
point, our best information is based on the projected number of covered lives in Iowa and public 
transit data. After contract award, we will be able to refine our recruitment targets with specific 
information obtained from health care facilities and providers.  

We based our estimate of initial vehicle capacity requirements on trip estimates derived from 
Department data on county NEMT populations and from our national database on NEMT 



 
Section 5 – Service Requirements

 

Iowa Medicaid Enterprise NEMT Brokerage Services   
RFP MED-10-011 Page 54 

uti
projected the

 continuously maintain at least the minimum automobile liability 

n 

 
pair 

lization rates and level of service distribution across multiple NEMT programs. We then 
 number of daily trips for each county and the vehicle capacity needed to 

accommodate those trips, taking into account the population density of each county (load factors 
are slightly higher in more populated areas). Using an estimated utilization rate (total trips 
divided by total eligible population) of 18 percent, we estimate an overall need for 97 ambulatory 
vehicles, 18 wheelchair vehicles, and 19 stretcher vehicles, for a total of 134 vehicles, to 
adequately provide NEMT services to Iowa’s 99 counties.  

ONGOING NETWORK DEVELOPMENT  
To ensure ongoing capacity to serve all members, LogistiCare will continuously monitor data on 
complaints, on-time performance, missed trips, re-routes, and other network operations 
information. This body of information provides the best indication of any shortage of network 
capacity that might exist. If deficits are uncovered, LogistiCare acts prudently and efficiently to 
optimize the network. In Iowa, as in all of our NEMT contracts, any commercial and agency 
providers added to the network will undergo the same orientation, inspection, credentialing, 
evaluation, testing, and contracting procedures previously described, in accordance with RFP 
requirements. Please refer to Attachment 15, Provider Contract for a draft copy of the Iowa 
transportation provider contract. 

In all of our state Medicaid NEMT programs, LogistiCare maintains close working relationships 
with agencies that provide transportation services. Since organizations such as transit agencies, 
community service boards, government agencies, and many ambulance providers are so highly 
regulated by other state agencies, we have created a special contract addendum for these 
organizations to avoid unnecessary duplication of effort in credentialing and monitoring. A 
sample addendum for highly regulated providers is located in Attachment 15, Provider Contract. 
Agency providers will receive the same orientations and be subject to the same performance 
standards and billing procedures as other providers.  

LogistiCare will also enter into written contracts with qualified individual providers who perform 
NEMT trips. Those individuals who have been evaluated and are able to perform required driving 
services are provided with a copy of the same contract as used by commercial providers. The 
language in the contract is written conditionally so that the different applicability of some 
provisions to commercial entities or individuals is clear. The contract will contain all 
requirements specified in the RFP. Among other provisions, the contract will specify the 
activities and responsibilities of the providers, and state that the individuals must:  

• Provide proof that they
insurance required by Iowa law  

• Obtain and maintain all licenses and certifications required to operate the types of 
vehicles used to transport NEMT members 

• Adhere to all laws, rules, and regulations regarding drivers and their vehicle types used to 
transport NEMT members 

• Document each trip provided, including pick-up and drop-off points, trip mileage 
according to odometer readings, date of transport, signatures, and any other informatio
required by LogistiCare and the Department  

• Be courteous, patient, and helpful to all passengers; refrain from smoking in the presence
of any member; and abstain from the use of alcohol, narcotics, or drugs that im
performance while providing NEMT services  
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ct to 

nsit 

 in 
g on public transit. LogistiCare will 

work closely with transit agencies throughout Iowa to ensure that all members with disabilities, 
ation, will have adequate access to transportation services that 

 

y of the ADA 

nships with 
utes 

xed-route data 
for p  
trip t  
to help 
  
=Logist  the Reservations and Preschedule Editors 
that d
bro /s
The goa e member’s pick-up and drop-off locations are within 
acc a

The Ma
each res  screen includes such items as potential 
stop s
services
Coordin the member regarding the most 
convenient stops for the trip. All transit stops initially are given a status of “acceptable” until 

NET 

PUBLIC TRANSIT 
The Iowa Study made clear that the Department expects the broker awarded this contra
coordinate with local transit agencies to ensure Medicaid members have access to the most 
appropriate, least costly mode of transportation. LogistiCare prioritizes the use of public tra
systems in all our Medicaid contracts to control costs and maximize member independence. The 
Iowa Study also pointed out that some Medicaid-eligible members with disabilities living
urban areas struggle to keep their appointments when relyin

regardless of their geographic loc
accommodate their special needs. 

For Iowa, we will follow the same procedures we have used successfully in Connecticut, 
Delaware, Philadelphia, and other states to establish a comprehensive public transit program for 
Iowa Medicaid members. LogistiCare has scheduled meetings with top transit officials in Iowa 
cities and regions to discuss cooperative ways to provide services to members. Based on past 
experiences in other states, LogistiCare anticipates transit officials in Iowa will be enthusiastic
about helping to create an effective fixed-route pass program, as this will increase income and 
ridership for the transit group. LogistiCare will also explore which Medicaid members can be 
certified for and transported by an
paratransit programs. 

LogistiCare is experienced in making determinations 
about the appropriateness of fixed-route transit for 
NEMT member trips, and in managing public transit 
programs for Medicaid agencies. Our use of public 
transit passes in Connecticut and Delaware has 
attracted national attention and is featured in two 
federal publications on the issue. In several of 

Figure 3.3.7 (CONFIDENTIAL) – 
LogistiCare Transit -Intensive 

Programs 

LogistiCare’s more urban service areas, fixed-route 
transit trips comprise a significant percentage of 
overall NEMT trips (see right, Figure 3.3.7).  
 
In managing the transit program in Iowa, LogistiCare staff will establish liaison relatio
transit customer service staff to ensure that we receive updated information on available ro
and timely trip planning advice for individual NEMT trips. We will map out their fi

all ublic transit systems to enable our CSRs to determine the most efficient and cost-effective
 op ions. Where possible, we will upload actual mass transit stops and routes into LogistiCAD

us plan trips. 

iCAD provides an optional module built into
 is esigned to help identify mass transit eligible trips. This module is controlled on a 
ker tate client basis to allow a wide range of diversity depending on contract requirements. 

l is to identify trips where th
ept ble distances to mass transit stops.  

ss Transit screen (Figure 3.3.8 below) provides all relevant mass transit information for 
ervation trip leg. Information displayed on the

s, top location details, routes to which each stop belongs, the mode of mass transit that 
 the stop, and the transit organization that services the stops. The Transportation 
ator can use this data to provide information to 

Contract 
Annual 

Transit Trips 

Transit % of 

Total Trips 

Philadelphia 3,973,116 75% 

Connecticut 397,404 38% 

New Jersey 396,000 16% 

Delaware 59,832 10% 
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er “default” or “unacceptable” depending on the judgment of the Transportation changed to eith
Coordinator.  

Figure 3.3.8 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Sample Mass Transit Screen in LogistiCAD. 

 
An important function of the mass transit module is the ab garding 
nd routes. (To prevent duplicate changes, we have limited the editing access function to Call 

 following similar steps. For example, if wishing to add a new route, the 

 

gible 
te type and amount of passes or tokens to cover the 

kens 

 to 
consider a number of factors: 

ility to edit information re stops 
a
Center Managers and Transportation Managers.) If necessary, for example, when one of the stops 
is found to be inactive, the major fields concerning that stop can be edited. The Call Center 
Manager or Transportation Manager would open the Mass Transit Stop Editor, highlight the stop 
that needed editing, and unclick the Active box, which would then change the status of the stop to 
“inactive.”  

A route can be edited
Call Center Manager or Transportation Manager would open the Mass Transit Stop Editor, click 
the Routes Tab, and click the Add button. The person performing the editing function could then
enter in the relevant information such as the route number and whether it is inbound or outbound.  

LogistiCare will arrange to purchase passes, tokens, and train tickets on a bulk basis. An eli
Medicaid member will be sent the appropria
requested itinerary. Members requesting standing order service are often given a transit pass that 
allows them the additional benefit of taking unlimited non-medical trips at no expense. This 
“perk” makes the transit program very popular with many members. In some cases, we have 
found it useful to allow appropriate health care facilities to distribute the transit passes and to
for us, under our oversight.  

In determining the appropriateness of fixed-route services for a member, our CSRs are trained
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e service at the times of day being requested? 
ers 

a

ABLE RATE NEGOTIATION 
 

en 

• Is there any transit service running between the pick-up and drop-off locations? 
• Is ther
• Is the service reasonably timely?  Service may involve transfers, but the wait for transf

must be reasonably brief. Also, the rider must not be delivered to the medical facility too 
early, nor be required to wait for too long after the appointment.  

• Are the transit stops reasonably close to the pick-up and drop-off locations? We generally 
consider 1/2 mile to be a reasonable distance to expect the member to walk, but this could 
be modified depending on factors such as the member’s medical condition, the nature of 
the surrounding neighborhoods, and the weather.  

• Does the member have any medical condition that prevents him/her from riding on transit 
vehicles or accessing transit stops? 

• If either the pick-up or drop-off location is too far from a transit stop for walking, would 
it be cost effective to provide a short ride to either of the closest transit stops? 
 

If the member has a medical condition that prevents use of public transit, LogistiCare will fax a 
confirmation form to his/her physician for review and signed verification. A copy of a sample 
physician’s transportation restriction form used in one of our current NEMT contracts is included 
in Attachment 8, Sample Authorization Forms. Unless public transit stations and vehicles are 
fully wheelchair accessible, fixed-route transit services are generally considered inappropriate for 
persons in wheelchairs.  

Conditions such as the following may also render public transportation inappropriate for some 
mbulatory members: 

• The member has a disabling physical condition that requires the use of a walker, cane, 
crutches, or brace and renders them unable to comfortably and safely use public transit 
vehicles. 

• The member requires radiation therapy, chemotherapy, dialysis, or other such disabling 
treatment that prevents the member from using public transportation. 

• The member is mentally disoriented, fearful of crowds, or otherwise psychologically or 
mentally incapable of accessing transit locations and using transit services.  

 
LogistiCare will give the public transit provider first choice in compliance with Iowa Code 
chapter 324A, as to whether they will accept the trip or deny it, as long as the referral otherwise 
complies with the obligations of 42 C.F.R. § 440.170(a).  

SERVICE DENIALS AND REASON
LogistiCare acknowledges that only Medicaid members meeting the requirements cited in 441
IAC 78.13 are eligible for NEMT services. We will not ever arbitrarily deny or reduce the 
amount, duration, or scope of NEMT services from an eligible Medicaid member based on cost 
savings, bias, or self-motivated reasons. We understand that we may place appropriate limits on 
services as long as the furnished services achieve their purpose. 
 
LogistiCare is committed to a pure brokerage service model for the NEMT program, as we feel 
that the separation of management functions from direct service is important. By staying out of 
direct service, we prove to our providers that we do not intend to compete with them or threat
their business. This demonstration of good faith goes a long way toward developing and 
maintaining trust within the network, which is essential for obtaining the best possible service and 
cooperation from them. LogistiCare will not make referrals to transportation providers if the 
relationship would constitute a conflict of interest.  
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In comp roviders 
that  in Section 3.3.2.1.3.1 Standard 
Dri  

We wil
reimbur ayment process, please 
refer to 

3.3.2.1.3.
All driver

liance with the requirements of the RFP, LogistiCare will only subcontract with p
 are approved by the IME and meet the requirements cited
ver Guidelines. 

l negotiate fair and reasonable rates with transportation providers and be responsible for 
sing NEMT transportation claims. For a discussion of our claims p
Section 3.3.2.4 NEMT Reimbursement.  

1 STANDARD DRIVER GUIDELINES 
s:  

a. M  P
b. M  h
medical c
lawful op

if 

gible.  

traint devices as required by law.  
i. Mu
impairme
j. Must n ile transporting Members. 
k. M
safely. 
l. Mu f 
the Mem

. Must submit to random drug and alcohol screenings, if required to do so by the Network transportation 

ust ossess a current valid driver’s license with no restrictions other than corrective lenses. 
ust ave no limitation or restrictions that would interfere with safe driving. This includes, but not limited to, 

onditions, ignition interlock restriction, or prescribed medication that would interfere with the safe, 
eration of a motor vehicle. 

c. Must p ss a pre-employment drug screening.  
d. Must pass a Department of Criminal Investigation (DCI) background check prior to the start of employment, 
required to do so by the Network transportation provider.  
e. Must pass a child and dependent adult abuse background check, if required to do so by the Network 
transportation provider. 
f. Any provider (both individual and entity) identified on the Office of Inspector General (OIG) Excluded Parties 
List System (EPLS) is not eli

a

g. Must be trained in the use of ADA access equipment, if vehicle is so equipped. 
h. Must use passenger res

st provide assistance to passengers, as needed or requested, particularly for passengers with mobility 
nts requiring assistance in boarding, deboarding, or securing a mobility device.  

ot smoke wh
ust not transport Members while under the influence of alcohol or any drug that impairs the ability to drive 

st not provide transportation if they have an illness that could pose a threat to the health and well being o
ber.  

m
provider.  
Adherence to driver and provider requirements is essential to the provision of safe, reliable 
NEMT services that meet all contractual and regulatory specifications. Our proven approach to 

e policies and procedures that will be agreed 
o 

d 

s licensing, training, screening, 
nd violations will have an associated comment field in which corrective action and other notes, 

on pick-up and drop-off spots. Often 

meeting these imperative requirements centers on th
to by the Department and documented in the NEMT Provider Manual, which will be provided t
each contracted provider. 

Our LogistiCAD system will be used to ensure that vehicle and driver requirements as establishe
by the Department are met. Information will be captured on driver identification, license status, 
training, screenings, and driving violations. Requirements such a
a
up to 200 words in length, can be recorded for each incident or item.  

LogistiCare will ensure that all its drivers are in compliance with the driver performance 
requirements of this RFP. LogistiCAD compliance reports will flag drivers who have not 
undergone appropriate customer service training. In addition, driver behavior of all kinds is 
tracked through the complaints process (see Section 3.2.2.6 Grievance, Complaints, and State 
Fair Hearings System) and through field investigations. LogistiCare field staff will conduct 
unannounced visits to provider facilities and to comm
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ts. 
s functionality built into its billing screens to link trips submitted for payment 

g files at any time.  

he 
mercial, 

er’s license prior to operating a vehicle in our 

l have no limitations or restrictions that would 
k 

ed medication that would interfere with the safe, lawful operation of a 

 and well-being of a member. 

 
ed annually. 

dicating that a driver’s credentials are about to expire 

national fingerprinting database. These background checks must be 

d 

traint 
sted, 

g 
 the 

undetected, the field inspectors observe and record driver compliance with operational and 
customer service standards. They also review provider files for required qualification documen
LogistiCAD also ha
to the driver and vehicle compliance information.  If a trip is submitted for payment using a 
vehicle or driver that is not currently in compliance, the system will flag the trip so that payment 
may be denied.  LogistiCare also insists that providers have a meaningful system of monitoring in 
place, and that we have access to these monitorin

DRIVER CREDENTIALING STANDARDS 
LogistiCare will require that our driver credentials meet or exceed those required by t
Department. The following driver credentials, and others, will be enforced for all com
agency, and individual drivers under the Iowa NEMT program.  

LICENSE REQUIREMENTS 
All drivers will be required to provide a driv
network. In compliance with the requirements of the RFP, the driver will have no license 
restrictions other than corrective lenses. Drivers wil
interfere with safe driving, including, but not limited to medical conditions, ignition interloc
restriction, or prescrib
motor vehicle. Drivers will not be permitted to provide transportation if they have an illness that 
could pose a threat to the health

ALCOHOL/DRUG POLICY  
All drivers must pass an eight-panel drug test prior to being permitted to enroll in a LogistiCare
driver-training course. Like the criminal background check, this must be renew
LogistiCare will fax the provider a letter in
and that they must be renewed or the driver will be declared inactive. LogistiCare providers are 
required to immediately remove from service any driver suspected of violated drug and alcohol 
policy requirements. Each driver and attendant must have no prior indictments for a substance 
abuse crime, and be willing to submit to random drug and alcohol screenings as required. 

CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECKS 
Drivers will be required to have a federal criminal background check with a seven-year check 
period and a state or county background check, also with a seven-year period, from each state of 
residence during the past seven years, as identified by the federal background check. The federal 
check includes a review of the federal sex offender list, federal offenses, and an identity check 
that confirms the applicant’s name, Social Security number, and address for the past seven years, 
as well as comparison to a 
renewed annually. Each driver and attendant must have no prior indictments for substance abuse, 
sex crimes,  or crimes of violence. In compliance with the RFP, any provider (both individual an
entity) identified on the Office of Inspector General (OIG) Excluded Parties List System (EPLS) 
will not be eligible to provide transportation services. 

ADDITIONAL DRIVER REQUIREMENTS 
All drivers will be trained in the use of ADA access equipment and will use passenger res
devices as required by law. Drivers will provide assistance to passengers, as needed or reque
and particularly to passengers with mobility impairments requiring assistance, in boarding, 
deboarding, and securing a mobility device. Drivers will not be able to smoke while transportin
members, nor operate a vehicle while under the influence of alcohol or any drug that impairs
ability to drive safely. 



 
Section 5 – Service Requirements

 

Iowa Medicaid Enterprise NEMT Brokerage Services   
RFP MED-10-011 Page 60 

 

ve 

required to immediately 
remove from service any driver who violates drug and alcohol policy requirements. Any driver 

r chargeable accident terms specified in the RFP will no 

liant, high-quality program. 
sive approach to defining, maintaining, deploying, and putting into 

us 

DRIVER COMPLIANCE ENFORCEMENT AND REMOVAL FROM SERVICE 
LogistiCare actively enforces driver compliance with credentialing standards. Any driver found to
be out of compliance with RFP and contract requirements, as well as state or federal regulations, 
will be immediately removed from service until LogistiCare verifies that such deficiencies ha
been corrected. For example, if a driver fails to maintain appropriate licensing, we require the 
driver’s immediate removal from the program. If there are alleged drug violations, we investigate 
in accordance with our drug testing policy. LogistiCare providers are 

who exceeds the moving violation o
longer be allowed to provide service.  

Ensuring that all accountability standards for vehicle, driver, and provider requirements are 
attained protects the safety of NEMT riders and produces a comp
LogistiCare’s comprehen
effect the accountability standards defined in the Iowa RFP has proven successful in numero
NEMT contracts across the nation. 

3.3.2.1.3.2 STANDARD VEHICLE GUIDELINES 
All vehicles:  
a. Must currently be licensed and registered as required by law. 
b. Must have proof of financial responsibility maintained on any vehicle
Members as required by law. The Broker shall confirm compliance with

 used to transport Iowa Medicaid 
 applicable financial responsibility and/or 

ich may include Iowa Code chapter 321A, and 761 IAC 910.5(1). insurance requirements, wh
c. Must be kept at all times in proper physical and mechanical condition. 
d. Must be equipped with operable passenger restraint devices, turn signals, lights, horn, brakes, a front 
windshield, windows, and mirrors. 
e. Must pass a safety inspection, if required to do so by state or federal law. 
f. Must carry equipment for two-way emergency communication (two-way radio or cell phone acceptable). 
LogistiCare will ensure that all vehicles in our transportation network comply with all regulator
requirements for vehicle safety and maintenance. Before providing NEMT service, all mem

y 
bers 

pliance with applicable city, county, state, and 

 

communication equipment. 

of our transportation network will be in com
federal requirements regarding licensing and insurance of all vehicles used to transport Iowa 
Medicaid members, which may include Iowa Code chapter 321A and 761 IAC 910.5(1). All 
transportation providers’ vehicles will be kept at all times in proper physical and mechanical 
condition. Please refer to Annual Vehicle Inspections below for a discussion about LogistiCare’s 
vehicle inspection process. 

In compliance with the requirements of the RFP, LogistiCare will ensure that NEMT providers 
maintain vehicles in proper physical and mechanical condition. All vehicles will be equipped with
operable passenger restraint devices, turn signals, lights, horn, brakes, a front windshield, 
windows, and mirrors, in addition to equipment for two-way emergency communication. 
LogistiCare acknowledges that two-way radios or cell phones constitute Department-accepted 

ANNUAL VEHICLE INSPECTIONS  



 
Section 5 – Service Requirements

 

Iowa Medicaid Enterprise NEMT Brokerage Services   
RFP MED-10-011 Page 61 

LogistiCare provides vehicle inspection services for most 
of our NEMT contracts. We will use this process to 
inspect 100 percent of Iowa commercial and agency 
vehicles in our network each year. Inspections will be 
conducted according to appropriate levels of the Federal 
Motor Carrier Safety Administration’s North American 
Standard Inspection requirements. All provider vehicles 
will be inspected prior to beginning service under this 
contract, and vehicle inspection records will be retained 
according to the records maintenance provisions stated in 

ain 

 
n checklist (included in Attachment 16, Provider 

Monitoring Tools) outlines every required inspection element.  

t do not have violations that pose an immediate threat to 
d comfort of riders, will be passed on a probationary status and given a dated yellow 

tionary status include:  

 been made. Failure to pass 
and 

fy the contracted provider, its capabilities and capacities, and its 

ce, as 
quire of 

 
ication, license status, training, screenings, and driving violations. 

y integrated logic prevents a provider from being reimbursed for any trip 
 not fully compliant and on active status.  

Identification and compliance data that LogistiCAD tracks for each vehicle in the program 
includes:  

• Vehicle identification number 
• Manufacturer’s vehicle identification number 

the RFP.  

LogistiCare’s field monitors will conduct on-site inspections to ensure that operator fleets rem
in compliance with specified vehicle requirements. The inspector outlines any deficiencies that 
need to be corrected, with a re-inspection scheduled within two weeks of the original inspection
date. LogistiCare’s vehicle inspectio

Vehicles that do not pass inspection, bu
the safety an
sticker. Examples of conditions that might warrant proba

• Damaged upholstery  
• Missing insurance card  
• Missing first aid kit items  
 
The provider will be given 10 days to bring the vehicle into compliance, and the inspector will 
schedule a re-inspection to confirm the required improvements have
the second inspection will result in the vehicle being removed from service. Any deficiencies 
actions taken will be documented and become part of the vehicle’s permanent record. If the 
vehicle fails inspection due to a health, safety, or serious comfort issue, it will be given a red 
sticker to indicate it is out of service. Examples of these types of violations include no seatbelts, 
no fire extinguisher, malfunctioning brake lights, and similar problems. 

DATABASE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM FOR MONITORING PROVIDER COMPLIANCE 
To help LogistiCare managers monitor and manage the ongoing process of provider 
credentialing, we rely on our LogistiCAD data management system. LogistiCAD captures all the 
information needed to identi
compliance with basic organizational and credentialing requirements (Figure 3.3.9). 

LogistiCAD records information such as insurance details, coverage area, the dates during which 
the provider was on active duty, and the reasons for any termination or suspension of servi
well as extensive details, including renewal dates, for the various kinds of insurance we re
the providers. Our system captures specific data about individual vehicles and drivers, including
information on driver identif
LogistiCAD’s highl
provided by a driver or vehicle
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s 
including: 

ection 

• Make, type, and model year 
• Vehicle’s current transportation statu
• Inspection histories on each vehicle, 

o Inspection date 
o Inspector 
o Results of inspection 
o Odometer reading at time of insp
o Inspector’s comments 
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Figur 3 ogistiCAD Vehicle Compliance Screen. 
Logis sure vehicles in LogistiCare’s network are 
comp t

e .3.9 (CONFIDENTIAL) – L
tiCAD captures all the information needed en
lian . 

 
 

LogistiCare occasionally furnishes providers with small items to keep their vehicles in 
compliance, thereby keeping vehicles that are truly safe from becoming inactive and potentially 
disrupting service in the area. For example, a LogistiCare inspector might provide a 
transportation company with a missing item from a first-aid kit or a seat belt extender.  

A “red-lined” vehicle is immediately removed from service. LogistiCare must verify that 
deficiencies have been corrected before a red-lined vehicle may return to service. Transports that 
occur in a red-lined vehicle will not be reimbursed and may result in removal of the provider 
from the NEMT system. 

LogistiCare inspectors also perform unannounced vehicle inspections, and immediately remove 
deficient vehicles from service in accordance with our service contract. These unannounced 
inspections are made as needed in response to member comments or other operational issues. 

 3.3.2.1.4 BROKER RESPONSIBILITIES: MEMBERS/INDIVIDUALS/VOLUNTEERS 
Medicaid Members, who are eligible for NEMT, may request that someone, other than a Network provider, 
transport them. The Member may be able to drive him or herself, request that a family member or other 
acquaintance provide the transportation, or make arrangements with a volunteer for transportation. In any case, 
the Broker will coordinate the request and make the decision on who provides the transportation. The Broker 
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will en her 
than a

sure the provision of necessary NEMT services by either approving the transportation by someone ot
 Network provider, or by making other arrangements for the transportation through a Network provider. 

LogistiCare recognizes that Medicaid members eligible for NEMT services may request that 
someone other than a network transportation provider transport them to a covered service ap-
pointment. In compliance with the requirements of the RFP, we will coordinate this request and 
make the decision about who will provide the NEMT transportation by either approving the 
transportation by someone other than a network provider or by making other arrangements for 
transportation through a network provider.  
LogistiCare will have an affidavit or statement on the claim forms that the person driving 
will have to sign attesting to the fact that they meet the standard driver and vehicle guide-
lines. 

3.3.2.1.4.1 STANDARD DRIVER GUIDELINES 
All drivers:  
a. Must possess a current valid driver’s license with no restrictions other than corrective lenses. 
b. Must have no limitation or restrictions that would interfere with safe driving. This includes, but not limited to, 
medical conditions, ignition interlock restriction, or prescribed medication that would interfere with the safe, 
lawful operation of a motor vehicle. 
c. Identified on the Office of Inspector General (OIG) Excluded Provider List are not eligible.  
d. Must be trained in the use of ADA access equipment, if vehicle is so equipped. 
e. Must use passenger restraint devices as required by law.  
f. Must provide assistance to passengers, as needed or requested, particularly for passengers with mobility 
impairments requiring assistance in boarding, deboarding, or securing a mobility device.  
g. Must not smoke while transporting Members. 
h. Must not transport Members while under the influence of alcohol or any drug that impairs the ability to drive 
safely. 
As is the case for drivers in our transportation network, LogistiCare will ensure all drivers 
(m
a

embers/individuals/volunteers) are in compliance with the standard driver guidelines listed 
bove in Section 3.3.2.1.4.1.a-h Standard Driver Guidelines. 

3.3.2.1.4.2 STANDARD VEHICLE GUIDELINES 
All vehicles:  
a. Must currently be licensed and registered as required by law. 
b. Must have proof of financial responsibility maintained on any vehicle used to transport Iowa Medicaid 
Members as required by law. The Broker shall confirm compliance with applicable financial responsibilit
insurance requirements, which may include Iowa Code chapter 321A, and 761 IAC 910.5(1). 
c. Must be kept at all times in proper physical and mechanical condition. 
d. Must be equipped with ope

y and/or 

rable passenger restraint devices, turn signals, lights, horn, brakes, a front 

e 

windshield, windows, and mirrors. 
e. Must pass a safety inspection, if required to do so by state or federal law. 
If NEMT transportation is provided by someone other than a Network provider, the Broker is also responsibl
for reimbursement of these claims. 
LogistiCare will ensure that the vehicles used by drivers (members/individuals/volunteers) to 
provide NEMT transportation comply with all regulatory requirements for vehicle safety and 
maintenance. Before providing NEMT service, all drivers will provide proof of financial 
responsibility and/or insurance for all vehicles used to transport Iowa Medicaid members, which 
may include Iowa Code chapter 321A and 761 IAC 910.5(1). In compliance with the 
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rsement form, which will be signed by the medical provider, to document the trip. Please 
see Attachment 17, Mileage Reimbursement Materials for a sample mileage reimbursement trip 

r other state NEMT programs.  All trip mileage is 
culated using geobase technology in LogistiCare’s database system. Distances and 

 

requirements of the RFP, LogistiCare will ensure that driver vehicles are kept in all times in 
proper physical and mechanical condition. All vehicles will be equipped with operable passenger
restraint devices, turn signals, lights, horn, brakes, a front windshield, windows, and mirrors. 

LogistiCare acknowledges that if NEMT transportation is provided by someone other than a 
network provider, we will also be responsible for reimbursement of those claims. We are 
experienced in the management of NEMT member mileage reimbursement programs. Forty-one 
of our 63 contracts include mileage reimbursement programs. We will provide mileage 
reimbursement for the members, individuals, and volunteers specified in this section of the RFP. 
The member will contact LogistiCare to schedule the trip, allowing LogistiCare to verify 
eligibility, appointment time, and need for the visit. The member will must complete a mileage 
reimbu

log and invoice form used in one of ou
accurately cal
trip confirmations are reviewed by LogistiCare billing staff before any payments are made. 

3.3.2.1.5 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
a. The Broker must provide a monthly updated Network Plan by the tenth business day of the month following 

twork provider is following 
 3.3.2.1.41. 

g 

the last day of each month. 

b. The Broker will verify annually and have documentation to support, that each ne
the “Standard Driver Guidelines” identified in Section 3.3.2.1.3.1 and

c. The Broker will ensure annually and have documentation to support, that each network provider is followin
the “Standard Vehicle Guidelines” identified in Section 3.3.2.1.3.2 and 3.3.2.1.4.2. 

In compliance with the requirements of the RFP, LogistiCare will provide the Department with an 
updated Network Plan by the tenth business day of the month following the last day of each 
month. We will verify annually and have documentation to support that each network provider is 

. We 

s 3.3.2.1.3.2 and 3.3.2.1.4.2. For a 
discussion of our network monitoring and reporting program, please refer to Section 3.3.2.1.5 

n of our Network Plan, please refer to Section 3.3.2.1.3 
onsibilities: Network Transportation Providers. 

rd includes 
 measures. These include 

ach 

 the network. (Please see 
 

ger 

following the “Standard Driver Guidelines” identified in Sections 3.3.2.1.3.1 and 3.3.2.1.4.1
will also ensure annually and have documentation to support that each network provider is 
following “Standard Vehicle Guidelines” identified in Section

Performance Standards. For a discussio
Broker Resp

PROVIDER REPORT CARD 
LogistiCare uses a process of written monthly feedback to our providers to further ensure 
compliance with credentialing and performance standards. Our Provider Report Ca
information on each provider’s performance regarding seven key
timeliness, safety, customer service, and ongoing compliance with credentialing standards. E
criterion is separately scored, with the highest possible score being 100. Providers must receive at 
least a score of 80 on their report cards to retain their active status in
Attachment 16, Provider Monitoring Materials for a sample copy of our Provider Report Card.)
Our Iowa Transportation Supervisor will meet with each provider to review report cards at least 
quarterly.  

Some of these performance criteria are traditional service quality measures. Others represent 
performance norms which, if violated, may or may not indicate a problem, but which will trig
closer investigation and discussion. Scoring criteria for the report card include the following: 
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a 

nate 

 LogistiCare has set a standard of .7% (seven per 1,000) for 

he proper level of service for certain riders. 

h 
 active.  

tiCare informs the 

 

Violation Percentage:  This measures the number of valid provider complaints expressed as 
percentage of trips completed in the quarter. LogistiCare has set a standard of no more than 1% 
for the aggregate percentage for all these violations.   

Complaint Ratio: This compares each provider’s share of total complaints to the provider’s 
share of trips. Any score over (one) 1 indicates that the provider is incurring a disproportio
share of complaints.  

Provider Cancellation: LogistiCare has set a standard of no less than 15% for our providers. 
Providers with less than 15% cancellations are likely to be failing to report all their cancellations 
properly, which could lead to billing problems later.    

On-time Performance: LogistiCare has set a standard of 98% for on-time deliveries to medical 
appointments, but will expect drivers are compliant with the RFP requirement. 

Trips Rerouted: LogistiCare has set a standard of 2% or less for our providers. Anything higher 
indicates either “cherry picking” by the provider, or a lack of capacity to handle the volume of 
trips expected.   

Percent of Gross Trips Upgraded:
our providers. Anything higher indicates a lack of provider capacity in the service area or some 
ongoing confusion about t

Provider, Driver, Vehicle, and Insurance Compliance: LogistiCare has set a standard that eac
provider achieves a score of 100% with all compliance issues to remain

The Iowa Transportation Supervisor will be responsible for reviewing transportation quality data, 
issuing report cards, and devising corrective actions with providers. Logis
provider of deficiencies, meets to discuss possible corrective actions, and outlines the 
consequences of failure to improve. If sufficient improvements are not voluntarily made, 
LogistiCare will apply a full range of sanctions, including liquidated damages, withholding of trip
assignments, and termination, as outlined in our subcontractor agreement, to enforce performance 
standards.  

3.3.2.2 VERIFICATION OF MEMBER ELIGIBILITY 

3.3.2.2.1 STATE RESPONSIBILITIES 
a. Provide information on eligibility updates for NEMT services. 
LogistiCare acknowledges that the State will provide information on eligibility updates for 
NEMT services to us. 

3.3.2.2.2 BROKER RESPONSIBILITIES 
For each Member requesting non-emergency transportation services, the Broker will verify the Member’s 
Medicaid eligibility through the Medicaid Management Information System (MMIS). Eligible NEMT Medicaid 
Members, as defined in this RFP, are any Medicaid member (adult or child) except: 
a. Members who are determined program eligible as a QMB, SLMB, E-SLMB, or QDWP (i.e., Members not 
eligible for full Medicaid benefits);  

b. Individuals participating in the Family Planning Waiver;  

ack 
end 

down requirements. 

c. Individuals receiving benefits under IowaCare, or  

d. Individuals who are Medically Needy and who have not met spend down requirements. The Broker will tr
claims submitted for the spend down until and reimburse Medically Needy Members when they have met sp
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 recurring member eligibility file that we 

se 

compliance with the requirements of the RFP, LogistiCare will track claims 
eir 

In compliance with the requirements of the RFP, LogistiCare acknowledges that we will verify 
the member’s Medicaid eligibility through the Medicaid Management Information System 
(MMIS).   If possible, LogistiCare prefers to receive a
can import into our system to speed up eligibility verification.  Eligible NEMT Medicaid 
members are defined as any Medicaid member (adult or child) as defined in this RFP except tho
individuals meeting the conditions cited in Section 3.3.2.2.2.a-d. For members falling under 
Section 3.3.2.2.2.d, in 
submitted for the spend-down and reimburse medically needy members when they have met th
spend-down requirements. 

3.3.2.2.3 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
a. The Broker will verify eligibility for transportation services within one hour of transportation arrangement 
requests from Members or their representatives during normal business hours (8am – 5pm). 
b. When requests for transportation occur after hours or on weekends/holidays, the Broker will verify eligibility 
for transportation services within the first two hours of the next business day. 
During the prescribed nine-hour business day, LogistiCare’s Iowa call center/central business 

s 

he country provides us 

vations and 

g 
t we are 

 the 

s, and other immediate transportation issues.  For a detailed discussion of our member 
verification process using LogistiCAD, please refer to Section 3.2.2 NEMT: Brokerage Process. 

ays of the State of Iowa, which are New Year’s Day, 
orial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, 

be 
epartment 30 days’ written notice in the 

3.3.2.3 OFFICE/TELEPHONE CALL CENTER AND APPOINTMENT STANDARDS 

office will be staffed with customer service representatives to take reservation calls and numerou
other staff who will be trained to function as back-up or replacement operators if ever needed. 
Our experience running 14 large-scale NEMT call centers throughout t
with a sound basis for determining the number of phone lines and staff needed to accommodate 
maximum call volumes on projects of this size. LogistiCare call center services operate 24x7, 365 
days a year, exceeding the hours of operation required by the RFP. Normal reser
administrative calls will be received Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Central 
Standard Time. If possible, LogistiCare will verify eligibility for transportation services durin
the call, utilizing data imported from the Department stored in LogistiCAD. In the even
unable to verify member eligibility during the initial call, we will do so within one hour of
request from members or their representatives. Live staff will also be available after hours to 
handle calls for urgent care reservations, “Where’s My Ride” assistance requests, NEMT provider 
trip re-route

LogistiCare will observe the declared holid
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Mem
and Christmas Day. Because we operate a 365x24x7 call center in Arizona, reservations will 
accepted even on these days. LogistiCare will give the D
unlikely event that we would ever need to be closed on any other date.  

3.3.2.3.1 STATE RESPONSIBILITIES 
a. Determine policies regarding appointment standards. 

LogistiCare acknowledges the State’s responsibilities regarding Section 3.3.2.3 for determining
policies regarding appointment standards. 

 

d courteous customer service. The Broker will establish 
3.3.2.3.2 BROKER RESPONSIBILITIES: CALL CENTER 
a. The call center will provide professional, prompt an
and maintain an adequately staffed call center and ensure that the staff treats all callers with dignity and 
respect, including making sure the caller’s right to privacy and confidentiality are maintained. Telephone and 
administrative personnel must be familiar with NEMT services.  
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ambulance service. The Broker will not make arrangements for emergency 

r 

 advance notice and urgent care 

r 

b. The Broker will process all incoming telephone inquiries for NEMT in a timely, responsive, and courteous 
manner.  

c. The telephone numbers must be listed in the name of the Iowa Department of Human Services. The Broker
will relinquish ownership of the toll-free numbers to DHS upon contract termination. 

d. The Broker will ensure that the communication and language needs of all Members are addressed, including 
those of all non-English speaking Members. The Member cannot be charged for translator or interpreter 
services.  

e. The Broker will ensure that Members with emergency requests are referred or transferred immediately to 911 
or an appropriate local emergency 
transportation under its contract. 

f. At a minimum, the call center will be staffed to receive reservation requests and inquiries from Members o
their representatives during the hours of 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM (local time) Monday through Friday.  

g. Relative to after hours, including after 5:00 PM to 8:00 AM, Monday through Friday and on weekends and 
holidays, a 24-hour  telephone service is required to accommodate scheduling
appointments. (Holiday schedules are to be identical to the declared holidays of the State of Iowa.) ‘ 

h. The Broker must provide 24-hour, 7 days per week access by telephone to a live voice (an employee of the 
Broker or an answering service) that will immediately page an on-call employee of the Broker to address 
transportation problems during non-office hours.  

i. The Broker will have a sufficient number of properly functioning toll-free and V/TTY telephone numbers for 
Members and other responsible parties to request transportation services and to obtain information about 
transportation services. Members shall not incur a charge for placing a call, other than those applicable fo
local calls. 

LogistiCare prides itself on the consistent delivery of high quality customer service in all of our 
nationwide call centers. During CSR training, special emphasis is placed on interaction with 
callers to ensure CSRs identify themselves by name to each caller, treat all callers with dignity 
and respect, and process requests in a timely, responsive, and courteous manner. Our training 
program also educates CSRs about pertinent HIPAA rules and stresses the importance of 
respecting each caller’s right to privacy and confidentiality.  

All staff involved in the NEMT program will receive comprehensive training. CSRs, supervisors,
managers, and any other staff with responsibility for the program will be trained to understand the
Iowa Medicaid Program and the Medicaid Transportation service requirements, as well as our 
LogistiCAD system. Additional training will be provided as policies and/or procedures change, 
and as individual staff members are found to need refresher training through performance 
monitoring and formal annual performance appraisals. Additionally, Log

 
 

istiCare provides 
 or contract requirements 
achment 7, Staff Training 

e numbers, available for members making calls for 

be available for health care facilities and 
transportation providers, as well as an administrative line for IME staff and program stakeholders 

 through the call center staff. In compliance with 

 
  

ongoing scheduled refresher training whenever program’s procedures
change. Details of LogistiCare’s training program can be found in Att
Materials. 
ESTABLISH TOLL-FREE NUMBERS 
LogistiCare will establish and maintain toll-fre
reservations, complaints and other service-related issues, and “Where’s My Ride?” assistance 
requests. Additional toll-free numbers will 

to reach LogistiCare management without going
the requirements of the RFP, these toll-free numbers will be listed in the name of the Iowa 
Department of Human Services. For a description of each type of phone line, please refer to 
Figure 3.3.10 below. In addition, we will provide a facsimile number and e-mail address for our
call center in Des Moines and our call center in Arizona.
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.3.10 –Types of Toll-Free Phone Lines. All these toll-free lines will be 
 
Figure 3
provided at service commencement, with all member calls being taken by live 
operators. 

TYPE OF TOLL-FREE LINE PURPOSE 

Re

tion 
requests, follow-up calls regarding trip orders, cancellations, and 

• Oral interpretive services provided by our Spanish-speaking and 
rs; 
 24 

tation (OPI) 

servation line 

inquiries, reservation changes, to confirm that a reservation has 
been made, and to file transportation complaints. 

• Iowa Medicaid members call this number to make reserva

other bilingual CSRs in our Des Moines and Arizona call cente
and free oral interpretive services in more than 150 languages
x 7 using our Language Line Over the Phone Interpre
services. 

"Where's My Ride?" line • Used by members to learn the status of transportation that may be 
running late. This line may also be used to file a transportation 
complaint. 

Fa
by trained Facility Coordinators who specialize in the 

cility line • A dedicated line for health care facility staff, which will be 
answered 
management of standing order trips. 

Transportation Provider line • Reserved for network provider communications. 
Administrative line • Reserved for the client may want to address administrative issues 

with LogistiCare management staff. 
 
At the end of the contract term, LogistiCare will release and transfer the toll-free numbers used
for the Iowa Medicaid NEMT program to the Department. 
 
NON-ENGLISH SPEAKING CALLERS 
For callers who are non-English speaking, LogistiCare will of

 

fer oral interpretive services 

 more 
, on 

eld to the highest standards. These standards include maintaining 

r her 

 and 

through our call center operations by hiring Spanish-speaking and other bilingual CSRs in our 
Des Moines. We will also make oral interpretive services available free of charge to all language 
groups using our Language Line Over the Phone Interpretation (OPI) services. Language Line 
OPI is an excellent telephonic interpretation service available 24x7 to members calling 
LogistiCare call centers from any location. Language Line interpreters are able to translate
than 150 different languages. Members who need translation services are quickly connected
an average of 10-20 seconds, to an experienced translator who listens to the caller, analyzes the 
message, and accurately conveys the meaning to LogistiCare’s CSR.  
 
Language Line interpreters are h
patient confidentiality, ensuring accurate and complete translations, remaining impartial and 
unbiased during the conversation, interpreting for only the language(s) which he or she is 
authorized to interpret, providing excellent customer service, and continuing to improve his o
language skills. LogistiCare has chosen Language Line OPI as its interpreter partner because of 
its commitment to quality and customer care. For a brochure on Language Line services, please 
refer to Attachment 11, Call Center Technology. 

LogistiCare CSRs work with Language Line OPI interpreters to communicate with the caller
ensure all information is clear, accurate, and most importantly, understood by the Medicaid 
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ember or other caller. When necessary, CSRs communicate with a family member or other 

 CSRs working in the Iowa call center will be trained to recognize and refer 911 
rgency service. LogistiCare will rangements for 

emergency transportation und it
service for receiving reservation r
representatives, our call center op
 

LogistiCare call centers use teleco
accessibility to people who are de
center will be no exception. With
complete all calls and stay on-line essages either electronically over a Text Telephone 

to Logi C
year, with no restrictions on the le
employees who receive these call  in the use of relay services for the hearing 

 (Please refer to Att m um 
materials.)  

IBILITIES

m
acquaintance as requested by the member.  

EMERGENCY REQUESTS 
LogistiCare’s
calls to the appropriate eme  not make ar

er s contract. Since we will provide 365x24x7 live customer 
equests and inquiries from Iowa Medicaid members or their 
erators will always be accessible.  

TTY SERVICES 
mmunications relay services that provide full telephone 
af, hearing impaired, or speech impaired, and the Iowa call 
 relay services, specially trained communication assistants 
 to relay m

(TT/TTY) or verbally sti are’s CSRs. This service is available 24 hours a day, 365 days a 
ngth or number of calls that can be placed. All LogistiCare 

s are trained
impaired. ach ent 7, Staff Training Materials, for relay training curricul

3.3.2.3.3 BROKER RESPONS : APPOINTMENTS 
The Broker is respo
Members. The Brok

nsible for sche
er must also m t 

provision of transportation services, as

t 

ext day service, the Broker must make every effort to schedule the trip 

 

le, be 

d pick-up and drop off times, 

rior to 

 
Broker to ensure the transportation request is fulfilled to the satisfaction of the Member.  

duling all NEMT travel, including lodging, if required, for all eligible Medicaid 
ee the minimum federal requirements, as defined in 42C.F.R. § 440.170, for 

 well as applicable Department rules. 
a. The Broker is responsible at the time of scheduling for determining whether the Member is eligible for 
ambulatory or non-ambulatory non-emergency medical transportation. Emergency ambulance services are no
provided through the NEMT program.  

b. If a Member requires same day or n
as requested. Denial of NEMT service due to short notice is not acceptable.  

c. If a Member requires out-of-state travel for NEMT, the Broker will respond to requests by scheduling these
within 24 hours of the request.  

d. The Broker is expected to accommodate passengers who have disabilities or special health care needs. 
Members with developmental or intellectual disabilities who have recurring trips must, to the extent possib
scheduled continuously with the same providers and drivers. Similar accommodations should be provided to 
Members who are physically frail, receiving dialysis or are dealing with other significant mobility or healthcare 
issues. The Member and/or their legal representative should be notified by the Broker, or the transportation 
provider on the Broker’s behalf, at least 48 hours in advance of any known changes in drivers or providers. The 

roker and transportation provider should strive to maintain consistent routes anB
once efficient routes have been established.  

e. Pick up and drop off requirements 

1.The Broker will ensure that a Member’s wait time for a Network provider is no more than 30 minutes p
or 30 minutes after the scheduled arrival time.  

2. The Broker will ensure that a Member is not delayed in arriving at a medical appointment due to a delay 
caused by a Network provider. 

3. In the event of an emergency or unforeseen circumstance that prevents the Network provider from meeting 
the approved window of time for pick up or delivery, the Network provider must contact the Broker and/or the 
Member to notify them of the occurrence and coordinate resolution. It is ultimately the responsibility of the
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ion must be recorded and provided to the IME.  

mber is delayed due to a time overage for a medical appointment or service, and the 

 to leaving.  

 to 

he Members’ travel time and 
iency and cost effectiveness. Increased travel time for a group trip cannot exceed by more than 

mplete 

    a) In the event a delay renders the Member late for their appointment or causes them to miss the 
appointment, details of the occurrence and resolut

    b) In the event the Me
Network provider has waited at least 10 minutes past the time of scheduled pick-up:  

    1) The Network provider must notify the Broker of their intention to leave the pickup location, prior

    2) Upon notification that the Member is available for their return trip, the Broker must make arrangements
have a vehicle available to return to pick up the Member within 45 minutes of the notification.  

 The Broker and a Network provider may work together to group trips to reduce tf.
to promote effic
45 minutes when compared to the time that would normally be taken by the Member first picked up to co
the trip without stops. 
g. The furthest distance a Member is expected to walk to a bus stop is one-half (1/2) of a mile.  

 LogistiCare acknowledges that upon contract award, we will be responsible for scheduling all 
NEMT travel, including lodging if required, for all Medicaid-eligible members. We will meet the 
minimum federal requirements as defined in42 C.F.R. § 440.170 for provision of 
transportation services, as well as applicable Department rules. 

Utilizing our LogistiCAD database system, which is discussed in Section 3.2.2 NEMT: Brokerag
Process, Log

e 
istiCare will screen each trip request for Medicaid member eligibility and for 

vices definitions. The mode of service 

ergency ambulance services 

ess for managing special 

urs.  

 
l 

 out-of-state arrangements for our NEMT members. We 
or the most cost-effective, out-of-state transportation, plus any 
le Medicaid members and, in compliance with the RFP, 

opriate service levels via our CSR online 

 

nificant mobility 

compliance with the Department’s NEMT covered ser
(ambulatory, stretcher van, wheelchair, etc.) we assign to the trip will be determined by medical 
necessity and will represent the least costly, most medically appropriate mode of service. When 
public transit is determined to be the most appropriate mode of service, ambulatory members will 
walk no more than ½ mile to a bus stop. We also understand that em
will not be provided through the NEMT program.  

SAME DAY REQUESTS  
Same day requests from members will be transferred directly to our fully trained Transportation 
Coordinators who will immediately begin the scheduling process to ensure the member’s 
transportation request is fully met. We will follow our standard proc
requests for urgent services. Reservations of an urgent nature can be scheduled 24x7 and will be 
responded to within three ho
 
LogistiCare will verify the urgency of the urgent trip request by contacting the facility or doctor 
to confirm the appointment and the need for transportation. In addition, LogistiCare will respond
to requests for scheduling out-of-state NEMT travel within 24 hours. We acknowledge that denia
of NEMT service due to short notice will be unacceptable to the Department. 

OUT-OF- STATE TRAVEL 
LogistiCare is quite experienced making
will authorize, arrange, and pay f
travel-related expenses, for eligib
schedule these requests within 24 hours of receipt.  
 
MEMBERS WITH SPECIAL NEEDS 
CSRs will receive ongoing training on assigning appr
training program. Transportation mode information will become a part of the member’s personal 
history file in LogistiCAD and will automatically display to assist CSRs when the member or the
member’s representative makes subsequent reservations. Members with developmental or 
intellectual disabilities or who are physically frail, on dialysis, or have other sig
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ossible, 
tified, 

these 

 and health care facilities to 

 is 

 

 
Ride” calls are entered by the TC into our 

here they are investigated, resolved, and reported like any other 

nature of the issue, the remedial action being taken, and the 
xpected vehicle arrival time. This awareness of overall system status and performance will allow 

 
ew 

er to the member’s location within 15 
ime. 

pend 

and health care issues with recurring trips will be scheduled continuously, to the extent p
with the same providers and drivers. The member and/or legal representative will be no
either by LogistiCare or the transportation provider, within 48 hours in advance of any known 
changes in drivers or providers. Once efficient routes have been determined by the LogistiCAD 
database, LogistiCare will ensure that providers strive to maintain consistent routes and pick-up 
and drop-off times.  
 
PICK-UP AND DROP-OFF REQUIREMENTS 
Timeliness is a crucial aspect of NEMT service quality, and LogistiCare will ensure that our 
timeliness standards for transportation providers meet or exceed the requirements for timeliness 
as cited in Section 3.3.2.3.3.e.1-3 Pick-up and drop-off requirements as it relates to wait times for 
the following: pick-up trips, return trips, and multi-loaded trips. We have specific reports in 
LogistiCAD, including our On-time Performance report that will help us to monitor 
requirements.  
 
REAL-TIME RESPONSE TO LATE- RUNNING TRIPS 
LogistiCare will provide a toll-free ride assistance number for riders
use whenever scheduled pick-ups (or deliveries) are running more than 15 minutes late. These 
calls will be taken by LogistiCare Transportation Coordinators (TCs), who will immediately 
contact provider dispatchers to attempt to solve the problem. If the response from the provider
inadequate, the LogistiCare TC will immediately attempt to make alternative arrangements for 
the rider. Our LogistiCAD software has a special “recovery” mode that is used to track these trips
until the rider is successfully transported.  All such assistance requests, and their resolutions, will 
be recorded in the rider’s trip history, where they can then be accessed when quality monitoring 
reports are run. LogistiCare’s provider contract also requires NEMT providers to inform us if any
of their vehicles are running late. All “Where’s My 
software system as a complaint, w
complaint. Please refer to our discussion of LogistiCare’s complaint management process in 
Section 3.3.2.6.2.3 Broker Grievance or Complaint Process: General Requirements. 
 
When a meaningful service delay is discovered, LogistiCare staff will call affected riders to 
convey information regarding the 
e
LogistiCare to take a proactive approach to service and quality issues. The important goal of this 
communication is to keep all parties informed. In the event a provider causes a member to be late 
or miss their appointment, LogistiCare will document the details and resolution of the occurrence 
and provide them to IME. 
 
The NEMT Provider Manual will instruct providers that if they have had to wait at least 15 
minutes past the time of the scheduled pick-up of a member due to a time overage of the medical 
appointment, they are to notify us of their intention to leave the pick-up location prior to leaving.
We will then contact the member and schedule a return trip for that individual. Once the n

ick-up time is scheduled, we will dispatch a providp
minutes of the new pick-up t

ONGOING MONITORING AND ENFORCEMENT OF PROVIDER TIMELINESS 
Ensuring timeliness begins with conveying specific timeliness performance goals to our 
providers, which are included in their contracts and monitored in a variety of ways. Timeliness 
involves ensuring that riders are picked up and delivered on time and that that they do not s
excess time in transit. On-time delivery is defined as members arriving at their appointments 
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ormance metrics. These are then compared with contract standards and with 
e performance of other providers to identify potentially troubling trends and subpar providers. 

ort card” that includes monitoring on key performance 

 
tive 

iders. LogistiCare will inform the provider of deficiencies, meet to discuss 
ossible corrective actions, and outline the consequences of failure to improve. If sufficient 

tiCare will apply a full range of sanctions including 

L) –  
 

reatly increase the likelihood of timely performance. Also, 

ALL CENTER CONTRIBUTIONS TO TIMELINESS 
ted to 

ce.  

 enough time for each trip to be 
s this 

within the appropriate time frame window. Our fundamental timeliness standards for our 
providers will be in compliance with the requirements of the RFP. 
 
LogistiCare’s computer system captures all the data required for monitoring each of these aspects
of timeliness. Crystal Reports software is used to produce regular and ad hoc monitoring reports 
on transportation perf
th
Each provider is given a monthly “rep
measures including timeliness, safety, customer service, and ongoing compliance with 
credentialing standards. 
 
The Iowa Account Manager (known as the General Manager in LogistiCare’s organizational
hierarchy) will be responsible for reviewing transportation quality data and devising correc
actions for prov
p
improvements are not voluntarily made, Logis
liquidated damages, withholding of trip assignments, and termination, as outlined in our 
subcontractor agreement, to enforce performance standards.  

       Figure 3.3.11 (CONFIDENTIA
Average Drop-Off Times

 
It is apparent from Figure 3.3.11 that LogistiCare will be 
able to meet the Department’s timeliness standard for pick-
ups and deliveries for the Iowa NEMT contract. This data 
represents actual timeliness performance from several of 
our NEMT contracts in large western states. 
 
PROVIDER MANAGEMENT PROCEDURES 
By only contracting with capable, responsible providers, we 
g
by enforcing vehicle credentialing standards we reduce the 
likelihood of timeliness problems caused by vehicle 
breakdowns. By requiring strict driver credentialing and 
training, we reduce the likelihood of timeliness problems caused by accidents and driving 
violation citations. By requiring providers to have adequate vehicle communication systems, we 
reduce timeliness problems caused by communication problems with the driver.  
 
C
LogistiCare call center staff help ensure timeliness by correctly entering all information rela
the trip reservation. We ensure that no delays are caused by bad addresses, vague directions, 
incorrect level of service specification, or other mistakes. We will inform members of their pick-
up times and remind them when to be ready. We will investigate continued no-show or late 
cancellations by members, as these practices damage the entire system’s on-time performan
 
CSRs are also trained to schedule pick-up times carefully to allow
made safely, while also allowing for efficient multi-loading. The LogistiCAD system assist
process by recommending pick-up times for trips based on calculated distance and level of 
service. We will assign trips to promote the most efficient use of multi-loaded vehicles. We 
carefully track the assignment volume of each provider against performance measures to ensure 
that no provider is receiving more trips than can be managed. Also, our LogistiCAD reservation 

AVERAGE MIN:SEC WITHIN SCHEDULED 
APPOINTMENT TIME 
FOR MEMBER DROP-OFFS  
STATE AUGUST 

2009 
SEPTEMBER 
2009 

Arkansas 3:54 3:42 
Arizona 3:08 1:42 
Connecticut 2:27 2:48 
Florida 3:33 2:33 
Nevada 5:12 4:12 
Oklahoma 2:29 2:41 
Pennsylvania 1:20 3:06 



 
Section 5 – Service Requirements

 

Iowa Medicaid Enterprise NEMT Brokerage Services   
RFP MED-10-011 Page 74 

own 
 and extensive note capture. 

ep 
s to 

 from arising in the first place. While every aspect of LogistiCare 
perations procedure and technology is designed to promote quality service delivery, there are 

 

nce procedures 
 

ONITOR PROVIDER PERFORMANCE 
 to th
cifi ill 
equ nd in 

ider oven ap me
procedures that will b d to b

anual.  

n ember d t talk wit

system contributes to timeliness through its many error-reduction functions such as drop-d
menus, address verification, mileage calculation, trip history recall,

OTHER KEY PROCEDURES IMPORTANT FOR ENSURING TIMELINESS 
While the bulk of our QA program involves the monitoring of quality indicators and the creation 
of effective quality improvement responses, nothing is as important to performance quality as 
getting it right the first time. By this we mean structuring operations processes and using 
technology that inherently tend to produce high quality performance. It is important that we ke
this in mind and continue to think of ways to improve our general management processe
prevent quality problems
o
certain features of our operating model that have a particularly close link to quality assurance. 

The most important of these features are: 

• Our staff recruitment, training, and retention polices 
• Our data management and data security systems 
• Our facility outreach and case management procedures 
• Our provider recruitment, training, monitoring, and assista

M
Adherence to driver and provider requirements is essential
NEMT services that meet all contractual and regulatory spe
investigate all instances of provider deficiencies and, upon r
writing in a timely manner to issues involving NEMT prov
these imperative requirements centers on the policies and 

epartment and documented in the Provider M

e provision of safe, reliable 
cations. LogistiCare w
est by the Department, respo

s. Our pr proach to 
e agree

eting 
y the 

D

3.3.2.3.4 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
a. Call abandon rate must be 5% or less. Calls are considered abando ed if the M oes no h a 
customer service representative.  
b. Average wait time of calls will be less than three minutes 90% of t
c. The Broker will schedule and make transportation arrangement
services 100% of the time. 
d. The average waiting time for all pickups prior to a Member’s medical appointment will not exceed thirty (30) 
minutes 95% of the time.  

. Members will arrive on time for their appointments 100% of the time.  

he d on thly bas
s for s d sportatio

time, measure  a mon is. 
ame day or next ay tran n 

e
In our Iowa call center, as in all our other call centers, LogistiCare will use Avaya 

 
Communications Manager as its telephone system management software. Having used these 
Avaya products since 2001, we are fully conversant with them, which will allow us to rapidly
install them for the Iowa NEMT program while also meeting the Department’s goals and 
requirements for customer service.  

utomated Call Distribution features that maximize customer service performance include: A

• Separate ACD queues = Faster service as staff matched to specific calls, prioritization of 
callers. 

• Skill profiles = Maximizing utilization of staff skills shortens call time. 
• Call/queue data analysis = Optimizing employee schedules for cost-effective staffing. 
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ranging capabilities that will match the monitoring and response requirements of the Department. 
hures that describe our system.  

e 2009 

lls
 

ues will allow LogistiCare to allocate specially trained staff to 
 

ill 
ficiency ratings of each call taker and enter this information into the 

rea. 

l 

e, and 
ist management in the development of optimized employee 

D 

onitoring, Trunk 
n of all our voice T1 

mo , unable to receive an incoming call. All incoming calls to our call centers go through 

To leverage the above feature set, we will use the Avaya Call Center Elite ACD product for our 
Iowa operation. This ACD system is a state-of-the-art telephone switching system with wide-

Please see Attachment 11 for Avaya Call Center System broc
 
LogistiCare has consistently demonstrated the ability to manage call centers within the key 
performance standards of our state clients, as illustrated by Figure 3.3.12, which shows th
year-to-date average speed of answer (ASA) and abandonment rate data for a selection of our 
state NEMT contracts.  

Figure 3.3.12 (CONFIDENTIAL) – 
LogistiCare Call Center Performance. 

With our ACD system, each call type 
will be directed into a separate waiting 
group (or queue). Separate ACD groups 
are created for reservations, customer 
service calls, administrative calls, 
Spanish language calls, and other special 
skill groups. In each group, incoming 
a  will be queued for the next c

available operator. Should multiple
operators be available, a rotating system 
will be used so that all operators have an 
even distribution of calls. Calls coming 
in from the toll-free ride assistance 
number will be forwarded to the top of 
the transportation queue and will, 
therefore, be answered by the first 
available and most appropriate 
operators.  

The use of separate phone que
specific types of calls. Highly trained employees, dedicated to specific tasks, improve customer
service and shorten the average call time. The Iowa Call Center Manager will determine the sk
area profile and skills pro
system. The ACD software will then automatically direct calls to the most skilled persons 
available in each skill a
 
Data regarding peak call demand gathered by the Avaya ACD system and queue utilization wil
automatically be fed into our Taske call management software. Along with real-time call 
visualization and other monitoring features, Taske also provides a staffing tool. The staffing 
option performs calculations with custom input parameters, and produces reports and a Data 
Table panel that includes the probability of queuing, probability of delay, average delay tim
average queue depth. These tools ass
schedules. These schedules are then fed into the employee scheduler built into our LogistiCA
software.  
 
We will also use the Avaya Site Administration program to run Avaya Alarm M
Monitoring, and Trunk Analyzer reports for monitoring the percent utilizatio
lines. We will be able to immediately detect whether our telephone capacity is ever, even 

mentarily

LOGISTICARE CALL CENTER PERFORMANCE  
STATE NEMT CONTRACTS, 2009 YTD 

(ASA = AVERAGE SPEED OF ANSWER, MIN:SEC) 
STATE ASA ABANDONMENT 

RATE 
Arizona 0:36 3.20% 
Florida 0:44 2.59% 
Mississippi 0:54 5.00% 
Missouri 0:46 2:54% 
New Jersey 0:18 1.43% 
Oklahoma 0:54 3.06% 
Pennsylvania 0:37 3.37% 
South Carolina 0:26 1.67% 
Virginia 0:47 3.34% 
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 the 

ogistiCare has established clear, quantifiable performance goals both for our providers and for 
ded 

CALL CENTER ACCESSIBILITY  
This goal is intended to ensure that persons c

mplish th l-

er  
vailable 24x7 
te er all calls within three rings 

 reach a live CSR within 90 seconds or less  
paired within 90 seconds or less 

wi inutes, 90% of days in a mont

rs re ous, caring, ate, and he
red by the following:  

day o portation services will be scheduled 
alls must free and responsive to the caller’

n and reserv mpleted by a CSR ust be free of 
complaints 

le for lack of available service to be less than one per 2,000 requests 

ing 

Average wait time for a scheduled return trip after an appointment to be no more than 

our nationwide carrier-level queuing system set-up by Level 3. However, if a call cannot be 
delivered to a call center for any reason, the call will be queued at the carrier-level and sent to
local call center when a voice line becomes available.  
 
L
our call center services. These standards will incorporate all quality goals and measures inclu
in this RFP, as well as other standards that LogistiCare uses across all our programs to ensure a 
consistent level of quality services. 
 

alling the Iowa call center can easily and 
conveniently reach a CSR and acco
lowing: 

• No calls go unanswered 
• No busy signal for any call
• Access to a live CSR who is a
• Automated voice response sys
• Wait time for all callers to
• Wait time for hearing-im
• All incoming calls answered 

CALL CENTER CUSTOMER SERVICE 
This goal is intended to ensure that calle
information and assistance, as measu

• 100% of requests for same 
• 99.90% of monitored c
• 99.95% of calls take

e goals of their calls, as measured by the fo

m to answ

callers to be 
thin three m h  

ceive courte  accur lpful 

r next-day trans
 be error-
ations co

s needs 
m

• CSRs must score 90 percent or better on weekly evaluations of customer service, 
accuracy, and thoroughness 

TRANSPORTATION AVAILABILITY 
This goal is intended to ensure that the provider network is complete and that every eligible 
request for service is accommodated, as measured by the following: 

• Denial/reschedu
(.05%) 

TRANSPORTATION TIMELINESS 
This goal is intended to ensure that riders are picked up and delivered on time, without spend
undue time in the vehicle, as measured by the following: 

• 100% of riders delivered on time to their medical appointments 
• Arrival time at appointment to be within 30 minutes of appointment time 
• Average wait time for initial pick-ups to be 15 minutes or less  
• 

20    minutes 
• Wait time not to exceed 45 minutes for unscheduled pick-up times 
• Multi-loaded trip durations no more than 45 minutes longer than average direct trip 

time 
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di-

mplaints for every 1,000 completed trips 

• Fewer than three accidents per 10,000 completed trips 

ACD RE
LogistiC e ske reporting system, based on client-server 
architec e ilizes all the data from the 
Commu a verage time 
callers s n R, as well as 
the undu ic iled 
informa n mber of 

r during the wait for interaction with a CSR, will also be 

rint detailed reports, on a quarterly- 
hour, half-hourl
statistic
Departm t 1. 

DIGITAL CAL  
To help i
Digital Voic ) will be used in the Iowa call center to record 

CD system. All calls will be recorded and stored for up to 12 

Weekly
measure d
Supervisors and corporate quality assurance auditors will have the ability to audit calls from the 

chive the audit, and email a copy to the CSR, management, or the 

3.3.2.4 N

3.3.2.4.1

• Average wait time of no more than 15 minutes for transportation pick-up after a 
alysis or chemotherapy treatment  

• Fewer than two transportation timeliness co
 

TRANSPORTATION SAFETY 
This goal is intended to ensure that all riders receive a safe and comfortable trip, as measured by 
the following: 

• Fewer than one safety complaint per 1,000 completed trips 
• Zero days in which ineligible drivers provide service 
• Zero days in which ineligible vehicles provide service 

 
PORTING SYSTEM 
ar  will also employ the Avaya Ta

tur , to provide a complete reporting suite that ut
nic tions Manager/Call Center System. The reporting system will track the a
pe d in queue between the automated call pick-up and interaction with a CS
pl ated number of calls placed on hold after the initial call response. Deta

tio  about abandoned calls, including the daily percentage of lost calls and the nu
calls abandoned while on hold o
collected.  

Management will be able to examine and export data, and p
y, hourly, daily, weekly, monthly, quarterly basis, and annual basis. These 

s will be available both in real-time and retroactively, and will provide all the data for the 
en ’s monthly call center reports. A sample Taske brochure is located in Attachment 1

L RECORDING
 ma ntain the highest levels of service and customer satisfaction, a Cacti FocusRecord 

e Recording system (Attachment 10
all calls coming through the A
months to facilitate review and evaluation. CSRs will inform all callers that the call is being 
recorded.  

 monitoring of call takers and taping of all reservation calls will allow management to 
 an  monitor the overall accuracy, courtesy, and helpfulness of call-taking services. 

Iowa call center location, ar
Department. The monitoring form that we use to record CSR performance on their weekly 
monitored calls is located in Attachment 7. 

EMT REIMBURSEMENT 

 STATE RESPONSIBILITIES 
a. Review d

LogistiC e rove monthly 
Broker t

 an  approve monthly Broker contract payments.  

ar  acknowledges that the State has the responsibility to review and app
con ract payments. 



 
Section 5 – Service Requirements

 

Iowa Medicaid Enterprise NEMT Brokerage Services   
RFP MED-10-011 Page 78 

3.3.2.4.2 BROKER RESPONSIBILITIES 
The Broker is aims to Network providers and  responsible for reimbursing all NEMT cl
Members

sponsibility, the Broker must comply with all state and federal tax reporting laws.  
ntly bill by mile or by trip. Transportation agencies are reimbursed their usual and 

. The Department intends to change the Iowa Administrative Code at 441--78.13 to remove 
these rei tem, effective with the first date of 
operation f
The Dep tate Accounting Enterprise 
(SAE) rates a or meals and lodging are 
onsider o

nable maximum meal reimbursements through the authority of 11 Iowa Admin. 

refer to 

/individuals/volunteers, including claims for mileage, meals, and lodging. As a part of this 
re
Transportation agencies curre
customary charge, not to exceed the charge that would be the most economical available source, with a cap of 
$1.40 per mile for ground transportation. Medicaid Members/individuals/volunteers are currently reimbursed at 
30 cents per mile

mbursement requirements, and revise the rules to allow a broker sys
s o  the brokerage.  

DAS), Sartment currently uses the Department of Administrative Services (
nd procedures for meal and lodging reimbursement. The DAS rates f

c ed t  be maximums.  
a. DAS has established reaso
Code § 41.6(2).  
b. For a complete listing of DAS – SAE rules affecting reimbursement for meals and lodging, please 
their website at:  http://das.sae.iowa.gov/internal_services/210_travel.html. Receipts are required to be 
submitted for all meal and lodging reimbursements. 

LogistiCare has very detailed provider payment processes that have been honed by near
decades of experience paying subcontracted providers. We process millions of provider payments 
each year, including payments to subcontracted providers, volunteer drivers, and transit 
companies. LogistiCare’s verification process for all billed trips is discussed below. 

ly two 

bsite  co pliance with the RFP requirements, we will require members to submit receipts 

AYMENT PROCESS 

ch 
r 

rovider, along with a Payment Detail report. The 
il report lists the amounts paid for each trip and the reasons for any trip denials. 

portation provider will then correct and resubmit any denied trips. The vast majority of 
lete documentation on the part of providers. If a provider 

d by LogistiCare’s Claims Manager or, in some 
ys 

 
We acknowledge the Department currently uses the Department of Administrative Services 
(DAS), State Accounting Enterprise (SAE) rate and procedures for meal and lodging 
reimbursements, and that these rates are considered maximums. LogistiCare will become 
familiarized with the DAS-SAE rules affecting reimbursement found at the above-referenced 
we . In m
for all meal and lodging reimbursement requests.  We also acknowledge that the Department 
intends to change the Iowa Administrative Code at 441--78.13 to remove these reimbursement 
requirements, and will revise the rules to allow a broker system, effective with the first date of 
operations of the brokerage. 

PROVIDER P
If the scheduling information in LogistiCAD agrees with the trip information submitted by the 
transportation provider, the trip will be validated and authorized for payment. The value of ea
trip will be automatically calculated using mileage, class of service, and rate table information fo
each provider incorporated into the LogistiCAD system. If there is a disparity between a 
submitted invoice and the authorized trip record in LogistiCAD, the trip will be denied for 
payment and sent back to the transportation p
Payment Deta
 
The trans
denied claims result from incomp
continues to appeal a trip denial, it will be resolve
instances, the Iowa Account Manager. Clean claims will be processed, on average, within 20 da
of submission.  
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sement schedule that shows them when payments will be 
le will be provided in 

terface to our corporate Epicor accounting system. Invoices approved 

portation providers capable of accepting electronic payments; 

indicate 

r 
mber 

e 

provider payment claims, it is resolved following the Dispute 
ocedure found in our Provider Contract. 

All providers will be given a disbur
made for clean claims submitted during each two-week period. This schedu
the Provider Manuals and also online in our web interface. 

MONITORING THE CLAIMS PAYMENT PROCESS  
The claims payment process is monitored electronically through the LogistiCAD data 
management system. As invoices are submitted to the LogistiCare office, the information is 
entered into LogistiCAD and tracked electronically from that point. The system calculates the 
payment amount, processes claims for payment, and provides data for various reports. 
LogistiCAD has a direct in
for payment are uploaded into Epicor, which generates the check payments and accounts payable 
aging reports. As for claims payment, LogistiCare is able to remit payments electronically via 
wire transfers to those trans
otherwise, manual checks are issued. 

LogistiCare’s finance and accounting department is responsible for overseeing the claims 
payment process. According to LogistiCare’s standard operating procedures, payments are 
disbursed twice each month, either through a manual check or electronically through a wire 
transfer. Our transportation provider contracts usually stipulate that all invoices received during 
one two-week payment period will be paid at the end of the second following payment period. 

After all trips in an invoice batch have been verified, a report is generated by the LogistiCAD 
system, which is used to track and monitor the claims payment process. This report can 

y transportation provider the number of billed trips for each date of service, when the invoice b
(claim) was received by LogistiCare, when the invoice was submitted to accounts payable fo
payment, when it was paid, and the amounts billed and paid. The report also indicates the nu
of days required by LogistiCare to process and pay the claim.  

Each provider is given a detailed Billing Procedures Manual during the initial contracting and 
orientation process and introduced to his/her company’s specific billing representative. If a 
transportation provider calls to inquire about a claim, the call is automatically routed to the 
assigned billing representative, who retrieves the relevant Payment Detail report and explains th
payment process.  

Should any dispute arise regarding 
Resolution and Arbitration pr

3.3.2.4.3 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
a. 90% of all Network provider or Member/individual/volunteer claims will be processed and paid or denied 
within ten (10) business days of a complete and valid claim form.  
b. 95% of all Network provider or Member/individual/volunteer claims will be processed and paid or denie
within fifteen (15) business days of a complete and valid claim form 
c. 100% of all Network provider or Member/individual/volunteer claims will be processed and paid or denied 

d 

ithin twenty (20) business days of a complete and valid claim form.  w
LogistiCare strives to be consistent with transportation providers in all aspects of operations, 
including, but not limited to, payment schedules. Our timely and reliable payment of provid
invoices addresses transportation providers’ primary concern—getting paid on time. 

LogistiCare pays 100% of clean claims within 20 days of invoice receipt, which meets the 
equirements of 

er 

this RFP. In compliance with the requirements of the RFP, 95% of claims will be 
aid or denied to network providers and members/individuals/volunteers within 15 days of 

r
p
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invoice receipt, and 90% of clean claims from network providers and members/ 
individuals/volunteers will be paid or denied within 10 days of invoice receipt. 

3.3.2.5 MEMBER EDUCATION 

3.3.2.5.1 STATE RESPONSIBILITIES 
a. Provide information on NEMT program or policy changes to the Broker. 
b. Review and approve all written materials. 
c. Distribute brokerage system information to Members.  
LogistiCare acknowledges the State’s responsibilities for member education cited in Section 
3.3.2.5.1. 

3.3.2.5.2 BROKER RESPONSIBILITIES 
a. The Broker will issue updates to the information provided to Members on an as-needed basis, when there are mate-
rial  
 changes that will affect access to services. This includes additions and changes to the provider network.  

LogistiCare acknowledges that it will be our responsibility to update all member education 
materials on an as-needed basis when there are material changes that will affect access to 
services. This includes additions and changes made to the transportation provider network. 

3.3.2.5.3 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
a. The Broker will update all written materials within 15 business days after an NEMT program or policy change.  

LogistiCare acknowledges that all written materials will be updated within 15 business days after 
an NEMT program or policy change. 

3.3.2.6 GRIEVANCE, COMPLAINTS, AND FAIR STATE HEARINGS SYSTEM 

3.3.2.6.1 STATE RESPONSIBILITIES 
a. Review and approve the Broker’s grievance and complaints forms and tracking tools. 
b. Provide information to the Broker regarding the State Fair Hearing process. 
LogistiCare acknowledges the State’s responsibilities regarding State Fair Hearings as cited in 
Section 3.3.2.6.1.a-b Grievance, Complaints, and State Fair Hearings System. 

ws 
3.3.2.6.2 BROKER RESPONSIBILITIES 
The Broker shall have a system in place for Members/Individuals/Volunteers and Network Providers that allo
for a grievance and complaints process and access to the State agency’s fair hearing system.  
In compliance with the requirements of the RFP, LogistiCare will have a system in place for 
members/individuals/volunteers and network providers that allows for a grievance and complaints 
process, as well as access to the State agency’s fair hearing system. 

LogistiCare will respond to verbal complaints (grievances) within one business day of receipt 
to written complaints within three business days of receipt. Complaints will be resolved and 
complainants notified in writing within 10 days of their filing. Resolutions will be executed eit
by LogistiCare alone or in concert with the transportation provider. All complaints tha

and 

her 
t have been 

ed by 

.  

appealed or disputed will be resolved within 90 days from the date the grievance was receiv
LogistiCare or one of our network providers. Complaints received by LogistiCare regarding a 
transportation provider are faxed to that provider, and a response is required within 24 hours
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3.3.2.6.2.1 DEFINITIONS 
Appeal – A request for review of an action, as action is defined in this section.  
Appeal Process – The Broker’s process for 
State Fair Hearing system and 

informing Members regarding the right to file an appeal with the 
the process for doing so.  

on of dissatisfaction about any matter other than an action. Possible 
lity of the services provided, and 
er’s employee, or failure to respect 

or handling of grievances or complaints that complies 
vider 

quired notifications. 
aring System – The overall system in place for Members that includes 

Grievance or Complaint – An expressi
subjects for grievances or complaints include, but are not limited to, the qua
aspects of interpersonal relationships such as rudeness of a Network provid
the Member’s rights. 
Grievance or Complaint Process – The Broker’s process f
with the requirements specified herein, including, but not limited to, the procedural steps for a Member/Pro
to file a grievance or complaint, the process for disposition of a grievance or complaint, and the timing and 
manner of re
Grievance, Complaint, and State Fair He
a grievance or complaint process and access to the State Fair Hearing system.  
Inquiry – A request form a Member/Provider for information that would clarify the Broker’s policy, benefits, 
procedures, or any aspect of the Broker’s function but does not express dissatisfaction.  
LogistiCare acknowledges the definitions provided above in Section 3.3.2.6.2.1 Grievance, 
Complaints, and State Fair Hearings: Definitions and will include these in their materials 
regarding grievance, complaints, and State Fair Hearings. 

3.3.2.6.2.2 MEMBER AND PROVIDER NOTICE OF ADVERSE ACTION 
uest, The Broker must notify the requesting Member/Provider of any decision to deny a service authorization req

or to authorize a service in an amount, duration, or scope that is less than requested. Please refer to Section 
3.3.2.1.2.1 for more information on Notice of Adverse Action.  
LogistiCare acknowledges that the requesting member/provider must be notified of any decision 
to deny a service authorization request, or authorize a service in an amount, duration, or scope 

MPLAINT PROCESS: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
s not limited to 

that is less than requested.  

3.3.2.6.2.3 BROKER GRIEVANCE OR CO
Give Members any reasonable assistance in completing forms and other procedural step
providing interpreter services and toll-free numbers with TTY/TDD and interpret
providing a full and complete explanation of the process to the Member.  

er capability. This includes 

 by the IME. 
of the State fair hearing process for any action.  

a. Acknowledge receipt of each grievance or complaint. 
b. Inform the Member of the disposition of the grievance or complaint in a format approved
c. Inform the Member of the availability 
LogistiCare takes inquiries, complaints, and appeals seriously, handles them with the utmost 
urgency, and resolves them swiftly and courteously. We have a proven approach to managing and 
reporting complaints for all of our current projects. Due in part to our stable transportation 
provider network and increased access in rural areas, our performance history is characterized by 
an exceptionally low level of complaints — averaging only two (2) complaints per 1,000 trips 
even before validation.  

As illustrated in Figure 3.3.13, we average 99.8 percent complaint-free service across our major 
state NEMT operations. LogistiCare will receive and respond to all inquiries and complaints 
related to NEMT services, and we will provide reports to the Department as required by the RFP. 
LogistiCare will respond to verbal complaints within one business day of receipt and to written 
complaints within three business days of receipt.  
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re 3.3.13 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Complaint-Free Trips. Figu

 
LogistiCare will assist any member needing help with filing a complaint. Such assistance will 
include, but not be limited to, completing complaint forms, verbally explaining the complaint 

aking members, and providing toll-free 

guage(s). For callers who are non-English 

edge receipt of each 

air 

Fair Hearing process. 

process, offering interpreter services for non-English spe
numbers with adequate TTY/TTD service for hearing-impaired members. We will make 
information about our grievance and State Fair Hearing process readily available verbally and 
written in English, as well as prevalent non-English lan
speaking, LogistiCare will offer oral interpretive services through our Iowa call center operations 
by hiring Spanish-speaking and other bilingual CSRs. We will also make oral interpretive 
services available free of charge to all language groups using our Language Line Over the Phone 
Interpretation (OPI) services.  
In compliance with the requirements of the RFP, LogistiCare will acknowl
grievance or complaint, and inform the member of the disposition of the grievance or complaint 
in a format approved by IME. We will also inform the member of the availability of the State F
Hearing process for any action. 

3.3.2.6.2.4 GRIEVANCE SYSTEM: RECORD KEEPING AND REPORTING 
The Broker must maintain records of all grievances, complaints and appeals to the State 
Such records will be made available to the IME upon request.  
Complaints may be filed by members, providers, our own staff, health care facility staff, or other 
sources. All complaints from all sources, whether received verbally or in writing (including
email), will be immediately recorded in our LogistiCAD system. LogistiCAD produces daily 
analytical reports that contribute to improved service quality. The complaint system allows us to 
manage complaints regar

 

ding all facets of service. These complaints may be in regard to 

incorporate changes into our policies and 
procedures to improve quality of services. LogistiCAD’s flexibility enables us to link any 
complaint or issue to the corresponding member’s record, to a particular trip record, or to both. 

LogistiCare employees, treatment facilities, riders, transportation companies, or drivers. By 
providing a centralized tracking system, we can ensure that complaints are successfully resolved, 
and that we provide the necessary follow-up reporting.  

Using the analytical and investigative capabilities of LogistiCAD, our Quality Assurance (QA) 
Representatives can identify corrective action and 
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This feature allo p records are ws for instant referencing whenever the members calls or when tri
investigated. The entries will become a permanent record of the issue management process.  

A QA Representative is responsible for entering the details of the complaint, investigation, and 
corrective action into the complaint database. All complaint occurrences are considered valid 
unless investigation finds otherwise, in which case the complaint is closed. For example, a 
complaint from a member about not being allowed to smoke in a vehicle would be considered 
invalid, as the driver would only be enforcing NEMT program rules. (However, the complaint 
may be valid if the member is also complaining about the manner in which the driver spoke to 
him/her). The following process flow (Figure 3.3.14) illustrates our complaint tracking and 
resolution process. 

Figure 3.3.14 – Complaint Tracking and Resolution Process. 

 
ENTERING COMPLAINTS USING THE RESERVATIONS EDITOR SCREEN 
Our Transportation Coordinators will register and code all complaints, including coding real-time 
calls about a late trip as a complaint. Information from these calls will be entered into 
LogistiCAD’s Complaint screen as an “Issue” and linked to the appropriate reservation and/or 
member record. This capability will allow for instant referencing whenever the member calls or 
when trip records are investigated.  The Complaints screen in the Reservations Editor (Figure 
3.13.15) will allow Transportation Coordinators and others to review past complaints or enter 

t new complaint information associated with each trip. Figure 3.13.15 also displays the complain
type and tier fields, which we will discuss later in this section. 
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. 
 

Figure 3.3.15 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Complaints Screen in Reservations Editor

 
 

Using complaint categories, any employee will be able to enter a complaint into the system at a
time. The system will be adaptable enough to allow category modifications to meet the specific 
needs of the Iowa program. The following table (Figure 3.3.16) identifies the typical complaint 
categories we currently use.   

ny 

 
Figure 3.3.16 – Complaint Categories. 

TYPICAL COMPLAINT CATEGORIES 
• Eligibility Issue • Rider Issue 
• Facility Issue • Rider No Show 
• Injury  • Reroute Issue 
• LogistiCare Error • Transportation Provider Is-

sue  
• LogistiCare Employee • Driver Issue 

Issue 
• No Vehicle Available • Unknown / Other 
• Provider Late • Vehicle Issue  
• Provider No Show   
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In addition, LogistiCAD automatically assigns all complaints a Tier designation, in accordance 
with  

Figure 3.3.17 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Automatic Tier Designation. 

 the complaint type selected at the time of entry. As illustrated in Figure 3.3.17 below, this
d classification system is used to code the severity of each complaint. tiere

 
Complaints can also be entered into a separate Complaint Editor, as shown below in Figure 
3.3.18, which consists of two tabs: Ledger and Detail. Both are used for reviewing, analyzing, 
and resolving customer complaints. The Detail screen is used to enter and display all the 
information corresponding to a specific complaint, including complaint and activity comments.   
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Figure 3.3.18 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Complaint Editor. 

 
 

The initial “Entered Complaint” activity is always automatically entered when a complaint is 
created. Activity data serve as a permanent record of the steps taken towards complaint 
resolution. Additional types of activities are identified in Figure 3.3.19.  
 

Figure 3.3.19 – Activity Types. 
ACTIVITY TYPES  

• Call Made  • Fax Received 
• Call Received • Fax Sent 
• Closed Complaint • Final Response 
• Comments Added • Letter Received 
• E-mail Received • Letter Sent 
• E-mail Sent • Reopened Complaint 
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Users can select th n activity types 

ow 
plaint. Based on this 

formation, we can easily produce an open complaint report that identifies any unresolved 
issues. In addition, LogistiCare sure and report the time 
lapsed from complaint to member comm equently to corrective action. These 
analyses help monitor complaint procedu t we are resolving issues and 
c ng with members within required 

 
 
 
 

Figure 3.3.20 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Complaint 
Letter. 

 

e complaint activity types using established categories. Certai
involve  
special procedures. These include Closed Complaint, Final Response, and Reopened Complaint.  
 
• Closed Complaint – This code is used when all work associated with the complaint has 

been completed. This choice enables the Closing 
Code drop-down list, from which the QA 
Representative must select Valid, Invalid, 
Insufficient Information to Validate, or Inquiry. 
LogistiCAD stores a standard letter format for 
each type of complaint closure code. As displayed 
in Figure 3.3.20, when the Send Letter box is 
checked, the system automatically incorporates the 
closing comments into the appropriate letter 
format and generates the completed letter.  

 
• Final Response – This activity is usually 

performed in conjunction with Closed Complaint. 
The Final Response Comment contains a clear 
explanation of the final findings regarding the 
complaint. It is considered a summary of the entire 
issue, and if the Send Letter box is checked, this 
same text that will automatically appear in the Resolution Letter. 

 
• Reopened Complaint – If the complaint was prematurely closed, the reopened activity 

“unlocks” the complaint and allows the staff to make additional entries and modifications. 
In addition, it will clear any closing code previously entered; however, the closing activities 
will remain in the activity grid.  

 
 

 
On the Ledger screen in the Complaint Editor, the user can view all complaints stored in the 
system. As illustrated in Figure 3.3.21, the top window of the Ledger screen displays basic 
information about each complaint. When a specific complaint is selected, the lower wind
displays complaint status and actions information for the highlighted com
in

 uses the database information to mea
unication, and subs
res and ensure tha

ommunicati time frames. 
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Complaint Tracking Log. 
Figure 3.3.21 Figure 3.3.20 (CONFIDENTIAL) – Complaint Letter. – Electronic 

 
 

All complaint-related information entered in the LogistiCAD system will carefully tracked, in 
order to:  

• Maintain complete documentation of all verbal or written expressions of dissatisfaction, 
and actions taken to resolve the issues  

• Monitor the complaint process to ensure that appropriate action is taken within required 
time frames  

• Analyze LogistiCare and provider network performance in key member-facing areas 
• Identify issues and possible trends that require management action or correction 
• Guide ongoing quality improvement efforts  
• Provide the Department with complete summary reports of all complaints and resolutions 

as required and requested  

TRACKING AND REPORTING 
Our management staff is responsible for tracking and analyzing complaints. LogistiCAD uses a 
high-performance relational database manageme  system that allows complaints to be tracked 
according to any field of interest and a variety of variables, such as: 

nt
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• Provider • Member • Agency 
• Date • Type of Complaint  

Figure 3.3.22 describes our standard complaint reports. These reports can be easily modified to 
meet the Department’s needs. 

Figure 3.3.22 – Complaint Reports Description. 
REPORT DESCRIPTION 

Individual 
Complaint Data 

• Provides a detailed record of user-selected complaints including detailed 
information on a complaint, the complaining party, whom the complaint was 
against, trip information, and the complete complaint activity listing along 
with the closing code 

Provider Detail 

• Shows a listing, grouped by provider, of the complaint type, date, trip iden-
tifiers, and closing code of complaints made during a user-specified date 
range  

• Provides totals by complaint type and transportation provider. The report is 
generated for complaints that are open, closed, or both. 

Provider 
Summary 

• Shows a summary, grouped by provider and region, of complaint types and 
the number of times they have occurred during a user specified date range. 
It also provides totals by transportation provider.  

• Generated for complaints that are open, closed, or both. 

Region Detail 

• Includes a listing, grouped by transportation provider then by region, of the 
complaint type, date of complaint, trip identifiers, and closing code of com-
plaints made during the user specified date range  

• Provides totals by complaint type, region and transportation provider. The 
report is generated for complaints that are open, closed, or both. Selection 
criteria include all or selected regions only. 

Region 
mmary 

• Shows a summary of complaint types, grouped by transportation provider 
and region and the number of times they have occurred during a user spe-
cified date range.  

• Provides totals by transportation provider. The report is generated for com-Su
plaints that are open, closed, or both. Selection criteria include all or se-
lected regions only. 

• Summarizes the number of complaints sorted by region, complaint type 
and closing codes; the complaints are further segmented by the complain-
ing party and grouped byRegion by  region and complaint type.  

Clos  ing Code 
• Generated for complaints made during a user selected date range, for us-

er-selected regions, and for complaints that are open, closed, or both. 

Facility 

e, 

e during a user-selected date range, for the 

• Shows a summary of the number of occurrences of each complaint typ
grouped by facility and complaint type  

• Generated for complaints mad
user-selected facilities, and for complaints that are open, closed, or both. 

Facility Type 

• Summarizes the number of each complaint type, by facility type, within a 
user-defined time frame; grouped by facility type and complaint type.  

• Generated for complaints made during a user-selected date range, for us-
er-selected facilities, and for complaints that are open, closed, or both. 
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We can provide the Department with any standard or ad-hoc reports from the LogistiCAD 
ition to the monthly summary  complaints and resolutions specified in the 

P mpliance with the requireme sue the Departm nt a complaint 
summary report by the 10th calendar day of the following month of activity.  

n 
): 

F

 
omplaint report for the Department will comply with specifications and formatting 

approved by the D r
Tracking System Plan tract readiness 
review process. 

 ANALYSIS A
Our management s f e them. The 
purpose of this analysis is to determ
practices that requ  c
includes, but not limite

er of m
• Grievances catego
• A review of correc
• Recurring exp si
• The identification 

ommendations ance improvements that should be reflected in our 
ss practices  

 
The results of the track esses are incorporated into quality improvement 
plans as needed. A sum

e’s monthly

ESS T T
If the Member disagrees w

system, in add  report of
RF . In co nts of the RFP, we will is e

As specified by the Department, the complaint summary will include information such as listed i
the following table (Figure 3.3.23

igure 3.3.23 – Complaint Summary Information. 

Our summary c

      COMPLAINT SUMMARY  
• All complain
• Dates receiv

ts rece
ed 

• Date of resolution • Complaints in the process of resolution 

ived 

if applicable 

• A description of the resolution, 
• All complaints not yet resolved 

• Complaints that have been resolved  

epa tment. Exact content will be outlined in the final Complaint Resolution 
that will be submitted to the Department as part of the con

COMPLAINT ND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT 
taf  will analyze all complaints and the actions taken to resolv

ine the quality of services provided to members, to detect any 
ire orrective action, and to guide program improvement strategies. Analysis 

d to: 

• The numb  co plaints received 
rized by specific type or variable 
tive actions taken 

res ons of dissatisfaction in any service areas 
and study of any patterns and/or discernible emerging trends 
 of specific perform• Rec

busine

ing and analysis proc
mary of the analysis will be shared with the Department as part of 

 reporting.  LogistiCar

3.3.2.6.2.5 ACC O S ATE FAIR HEARING 
ith the resolution of the grievance or complaint by the Broker, the Member may 

request a state fair h in
Member by the Broker.  

er will repre t 

ear g. The right to a fair hearing and how to obtain a hearing must be explained to the 

The Brok sen the Department in State Fair Hearings. 
LogistiCare acknowled
complaint by us, th  m

 fair heari at 
sent t D

ges that if a member disagrees with the resolution of a grievance or 
at ember may request a State Fair Hearing. We will explain to the member 

ng and the process for obtaining one. LogistiCare also acknowledges ththe right to a
we will repre he epartment in State Fair Hearings.  
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3.3.2.6.2.6 PROVIDER ARBITRATION 
a. Because network transportation providers will not be providers of the Department, the Department will not 
afford such network providers access to the State Fair Hearing process unless required to so do by law. 
b. The Broker shall include a clause in its standard network provider agreement that affords network providers 

parties.  

the right to bring disputes to binding arbitration following completion of the Broker’s internal grievance process. 
c. Binding arbitration shall be conducted free of charge by state staff of the IME. The decision of the state staff 
arbitrator shall be final and binding on the 
LogistiCare acknow iders access to the 
State Fair Hearing process unless re  retain transportation providers is 

 fairnes
 might arise that c ld if left 

MT Medi id  for 
which provi a rocess. 

olicies and procedures for transportation providers in Iowa wishing to file a complaint with 

 to resolve complaints for providers before they proceed to a grievance. At the 
o the in l complaint, we will advise the NEMT provider of their right to file a 

 
esolution Methodology, please refer to Section 3.3.2.6.2.4 

Reporting Requirements. 

nce’s and/or complaints by the tenth business day 

ledges that the Department will not give transportation prov
quired by law.  Our ability to
s, consiste ybased on our commitment to

ssues
nc , communication, and investment. Even in the 

best of environments, i ou  lead to provider dissatisfaction 
unaddressed. As is the case with NE

ders can bring disputes to arbitration 
ca  members, LogistiCare provides a system

 pfter completing our internal grievance
P
LogistiCare will be outlined in the NEMT Provider Manual. 

LogistiCare will respond to verbal or written complaints from NEMT providers within one 
business day of receipt and to written complaints within three business days of receipt. We will 
make best efforts
time we respond t itia
grievance with us. 

As we do for NEMT Medicaid member complaints, LogistiCare will log and track all complaints, 
grievances, appeals, and arbitrations regarding providers in LogistiCAD. For a detailed discussion
of LogistiCare’s Complaint R
Grievance System: Record Keeping and 

3.3.2.6.3 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
a. The Broker will must provide a monthly report on all grieva
of the month following the last day of each month.  
b. The Broker will must provide a monthly report on the all disposition of State Fair Hearing appeals by the 
tenth business day of the month following the last day of each month. 
I
g
n c equirements of the RFP, LogistiCare will provide a monthly report on all 

g and analysis system, please refer to Section 3.3.2.6.2.4. 
 Reporting. 

ompliance with the r
rievances and/or complaints by the tenth business day of the month following the last day of 

each month. We will also provide a monthly report on all the disposition of State Fair Hearing 
appeals by the 10th business day of the month following the last day of each month. For a 
discussion of our complaint trackin
Grievance System: Record Keeping and

3.3.3 TURNOVER 
Turnover is activated when the State contractually transfers responsibility for the operations functions to a new 

 provide a commitment for full cooperation 
tract term awarded by this RFP, including 

entity (i.e. a newly awarded Broker). All bidders will be required to
during the turnover responsibility that comes at the end of the con
preparation of a Turnover Plan, when requested by the State. 

Additionally, the very last payment for Operations due the Broker will not be paid until the Broker has satisfied 
all turnover obligations.  

LogistiCare has established procedures for contract transition that assures the Department of a 
smooth changeover at contract end. LogistiCare will continue to coordinate transportation 
services until the end of the contract period. Services will continue uninterrupted while transition 
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ities are designed to smoothly hand-off transportation 

tion 

activities occur. Transition activ
coordination responsibilities to ensure continuous service. In addition, it is critical that any 
Transition Plan smoothly fit into, and be a mirror image of, the new contractor’s Implementa
Plan. If requested by the State, LogistiCare will prepare and provide a Turnover Plan. 

LogistiCare acknowledges that the Department will withhold final payment until we have 
satisfied all turnover obligations. 
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4.2.6 CORPORATE ORGANIZATION, EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS 
The Department must gain the maximum benefit from a statewide, single NEMT 
brokerage in Iowa. Whether through a seamless transition and implementation or 
the efficient management of network providers and resources, LogistiCare is best 
prepared to make a difference for Iowa beginning on day one.  

 4.2.6.1 EXPERIENCE 
The bidder shall provide the following information regarding its experience: (4.2.6.1.1) List all services similar to those 
sought by this RFP that the bidder has provided to other business or government entities; (4.2.6.1.2) identify if the 
services were timely provided and within budget; and (4.2.6.1.3) letters of reference from three (3) business contacts. 
 
LogistiCare is a non-emergency medical 
transportation (NEMT) broker with more than 20 
years of experience. We currently provide NEMT 
access for nearly seven (7) million eligible 
Members annually and are equipped with the 
knowledge, people, and advanced systems required 
for success in Iowa. Given our experience, we can 
leverage broad capabilities to meet the following 
critical objectives for the Department: 

Highlights 

National Experience 
• More than 20 years delivering like 

services 
• Broker with the most state-based NEMT 

contracts 
• Leader in implementing and managing 

statewide coverage programs  
• 80% of contracts under capitated system• Effectively operate under a capitated 

reimbursement system that limits Iowa’s risk in 
implementing an NEMT brokerage  

 
Corporate Strength  

• 1,300 employees across the U.S. 
• Effectively credential, train, and enhance a 

statewide transportation network enabling local 
drivers to continue serving riders, as well as 
increasing service where limited today  

• Over $450 million in annual revenues 
• 14 call centers 

 
Top Performer 

• First URAC accredited NEMT broker 
• Seamlessly implement a statewide, single 

broker system within 90 days—and without 
disruptions along the way  

• 95% client retention rate over 15 years 
• 63 NEMT contracts in 39 states and 

Washington DC 
 
As an industry leader that has provided like services 
many times before, LogistiCare is confident we can deliver. Our implementation plan would 
expedite Iowa’s transition to a statewide, single broker system and quickly result in a reliable 
provider network, satisfied Members, and a more efficient operational model.  

 

 
Our 63 transportation brokerage projects in 39 states and the District of Columbia today enable us 
to bring a set of diverse capabilities to Iowa. While our approach will be tailored to the specific 
needs of Iowa, we offer the experience and expertise gained by implementing and operating an 
NEMT broker system that has been tried and tested in multiple states. We focus on transportation 
and medical provider relationships, eligibility verification, alternative access, and 24/7 live 
customer care to make a difference in the quality of service for clients and Members.  
 
Additionally, 80 percent of LogistiCare’s contracts are under capitated payment programs. We 
can, therefore, confidently identify and manage the challenges in transitioning from a fee-for-
service system to reimbursement under a capitated system. Others with less experience may face 



 
Section 6 – Corporation Organization, Experience and Qualifications

 

Iowa Medicaid Enterprise NEMT Brokerage Services   
RFP MED-10-011          Page 2 

new challenges and consequently deny services to Members with critical needs like dialysis 
treatment, cancer care, and rehabilitation.  
 
In fact, there is often a fine balance between utilization and profitability for brokers operating 
under a capitated system. We bring experienced and specialized utilization review staff to manage 
that balance. By performing regular internal audits to ensure authorization procedures are 
working properly, running daily reports to ensure decisions and coding are accurate, and 
reinforcing responsiveness in our bilingual call centers, we place significant focus on utilization. 
Additionally, our data management methods and software system, LogistiCADSM, are built on our 
experience and effectively support our approach to utilization and authorization.  
 
As a result of our approach and systems, LogistiCare was the first NEMT broker to achieve 
Utilization Review Accreditation Commission (URAC) accreditation in 2006 and re-accreditation 
in 2009.  Accreditation is a process by which an impartial organization (URAC) reviews a 
company’s operations to ensure that the company is conducting business in a manner consistent 
with national standards. The URAC standards were developed by a committee of experts 
representing diverse interests in the health care community—providers, health care organizations, 
insurers, and the public—offering a widely recognized acknowledgment of excellence. 
LogistiCare has achieved this acknowledgement not just once, but twice, to demonstrate high 
levels of consistency and reliability over time. 
 
LogistiCare delivers NEMT services on a nearly national scope. Our coverage area, which 
includes ten (10) states where we have transitioned clients from a fee-for-service program to a 
capitated broker managed system, is highlighted in Figure 4.2.6-1. 
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Figure 4.2.6-1. Experience Makes a Difference. LogistiCare can draw on experience from 63 contracts in 39 states 
and Washington DC to meet the challenges inherent in a transformation the size and scope of Iowa’s. In fact, we 
bring more experience transitioning states to a capitated system than any other contractor. Our tried and tested 
solution will result in lower risk and higher value for Iowa. 

 
Further, our track record of accomplishments demonstrates we can stay the course and achieve 
significant outcomes in Iowa as we have with other clients. Figure 4.2.6-2 provides a snapshot of 
a series of key corporate events, program implementations, and contract re-awards since 1989.  
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Figure 4.2.6.-2. LogistiCare’s Major Accomplishments. Our long history demonstrates a strong commitment to 
success and results. As a dedicated NEMT broker, our success becomes Iowa’s success. 
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LogistiCare offers the experience Iowa requires to transition from a decentralized system to a 
statewide, single broker system—seamlessly. Our extensive implementation experience, 
transportation network experience, and our experience managing under capitation will quickly 
result in quality, improved access and reliability for the Department and Members. 
 
Throughout the remainder of this section, we will show that our performance record is reliable, 
our people can make a significant difference, and our financial stability provides the foundation 
necessary for selecting LogistiCare as Iowa’s single NEMT broker.  

4.2.6.1.1 SUCCESSFUL IN DELIVERING LIKE SERVICES 
List all services similar to those sought by this RFP that the bidder has provided to other businesses or governmental 
entities. This includes all contracts and projects that the bidder currently holds or is working on with a contact person’s 
name from that business or governmental entity. 
 
Not all brokerage programs are “full brokerage” programs involving all the management skills 
required by Iowa. Some brokerage contracts involve only administrative services and do not 
require the broker to create, manage, and compensate the provider network. Other programs only 
involve a limited range of service types (no stretcher or wheelchair, for example). Others may not 
require front-end authorization and call center services and only require the broker to assign trips 
to a network of providers. Many do not involve the financial risk associated with capitation.  
 
LogistiCare has extensive experience with all these important elements of the Iowa program. Our 
NEMT management experience means we have faced the full spectrum of NEMT management 
challenges across numerous states, with broadly varying geographic requirements, and regulatory 
implications. As Figure 4.2.6-3 demonstrates, we have multiple contracts and experience 
performing all of the key management tasks.  
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Figure 4.2.6-3. LogistiCare Serves Similar Clients with Similar Services. While NEMT brokerages vary by state, 
LogistiCare manages similar services across numerous contracts and can draw on the processes, methods, our 
Medicaid regulatory experience, and lessons learned to implement and operate a single broker system that meets 
Iowa’s unique needs. 
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CAPITATION SYSTEM EXPERIENCE  
LogistiCare’s long history as a full-risk broker means we have faced the many challenges that 
come with managing pre-paid services and have invested years developing programs aimed at 
controlling utilization and lowering cost. Our knowledge and methods have enabled us to provide 
budget predictability even during times when Medicaid enrollments continue to grow. Keeping 
brokerage costs manageable have slowed the rate of growth in Medicaid costs for many of our 
clients.  
 
Further, stabilizing utilization is the result of identifying covered and non-covered services, 
reviewing and investigating fraud and abuse, verifying trip frequency against medical claims 
frequency, and applying proper levels of service with each individual trip request. It does not 
come from denial of services to Members.  
 
The LogistiCare solution is designed to reinforce benefit coverage and help eliminate 
inappropriate NEMT service. Thus, our focus on enforcing coverage and eliminating 
inappropriate service has resulted in a highly efficient brokerage system. In fact, our current data 
shows we deny less than .0025 percent of trip requests.  

TRANSPORTATION NETWORK EXPERIENCE 
We have already begun preparation by familiarizing 
ourselves with Iowa and local transportation 
providers. Because transportation network 
management is one of LogistiCare’s core 
competencies, we have a deep understanding of 
transportation providers’ needs and can be proactive 
and responsive to them.   
 
In fact, LogistiCare currently manages a national 
network of 1,500 transportation providers giving us 
the most extensive experience managing and 
credentialing providers and drivers in the industry 
today.  
 
As a result of our experience with providers, we have 
developed a depth of resources that enable quality 
providers to continue delivering even in the face of 
rising costs—especially smaller, local providers. For 
example, LogistiCare has developed an insurance 
program delivered through a partnership between 
LogistiCare and several insurance industry leaders to 
offer affordable insurance for safe, NEMT drivers. 
The program is typically appealing to local providers who benefit from the readily available 
industry data and knowledge many larger insurers’ may not have to determine the right premiums 
for smaller operations. We have invested more than four (4) million dollars in our insurance 
program and currently serve providers in 23 states. More detail is provided in Section 3.2, Scope 
of Work. 

Figure 4.2.6-4. High Retention Rates. The majority of 
providers serving Members in Georgia over the past eight
(8) years are still providing services with LogistiCare 
today. We retain quality providers and take the steps 
necessary to remove unsafe or unreliable vehicles from 
the network. 
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Further, LogistiCare has extensive experience 
bringing transportation resources to rural areas in 
states with widespread rural areas like Georgia, 
Nevada, Virginia, Mississippi, and Oklahoma. By 
offering commercial providers incentives and 
creating networks of volunteer drivers, we have 
been repeatedly successful in facilitating NEMT 
services in areas where long trips from rural to 
urban centers are required for regular care.  
 
A stable transportation provider network is critical 
to budget predictability for Iowa. LogistiCare will 
pass our transportation network management 
efficiencies on to the Department in the form of 
more predictable budgets. To achieve a stable 
network, we will not only bring on quality 
providers to enable and effectively manage the 
network, but we will continually measure our 
performance. We will maintain accurate and 
reliable data so we can report on network 

effectiveness and continuously improve our networks. And our broad client base not only allows 
us to leverage our experience, but also track important comparison data that will be useful in 
establishing a standard for a stable provider network in Iowa.  

Figure 4.2.6-5. Complaint-Free Service. We 
strive to keep vehicles on the road and Members 
on time. LogistiCare is in business to make a 
difference and will bring the same tenacious 
approach to bear for Iowa. 

 
Our methods for recruiting and managing 
transportation networks have been tested for Iowa 
many times before in multiple other states.  A 
review of missed trips data as depicted in Figure 
4.2.6-6, for example, shows that missed trips 
resulting from “no vehicle’s available (NVA)” and 
“no provider willing to transport (NPWT)” declined 
while actual trips increased.  

Figure 4.2.6-6. Missed Trips Decline While Actual Trips 
Increase. LogistiCare has reduced the number of trips 
missed as a result of “no vehicles available (NVA)” or “no 
provider willing to transport (NPWT)” while actual trips 
increased over the past four (4) years. The outcome is the 
result of stable and quality networks. We intend to leverage 
our experience and trigger the same outcomes in Iowa. 

 
Finally, LogistiCare professionals manage 
eligibility authorization and NEMT eligibility 
screening for most of our clients and in the process 
can ensure verification procedures and critical 
policies have been met. As a result, we can 
confidently and expeditiously pay providers. On 
average, LogistiCare pays providers within 20 days 
from receipt of invoice.  
 
Overall, the Department can rely on LogistiCare to 
develop, manage, and retain a stable network that 
results in fewer missed trips, higher levels of 
Member satisfaction and budget predictability for 
Iowa.  

IMPLEMENTATION EXPERIENCE 
LogistiCare’s implementation experience spans two 
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(2) decades. We have implemented large-scale capitated NEMT programs with the highest trip 
volumes and demonstrated our networks, methods, and systems numerous times. Others in the 
industry may not have had the same litmus test and could, therefore, have difficulty claiming the 
same benefits for Iowa. As demonstrated by the numbers in Figure 4.2.6-7, we have implemented 
the same requirements for many clients. 
 

IMPLEMENTATION REQUIREMENTS NUMBER OF LOGISTICARE CONTRACTS 
Startup schedule of 90 days or less 58 
New call center creation and build out 14 
Transition to client’s first brokerage system 53 
Creation of a new provider network 33 

Figure 4.2.6-7. Extensive Implementation Experience. LogistiCare brings the depth of experience with all 
components of implementing a new transportation brokerage system to meet Iowa’s requirements and deliver a 
lower-risk solution. 

 
Any state implementing a system the size and scope of Iowa’s NEMT brokerage would face 
many challenges. Smaller vendors with less experience than LogistiCare could face some 
challenges for the first time. The Department requires a seamless and quick implementation, with 
little to no room for first-time challenges, and can rely on LogistiCare’s track record and 
experience with all of our clients—many with similar scope.  
 
Figure 4.2.6-8 lists major implementations in other states showing the time it took to implement 
along with the corresponding number of monthly trips covered. With more implementation 
experience than other contractors, we understand what can go wrong. Given our experience, we 
are capable of identifying and preventing costly implementation mistakes in Iowa that can impact 
long-term success.  
 

LOGISTICARE NEMT IMPLEMENTATIONS 
STATE NEMT CONTRACT MONTHLY TRIPS STARTUP DAYS 

Philadelphia County 450,000 120 
Virginia Expansion (Regions 2, 3, 4, 7) 214,000 21 
New Jersey 180,000 120 
Georgia (3 regions, 1997) 140,000 60 
South Carolina (4 regions) 121,000 90 
Missouri 70,000 30 
Mississippi 60,000 60 
Oklahoma 55,000 60 
Virginia Startup (Regions 1, 5, 6) 52,000 60 
Connecticut (2 regions) 50,000 90 
Arkansas (3 regions) 45,000 30 
Delaware 45,000 60 
Kentucky (Region 6) 43,000 45 
Nevada 34,000 60 
Colorado (8 counties) 24,000 30 
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LOGISTICARE NEMT IMPLEMENTATIONS 
STATE NEMT CONTRACT MONTHLY TRIPS STARTUP DAYS 

Figure 4.2.6-8. Implementation Timeline Comparison. LogistiCare has extensive experience implementing NEMT 
systems in fewer than 120 days and will leverage all experience for a smooth start-up in Iowa. 

 

4.2.6.1.2 TIMELY AND COST-EFFECTIVE PERFORMANCE 
Identify if the services were timely provided and within budget. 
 
LogistiCare’s NEMT performance has been consistently successful across all of our contracts and 
is demonstrated by an extremely high contract retention rate (over 95 percent in the past 15 
years). In fact, eight (8) current state projects required a first-ever brokerage program 
implementation within aggressive timeframes. We were able to deliver on time and on budget for 
each project. Further, we have more experience transitioning clients from fee-for-service systems 
than any other contractor, so we are keenly aware of cost issues and the requirement for 
delivering cost-effective services.  
 
Given the magnitude and complexity of implementing a statewide, single system brokerage, we 
work closely with agency partners to determine requirements and establish metrics for timely and 
cost-effective service. Further, we measure and report on our performance continuously so we 
can effectively support our clients in making timely and cost-saving decisions. 
 
Further, our rural access solution in South Carolina demonstrated how supplementing the rural 
transit system (RTS) offset costs there. As demonstrated in Figure 4.2.6-9, by implementing a 
cost-effective transportation network, we were able to offset the cost of RTS and reduce reliance 
on costly ambulance services for after-hours and weekend transportation. We intend to leverage 
our experience in South Carolina and with other like clients for Iowa. 
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Figure 4.2.6-9. Supplementing RTS for More Cost-Effective Performance. Because LogistiCare has been able to 
cost-effectively supplement RTS providers in South Carolina, other Medicaid programs and ADA programs have 
benefited. We augmented services to save costs and bolster service for Members. For example, fewer ambulances 
were needed after hours and on weekends in South Carolina over a three (3) year period, saving significant cost and 
freeing emergency vehicles for actual emergencies.  
 
Ultimately, we have a consistent record of reducing our clients’ costs while delivering on time 
and improving service quality and access across all of our contracts. Figure 4.2.6-10 and Figure 
4.2.6-11 highlight examples of timely and cost-effective performance. 
 

LOGISTICARE DELIVERS TIMELY PERFORMANCE ACROSS IMPLEMENTATION AND OPERATIONS 
TIMELY IMPLEMENTATION RECORD TIMELY OPERATIONS RECORD 

In 2009, despite unlikely challenges in start-up in New 
Jersey, we implemented in an orderly methodical manner 
for an on-time implementation to ensure uninterrupted 
service. 

• Data from 2009 through March 2010 
demonstrates 95 percent of all riders were 
dropped off on time for non-emergency medical 
care scheduled appointments. 

In 2005, we accelerated a 30-day implementation in 
Missouri, by establishing a provider network, staffing a call 
center, and beginning statewide services ahead of 
schedule to meet the need. 

• In South Carolina, since our timely service 
started in May 2007, we have managed 10,000 
calls and 120,000 trips each month, with less 
than two (2) complaints for every 1,000 trips. 

In 2004, we went to Colorado to stabilize NEMT services 
under an emergency procurement. We immediately 
assumed responsibility and began service to Members to 
meet all time requirements.  

• Since the beginning of 2010, our data 
demonstrates that across all clients, more than 
half the calls answered through our call centers 
were answered in less than 40 seconds. 

Figure 4.2.6-10. Track Record of Timeliness. LogistiCare is in the business of providing timely services. We 
have been successful in meeting all requirements and improving services for our clients. We intend to bring the 
same success to Iowa. 
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LOGISTICARE’S PAST PERFORMANCE INCLUDES SIGNIFICANT COST SAVINGS FOR STATES  
STATE CLIENT COST EFFECTIVE RESULTS ACHIEVED 

Oklahoma Health 
Care Authority 

• Oklahoma selected LogistiCare to implement a capitated reimbursement system to 
stop fees from going beyond negotiated rates and control costs. LogistiCare was 
successful and awarded additional contract work in 2003 and 2004. 

Georgia Department 
of Community 
Health  

• Saving 30 million dollars, our brokerage system immediately reduced overall 
program costs and brought Georgia's per-trip costs in line with the national average. 
We introduced detection procedures that led to several high-profile convictions for 
longstanding fraudulent providers, concurrently increasing ridership 300 percent and 
bringing services to 29 previously un-served rural counties. 

Missouri • Saving more than 10 million dollars, we equipped and staffed a call center and 
implemented a transportation network within 30 days. In fact, we took aggressive 
measures to keep transportation providers from closing their doors by providing 
advanced payment. 

Figure 4.2.6-11. Past Performance and Reliability Go Hand-in-Hand. We have participated in delivering 
valuable cost savings for our clients—for example, in Oklahoma, Georgia, and Missouri. Given our timely 
and cost-effective past performance, the Department can be confident LogistiCare will deliver the value-
added services required in Iowa, beginning day one and through the life of the contract.  

 
Overall, LogistiCare meets all start-up dates, meets or exceeds all contract obligations, and has 
established positive, lasting working relationships with all of our clients. We encourage the 
Department to reach out to our clients to verify our record. 

4.2.6.1.3 ESTABLISHED WITH RELIABLE REFERENCES 
Letters of reference from three (3) business contacts. Acceptable letters will be from business contacts with knowledge 
of the bidder’s performance as a primary contractor. Letters must be from business contacts with knowledge of the 
bidder’s performance as a primary contractor in providing services similar to the services described in this RFP and a 
contact person and telephone number for each reference. 

LogistiCare encourages the Department to contact our references. We are confident in the 
reliability of our references and the insights each can provide regarding implementing a new 
statewide, single broker system. Our three (3) references have similar NEMT brokerage systems 
and can offer Iowa additional background regarding LogistiCare’s performance, as well as insight 
regarding transitioning to a single broker system. Exhibit 2 contains the three (3) reference letters 
from the contacts listed below, along with phone numbers, in response to the Department’s 
requirement.  
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The following highlights are followed by summaries of our performance for each contract. The following highlights are followed by summaries of our performance for each contract. 
  

OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY 
AUGUST 2003 TO PRESENT 

Point of Contact:  
Gertrude Hurd 
SoonerRide Program Manager, Oklahoma Health Care 
Authority 
(405) 522-7642 

• Providers in Transportation Network  
• Annual Trips  
• Annual Call Volume 
• Covered Lives 

39 
702,000 
312,000 

   521,000 

MISSISSIPPI DIVISION OF MEDICAID  
NOVEMBER 2006 TO PRESENT 

Point of Contact:  
 
Brian Smith 
Accounting/Auditing Bureau Director,  
Division of Medicaid 
(601) 576-5940 

• Providers in Transportation Network  
• Annual Trips  
• Annual Call Volume 
• Covered Lives 

24 
824,400 
324,800 

   525,000 

NEW JERSEY DIVISION OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE AND HEALTH SERVICES 
JULY 2009 TO PRESENT 

Point of Contact:  180 • Providers in Transportation Network  
Richard H. Hurd 
Director, Office of Contract Compliance, Division of Medical 
Assistance and Health Services 
(609)588-2550 

1,500,720 • Annual Trips  
 400,600 • Annual Call Volume 

   361,000 • Covered Lives 

Figure 4.2.6-12 (CONFIDENTIAL). Reliable References from Like Contracts. We encourage the Department to 
reach out to our references. LogistiCare knows the Department will only benefit from a partner who can bring a long 
history of success and prosperous business relationships. 

 
The following provides additional background regarding our references and may be useful for 
Iowa as you prepare to discuss past performance. 
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OKLAHOMA 
HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY 
(AUGUST 2003 – PRESENT) 

 
Oklahoma faced challenges with meeting rural participants’ needs. 
 
LOGISTICARE’S ACHIEVEMENTS 
• LogistiCare was awarded the statewide contract for the 

SoonerRide Medicaid NEMT program in May 2003, 
commencing service in August on a contract covering 250,000 
Medicaid lives. 

• The state had originally moved to a brokerage model in 1999, but the payment structure in the 
brokerage agreement allowed fees beyond the pre-negotiated rate, and cost control became a 
major problem. There was also an unmet challenge in adequately serving the many sparsely 
populated portions of the state. When the original contract expired and Oklahoma selected 
LogistiCare, the state’s agreement with us called for a capitated system, a feature missing 
from the previous brokerage arrangement until just prior to the end of the contract. 

• In November 2003, LogistiCare was offered the opportunity to serve an additional 190,000 
lives covered under the SoonerCare Plus program. The company began to serve these 
additional patients in January 2004. 

• In 2007, Oklahoma awarded LogistiCare another multi-year contract to continue 
administering the SoonerRide program. 

 

MISSISSIPPI 
DIVISION OF MEDICAID  
(NOVEMBER 2006 – PRESENT)  
 

This contract was the state’s first adoption of a statewide full-risk, 
capitated broker model. 
 
LOGISTICARE’S ACHIEVEMENTS 
• In both our implementation and ongoing operation, we have paid 

special attention to the challenges of service delivery due to the 
devastating blow dealt to the area by Hurricane Katrina. 

• Almost all of Mississippi’s 82 counties were declared disaster areas, and many are still 
recovering today. 

• We have increased the use of public transportation and expanded the transportation network 
to include many smaller local providers. 

• LogistiCare continues to ensure that the transportation services are comprehensive, reliable, 
safe, cost-effective, and consistent throughout the state. 

 
 



 
Section 6 – Corporation Organization, Experience and Qualifications

 

Iowa Medicaid Enterprise NEMT Brokerage Services   
RFP MED-10-011          Page 15 

NEW JERSEY 
DIVISION OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE AND 
HEALTH SERVICES  
(JULY 2009 – PRESENT) 

 
This is New Jersey’s first statewide Medicaid NEMT brokerage 
contract. 
 
LOGISTICARE’S ACHIEVEMENTS 
• LogistiCare is helping improve service quality and safety 

through more detailed oversight of NEMT provider 
performance and compliance with credentialing requirements. 

• In an effort to provide visibility into program activities, we 
are implementing enhanced data management and detailed 
reporting on all aspects of the service. 

• New Jersey initiated this program change to control costs, 
eliminate billing fraud, increase the use of transit services, 
and improve service quality.  

• Moving to a single, capitated professional NEMT 
management was intended to enhance budget predictability 
and reduce agency administrative cost, while improving 
transportation reservations with local professional call center services. 
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4.2.6.2 PERSONNEL 
The bidder shall provide the following information regarding its personnel. Key personnel described in the bidder’s 
proposal must be the same personnel that begin work on the project unless the Department is notified of and approves 
a change. 

LogistiCare will use a mix of existing experienced 
personnel and highly qualified, locally hired 
personnel to effectively staff the Iowa NEMT 
program. Since we are a large organization with 
dozens of trained operations managers nationwide, 
we can supplement our local staffing efforts by 
temporarily bringing in experienced managers from 
other states, as necessary. Figure 4.2.6-13 shows 
how our corporate team comes together to meet your 
needs. 

 

Our experienced personnel and organizational model 
for Iowa reflect outstanding past performance. We 
can balance efficiency, effectiveness, and quality by 
distributing tasks among specialized staff operating 
in Iowa and among our corporate team. In the 
following pages, we describe our organization, 
provide an overview of our key personnel, and 
provide resumes to demonstrate that LogistiCare is 
the single, most qualified NEMT broker for Iowa. Figure 4.2.6-13. One Organization. LogistiCare will bring 

a depth of experience from one organization. The 
Department can rely on responsive leaders, program 
managers, and administrators who have worked together 
successfully time and again. 

 
 
 

 
4.2.6.2.1 ORGANIZED TO MEET IOWA’S NEEDS  
Provide a table of organization. Illustrate the lines of authority. Include the names and credentials of the owners and 
executives of your organization and, if applicable, their roles on this project. Also include key personnel who will be 
involved in providing services contemplated by this RFP. 

The Department requires a low-risk transition as it moves from a decentralized, non-emergency 
medical transportation system to a brokerage and single network of providers statewide. The 
inherent risks include inefficiencies that impact the state budget, as well as Member services. 
LogistiCare has built its strong qualifications over time. We have a long history of providing 
solutions for similar clients. We are fully equipped to meet the challenges of an implementation 
of this importance and can confirm operations meet Iowa’s requirements and Members’ needs. 
We have been building our business since 1989. Organization facts and corporate structure are 
provided on the following page in Figure 4.2.6-14. 
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Figure 4.2.6-14. Overall Corporate Structure. In addition to the key personnel we offer for Iowa, LogistiCare is 
capable of tackling unforeseen challenges. Our entire organization is built on an understanding of what it takes to 
implement and operate quality services that improve lives. Iowa and the Department can rely on LogistiCare as a 
result of our experience and organizational structure.  

LOGISTICARE’S LEADERSHIP  
Each of LogistiCare’s managers reports directly to a Vice President of Operations and each Vice 
President reports directly to our Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Herman Schwarz. Iowa’s 
LogistiCare Account Manager, therefore, will always have access to LogistiCare’s CEO who is 
actively involved in LogistiCare’s operations on a day-to-day basis.  
 
Further, our CEO’s involvement in operations enables LogistiCare to respond to Iowa’s needs 
with the full breadth of our resources whenever necessary. Few others have the capacity to draw 
on a similar companywide team to meet unforeseen challenges.  
 
For example, when the state of Missouri moved 
from a fee-for-service brokerage to a capitated 
reimbursement system, it selected LogistiCare as its 
NEMT broker. The LogistiCare team was ready 
and responded to the State’s urgent need by 
dispatching a large Network Development team to 
do in 28 days what normally takes 90. We met with 
transportation network providers across the entire 
state in person. We knew what we had to do, and 

LogistiCare leverages resources 
wisely to meet your needs 
LogistiCare demonstrated how quickly we can 
leverage resources companywide for the 
Missouri Department of Social Services. We 
were able to do in 28 days what normally 
takes 90 to confirm Members received care 
without interruption.  
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we were able to do it quickly, so Missouri’s Members would continue to receive important care 
like dialysis treatment, cancer treatment, and rehabilitation—without interruption. 
 
In addition to a knowledgeable 
organization designed 
specifically for Iowa, we provide 
corporate organizational support. 
Our Iowa team will be steadily 
backed by select expert 
guidance, as required, and 
receive support from a full team 
of corporate resources. Figure 
4.2.6-15 demonstrates the 
functional areas LogistiCare 
brings from one organization.  
 
The LogistiCare Organization 
depicted in Figure 4.2.6-16 is 
composed of critical resources 
that are prepared to meet Iowa’s 
NEMT requirements.  

Figure 4.2.6-15. Corporate-Backed Solution. Our corporate 
reporting structure is designed to provide our clients easy access to 
the full breadth of our companywide resources when necessary. 
Ultimately, LogistiCare has developed the capability to respond to 
critical needs when clients are faced with the unexpected or when 
specialized skills are required.  
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Figure 4.2.6-16. Corporate Oversight and Key Personnel. LogistiCare has the full breadth of resources required 
without having to subcontract with other companies. Herman Schwarz, LogistiCare’s CEO, has been instrumental in 
building the resources we bring to Iowa and will be involved with Managers, Directors, and Vice Presidents regularly 
to make a difference for Iowa. This approach has been tested repeatedly, and we are ready to deliver like success 
from other states for the Department and Iowa Members. 
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LOGISTICARE’S ORGANIZATION FOR IOWA  
Iowa’s reporting organization is described by Figure 4.2.6-17. LogistiCare’s proposed qualified 
team will operate Iowa’s NEMT brokerage and receive supplemental support from our corporate 
organization for human resources management; fiscal management; and purchasing, legal, and 
technical support. We will hire Iowa’s citizens to fill the remainder of staffing needs. In fact, we 
always consider our client’s recommendations when they are forced to redeploy or eliminate 
staff. Ultimately, we do not intend to subcontract to fill management, supervisory, or other key 
positions. 
 
For the purposes of this proposal and our contractual agreements, LogistiCare’s Account 
Manager is known as the General Manager. The terms Account Manager and General Manager, 
therefore, may be used interchangeably in our proposal, but appear as “Account/General 
Manager” within organizational charts and as “General Manager” in our Terms and Conditions 
documents.  
 
LogistiCare’s organization for Iowa is modeled after other successful operational structures. For 
example, Oklahoma, Mississippi, and New Jersey have similar organization structures.  
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Figure 4.2.6-17 (CONFIDENTIAL). Organizational Structure for Iowa. Experienced personnel will be backed by 
corporate resources and additional staff hired within Iowa. This organizational approach has been tested for clients 
with similar requirements. Thus, we are confident we will reliably identify and fill all of Iowa’s resource needs. 
 
A well-established organization results in seamless and effective operations. However, key 
relationships are critical to achieving operational success. LogistiCare understands the 
significance of our relationships with the state, health care facilities, and transportation providers. 
Thus, we have designed our organization around those relationships so that we can identify and 
resolve issues, continuously improve services, and keep providers and riders together and on 
time, all of the time.  

LOGISTICARE AND THE DEPARTMENT WORKING TOGETHER  
ORGANIZATION FEATURES BENEFITS FOR IOWA AND THE DEPARTMENT 

Reporting and Quality Assurance 
Team Ensures Reliable Data 

• Our quantitative and highly automated reporting enables early resolution 
to issues or improvements for higher quality services. 

Account/General Manager is 
Responsive to IME Contract 
Administrator  

• Timely and accurate communication enables LogistiCare to deploy the 
strength of its full, in-house team when needed to meet challenges or 
provide optimal quality. 

Health Care Facilities Outreach 
Team Develop Critical 

• Ongoing communication with health care facilities and associations 
enable us to identify, understand, and resolve rider and driver needs and 
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ORGANIZATION FEATURES BENEFITS FOR IOWA AND THE DEPARTMENT 
Relationships result in complaint-free services. 
Live 24/7 Call Center is 
Responsive to Members  

• Live support and service increases responsiveness for Members and 
results in reduced wait times and no missed trips. 

Figure 4.2.6-18. Organized to Serve Iowa. Our organizational structure enables LogistiCare to manage 
critical relationships that support us in meeting challenges head-on so we can focus on quality service for 
Iowa.  

IOWA’S IMPLEMENTATION TEAM SETS THE FOUNDATION  
During more than 20 years in the medical transportation services business, we have grown to 
have some of the most experienced Medicaid NEMT experts in the country. Our implementation 
team of senior-level staff has led numerous, similar implementations. They will leverage their 
extensive knowledge of the Medicaid NEMT benefit and will work with the Department to fully 
understand and incorporate Iowa’s unique challenges and requirements as we implement the new 
program.  
 
Iowa’s implementation will be led by a structured and qualified team from different functional 
areas. Their key personnel role and past performance is highlighted in Figure 4.2.6-19.  
 
Additional information about our implementation approach is provided in our response to the 
Scope of Work requirements, section 3.3.1 Implementation in Tab 5. Key personnel qualifications 
are discussed in the following subsection, 4.2.6.2.2 Key Personnel.  
 

KEY IMPLEMENTATION TEAM MEMBERS 
NAME AND TITLE RESPONSIBILITIES AND EXPERIENCE 

Kirk Gonzales,  
Vice President, 
Contracting and 
Implementation 
 

• Responsible for regulatory and contract compliance with the Department 
• Has managed the implementation of all of LogistiCare’s statewide contracts 

since 2001 
• A licensed attorney with more than 10 years of experience creating and 

managing health care provider networks for managed care organizations 
• Expertise in contract negotiations and compliance, and is a skilled facilitator 

and account services manager  
Robert Harrison, 
Corporate Director  
of Operations 

• Responsible for the coordination and execution of a successful Iowa 
implementation 

• Specializes in the implementation of new NEMT programs 
• Previously mentored and supervised the Account/General Managers for our 

South Carolina, Georgia, Mississippi, and Arkansas operations 
• Served as Account/General Manager of LogistiCare’s Georgia operation for 

seven (7) years. Responsible for development of LogistiCare’s successful 
regional management structure in Georgia, which became a model for other 
state operations 

• Prior to joining LogistiCare, worked for more than 15 years as an educational 
administrator and more than 10 years as a teacher 

• Was superintendent of schools at the Chittenden Central Supervisory Union in 
Essex Junction, Vermont, where he was responsible for 3,200 students, four 
(4) school boards, three (3) school districts, and an annual of budget of some 
30 million dollars 

Ray Blanco,  
Director of Network 
Development 

• Responsible for the development of our Iowa provider network 
• More than 20 years experience in the health care transportation industry, with 

more than 5 years of responsibility for new contract implementation 
• Instrumental in several of our start-up projects, including Nevada, Oklahoma, 

Colorado, Missouri, Mississippi, Philadelphia, Arkansas, and South Carolina, 
where he was responsible for provider network development, including 
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KEY IMPLEMENTATION TEAM MEMBERS 
NAME AND TITLE RESPONSIBILITIES AND EXPERIENCE 

recruiting and training providers and holding provider orientation meetings 
• Typically remains onsite after program initiation as a liaison to new providers, 

answering questions as they arise, negotiating rates, and working with the 
providers regarding contractual requirements, safety procedures, and 
administrative policies  

• Served as the Account/General Manager for both our Georgia and Miami 
programs, and gained extensive operations knowledge, including call center 
management and provider network management  

• Prior to LogistiCare, worked in ambulance company operations management 
 
Further, LogistiCare’s Network Development team has been in active communication with 
current and potential Iowa NEMT providers. We have already met face-to-face with providers 
and have numerous Letters of Intent already executed. As a result, our team will be ready to start 
the contracting phase of the network development process on day one.  
 
LogistiCare’s overall implementation organization will deliver a smooth transition from the 
decentralized system in place today to the new single broker system described by the request for 
proposal (RFP). We bring the depth of experience transitioning from fee-for-service systems to 
capitated payment systems. Our experience becomes especially critical for our clients when they 
are faced with missing data, disparate processes and methods, staffing and training needs, rural 
access challenges, as well as provider rate negotiations. The risks are high for an implementation 
the size and scope of Iowa. However, LogistiCare’s implementation team brings a track record of 
success from multiple like implementations and is committed to a successful Iowa 
implementation.  
 
Overall, LogistiCare has selected the most qualified and experienced resources for Iowa. Our 
organizational approach has been tested for success multiple times prior in other states. In 
summary, our size, the diversity of our experience, and the range of professionals and technicians 
we bring from one LogistiCare team will be instrumental to our joint success. In fact, each of our 
key personnel has included their personal commitment to Iowa’s success within the scope of their 
resumes in the following section.  

4.2.6.2.2 KEY PERSONNEL  
Provide resumes for all key personnel, including the project manager, who will be involved in providing the services 
contemplated by this RFP. The resume of key personnel must include: name, education, and years of experience and 
employment history, particularly as it relates to the scope of services specified herein. 

The relevant experience, years of experience, education, and overall qualifications of all of 
LogistiCare’s key personnel is provided through the following resumes.  
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GENERAL MANAGER 

JASON A . HARBITZ 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience M.A., 

Organizational 
Management, 
Magna Cum 
Laude, Spring 
Arbor University, 
Michigan  
B.A., Psychology 
& E.S.S., Spring 
Arbor University, 
Michigan  

6 
 
 

3 
 
 

3 
 

3 
 
 

• Experienced government-facing professional with a keen 
understanding of data management, public responsiveness, quality 
reporting and accuracy, as well as performance data tracking  

• Reporting and communications backed by hands-on operational 
responsibilities to ensure contractual compliance and NEMT brokerage 
effectiveness 

• Develops and implements transportation networks by working with 
providers to ensure quality, safety, efficiency, and reliability 

• Trains and mentors providers regarding procedures and requirements 
to ensure providers can maintain quality service  

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

2007 – Present 
Director of Operations for the Michigan, Missouri, and Ohio – LogistiCare Solutions, LLC 
Performs day-to-day operations to improve accessibility and drive efficiencies. Coaches internal teams and manages 
business relationships across three (3) states. Leads all aspects of transportation network development including 
routing, rate setting, contracting, compliance, and relationship management for the highest quality and cost efficient 
network. 
Michigan Regional Manager (2007–2008) – LogistiCare Solutions, LLC 
Developed and managed transportation provider network and community outreach and education programs. Led 
customer relations, managed internal teams, and liaised with local and state authorities to achieve operational goals. 
Performed hands-on drivers training and field inspections, led issues management, and provided executive 
presentations to meet all regional manager responsibilities.  

2006 
Investigations Specialist II – Florida Department of Health/Medical Quality Assurance 
Investigating complaints of alleged violations of Florida Statutes and Board Rules involving professions under the 
jurisdiction of the department. Performed extensive interviews, court records analysis, and audits, prepared and 
served subpoenas, and developed comprehensive reports. Appeared in court for public testimony, administrative 
hearings depositions, and trials.  

2004 – 2006 
Associate Special Investigator/Investigator II – United States Investigation Services, LLC. (USIS) 
Led highly sensitive and controversial federal background investigations; performed in-depth fact-finding; and led 
interviews to establish a basis for investigations. Managed internal and external relationships, achieved high 
performance ratings, and was promoted for exceeding goals and demonstrating an outstanding code of ethics. 
Obtained a top, level three (3) SCI clearance. 

MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 

I am fully committed to joining Iowa where it is today—facing a complex system implementation. My first goal is 
improved service for Members. With experience from three (3) states, I am a strong leader who has in-depth 
experience implementing effective transportation networks. I am eager to relocate to Iowa to provide hands-on 
leadership alongside the Contract Administrator for the Department to achieve quality, efficiency, state satisfaction, 
and Member satisfaction with the new brokerage. 

Jason Harbitz 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

HERMAN SCHWARZ 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience M.B.A., University 

of Pennsylvania 
 
Bachelor of 
Science, 
University of 
Virginia 

20+ 
 
 

3 
 

16 

• P&L accountability, strategy and organizational development, 
operations management, mergers and acquisitions, sales and 
marketing, and application of public company requirements  

• Responsible for meeting all contract performance requirements  
• Analyzes and evaluates all LogistiCare operations  
• Senior executive who has served large corporations and start-ups 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

2007 – Present  
Chief Executive Officer (June 2009 to Present) – LogistiCare 
Develops overall corporate growth and organizational development initiatives, manages departmental officers, 
establishes strategic priorities, and ensures the overall health of the entity. 
Chief Operating Officer (2007 – 2009) 
Achieved financial, customer service, and provider network development goals. Managed corporate operations VPs, 
directors, and several corporate support units. Helped staff and managed business implementation teams.  

2005 – 2006  
Founder and Partner – C3 Marketplace, LLC 
Created a buying service and sourcing venture that delivers direct pricing from Asia to small- and medium-sized 
retailers and manufacturers. Raised capital, oversaw business development, and designed infrastructure. 

2000 – 2005  
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (2001 – 2005) – Aegis Communications, Inc. 
Led the country’s seventh–largest, publicly traded provider of outsourced call center services. Implemented corporate 
governance changes as required by Sarbanes-Oxley. 

President – Elrick & Lavidge Division (2000 – 2001) 
Directed financial turnaround of the marketing research division with offices and facilities in seven (7) locations.  

1992 – 2000  
President – Selig Industries (1999 – 2000) – National Service Industries 
Led a 35-million-dollar specialty chemical division. Implemented a sales model for national accounts. 

Senior Vice President – National Linen Service (1998 – 1999) 
Directed sales and marketing activities for a 310-million-dollar, textile-rental division.  

Vice President of Health Care – National Linen Service (1996 – 1998)  
Managed a 100-million-dollar segment of the company. Restructured sales and service functions.  

Vice President Strategic Planning – National Linen Service (1994 – 1996)  
Initiated and developed planning process. Designed and managed an activity-based costing study. 
1989 – 1992  
Senior Consultant – Mars & Company 
Led project teams. 

MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 

As a longtime professional leading companies and providing outsourced logistics and call center services to clients—
as well as with specific experience delivering NEMT services to Members who need it—I commit to deliver the full 
depth and breadth of the LogistiCare expertise and resources as required to successfully implement and operate a 
low-risk, high-quality NEMT brokerage for the first time in Iowa.  

Herman Schwarz, LogistiCare CEO 
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VICE PRESIDENT OF OPERATIONS 

GREGG BRYARS 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience Bachelor of 

Science, Nicholls 
State University 
 
Lean 
Manufacturing 
Certified 
 
Six Sigma Trained 
 

20 
 

10 
 

20 
 

3 
 

3 
 
             3 

• More than 20 years of hands-on senior management experience in the 
transportation and logistics industries 

• More than 10 years of call center management experience 
• Manages networks of people and processes to meet customers’ needs 

and strategic objectives across multiple industries 
• Led operations for eight (8) NEMT state contracts and 5 call centers 
• Developed and managed successful NEMT quality assurance 

programs  
• Liaison for NEMT industry and government officials focused on 

improving Medicaid policies and procedures awareness for state 
workers, community volunteers, Members, and their families 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 
2008 – Present 
Vice President of Operations – LogistiCare 
Provides on-the-ground leadership across all accounts. Leverages all skills to empower state teams to own and 
manage accounts as one business. Responsible for implementation and operations in Arkansas, Colorado, 
Mississippi, Missouri, Michigan, Kansas, Ohio, and Oklahoma. Works directly with clients, state administrators, 
legislators, Transit Associations, as well as member advocacy groups and others as an industry leader who 
understands policy, requirements, process, and methods first-hand to drive positive change for improved services. 
Responsible for client relationships, quality assurance, customer satisfaction, financials, and cost-containment.  

2006 – 2007 
Business Consultant – Entrepreneur  
Implemented business analysis, training, and performance metrics; developed tools; and scheduled protocol and 
strategic staffing plans for local, regional, and national firms. 

2004 – 2008 
Vice President, Sales – GCA Services Group 
Led business development and revenue growth from 190 million to 400 million dollars through business 
transformation for sales operations, along with staffing development and management initiatives.  

1998 – 2003 
Senior Vice President, Sales and Marketing, National Linen Services 
Held executive leadership with responsibility for a 125-member, national sales team and a 10-person marketing team. 
Increased individual sales performance by 78 percent; grew health care segment from 38 million to 81 million dollars. 
Managed a 60-million-dollar regional operations and a 60-million-dollar regional operation of 13 facilities, nationally. 
Designed and led in organizational transformation; offered Six-Sigma and Lean Manufacture to enhance logistics 
arena.  

1990 – 1998 
Division Vice President, Wells Fargo Armored & ATM Service Corporation 
Managed the 75-million-dollar Northeast Division for this national services organization comprised of 18 states, more 
than 30 operations centers, and more than 1,000 employees. Focus included process management, procedural 
compliance, training centers, transportation, safety, quality assurance, security, and cost controls. 

MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 
I will use more than 20 years of experience in leading people, following processes, developing relationships, and 
implementing quality management to improve accessibility of transportation in Iowa, deliver advanced levels of 
service, bring budget predictability, and build a robust transportation network. In transition, I will work to ensure an 
exceptional implementation project.  

Gregg Bryars 
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CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

ALBERT CORTINA, CPA 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience Bachelor of 

Science, Florida 
State University 25 

13 
 
 
 

12 

• Financial and operational management experience 
• Directly manages key financial and operational aspects of all of 

LogistiCare’s transportation management projects 
• Oversees client encounter information and all performance and 

financial compliance audits 
• Negotiates, authorizes, and ensures contract compliance  
• Develops operational and financial systems for physician groups and 

medical clinics to increase operating efficiencies 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 
1997 – Present  
Chief Administrative Officer – LogistiCare 
Oversees transportation network development. Negotiates rates and monitors contract compliance. Helps staff and 
manages new business implementation teams. Assists CEO and COO in development of overall corporate growth 
and organizational development strategies. 
COO and Executive Vice President for Operations (2000 – 2007) 
Oversaw operations and ensured financial, customer service, and provider network development goals were 
achieved. Managed regional operations directors and corporate technology support units.  
Executive Vice President – Finance/Strategic Planning (1997 – 2000) 
Set up systems and relocated and consolidated financial services headquarters. Represented organization at 
legislative sessions and sub-appropriations committees. Developed programs for statewide Medicaid transportation. 
Developed agreements and negotiated rates with providers. Created financial trends for operations centers. 
Monitored monthly transportation provider costs and assisted in developing strategic plan for additional utilization 
within the same cost structure. Responsible for annual budget and quarterly projections.  

1992 – 1997 
Atlanta Medical Associates/Caremark Inc./Premier Practice Management  
Chief Financial Officer – Premier Practice Management 
Set up systems of a startup company for more than 85 physicians. Developed and presented standards for 
establishing physician base and bonus compensations. Negotiated all aspects of acquiring new practices.  

1994 –1996 
Director of Finance – Caremark Inc.  
Managed finances and operations for Atlanta Medical Clinic, a 48 multi-specialty practice group with six (6) satellites 
representing 23 specialties and ancillary services. Coordinated medical software conversion.  

1992 – 1994 
Controller – Atlanta Medical Associates 
Converted Information Systems hardware from Systems 38 to AS400 for a partnership of 45 physicians providing 
multi-specialty medical care. Developed and implemented systems. Reviewed PPOS, HMO, and POS plans for 
reimbursement profitability, contract language, and operational billing implementation. 

1985 – 1991 
Senior Auditor, Georgia Department of Audits 
Managed health care audits for Medicare and Medicaid cost reporting and HCFA compliance. 

MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 
With more than 13 years serving the NEMT industry, I feel I can provide best practices and insight for transitioning 
Iowa’s FFS program into one of the top-managed transportation programs nationally. I have experience with gating 
and the many key processes necessary for a smooth, safe, and effective program. Establishing expectations among 
third-party users is critical throughout the many phases of an implementation. I am fully committed to Iowa’s 
successful implementation.  

Albert Cortina 
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GENERAL COUNSEL 

M. CHINTA GASTON 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience Juris Doctor, 

University of 
Virginia School of 
Law 
Bachelor of Arts, 
Cum Laude, 
Harvard University 

25 

 

• Senior executive counsel with broad experience in the public and 
private sector, including representing the Federal Government in a 
broad array of civil litigation, and numerous private sector clients in 
litigation and compliance matters 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

2003 – Present 
General Counsel – LogistiCare Solutions, LLC 
Executive team member responsible for all legal matters relevant to the company, including compliance, contracting, 
litigation, and transactional work. Supervises in-house legal staff, manages relations with outside counsel, advises 
human resources, and oversees compliance function.  
Outside Counsel to LogistiCare Solutions, LLC (2000 – 2003) 
Advised LogistiCare on legal, human resources, and contracting matters. 

2000 
Of Counsel – McCandlish, Holton 
Supervised attorneys in employment litigation; trained clients on human resource issues.  

1997 – 1999 
Managing Director – Kroll Associates, Inc. 
As a member of the Intelligence and Investigations division for an international investigative consulting firm, oversaw 
design and implementation of corporate monitoring programs. Managed diverse staff.  

1992 – 1997 
Assistant United States Attorney – United States Attorney’s Office 
Southern District of New York, Civil Division 
Represented federal agencies as a plaintiff and defendant in litigation. Responsible for all litigation phases. 
Coordinated representation of State Department and other agencies on issues of public international law.  

1985 – 1991 
New York Office, Attorney – Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher 
Specialized in labor and employment litigation for numerous clients in health care, finance, media, and accounting 
industries. Conducted equal employment training and counseling for clients. 

MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 

As a senior advisor providing counsel to LogistiCare for more than a decade, I have been an integral part of the 
executive team that oversees all operations to ensure their success.  

M. Chinta Gaston 
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CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER 

ROBERT H. CORNELL 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience Bachelor of 

Science, Olivet 
Nazarene 
University  

 

25+ 
 

20 
 
 

9 
 

18+ 

• Develops, implements, and supports software applications, network 
systems, and hardware products 

• Directs and manages technical resources to deliver projects on time 
and under budget 

• Delivers IT solutions that help our NEMT clients access transportation 
to needed medical services 

• Develops comprehensive EDI interfaces to ensure clients and partners 
have the information they need 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

2004 – Present 
Chief Information Officer/Chief Technology Officer – LogistiCare 
Manages all IT personnel and systems. Sets technology goals and plans. Works with senior management and 
operations groups to provide IT systems that meet business objectives.  
Corporate IT Program Director (2001 – 2004) 
Directed an IT programming group in developing and supporting software solutions. Set corporate policy for 
development, QA, and support. Assisted an Operations and IT Network group with information needs.  

1990 – 2001 
Automatic Data Processing, Inc. – Time Resource Management Inc. 
Vice President, Director of Software Development (1993 – 2001) 
Directed development, Information Systems, and QA for Labor Management Division.  
Software Development Manager (1990 – 1993) 
Managed programming and QA groups for the Time:Care line of automated time and attendance solutions. 

1988 – 1990 
Gulf Coast System Design  
Programming and Support Supervisor (1989 – 1990) 
Managed software development and support groups for a newspaper circulation software package.  
Programmer / Analyst (1988 – 1989) 
Designed and developed software, trained users, wrote documentation, and handled customer service. 

1984 – 1986 
Software Engineer – Wang Laboratories, Inc. 

MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 

As a technology professional for more than 25 years, I have extensive experience across all major information 
technology platforms that have taught me that solutions are only important if they serve a greater purpose. At 
LogistiCare, our technology solutions help folks access medical services they desperately need. That’s our incentive 
to keep our systems up and running with optimal efficiency. Our track record is nearly 100 percent up time. We will 
apply that same dedication to Iowa’s challenges. 

Robert Cornell 
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DIRECTOR, INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

ALLEN E. BOGENSCHUTZ, CPCU 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience Bachelor of 

Business 
Administration, 
Georgia State 
University  

 

20+ 

5 
 

5 
5 

• Insurance industry professional 
• Meets insurance requirements for LogistiCare transportation providers 
• Designs and manages our liability NEMT provider insurance program 
• Led Marsh’s Southeast Region Transportation Practice for five (5) 

years 
• Responsible for risk selection at Liberty Mutual 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

2005 – Present 
Director, Insurance and Risk Management – LogistiCare 
Manages risk and casualty insurance programs. Oversees and markets insurance program planning and 
implementation offered to LogistiCare-contracted transportation providers.  

2000 – 2004 
Transportation Team Leader – Marsh USA Inc. 
Directed the Atlanta Transportation Specialty operation. Developed a business plan and coordinated client 
management goals, markets, and budgeting. Achieved 65 percent year-over-year growth while exceeding NOI 
targets four (4) out of five (5) years. 

1998 – 1999 
Account Executive – Palmer & Cray 
Produced a new book of middle-market business responsibilities for lead generation, marketing, closure, and 
servicing. 
1993 – 1998 
Sales Professional – Marsh USA Inc. (1994 – 1998) 
Generated and assisted with retaining one million dollars in revenue with cold calling and client relationship 
development for an Insurance Brokerage division.  
Servicing Broker (1993 – 1994) 
Achieved 100 percent account retention.  
1988 – 1993 
Senior Commercial Property and Casualty Underwriter – Liberty Mutual Insurance Company 
Handled risk selection by hazard analysis, loss control evaluation, and competitive pricing of prospective and existing 
insured, and Risk Management reviews to solve problems for large-risk accounts. Coordinated account 
communication among sales, loss prevention, and claims departments. 

MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 

With extensive knowledge of risk management, my primary concern is avoiding and managing risk for Medicaid 
Members and subcontractor clients. I will provide the outstanding focus and risk management services required in 
Iowa throughout transition as Iowa moves from a decentralized system to a single broker system, and help Iowa 
minimize risk to the state and citizens in operations phase. 

Allen Bogenschutz 
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CONTROLLER 

MEGAN NUNNERY 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience Bachelors of 

Science, 
Accounting, 
Finance, 
Florida State 
University  

17 
 

3 
14 

• Certified Public Accountant with extensive background in public and 
private industry accounting 

• Led teams and executed month-end closings 
• Developed audit strategies and supervised up to 25 staff auditors 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 
2009 – Present 
Controller – LogistiCare 
Assists CFO with the financial affairs of the organization and with preparation of financial analyses of operations, 
including interim and final financial statements with supporting schedules, for the guidance of management. Manages 
budgeting, cost analysis, compliance, tax, A/P, A/R, and payroll; is a key contact and liaison for audits, reviews, tax 
preparation and filings; issues accurate financial statements on a timely basis; assists the CFO in duties to the Board 
and investors by maintaining internal controls; establishes all related accounting and finance policies and procedures; 
and  monitors the Treasury function. 
2008 – 2009 
Controller – My Choice Medical Holdings, Inc.  
Executed month-end closings. Reviewed monthly reconciliations and led team through a transition during 
restructuring. Issued separate individual financial statements and coordinated tax filings for each of 10 doctors in the 
program. Documented technical accounting research for the company’s key decision support. Chosen as a key role 
member to be within the last five (5) employees to formally shut down operations to ensure appropriate close of final 
accounting records and to manage effective transition of employee layoffs during a wind-down period. 
2007 – 2008 
Assistant Controller – ALLCONNECT, Inc. 
Reduced audit fees, expedited monthly financial close to 8 days versus 13, prepared Summary Technical Memos, 
supervised month-end close process, managed various tasks and projects for senior leadership, assisted the 
controller in establishing proper organizational structure and hiring. Prepared 2007 audit financial statements. 
2005 – 2007, Atlanta 
1993 – 2005, Orlando 
Senior Manager – Ernst and Young LLP 
Managed relationships with senior executives of both publicly traded and private-owned companies. Developed audit 
strategies and supervised up to 25 staff auditors each year. Assisted in preparation and review of periodic filings and 
review compliance with SEC. Managed job budgets. Led clients and engagement teams through Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
404. Guided teams in adoption of new accounting standards. Served as one of the team’s leaders for recruitment. 
Served as Performance Development Coordinator in the Orlando office. 

MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 
As an accomplished CPA with an extensive background in public accounting, as well as private industry, I have 
strong technical knowledge of generally accepted accounting principles, extensive experience leading teams, and 
experience executing month-end close processes—with a strong work ethic, I am fully committed to meeting Iowa’s 
financial accounting and reporting needs in a timely and accurate manner. I am committed to going above and 
beyond to serve Iowa citizens and Members.  

Megan Nunnery 
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DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES AND RECRUITING 

JENNY SOUTHERN 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience SPHR 

Certification  
 

20+ 

8 
8 

20+ 
20+ 

 

• Handles all aspects of human resources management 
• Ensures regulatory and contract compliance 
• Implemented all LogistiCare statewide contracts since 2002 
• Develops policy and directs human resources activities  
• Advises management on HR best practices 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

2002 – Present 
Director of Human Resources and Recruiting – LogistiCare 
Develops policy and directs and coordinates HR activities for more than 1,300 employees at 32 nationwide locations. 
Advises management on policies for equal opportunity/affirmative action employment, recruitment and hiring options, 
performance management and disciplinary procedures, employee relations, terminations, and employee benefits.  

1997 – 2002 
Experienced Hire/Campus Recruiting – Deloitte Consulting 
Established and maintained hiring objectives. Grew the South Region SAP consulting practice to 239 in nine (9) 
months. As Regional HR Manager, led South Region recruiting and HR growth to 394 in fewer than two (2) years. 
Maintained recruiting goals and led East Region Technology recruiting as the lead for CRM recruiting initiative, 
meeting all recruiting goals. Developed and implemented a plan to hire 80 staff in 90 days. Implemented and 
managed South Region systems analyst recruiting program and orientation. Managed a national systems analyst 
recruiting program. 

Regional Manager, Human Resources 1997 – 1998 
Established an HR/ recruiting infrastructure for a 170-employee, 2-office region growing more than 50 percent 
annually in revenue and headcount. Implemented an Affirmative Action Plan. Led Career Development and 
Performance Measurement training for more than 350 people. Implemented a Staff Advisory Council to facilitate 
communications to senior management on issues and programs. Implemented Sexual Harassment training.  

1990 – 1997 
Manager, Human Resources and Recruiting, Premier Medical Group 
HR support for more than 500 medical professionals in 23 offices. Administered benefit programs. Managed 
enrollment and compliance, vendor negotiation, contract review, and monthly billing reconciliation. Conducted 
harassment and grievance investigations.  

1987 – 1989 
Personnel Manager – Lechmere 
Led recruitment, training, benefits administration, EEOC, employee relations, internal audits, internal newsletter, and 
payroll. Trained and managed staff for three (3) locations. 

MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 

With more than 20 years experience in administration managing key human resources functions, including eight (8) 
years implementing NEMT contracts and managing all HR-related federal and state regulatory and contract 
compliance requirements, I am confident in our ability to meet all of the requirements necessary to support the Iowa 
contract and am dedicated to doing so. 

Jenny Southern 
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VICE PRESIDENT, CONTRACTING AND IMPLEMENTATION 

KIRK J. GONZALES 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience Master of Science,  

Master of 
Business 
Administration, 
University of 
Alabama  
 
Juris Doctor, 
Bachelor of 
Science, Louisiana 
State University 

10 
 
 

17 

 
 
7 

• Manages implementation of and negotiation and compliance for 
LogistiCare’s statewide contracts and is a skilled facilitator and 
account services manager 

• Experienced, hands-on health care implementation and management 
expert for program development, network management, and 
operations 

• A licensed attorney who created and managed health care provider 
networks for managed care organizations 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

2000 – Present 
Vice President of Implementation and Associate General Counsel – LogistiCare 
Implements new and existing business and maintains contract compliance. Assists in provider and client contract 
negotiations. Liaisons with key audience groups.  

1993 – 2000 
CNA Health Partners, Vice President – Managed Care Services (1998 – 2000) 
Operational and P&L responsibility for the company’s Managed Care business division with a staff of approximately 
50; division generated over 7.75 million dollars in annual revenue in 1999 with a 21 percent margin.  
Vice President, Network Management (1997 – 1998) 
Operational responsibility for the Network Management business unit with 120 provider networks and more than 
230,000 Members; the unit managed more than 287 million dollars in medical expenditures in 1998. 
Assistant Vice President, Network Management (1995 – 1997) 
Operational responsibility for 34 provider networks with approximately 49,000 Members and more than 58 million 
dollars in combined medical expenditures in 1996. Met revenue and enrollment targets, and negotiated medical 
provider contracts for network participation.  
Manager, Network Management (1993 – 1995) 
Managed gatekeeper model of Primary Care Networks for self-funded employers with combined annual medical 
expenditures of more than 25 million dollars.  

1992 – 1993 
MSHA Internship; Managed Care Analyst – Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Alabama 
Reported to Vice President of Managed Care and developed multiple solution-oriented projects. 
1989 – 1992 
Attorney – Cooper, Mitch, Crawford, Kuykendall & Whatley 

MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 

I have personally directed and managed the implementation of more than a dozen state, non-emergency medical 
transportation brokerage contracts. I will share that experience with the Iowa Department of Human Services as we 
work together to implement the new NEMT brokerage program. The efficient and effective implementation of the 
contract shall remain my primary focus for the duration of the process.  

Kirk Gonzales 
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CORPORATE OPERATIONS DIRECTOR 

ROBERT O. HARRISON 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience Bachelor of Art, 

Master’s Degree, 
University of 
Pennsylvania 
 
Doctoral 
Programs 
Coursework, 
Harvard University 

5 

 
6 
 
 

13 
 

20 

• Specializes in the implementation of LogistiCare NEMT programs 
• Oversees operations of LogistiCare’s Georgia Medicaid contracts, 

which manage more than 300,000 Georgia Medicaid NET trips per 
month 

• Previously mentored and supervised the General Managers for our 
four (4) state operations 

• Served as General Manager of our Georgia operation. Developed 
regional management structure (model for other state operations) 

• Was superintendent of schools, including at Chittenden Central where 
he was responsible for 3,200 students, four (4) school boards, three 
(3) school districts, and a 30-million-dollar budget 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

2005 – Present 
Corporate Operations Director – LogistiCare 
Oversees and enhances quality, effectiveness, and efficiency of all contract operations in four (4) states. Implements 
contracts for new business staffing, training, technical (telephone and proprietary software systems), network 
development, and policies and procedures. Provides financial and operational analysis for vendor costs, utilization, 
and efficiency. Ensures confidence in our brokerage system by fostering relationships with government officials, 
medical facility staff, and patient advocacy groups 
Director of Operations for Georgia – LogistiCare (1999 – 2005) 
Directed daily operations of Medicaid contracts; developed a successful, regional management structure for smooth 
expansion into Georgia’s North region in 2000.  

1987 – 1998 
Superintendent of Schools – Chittenden Central Supervisory Union, Essex Junction, Vermont  

1985 – 87 
Superintendent of Schools for the Galax City Schools, Galax, Virginia 
Asst. Superintendent for Curriculum and Instruction (1983 – 85) 

1980 – 83 
Employment while at Harvard Graduate School of Education (HGSE): 
School Finance Analyst for Boston law firm Foley, Hoag & Eliot 
Teaching Fellow for Law & Education at HGS 
Research Assistant at HGSE in school finance and education law 
Program Evaluator for the Huron Institute, Cambridge, MA 
Principal – Holyoke Street School (1977 – 80) 
Social studies and language arts teacher – Holyoke Street School (1974 – 77) 
Social Studies teacher – Alternative Projects HS (1973 – 74) 
Elementary teacher – Greene St. Friends School (1968 – 73) 

MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 

Having worked hand-in-hand with, and across all areas of, implementation and operations in developing an NEMT 
statewide system, I am committed to delivering Iowa the services Members require and expect from a leader in the 
industry. 

Robert Harrison 
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DIRECTOR NETWORK DEVELOPMENT 

RAMON BLANCO 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience EMT-P, Miami Dade 

Community College 
Licenses and 
Certifications: 
Emergency Vehicle 
Operations Course 
(EVOC), CPR & CPR 
Instructor, ACLS, PALS, 
Trauma Transport 
Protocols, HIV Training, 
Transcutaneous Pacing, 
Rescue Diver 

20+ 

 
7 
 
 

13 
 
 

3 

• Works as a transportation management professional in medical 
transportation provision, NEMT program implementation, and operations 
management 

• After our program initiation, answers providers’ questions, negotiates rates, 
and works on contractual requirements, safety procedures, and 
administrative policies 

• Developed networks and implemented programs in more than ten (10) 
LogistiCare programs and was instrumental in eight (8) start-up projects, 
developing provider networks, and recruiting and training providers 

• Served as the General Manager for our Georgia and Miami programs 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

2003 – Present 
Director of Network Development – LogistiCare 
Develops the transportation provider network and implements and ensures compliance for all new and existing 
contracts, including recruitment, training, and provider orientation.  

2000 – 2002 
Implementation Manager/Program Manager – Dyncorp 
Implemented build-out and initial operational responsibilities for statewide, non-emergency transportation prior to an 
approval system. Managed the correction of vast implementation deficiencies and total operational responsibility, 
covering 70 percent of lives in the state of Virginia. 

2000 – 2001 
Independent Consultant 
Worked on the start-up implementation of a 10-county 5311 rural transit system from planning to start up, including 
the setup of policies and procedures. 

1997 – 2000 
Georgia Operations Director – LogistiCare 
Oversaw day-to-day operations, including recruitment, training, provider orientation and performance. Ensured 
operating goals were achieved. Developed employee skills and met program officials and beneficiaries’ needs.  

1983 – 1997 
Director of Operations – Medi-Car Systems, Inc.  
Coordinated 42 paramedic units and 28 basic life support units. Developed and implemented training materials, 
ensured compliance with OSHA, HRS, state, and federal regulations. Coordinated HMO, hospital, and private 
contracts. Implemented all evacuation and major incidents emergency programs.  

1982 – 1983 
Paramedic – Randle Eastern Ambulance Service, Inc. 
Oversaw ambulance care, custody and control, and patient care on-scene and during transport.  
MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 
I am committed to bringing more than 20 years of experience implementing transportation services for multiple start-
up programs in various environments. As Director, I will lead the development of a stable and effective network of 
transportation providers for Iowa. By working with existing local providers and identifying new resources, we will 
enable increased accessibility for Members, regardless of where they live. We’ve already begun establishing a 
presence in Iowa. We are hosting open meetings, we’re online, and we’ll remain connected to providers ongoing to 
confirm an effective transition and local presence. 

Ray Blanco 
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DIRECTOR OF CORPORATE TRAINING 

JOHN WILLIAM MCGEE 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience Master of Human 

Resource, 
Clemson 
University  
 
Bachelor of Arts, 
University of 
Alabama 

20+ 
 
 

3 
 

6 

• Analyzes and develops training programs that facilitate organizational 
change, manage talent, and develop leadership 

• Assesses LogistiCare’s training needs, develops training standards 
and curricula, and delivers training services throughout the company  

• Develops policy and procedures ensuring alignment to contractual, 
legal, and business expectations 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 

2007 – Present 
Director of Training – LogistiCare  
Manages LogistiCare University, providing learning and development opportunities for employees and enabling 
investments in skill development, leadership training, and career planning. Identifies needs and learning 
opportunities. Develops training to prepare staff to meet goals and exceed business commitments. 
Director – Boys & Girls Clubs of America (2002 – 2007) 
Participated in the development of Leadership University resulting in a competency-based system aligned to role-
specific learning paths. Led all University distance learning development, currently 80 percent of offerings. Designed 
and developed custom-automated training systems, knowledge management strategy geared to aligning resources 
with metrics, and established the  Workplace of Excellence tool for constructive organizational change. 
Director of Training and Professional Development (1999 – 2002) 
Managed services from approximately 60,000 staff and volunteers for 3,681 club sites serving 4.4 million youth. 
Designed and implemented manager training, executive leadership program, and tools to promote diversity initiative 
in the community. Provided consultation services to more than 40 organizations.  
Chief Professional Officer – Boys & Girls Clubs of Cumberland County, NC (1996 – 1999) 
Managed 80 staff and volunteers, established a million-dollar budget, recruited board, and developed strategies for 
Club improvements. Developed and managed government, corporate, and community relationships. Wrote and 
managed grants as large as 1.7 million dollars per grant. Increased membership by 1,300 percent and three (3) Clubs 
within four (4) years.  
Director Resource Development – Boys & Girls Clubs of Tampa (1990 – 1996) 
Developed and implemented fundraising strategies resulting in a 3.5–million-dollar budget. Established 10-member 
foundation of volunteer Board of Directors. Led million-dollar fundraising effort for Clubs. 

MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 

I am committed to bringing more than 20 years of experience developing people and organizations to my role in Iowa. 
Having developed and implemented effective training for LogistiCare for three (3) years, I have participated in 
bringing new technologies that allow us to respond to any size of learning initiative or need, including statewide 
implementations and real-time disaster response and recovery. Further, I have participated in establishing a Job 
Coach program that enables LogistiCare to leverage its experience and knowledge companywide for Iowa as it has 
for other clients. I am committed to bringing my experience, training, and coaching knowledge, and the tools we have 
created to bear in Iowa to assist in maximizing the Department’s return on investment. 

John McGee 
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DIRECTOR OF BACK OFFICE COMPLIANCE OPERATIONS 

VUONG CHU-BA 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience MBA, Emory 

University  
 
Bachelor of 
Science, Texas  
A & M University  
 

4 
 

4 
 
 
 

4 
 

1 
 

• Manages the credentialing process for transportation providers and 
confirms qualified and safe driver programs  

• Manages more than 1,000 providers with approximately 10,000 
drivers, and establishes policy and procedures for compliance for 
LogistiCare’s transportation network  

• Organizes data into central database and makes it available to all local 
operations managers and their clients  

• Developed billing policies and procedures and managed transportation 
provider billing process for several large state NEMT contracts 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 
2009 – Present 
Director of Back End Compliance Operations – LogistiCare 
Manages four (4) direct reports in the Claims and Credentialing Departments totaling 87 associates. Redesigned QA 
process for Claims. Developed productivity reports and redefined processes for both Departments. 
2006 – 2009 
Director of Operations Analysis – LogistiCare 
Centralized and managed sub-contractor and driver credentialing. Created models to determine the company’s 
exposure to fuel fluctuations for hedging purposes, and gas reimbursement to providers. 
2004 – 2006 
Store Leadership Program Associate – The Home Depot  
Two-year rotational program. Managed 12 associates with profit and loss responsibilities of 10 million dollars in 
revenue. Enhanced processes and developed an integration strategy within the Supplier Diversity Department. 
Performed feasibility analysis on multiple new store concepts. 
2002 – 2003 
Consultant – MBA Enterprise Corporation  
Developed consulting services with the Volgograd Chamber of Commerce. Analyzed and developed a demand-
based retail model for a clothing store chain.  
2001 
Summer Associate – Cardinal Ventures  
Performed stock dilution analysis on a 2–million-dollar equity raise on a private placement and made 
recommendations to the managing partner. Developed financial models to analyze strategic options for a start-up 
health care company. 
1997 – 2000 
Senior Field Engineer/Project Manager – Sperry-Sun Drilling Company  
Requested by client to be the Lead Engineer on a two-year, billion-dollar project. Led and developed team of two (2) 
engineers.  
1995 – 1997 
Field Engineer 
Managed one (1) million dollars of equipment and inventory. Facilitated communication between drilling and geologic 
teams within client company to ensure that goals were met throughout drilling. 

MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 

I am committed to the safety of Iowa’s Members, the quality of transportation provisions, and working with Iowa’s 
current transportation providers to continue delivering seamless services to Iowa’s Members. 

Vuong Chu-Ba 
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CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF UTILIZATION CONTROL 

GREGORY BIRGE 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience Associate Degree, 

University of West 
Georgia, Dekalb 
College 
  
Instructor Degree, 
West Georgia 
Medical Center 

30 

12 
 

5 
 

7 

• Experience as a transportation management professional 
• Manages Utilization Review functions throughout LogistiCare, auditing 

and managing all standing-order trip reservations 
• Assists in developing provider overpayment recovery policies, and 

ensures compliance with program integrity  
• Applies in-depth Medicaid experience and knowledge 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 
2007 – Present 
Corporate Director of Utilization Control – LogistiCare 
Manages utilization review functions. Audits and manages standing-order trip reservations. Assists each operation 
with auditing processes for benefit integrity issues and development of provider overpayment recovery policies. 
Ensures program integrity compliance reporting to state clients. 
Operations Director (2002 – 2007) 
Was the contact point for Virginia DMAS’s data analysis and reporting. Developed report information for Virginia’s 
customer structures. Managed Virginia’s Provider and Utilization Review department. Coordinated our health care 
facilities and was the contact point for requests for transportation, standing order management, and utilization 
management.  
2001 – 2002 
Deputy Project Manager – DynCorp/DMR – Dyntek Inc.  
Developed and managed a network of 360 providers to ensure transportation coverage for a VA NET contract for two 
(2) million trips annually. Oversaw network assessments and evaluations to ensure cost effectiveness, compliance, 
on-time performance, safety, and other state required benchmarks.  
1999 – 2001 
Director of Transportation – LogistiCare 
Managed contracts and new, regional implementation, including provider network development. Routed four (4) 
million trips annually. Quantified reporting data to the state of Georgia for compliance and QA. Supervised the 
Transportation Manager with a Call Center Staff and Regional Managers. 
Project Manager (1998 – 1999) 
Evaluated and restructured QA department, call center procedures, and transportation department for Georgia 
Department of Medicaid. Established and managed outreach program. Identified new business resources. 
1993 – 1998 
CEO/Owner – Lifeline Ambulance Service, Inc.  
Offered service in multiple markets with health care facilities, 911 emergency response, and special services 
department. Grew from 4 to 60 employees with gross sales in the excess of three (3) million dollars. 
1991 – 1993 
V.P. Operations and Marketing – Critical Care Medflight/Ambulance Service Inc. 
Marketed and managed International Air ambulance operation and operations of ground-based ambulance service. 

MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 

Having served in health-care-related transportation for more than 30 years and drawing on my knowledge in 
coordination of benefits, claims integrity, and utilization analysis, I plan to serve the beneficiaries and the state of 
Iowa to ensure LogistiCare delivers the highest quality, most economical, and ethical non-emergency transportation 
program possible. LogistiCare not only delivers high quality transportations service, we also provide responsible 
claims integrity. 

Gregory Birge 
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DIRECTOR OF PROVIDER RELATIONS 

KENNETH L. HOGGARD 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience Bachelor of 

Science,  
Master of 
Science 
(Candidate), 
Trinity College and 
University 

30+ 
 

11 
 

6 

• Transit professional with business and network development 
experience and management and operations expertise 

• Oversees Provider Relations Group, directs network development, and 
manages a paratransit transportation system 

• Member of the Paratransit Steering Committee of the Taxi, Limousine, 
and Paratransit Association 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 
2008 – Present 
Director of Provider Relations – LogistiCare 
Directs the Provider Relations Group, which is responsible for maintaining positive relationships with Independent 
Business Partners. Hires and trains staff charged with developing low-cost programs to partners. Developing a 
Provider Help Desk, providing web-based outreach and training, and assisting LogistiCare staff and providers.  
Director of Network Development (2004 – 2008) 
Managed business relationships with potential transportation providers in new markets. Implemented new contracts. 
Conducted analysis and assessed provider partners’ capabilities. Trained staff on software and business methods. 
Assistant Director (1999 – 2004) 
Managed ADA paratransit transportation system for Washington MTA. Expanded service delivery network, developed 
and implemented SOPs. Managed delivery of more than 100,000 passenger trips per month. Subcontracted with 
providers, negotiated contracts, and oversaw operations of more than 15 companies and their workforces.  
1998 to 1999 
Vice President – Southeast Transit Management, Alexandria Virginia 
Improved service delivery and reduced accidents, resulting in a 25 percent increase in annual business. Established 
labor peace with local Teamsters. Decreased maintenance costs by 30 percent while improving vehicle reliability. 
1997 to 1998 
General Manager – Yellow Transportation, Annapolis Junction, Maryland 
Had P&L responsibility for a seven-million-dollar division. Managed 6 department heads, 160 employees, 110 
vehicles, and 10 contracts. Increased employee training and improved service delivery while reducing accidents.  
1994 to 1997 
Regional Director of Operations – Southeast Transit Management, Alexandria, Virginia 
Prepared proposals, negotiated contracts, managed start-up projects, developed procedures, hired and trained staff, 
developed budgets, monitored P&L, and provided oversight and leadership for company operations in six (6) states. 
1992 to 1994 
President/COO – Hudson Lines, Medford Massachusetts  
Managed and directed staff, maintenance personnel, and drivers. Wrote policy and procedures handbook, ensuring 
labor law compliance. Expanded business, doubling revenues in 19 months. Computerized operations. 
1975 to 1992 
Director of Business Development – Laidlaw Transit, Warren RI 
Senior Operations Manager for largest student transportation firm in the world, responsible for a more-than-20-
million-dollar budget and operations in five (5) states, 50 locations, and 2,000 employees. 

MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 
As a transportation management professional with more than 24 years of direct service operations experience and 
extensive market diversity, along with 35 years of overall experience, I am committed to leveraging my background 
and understanding to meet Iowa’s individual challenges for successful service delivery and budget management.  

Kenneth Hoggard 
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DIRECTOR, TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

PAUL BERARDIS 

EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
Years Relevant Experience Certified,  

Avaya, ShoreTel, 
Active Voice, and 
Rockwell 

6 
 

12 
 

15 
 

10 

• System designer and leader for telecommunications activities across 
multiple, complex telecommunications contracts 

• Director of Operations and President of On-Line Communications, a 
firm with more than two (2) million dollars in annual sales  

• Hands-on telephony experience as a service technician, programmer 
installer, projects, and operations manager 

• Responsible for installation and maintenance of all LogistiCare’s 
telecommunications technology 

EMPLOYMENT HISTORY 
2004 – Present 
Director of Telecommunications – Provado Technologies, LLC  
Leads daily operations supervising a 15-member staff; designs systems and is the contracts consultant for the 
telecommunications portion of multi-million-dollar transportation contracts across the United States. 
1997 - 2004 
President – OnLine Communications, Inc. Waterbury, CT (Now Provado) 
Led company to annual sales of over 2.5 million dollars—a 40 percent jump from previous years. Supervises and 
trains 20 employees, including 10 trained and certified installation and maintenance technicians.  
Director of Operations (1993 – 1996) 
Directed all aspects of running the company, including sales, installations, and customer service.  
1992-1993  
Telephone Systems Technician – Business Telephone Services Inc. Gaithersburg MD 
Installed and maintained PBX, Voice Mail, ACD Call Management, and Call Sequencing Systems in Maryland, 
Virginia, and Washington DC Provided support for government accounts, including the IRS, BOI/BIA, and VA. 
Provided support for numerous commercial and private accounts 
1989-1992 
Installation and Maintenance Technician – OnLine Communications, Waterbury, CT 
Responsible for the installation and maintenance of analog and digital PBX and Key Telephone Systems. 

MY COMMITMENT TO IOWA 
With more than 15 years of experience delivering telephony services and, leading systems design and teams in 
serving clients, I understand the impact of telecommunications on citizens and Members. I am committed to bringing 
my experience and knowledge of NEMT brokerage systems to Iowa for more efficient and quality service to 
Members. 

Paul Berardis 
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4.2.6.3. FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
The bidder must provide the following financial information: (4.2.6.3.1) audited financial statements; (4.2.6.3.2) a 
minimum of three (3) financial reference letters; and (4.2.6.3.3) organizational background information. 
 
LogistiCare offers tried and tested financial stability with annual revenues of more than 450 
million dollars. As a financially sound company, we are capable of handling the financial 
requirements of this contract and have demonstrated our capability time and again on large, 
statewide, capitated NEMT projects.  
 
In addition to revenues, our lines of credit for operations and start-up opportunities provide Iowa 
an advantage throughout implementation and operations. LogistiCare has posted more than 40 
million dollars in performance and payment bonds for various state Medicaid and Managed Care 
programs. There has never been an incident of a client to call on any posted payment or 
performance bonds. Although this is not required under this program, it is a sign of the 
management stability that LogistiCare offers. 

4.2.6.3.1 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REFLECT SUCCESS AND GROWTH 
Submit audited financial statements (annual reports) for the last three (3) years. Privately owned companies may 
supply unaudited statements if audited statements are not available.  
Such information should include, at the minimum: 
-- Balance sheet 
-- Income statement 
-- Statement of cash flow 
-- Notes to financial statements 
 
Prior to our acquisition by Providence Service Corporation, LogistiCare Solutions, LLC was a 
privately held company whose corporate ownership structure was, and still is, the legacy of 
previous private ownership transactions. LogistiCare Solutions LLC is a wholly owned subsidiary 
of LogistiCare, Inc. LogistiCare, Inc. became the holding company of LogistiCare Solutions, 
LLC in 1999 in association with a private ownership transaction. Then in 2004, in association 
with a subsequent private ownership transaction, Charter LCI Corporation was created and 
became the holding company of LogistiCare, Inc.  
To be clear, both LogistiCare, Inc., and Charter LCI Corporation are purely holding companies 
with no business functions or revenue sources independent of our NEMT business operations. All 
executives, managers and staff of our NEMT business operation are employees of LogistiCare 
Solutions, LLC, and all NEMT business contracts with clients and transportation providers are 
held by LogistiCare Solutions LLC. There are no audited financial reports for LogistiCare 
Solutions LLC per se as a sole entity.  
 
LogistiCare Solutions LLC was acquired by Providence Service Corporation on December 7, 
2007, with the corporate ownership structured so that Charter LCI Corporation became a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Providence. Since Providence is now the ultimate parent company, 
independent annual audits of LogistiCare are not required. Therefore, in response to the RFP 
requirement for “audited financial statements (annual reports) for the last three (3) years…” as 
well as the state’s answer to Question 139, which instructs an unaudited subsidiary of an audited 
parent to “submit both the parent’s audited financials and the subsidiary’s unaudited financials,” 
we are providing the audited financial report for Charter LCI Corporation for 2007, the 10K 
statements for Providence for 2008 and 2009, which contains audited financial reports for 
Providence for 2007, 2008, and 2009, as well as the unaudited financial statements for 
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LogistiCare Solutions, LLC for 2007, 2008, and 2009. The financial reports can be found in 
Exhibit 3.  
 
The financial contribution of Charter LCI Corporation, and therefore of LogistiCare Solutions, 
LLC, is represented as the non-emergency transportation business division separately reported 
and included in the Providence financial reports. 

4.2.6.3.2 FINANCIAL REFERENCES DEMONSTRATE STABILITY 
Provide a minimum of three (3) financial reference letters. The Department is interested in knowing that the bidders are 
financially viable and has a financial history indicative of future financial stability. Therefore financial reference letters 
from banking institutions and/or creditors that are indicative of such financial history are required.  

Exhibit 4 includes three (3) financial reference letters provided in response to the Department’s 
requirement. The references are from the following institutions:  
• Bank of America 
• SunTrust Bank 
• Joseph P. Hardy, CPA, PLC 

4.2.6.3.3 ORGANIZATIONAL BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
Provide the following organizational background information:  
-- Full name, address, and telephone number; 
-- Date established; 
-- Ownership (i.e. public company, partnership, etc.); 
-- Description of business operations; 
-- Details of any proposed mergers, acquisitions, or sales that may affect financial stability or organizational structure; 
and a description, if any, of insurance claims filed within the past five (5) years.  

FULL NAME, ADDRESS, AND TELEPHONE NUMBER 
LogistiCare Solutions, LLC 
1800 Phoenix Boulevard, Suite 120 
College Park, GA 30349 
(770) 907-7596 

DATE ESTABLISHED 
1999 

OWNERSHIP 
Our company was originally incorporated in Delaware in 1989 as Automated Dispatch Services 
and then changed its name to LogistiCare, Inc. in 1994. LogistiCare Solutions, LLC (hereafter 
referred to as “LogistiCare”), which is the trade name used to deliver NEMT broker services, was 
created in 1999 as a wholly owned subsidiary of LogistiCare, Inc. LogistiCare has two (2) other 
subsidiaries that provide support services (information technology and provider insurance 
programs) to our NEMT business. LogistiCare, in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Charter 
LCI which was established solely as a holding company and has no operating activity. In late 
2007, Charter LCI was acquired by The Providence Service Corporation, a publicly traded 
corporation that, in addition to Charter (NEMT services), owns subsidiaries providing 
community-based behavioral health services. 
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DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
LogistiCare is the largest and most experienced Medicaid NEMT broker in the country. We are 
the only broker with extensive experience managing large-scale brokerages in numerous states. 
We currently manage 63 transportation management projects in 39 states and the District of 
Columbia and have current annual revenues of more than 450 million dollars. We are the 
exclusive NEMT broker for nearly seven (7) million Members of Medicaid, Medicare, 
commercial MCOs (managed care organizations), community dial-a-ride, and school 
transportation paratransit programs. Each day, LogistiCare operations centers answer more than 
30,000 calls and schedule more than 90,000 trips. This means we have experience with more 
types of medical brokerage challenges and have devised and implemented more solutions to more 
issues than any other potential bidder.  

PROPOSED MERGERS, ACQUISITIONS, AND SALES 
Security and Exchange Commission rules prohibit publicly traded companies such as LogistiCare 
from confirming or denying any proposed merger, acquisition, or sales activity.   

INSURANCE CLAIMS WITHIN THE PAST FIVE YEARS 
While LogistiCare strives to provide a safe environment, accidents do happen. We continue to 
modify the operational standards that our providers must abide in an effort to eliminate accidents. 
Due to our high trip volume, uncontrollable factors periodically occur. These factors include: 
 

• The motoring public who periodically drive unsafely and present dangerous situations to 
the vehicles and patients in transit 

• Unforeseeable vehicle/equipment manufacturer defects 

• Unsafe weather conditions 

To put our insurance claim record in perspective, in the last five (5) years, LogistiCare has 
managed more than 80 million trips, which resulted in 18 material ($25,000 in value or 
above) insurance company claims, which is a claim to trip percentage of less than .000000225 
percent. 
 
The following table lists LogistiCare’s loss summary as of July 2009 including general liability, 
automobile, and professional liability claims: 
 

GENERAL LIABILITY 
YEAR CARRIER VALUATION PAID RESERVED TOTAL 

12/21/08-12/21/09 Lexington 7/7/2009 $0 $0 $0 
12/21/07-12/21/08 Hanover 7/7/2009 $0 $100,000 $100,000 
5/25/07-12/21/07 Hanover 7/7/2009 $0 $200,000 $200,000 
6/26/06 - 6/26/07 Zurich 7/20/2009 $0 $0 $0 
6/26/05 - 6/26/06 Zurich 7/20/2009 $0 $0 $0 
6/26/04 - 6/26/05 Hartford 7/8/2009 $420,588 $34,050 $454,638 
6/26/03- 6/26/04 Hartford 7/8/2009 $0 $0 $0 

COMMERCIAL AUTO 
YEAR CARRIER VALUATION PAID RESERVED TOTAL 

12/21/08-12/21/09 National Union 6/30/2009 $155 $6,346 $6,501 
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12/21/07-12/21/08 Hanover 7/7/2009 $7,452 $400,600 $408,052 
5/25/07 - 12/21/07 Hanover 7/7/2009 $45,000 $250,100 $295,100 
6/26/06 - 6/26/07 Zurich 7/20/2009 $55,230 $8,501 $63,731 
6/26/05 - 6/26/06 Zurich 7/20/2009 $239,125 $23,272 $262,397 
6/26/04 - 6/26/05 Hartford 7/8/2009 $29,655 $0 $29,655 
6/26/03 - 6/26/04 Hartford 7/8/2009 $1,273 $0 $1,273 

 

NEMT AUTO 
YEAR CARRIER VALUATION PAID RESERVED TOTAL 

2/15/09 - 10 Discover P&C 7/20/2009 $0 $0  $0 
1/15/08 - 2/15/09 Discover P&C 7/20/2009 $3,141 $0 $3,141 
1/15/07 - 08 Discover P&C 7/20/2009 $85,410 $59,719 $145,129 
1/15/06 - 07 Discover P&C 7/20/2009 $76,773 $127 $76,900 
12-9-04 - 1-15-06 Discover P&C 7/20/2009 $127,228 $16,245 $143,473 

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 
YEAR CARRIER VALUATION PAID RESERVED TOTAL 

12/21/08-12/21/09 AIG 7/7/2009 $2,500 $4,010 $6,510 
8/15/08 - 12/21/08 Admiral 7/13/2009 ($1,226) $2,999 $1,773 
8/15/07 - 08 Admiral 7/13/2009 $0 $0 $0 
12/9/06 - 8/15/07 Zurich 7/22/2009 $0 $0 $0 
12/9/05 - 06 Zurich 7/22/2009 $0 $0 $0 

12/9/04 - 05 
Houston 
Casualty 7/16/2009 $0 $0 $0 

10/25/03 - 12/9/04 AIG 7/15/2009 $248,085 $0 $248,085 

 

4.2.6.4 TERMINATION, LITIGATION, AND INVESTIGATION 
The bidder must provide the following 

4.2.6.4.1 
During the last five (5) years, has the bidder had a contract for services terminated for any reason or has any such 
contract been subject to any form of default notice or threat of termination. If so, provide full details related to the 
termination, notice of default, or threat of termination. 

The following table lists LogistiCare contracts that have been terminated within the last five (5) 
years. 
 

STATE CLIENT SUMMARY TERMINATION 
DATE 

OH Wellcare of Ohio, Inc. Medicaid NET MCO: Termination without cause 1-May-07 
KS Family Health Partners, Inc. Medicaid NET MCO: Termination without cause 1-Jul-07 

GA Amerigroup Community Care 
Medicaid NET MCO: NEMT benefit eliminated from 
plan 1-Aug-07 

CT HealthNet, Inc. of 
Connecticut 

Medicaid NET MCO:  Client lost underlying contract 
with state agency. 31-Mar-08 
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STATE CLIENT SUMMARY TERMINATION 
DATE 

OH Anthem Blue Cross Blue 
Shield of Ohio 

Medicare NET MCO:   MCO left market 
6-May-08 

MD Amerigroup District of 
Columbia, Inc.  

Medicaid NET MCO:  MCO left market 
30-Jun-08 

FL Vista Healthplan of South 
Florida, Inc.  

Medicaid NET MCO: MCO left market 
30-Nov-08 

FL United Health Care of 
Florida, Inc. (Evercare) 

Medicare NET MCO:  NEMT benefit eliminated from 
plan 31-Dec-08 

CT Anthem Blue Cross Blue 
Shield of Connecticut Medicaid NET MCO:   MCO left the market. 31-Jan-09 

FL City of Sunny Isles Beach Commercial NET:  Termination without cause 24-Apr-09 

FL Florida NetPass, LLC 
Medicaid NET MCO:   MCO purchased by different 
health plan 31-Jul-09 

FL ACCESS Health Solutions 
Medicaid NET MCO:   MCO purchased by different 
health plan 31-Aug-09 

FL 
Shands Jacksonville Medical 
Center, Inc. ("First Coast 
Advantage")  

Medicaid NET MCO:   Termination without cause 31-Oct-09 

FL Amerigroup Community Care Medicaid NET MCO:  MCO left market 1-Dec-09 

GA Wellcare of Georgia, Inc. 
Medicare NET MCO: NEMT benefit eliminated from 
plan 31-Dec-09 

 
In addition, LogistiCare Solutions LLC, nor any of its owners, officers, or primary partners, has 
ever been convicted of a felony. 

4.2.6.4.2 
During the last five (5) years, describe any damages or penalties or anything of value traded or given up by the bidder 
under any of its existing or past contracts as it relates to services performed that are similar to the services 
contemplated by this RFP and the resulting Contract. If so, indicate the reason and the estimated cost of that incident 
to the bidder. 

LogistiCare has many contracts that permit liquidated damages or financial penalties to be 
assessed by our clients in the event a certain predetermined service metric is not meet. Based 
upon a review of available records, the following liquidated damages or financial penalties have 
been assessed within the last five (5) years. 
 
AmeriGroup Ohio, Inc. 

• October 2009: $500 (ASA metric) 
AmeriGroup Virginia, Inc. 

• October 2009: $1,000 (ASA and complaint metrics) 
• November 2009: $1,000 (ASA and complaint metrics) 
• December 2009: $500 (complaint metric) 

Sentara Health Plans, Inc. (Virginia) 
• March 2007: $1,664.35 (call abandonment rate metric) 
• August 2008: $2,128.09 (ASA metric) 
• September 2008: $2,259.72 (ASA metric) 
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  March 2008: $700 (on time performance metric, maximum trip time 

• SA metric, timely 

• A metric, on time performance metrics, 

• SA metric, on time performance metrics, 

•  March 2009: $83,000 (on time performance metrics, level of service 

• 00 (on time performance metrics, urgent care metric, 

• 009: $12,500 (one time performance metrics, proper 
wheelchair tie down) 

• October 2008: $4,344.72 (ASA and call abandonment rate metrics) 
• November 2008: $4,413.21 (ASA and call abandonment rate metrics) 
• December 2008: $2,376.43 (ASA metric) 
• January 2009: $4558.46 (ASA and call abandonment rate metrics) 

Mississippi Department of Medicaid 
• April 2008: $5,000 (late mailing of denial notices) 
• April 2008: $5,000 (late pick-ups/drop-offs) 
• s)  April 2008: $25,300 (incomplete vehicle file

plete driver files) • April 2008: $3,400 (incom
Georgia Department of Community Health 

• April 2006 – February 2007: $44,000 (on time performance metrics, network 
vehicle capacity metric, urgent care service metric) 

• March – June 2007: $10,000 (on time performance metrics, urgent care service 
metric, timely back-up vehicle availability, vehicle HVAC service) 

• July – September 2007: $6,100 (ASA metric, on time performance metrics) 
• January –

metric) 
April – June 2008: $4,910 (on time performance metrics, A
back-up vehicle availability, proper wheelchair tie down)  
July – September 2008: $11,990 (AS
timely back-up vehicle availability) 
October – December 2008: $3,750 (A
timely back-up vehicle availability) 
January –
metric) 
April – June 2009: $66,2
level of service metric) 

• July – September 2009: $13,000 (on time performance metrics) 
October – December 2

4.2.6.4.3 
During the last five (5) years, list and summarize pending or threatened litigation, administrative or regulatory 
proceedings, or similar matters that could affect the ability of the bidder to perform the required services. The bidder 
must also state whether it or any owners, officers, or primary partners have ever been convicted of a felony. Failure to 
disclose these matters may result in rejection of the bid proposal or in termination of any subsequent contract. This is 
continuing disclosure requirement. Any such issue arising after submission of a bid proposal, and with respect to the 
successful bidde

a 

r after the execution of a contract must be disclosed in a timely manner in a written statement to the 
Department. 

During the last five (5) years, LogistiCare Solutions LLC has had no pending or threatened 
litigation, administrative or regulatory proceedings, or similar matters that could affect the ability 

 the required services. 

er 

of LogistiCare Solutions LLC to perform

4.2.6.4.4 
During the last five (5) years, have any irregularities been discovered in any of the accounts maintained by the bidd
on behalf of others? If so, describe the circumstances of irregularities or variances and disposition of resolving the 

ties or variances. irregulari

None. 





Office Property For Lease 

Capitol Center 
400-600 Court Avenue, Des Moines, IA 50309 

Last Verified  3/24/2010 
Listing ID  14467836 

Rental Rate: $16 /SF/Year

Min. Divisible: 500 SF

Max. Contiguous: 61,100 SF

Property Type: Office

Property Sub-type: Office Building

Building Size: 165,127 SF

Year Built: 1982

1 Space Available

Space 1 61,100 SF Space Available:

$16 /SF/Year Rental Rate:

Office Building Space Type:

500 SF Min. Divisible:

61,100 SF Max. Contiguous:

Full Service Lease Type:

Highlights 
Free on-site parking 

Superb access to I-235 via Penn Avenue 

Located in vibrant East Village area 

Walking distance to State Capital Complex 

Description 
Professional office building, near State Capital and downtown. Suburban office feel with free on-site parking 
and professionally managed. Lease rates at Capitol Center range from $16.00 to $18.00 full service gross. 

Located in the vibrant East Village area, minutes from the Central Business District and walking distance to 
State Capital Complex and Riverwalk. Close proximity to hospitals and great access to I-235. 

Map of 400-600 Court Avenue, Des Moines, IA 50309 (Polk County)

Display Rental Rate as Entered

Page 1 of 2LoopNet - Capitol Center, Office Building, 400-600 Court Avenue, Des Moines, IA

4/13/2010http://www.loopnet.com/xNet/MainSite/Listing/Profile/PrintProfile.aspx?LID=14467836&...



Created 1/18/2006

500 yds

Page 2 of 2LoopNet - Capitol Center, Office Building, 400-600 Court Avenue, Des Moines, IA

4/13/2010http://www.loopnet.com/xNet/MainSite/Listing/Profile/PrintProfile.aspx?LID=14467836&...



Financial Statement Explanation 
 
Prior to our acquisition by Providence Service Corporation, LogistiCare Solutions, LLC was a 
privately held company whose corporate ownership structure was, and still is, the legacy of 
previous private ownership transactions. LogistiCare Solutions LLC is a wholly owned subsidiary 
of LogistiCare, Inc. LogistiCare, Inc. became the holding company of LogistiCare Solutions, 
LLC in 1999 in association with a private ownership transaction. Then in 2004, in association 
with a subsequent private ownership transaction, Charter LCI Corporation was created and 
became the holding company of LogistiCare, Inc.  
 
To be clear, both LogistiCare, Inc., and Charter LCI Corporation are purely holding companies 
with no business functions or revenue sources independent of our NEMT business operations. All 
executives, managers and staff of our NEMT business operation are employees of LogistiCare 
Solutions, LLC, and all NEMT business contracts with clients and transportation providers are 
held by LogistiCare Solutions LLC. There are no audited financial reports for LogistiCare 
Solutions LLC per se as a sole entity.  
 
LogistiCare Solutions LLC was acquired by Providence Service Corporation on December 7, 
2007, with the corporate ownership structured so that Charter LCI Corporation became a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Providence. Since Providence is now the ultimate parent company, 
independent annual audits of LogistiCare are not required. Therefore, in response to the RFP 
requirement for “audited financial statements (annual reports) for the last three (3) years…” as 
well as the state’s answer to Question 139, which instructs an unaudited subsidiary of an audited 
parent to “submit both the parent’s audited financials and the subsidiary’s unaudited financials,” 
we are providing the audited financial report for Charter LCI Corporation for 2007, the 10K 
statements for Providence for 2008 and 2009, which contains audited financial reports for 
Providence for 2007, 2008, and 2009, as well as the unaudited financial statements for 
LogistiCare Solutions, LLC for 2007, 2008, and 2009. The financial reports can be found in 
Exhibit 3. 
 
The financial contribution of Charter LCI Corporation, and therefore of LogistiCare Solutions, 
LLC, is represented as the non-emergency transportation business division separately reported 
and included in the Providence financial reports. 



MIKE FOGARTY BRAD HENRY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER GOVERNOR

STATE OF OKLAHOMA

OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY

April 5, 2010

To Whom It May Concern:

LogistiCare currently contracts with the Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) to
administer our statewide SoonerCare non-emergency transportation program called
SoonerRide. As the contracted Broker, LogistiCare receives and evaluates all requests
for SoonerRide services, and ensures that eligible services are provided through its
network of contracted transport service providers.

As the broker, they provide gatekeeping services, reservations and schedule trip
assignments as well as reporting to OHCA. In doing so they have contained cost while
increasing service and preventing fraud. These services were greatly enhanced after the
flawless implementation of their local call center in February of 2008.

LogistiCare is totally responsible for the recruitment, credentialing, monitoring, and
payment of the network providers. Through LogistiCare’s commitment to network
development they have strengthened the network to provide consistent predictable and
quality service to our rural clients as well as those in urban areas.

The OHCA is very pleased with the service that LogistiCare has provided for our
members since August 2003. Their local and national representatives are a pleasure to
work with and they always appear to have the best interests for our members’ non-
emergency medical transportation needs.

Sincerely,

Gertrude Hurd
SoonerRide Manager
Oklahoma Health Care Authority
(405) 522-7642

LINCOLN PLAZA  4545 N. LINCOLN BLVD., SUITE 124  OKLAHOMA CITY, OK 73105  (405) 522-7300  WWW.OKHCA.ORG
An Equal Opportunity Employer







 

 
 

 
 

 

State of New Jersey 
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

DIVISION OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE AND HEALTH SERVICES 
CHRIS CHRISTIE P.O. Box 712            JENNIFER VELEZ 
      Governor Trenton, NJ 08625-0712           Commissioner 
  
 
KIM GUADAGNO        JOHN R. GUHL 
   Lt. Governor                  Director

 
 
 
April 12, 2010 
 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
Prior to July 1, 2009 the State of New Jersey’s non-emergency transportation services for 
Medicaid and NJ FamilyCare clients was administered directly by the State’s Medicaid agency. 
This included MAV and Ambulance services statewide and livery services in 2 of the State’s 21 
counties. On April 1, 2009, LogistiCare was awarded a contract to administer this program for 
the Medicaid agency beginning July 1st.  
 
LogistiCare did an outstanding job during the short 3 month transition period in organizing the 
provider network and setting up their office and call center. They were very responsive to the 
inevitable problems that occurred during the initial start-up and did not hesitate to add additional 
resources as call volumes spiked during the first few weeks. We are very pleased with 
LogistiCare’s operations and responsiveness to our clients’ needs. Their excellent monthly 
reporting has provided us with the tools to monitor the program.  The overall operation of our 
non-emergency transportation program has improved since LogistiCare took over the program 
and their enforcement of vehicle safety and driver compliance regulations have definitely 
strengthened our program. 
 
Richard H. Hurd 
Director of Office of Contract Compliance 
NJ Division of Medical Assistance and Health Services     
 
 
 

New Jersey Is An Equal Opportunity Employer 
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Client Eligibility  
Automated upload of eligibility data
Eligibility screening of callers

Call Taking and Reservation
Level of service determination
Appointment verification 
Closest facility determination
Covered service determination
Advance reservations
Subscription service (standing orders)
Urgent/same day service
24-hour live call taking  
Out-of-state arrangements
Real-time ride assistance service
Multi-lingual services 
Hearing-impaired services
NOA letter and appeals process
911 referrals  

Transportation Network Management
Recruitment, credentialing, contracting
Trip assignment to providers
Computer-assisted route optimizing
24-hour transportation  
Automated geocoding of trip distances
Trip verification through client signature
Provider payment administration
Billing fraud prevention/detection procedures
HCFA 1500 claims processing 
Provider rate determination
Driver and/or attendant training
Utilization of DBEs, etc
Solicit participation of non-profit providers
Regularly scheduled provider meetings
Group purchase benefits offered to providers

Modes of Transport Offered
Ambulatory livery, van
Taxi
Wheelchair
Stretcher/gurney
Ambulance, ALS and BLS
Critical care transport
Air transport
Bus, subway
Train
Client reimbursement program
Volunteer drivers

Florida

LogistiCare Scope of Services Experience - Current Contracts - February 2010

Task Performed

Virginia DC Multi-State MS NV NJ Connecticut NY
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LogistiCare Scope of Services Experience - Current Contracts - February 2010

Task Performed

Virginia DC Multi-State MS NV NJ Connecticut NY

Quality Assurance
ACD phone monitoring system
Digital taping of customer service calls 
On-time performance measuring
Complaint monitoring and response
Driver credentialing
Vehicle inspection
Transportation company records checks
Independent customer satisfaction survey
Disaster recovery plan

Outreach and Education
Produce, distribute rider education materials
Form client advisory groups
Training, outreach, for medical facility staff

Documentation, Data Collection, Reporting
Produce operating procedures manual
Provide electronic encounter data
Detailed call center performance reports
Comprehensive monthly and weekly reports
Ad hoc reports
100% data storage and retrieval 

Implementation
90 day or less startup schedule met on time
New call center creation & buildout
Client's first brokerage system created
New provider network created 



Certificate Number: A083002-1264

Certificate of Full Accreditation

is awarded to

LogisitiCare Solutions, LLC
1800 Phoenix Blvd, Suite 200, Atlanta, GA

30349

for compliance with

CORE Accreditation Program

pursuant to the

CORE, Version 2.0

Effective from the 1 st of February of 2009 through the 1 st of February
of 2011

Christine G. Leyden, RN, MSN
Chief Accreditation Officer

CORE

URAC accreditation is assigned to the
organization and address named in this
certificate and is not transferable to
subcontractors or other affiliated entities not
accredited by URAC.

URAC accreditation is subject to the
representations contained in the organization’s
application for accreditation. URAC must be
advised of any changes made after the
granting of accreditation. Failure to report
changes can affect accreditation status.

This certificate is the property of URAC and
shall be returned upon request.Alan P. Spielman

President & CEO

App 22a, Page 1



Certificate Number: A083002-1265

Certificate of Full Accreditation

is awarded to

LogistiCare - Connecticut
8 Fairfield Blvd, Wallingford, CT 06492

for compliance with

CORE Accreditation Program

pursuant to the

CORE, Version 2.0

Effective from the 1 st of February of 2009 through the 1 st of February
of 2011

Christine G. Leyden, RN, MSN
Chief Accreditation Officer

CORE

URAC accreditation is assigned to the
organization and address named in this
certificate and is not transferable to
subcontractors or other affiliated entities not
accredited by URAC.

URAC accreditation is subject to the
representations contained in the organization’s
application for accreditation. URAC must be
advised of any changes made after the
granting of accreditation. Failure to report
changes can affect accreditation status.

This certificate is the property of URAC and
shall be returned upon request.Alan P. Spielman

President & CEO

App 22a, Page 2
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1

URAC’s mission is to promote 

continuous improvement in the quality 

and efficiency of health care delivery 

by achieving a common understanding 

of excellence among purchasers, 

providers, and patients through the 

establishment of standards, programs 

of education and communication, and 

a process of accreditation.

2

About URAC

• Nonprofit, independent organization founded in 1990 accrediting 
utilization review services

• Since 1996, has actively diversified its accreditation programs and 
other quality benchmarking activities to cover a large array of 
clinical and IT services

• Today, uses a modular approach to quality assessment with dozens
of various accreditation and certification programs

• URAC currently accredits about 2,700 different health care 
programs operating in all 50 states and internationally

• Accredited activities cover over 140 million Americans
• Is now recognized in 34 states, Washington, D.C. and three federal 

agencies

3

URAC Member Organizations

 
 

URAC Member Organizations:  
Industry

URAC Member Organizations:  
Public

   

 
 

URAC Member Organizations:  
Providers

Other Organizations on URAC’s Board:

4

URAC Promotes Quality Health Care Through:

• Four Basic Assessment Tools 
– Accreditation
– Certification
– Commendation
– Registration

• Other Services/Products
– Education
– Consultation
– Research
– Publications

5

Value of URAC Quality Improvement

• Improves operations internally

• Creates regulatory compliance efficiencies
• Differentiates organizations from the competition
• Satisfies many RFP/RFI requirements
• Qualifies companies for professional liability premium 

discounts

• Provides support for risk management strategies
• Aggregates and cross-fertilizes best practices

6

URAC Accreditation Process

• Carefully develops accreditation standards (e.g., open 
process, public comment period, beta tests)

• Comprehensive “desktop” and “onsite” reviews of each 
application

• Review process is interactive, educational, and efficient
• Accreditation fees are reasonable
• Committee review system to ensure impartial accreditation 

decisions
• Confidentiality requirements (e.g., applications are “blinded”) 



3291 N. Buffalo Ave, Suite 7 

           Las Vegas, NV 89129 

                    1-888-737-0830 

 
 

STANDING ORDER FORM for REGULARLY SCHEDULED, 
REPEATING APPOINTMENTS: Page 1 

 
Today Date: _____________ _______ County: ________________________________
 
Facility Name: ________________________________________________________________
 
Medicaid Number: _______________________ Name: _______________________________ 
 
Address:      ___________________________________________________________________ 
  
City: _________________ State: __________ Zip: _________ Phone: ___________________
 
Date of Birth: __________________________Sex: ___________
………………………………………………………………………………………. 

Pick-Up 
From: _____________________________ Address: __________________________________
 
Suite: __________ City: _______________State: ____ Zip: _________ Ph: _______________
………………………………………………………………………………………. 

Drop Off 
To: _______________________________ Address: ___________________________________
 
Suite: __________ City: ________________State: ____ Zip: _________ Ph: ______________
 
Social Worker/Transportation Coordinator: ________________________________________ 
 
Ph: ____________________________________ Fax: __________________________________
………………………………………………………………………………………. 
First Date of Service: ____________________ Last Date of Service: ____________________
 
Appointment Time: _________ AM/PM   Pick-Up Time: ________ AM/PM 
 

Return Time: _________ AM/PM 
 

Appointment Days:  ___Mon   ___Tue   ___Wed   ___Thur   ___Fri   ___Sat   ___Sun 
 
{ } Ambulatory { } Wheelchair { } Stretcher/Gurney  { } Ambulance 
***************************************************************************** 

Please check if trip is a one way trip (  ) or a two way trip (  ) 
Please provide any other information helpful or related to this request for transportation (patient 
Requires an attendant or escort. 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
You may fax the Standing Order form to Social Services at 702-395-1223 or mail it to 3291 N. Buffalo  
Drive, Suite 7, Las Vegas, NV 89129. Faxing is preferred form of return. 
 

     
 



 
 
 
 
 

Standing Order Form Medicaid Non-Emergency Transportation: Page 2 
Physician’s Medical Treatment Acknowledgement Form 

 
Under contract with Nevada Division of Health Care Financing and Policy, LogistiCare is the  
Medicaid Non-Emergency Transportation Broker for the Medicaid and Nevada Check Up programs.  
The purpose of this form is for medical doctors in Nevada to communicate to LogistiCare specific transportation 
requirements of their patients that result from the need to treat medical conditions. The requirements declared by 
physicians using this form will be utilized by LogistiCare to determine how 
Medicaid Funding is expended in the provision of transportation. THEREFORE, STATEMENTS MADE  BY 
DOCTORS REGARDING PATIENT TRANSPORTATION REQUIREMENTS AND  
RESTRICTIONS ARE MADE UNDER THE PENALTY OF MEDICAID FRAUD. 
 
Today’s Date:    ____________________
 
Medicaid Recipient Name:  ___________________________________
 
Doctor’s Name:    ___________________________________
 
Doctor’s License Number:  ___________________________________
 
Doctor’s Telephone Number:  ___________________________________ 
 
Facility Name:    ___________________________________ 
 
Facility/Provider Medicaid ID Number: ___________________________________ 
……….………………………………………………………………………………. 
The above named person was examined by me to access medical condition on: __________ (Date) 
 
The above named person was determined to have the following medical condition: (Diagnosis)- 
                                                         
 
As a result of medical condition, the above named person requires the following medical 
Treatment: (please include treatment name and Medicaid Billing Code (CPT) 
 
 
The treatment is generally required (please circle one) 1  2  3  4  5  6  7  days per week and is conducted 
At the above named facility under my guidance, supervision or instruction. The above named person will 
Complete the prescribed course of treatment or require re-examination to reassess medical condition on or 
Before: _____________________ (please insert date). I, the medical doctor above named, hereby 
Declare under penalty of Medical Fraud that to the best of my knowledge and belief the above-entered 
Information is accurate. 
Doctor’s Signature: _____________________________________ Date: ________________________ 
 
Patient’s Signature: _____________________________________ Date: ________________________ 
 
FOR THIS FORM TO BE ACCEPTABLE, ALL OF THE INFORMATION MUST BE  
FILLED IN. 



 
 

P.O. Box 4141 

 

Wallingford, Ct 06492 
ne 203-294-4000 ext. 258 

elissa E. 
Pho

Fax 203-303-9764-Attn: M

Physician’s Transportation Restriction Form 
The purpose of this form is for physicians to communicate to Logisticare specific transportation 
restrictions of patients due to a medical condition.  The restrictions and requirements declared by 
hysicians using this form will be used by LogistiCare to determine the best means of transportation forp

th
 

_________________________ 

er:______________________________ Patient’s D.O.B.:______/______/______ 

applicable):  

ansportation ONLY if accompanied by a companion 

__________ 

_____ _ _______________________________ 

_____________ 

_____________ 

_________ 

lease make sure form is filled out accurately and completely before signing. 

 

 the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination or copying of this message or any 

e patient.  THEREFORE THE STATEMENTS MADE BY PHYSICIANS REGARDING PATIENT 
TRANSPORTATION RESTRICTIONS ARE MADE UNDER PENALTY OF MEDICAID FRAUD.  
 
Today’s date: ______________ Patient’s Name:  __________________

Patient’s Medicaid ID Numb

To be Completed By Physician (Please Print where 

    Transportation Needs:   (Please check ALL that apply) 
 θ . . . . . . Patient is medically unable to walk 4 blocks. 

. . . . . Patienθ .  t is medically unable to be driven by friend or family member 
 transportation  θ. . . . . .  Patient is medically unable to use public

blic tr θ. . . . . .  Patient is medically able to use pu
   (In such case LogistiCare will pay for companion fare.) 
 θ. . . . . .  Patient is medically unable to use train 
 θ . . . . . . Patient needs wheelchair vehicle 
 θ. . . . . .  Other needs (specify): ________________________________

Does this patient travel by public transportation for other purposes such as shopping, etc.? 

   Yes____________ No_______________ 

Date(s) of medical appointments:_____________________________________________________________ 

Describe the medical condition that requires specified transportation needs above (Please Print): 

___________________ ___________ _________________

_______________________________________________________________________

Period of incapacity:  Permanent? Yes_____ No_____ 

If no, expected Expiration date of Restrictions: ___________________

Physician’s Name (print):  _____________________________________

Physician’s phone no.:     (______) _______-____________________ 

Medicaid Provider Number: __________________________________ 

P

Physician’s Signature:  X ____________________ Date: _____________ 
 
Privacy Notice: This message, together with any attachments, is intended only for the use of the individual or
entity to which it is addressed. It may contain information that is confidential and prohibited from disclosure. If 
you are not



 

 

attachment is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please notify the original sender 
immediately by telephone or by return e-mail and delete this message along with any attachments from your 
computer. 



 
Draft Ride Assistance Card for Iowa 

NEMT Members 

 
 
 
 
 

• If your ride is more than 15 minutes late, call  
1-800-000-0000 

• Have your confirmation number ready to give to the 
representative. 

 

WHERE’S MY RIDE?
Non-Emergency  Medical 
Transportation Services 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

• Si su chofer demora mas de 15 minutos en llegar, 
llame al 1-800-000-0000  

• Tenga listo su número de confirmación para dárselo 
al representante. 

 

¿Y MI TRANSPORTE?
Servicio de Transporte 
Médico de No Emergencia 

 

 



 
 
April XX, 2010 
 
[Participant Name] 
[Street Address] 
[City, State Zip Code] 
 
Dear [Participant Name]: 

We are writing to tell you about the new Non-Emergency Medical Transportation 
services offered by the Iowa Department of Human Services. 

This service offers you transportation to and from medical appointments if you do not 
have a way to get there. If you do have a car or can ride a bus, this service will reimburse 
you for your expenses. 

To use this service, just call us at 1-800-999-9999 at least two (2) business days 
(Monday through Friday, 8 am to 6 pm) before your appointment. For example, if you 
have an appointment on Monday at 10 am, you would need to call us on Thursday 
morning of the week before. 

The representative will ask for some information (your Medicaid number, the date, 
time and address of your appointment, and the reason for your appointment.) You will 
also be asked about any special considerations (e.g., if you are in a wheelchair) so that we 
can arrange for the right kind of ride for you. You are responsible for providing a 
wheelchair, car seats, booster seats or any other items or equipment you need. If you need 
someone to assist you during your trip, you must arrange for that assistance.  

You have the right to appeal if you disagree with our decision about your ride or if you 
are told you do not qualify for a ride. 

Once your ride is scheduled, you’ll get a confirmation number and a call to remind 
you of your appointment. When the driver picks you up, you’ll be asked to sign a form, 
on the way over and on the way back, saying you did ride in the vehicle. If the ride is 
more than 15 minutes late, you can call us at 1-800-999-9999. 

It really is that simple. Enclosed is a brochure that will answer any questions you might 
have. Also, there is a small card you can carry with you that tells you who to call if your 
ride is more than 15 minutes late.  

If you have more questions, just call 1-800-999-9999 and a representative will assist you. 
We can communicate with you in many languages and we use a specialized telephone 
device for the deaf (TDD)—so don’t hesitate to call.  

Thank you. 
 
 
 







How Facilities Can Access
Non-Emergency Medical 
Transportation (NEMT)

for

NJ FamilyCare/Medicaid 
Clients

LogistiCare Solutions, LLC
www.LogistiCare.com

©2009 by LogistiCare, All Rights Reserved

LogistiCare Delivers Transportation

Management that Works. LogistiCare

is the nation’s leading manager of 

medical transportation programs for

government agencies, managed care

organizations, self-funded insurers,

hospitals, transit authorities and school

boards. The company currently man-

ages more than 1,000 transportation

providers and coordinates more than

18 million trips for more than 6 million

people each year.



Accessing NEMT 
Transportation
LogistiCare manages certain non-emergency 
transportation (NEMT) services to NJ FamilyCare/
Medicaid clients.  LogistiCare manages the following 
NEMT services in all counties throughout the State 
for all eligible Medicaid clients:

•  Mobility Assistance Vehicle transportation
•  Non-emergency ambulance transportation
•  Non-emergency air transportation

LogistiCare manages the following additional 
services in Essex and Hudson Counties only:

•  Livery transportation (such as ambulatory sedan
   or van, taxi and public transit)

All trips must be pre-arranged and confirmed by 
LogistiCare.  

Logisticare provides a dedicated toll free Facility 
Line for your use to schedule NEMT services for 
clients.  Please do not distribute this number to 
clients.  The Facility Line is for medical facility use 
only.  We provide a separate toll free reservation 
line for clients to use to make their own reservations 
directly with LogistiCare.

Facilities wishing to arrange transportation should 
contact a LogistiCare Facility Coordinator at:

LogistiCare Facility Line: 1-866-527–9945
Available: Monday - Friday 8 am to 5 pm.
LogistiCare takes urgent care and discharge 
reservations 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.
Fax any schedule changes to 1-877-457-3316.

Remember:
•   Trips must be medically necessary.

(Examples are doctor appointments, diagnostic 
testing, dialysis treatment, etc.)

•     All reservations must be made with at least 2 
business days notice prior to the date of the 
scheduled medical appointment.

•     Verifiable urgent trips may be accepted with 
less than 2 business days notice. (Examples of 
urgent trips are hospital discharges or doctor 
appointments deemed urgent by the physician.)

•     Emergency ambulance transportation requests 
do not go through LogistiCare.

•     Examples of emergencies are sudden life 
threatening medical situations, significant trauma, 
seizures, comas or shock, uncontrolled bleeding, 
significant respiratory distress, poisoning, drug 
overdose, etc.

•    If anyone experiences problems with their NEMT 
services please call LogistiCare’s “Where’s My 
Ride?” line at: 1-866-527-9934.

Frequently Asked Questions
Q.	 What services are provided by LogistiCare?
A.	 LogistiCare coordinates NEMT services to 

eligible clients needing transportation to covered 
medical services.  LogistiCare coordinates livery 
service (able to walk without assistance), mobility 
assistance service (including wheelchair) and non-
emergency ambulance services.  Drivers of livery 
vehicles will meet the client at the curb.  Drivers of 
Mobility Assistance Vehicles will assist clients into 
and out of buildings or residences.  

Q.	 How do I schedule transportation?
A.	 You should call LogistiCare at least 2 business 

days before the patient’s appointment by calling 
1-866-527-9945 M-F from 8 am to 5 pm, or fax a 
LogistiCare standing order form to 1-877-457-3316. 
Please do not use the fax for a single trip request 
for a single patient. LogistiCare takes urgent care 
and discharge calls 24/7.

	

Q.	 Does LogistiCare handle hospital discharges?
A.	 Yes.  For hospital discharges, LogistiCare will 

send a transportation provider to the facility 
within 3 hours of the call.

Q.	 What if transportation is late?
A.	 If transportation is more than 15 minutes late call 

the “Where’s My Ride” line at 1-866-527-9934.

Q.	 What if the client’s appointment is running late 
and he/she will be late for the scheduled pick-
up?

A.	 Please contact LogistiCare or the designated 
transportation provider immediately upon 
knowing the client will not be ready by the 
scheduled pick-up time.

Q.	 What if I have a problem with the transportation 
service?

A.	 If you have a problem or question about 
transportation service beyond a specific 
inquiry about a late pick-up, please contact the 
LogistiCare dedicated facility line at :
1-866-527–9945. 

Please have the following information available:

Client’s full name, NJ FamilyCare/Medicaid 
ID# ,pick-up address and zip code
Name, phone number, address and zip 
code of medical provider
Appointment time and date
Special transportation needs











LogistiCare Solutions, LLC

©2009 LogistiCare, All Rights Reserved

LogistiCare
 “Where’s My Ride?”

     1-866-527-9934

LogistiCare Reservations

     1-866-527-9933

LogistiCare Delivers Transportation 
Management that Works. LogistiCare 
is the nation’s leading manager of 
medical transportation programs for
government agencies, managed care
organizations, self-funded insurers,
hospitals, transit authorities and school
boards. The company currently 
manages more than 1,000 transporta-
tion providers and coordinates more 
than 18 million trips for more than 6 
million people each year.

How to Access 
Non-Emergency Medical 
Transportation (NEMT)

for

NJ Family Care/Medicaid 
Clients



Q. Who can receive a ride to medical
      appointments?

A. Rides to medical appointments are for 
      people who are on Medicaid/NJ Family
      Care and have no other way to get a
      ride. Your medical problem should not
      be an emergency.  
      If you have an emergency call 911.

Q. When should I call to ask for a ride?

A. Call at least 2 business days before
     you need a ride to your medical appoint- 
     ment. If you do not call at least 2 
     business days before, you may not be
     able to get a ride.
 
     You can only get a ride with less than 2
     days’ notice for special medical trips, 
     such as when a person is being released
     from the hospital or if the appointment is
     considered to be urgent by your doctor. 
     The number to call is 1-866-527-9933.

Q. Who decides what time I will be picked
      up for my ride?

A. LogistiCare will determine the pick-up
      time based on how long it takes to get
      you to your medical appointment on
      time.

Q. Who decides what kind of ride I will get?

A. LogistiCare will ask you about your
      health and walking ability. Your answers
      will help us decide what kind of vehicle
      will be used for your ride.

Q. Who can call to ask for a ride?

A. You, someone in your family, or a person
      who takes care of you can call for your
      ride.

Q. How do I get rides for trips that I need
      to take on a regular schedule, like to 
      dialysis?

A. Tell a LogistiCare customer service 
      person what you need. They will call
      your medical office and ask them to
      send us a form that says you need 
      regular rides. We will make sure that
      you get rides until you or your medical
      office tells us that you don’t need them
      anymore.

Q. Can I ask for a specific transportation
      company I prefer to give me a ride?

A. Whenever we can, we will be happy to
      send the company you prefer for your
      ride.

Q. What if my ride is late? 

A. If your ride is more than 15 minutes late
     from the pick-up time, you should call
     the LogistiCare “Where’s My Ride?” 
     line at 1-866-527-9934. We will do
     everything we can to help you.

Q. What if I want to complain about my
      ride or another part of the service?

A. If you have a problem with your ride or
      service, call us at 1-866-527-9934.

Frequently Asked Questions
The kinds of rides we provide are:

• For people who can walk without
   another person’s help. (Essex and
   Hudson Counties only.) If you live in
   any other county you will need to 
   contact your local county board of
   social services.

• For people who need assistance walking 
   or are in a wheelchair. 

• For people who need a stretcher (not an 
   emergency). 

Remember:
• All rides must be for a medical reason
   like a doctor appointment or dialysis.

• You must ask for a ride at least 2 
   business days before you need it.

• Please have the following ready when 
   you call for a ride:

- Your NJ FamilyCare/Medicaid ID
   number
- Your pick-up address and zip code
- Name, phone number and address of 
  medical provider
- Appointment time and date
- Special transportation needs

• Please be ready and waiting at least
  15 minutes before your ride is
   scheduled to arrive.

How to
Get a Ride

Call 1-866-527-9933 to
get a ride to your medical

appointment



 
MICHAEL J.WILLDEN 

STATE OF NEVADA Director 
DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES  

CHARLES DUARTE  DIVISION OF HEALTH CARE FINANCING AND POLICY  Administrator 
KENNY C. GUINN  NEVADA MEDICAID Governor 

  
NOTICE OF DECISION FOR PAYMENT AUTHORIZATION REQUEST 

 
      Notice Date: ⎡  «PatientGuardianName»  ⎤ 

«PatientNameCAPS» Recipient’s 
Name:    «Address1» 

Medicaid No.:     «City», «State»  «PostalCode» «Medicaid/SCHIP ID» 
 
⎣         ⎦   
 
Si tiene problemas en entender o llenar esta forma, pida ayuda a sus familiares, amigos, o vaya a 
su oficina local del Medicaid. 
 

PLEASE NOTE: THE DECISION BELOW DOES NOT AFFECT YOUR MEDICAID 
ELIGIBILITY 

 
The following Medicaid decision(s) has/have been made effective on «DecisionDate» 
 (Date of Action) 

  The payment authorization request submitted to Medicaid or the Health Plan from  Medicaid member 
      , for Non- Emergency medical transportation  
dated: «RequestDate» ,is  denied  OR  denied in part. 
 

 is/are:   Your Medicaid Service(s) for   
 reduced to          terminated  OR  suspended 

 
This decision, based on Medicaid Services Manual Section(s): Chapter 100,102.81a and/or: 
Bulletin #  «Bulletin» is because: 
  the service(s) is/are not shown to be medically necessary.  Please contact your Medicaid  

provider.  He/she may have additional documentation to submit to demonstrate a medical 
necessity. 

  the service(s) exceeds program limits. 
  the level of care criteria is not shown to be met. 
  specialized service(s) are not shown to be required. 
  you  have requested the service(s) be withdrawn or terminated. 
  the service(s) is/are not a Medicaid covered service(s). 
  a change in federal or state law.  You have no right to a hearing. 
  Your requesting provider, «RequestFrom», may submit a new payment authorization request 

with the additional supporting information listed in the “Note” section below for 
reconsideration. 

  

 Other:  Pursuant to policy number 102.81a, member not eligible for transportation due to an eligibility code of M
 

«Notes»Note: 

     

     

If you have any questions regarding this decision, please call Hearings Supervisor at 1-775-684-3602. 



Your Name:  «PatientNameCAPS»  Your Medicaid #: «Medicaid/SCHIP ID» 
  
 

HEARING INFORMATION AND HEARING REQUEST FORM 
If you do not agree with this decision, you may request a Fair Hearing through Medicaid.  To do 
so, you must submit a written request to the Medicaid office address shown below within ninety 
(90) days from the date of this notice.  The day after the Notice Date is the first day of the 90-day 
period.  If you are currently receiving this Medicaid service(s) and you want this service(s) 
continued during the hearing process, your hearing request must be RECEIVED no later than the 
10th day after the effective date of the proposed action (Date of Action).  If you want a Fair 
Hearing, please mark the appropriate boxes, sign, date and return this letter to the Medicaid office 
address shown below.  To obtain a free copy of the Medicaid regulations relevant to your case, 
mark the appropriate box below. 
 

REPRESENTATION 
You may represent yourself or be represented at a Fair Hearing by anyone to whom you have 
given written authorization, such as legal counsel, a relative, a friend or other spokesperson.  You 
must sign this written authorization and it must be furnished to the Medicaid office prior to the 
conference/hearing.  If the recipient is incompetent or incapacitated, a signature is not required 
and the authorized representative may be someone acting responsibly for the recipient.  If you 
cannot afford legal counsel, the Legal Services Program in your county, listed below, may be able 
to help you: 
 
 CLARK COUNTY: Clark County Legal Services  (702) 386-1070 
 WASHOE COUNTY: Washoe County Legal Services (775) 329-2727 

 ALL OTHER COUNTIES: Nevada Legal Services, Carson City (775) 883-0404 OR Toll 
Free at 1-800-323-8666 

I would like a Fair Hearing (a hearing preparation meeting will be included).  The hearing will be held in 
Carson City unless you request a change in the location.  Please see section under attached “Conferences 
and Hearings” on “When and where is a Hearing Held”: and 
 

 During the hearing process, I want my services continued.  I understand that I may have to 
pay back the cost of these services if I do not win; or 

 I do not want services continued during the hearing process. 
 I wish to request a hearing on the issue of reasonable promptness.  (NOTE: Reasonable 
promptness is defined as 21 working days or 30 calendar days.) 

 Send me a free copy of the regulations relevant to my case. 
 
         
Recipient’s Name (Print)  Mailing Address   Telephone Number 
 
         
Authorized Representative’s Name (Print)  Authorized Representative’s Mailing Address  Telephone 
Number 
 
          
Recipient’s Signature      Date 
 
          
Authorized Representative’s Signature      Date 
 

PLEASE MAIL THIS REQUEST TO: 
Hearings Supervisor 

 NEVADA MEDICAID 
1100 East William Street, Suite 102 

 Carson City, NV  89701 



FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS ABOUT PREPARATION MEETINGS AND HEARINGS 
 
WHO MAY REQUEST A HEARING PREPARATION MEETING AND/OR A HEARING?  Any recipient who 
is receiving Medicaid Services from the Division of Health Care Financing and Policy, who disagrees with any action 
resulting in the reduction, suspension, termination, denial or denied-in-part of a Medicaid service.  Also, any recipient 
who makes application for a service and believes the application was not acted upon with reasonable promptness by 
Medicaid and/or the Health Plan may request a hearing preparation meeting and/or fair hearing. 
 
HOW TO REQUEST A PREPARATION MEETING OR HEARING?  A recipient may request a hearing 
preparation meeting and/or fair hearing by completing the HEARING INFORMATION AND HEARING REQUEST 
FORM, which is enclosed with the Notice of Decision, and submitting it to Nevada Medicaid within the required time 
limits.  To request a hearing for not acting with reasonable promptness, please check the appropriate box on Page 2. 
 
WHAT HAPPENS AT A HEARING PREPARATION MEETING?  The purpose of the hearing preparation 
meeting is to provide the recipient with an explanation as to why Nevada Medicaid took adverse action against the item 
or service requested.  The recipient will be given the opportunity to provide Nevada Medicaid with any additional 
information that he or she believes should be considered in reversing the denial made by Nevada Medicaid programs. 
 
WILL MEDICAID CONTINUE PROVIDING BENEFITS DURING THE HEARING PROCESS?  Continued 
Medicaid benefits may be provided if the recipient’s Hearing Request Form is RECEIVED at Nevada Medicaid’s 
Central Office no later than the 10th day after the effective date of the proposed action (please see “Date of Action” on 
your Notice of Decision form). 
 
WHAT HAPPENS AT A FAIR HEARING?  The Fair Hearing is a proceeding during which the recipient can show 
why he or she disagrees with the denial of service.  The recipient will be allowed to present his or her case personally 
or through his or her authorized representative.  The recipient and/or the recipient’s representative will be given an 
opportunity to examine all documents and records pertaining to the denial decision.  This information is provided to the 
recipient within a reasonable time before the date of the Fair Hearing.  The recipient is allowed to bring witnesses, to 
present evidence, and to question or refute any testimony or evidence, including the opportunity to cross-examine 
witnesses.  The Medicaid office, the Health Plan and/or the nursing facility will present their position, as well. 
 
WHO IS THE FAIR HEARING OFFICER?  The Fair Hearing Appeals Office may be an employee of the Division 
or under contract with the Division, but shall not have been connected in any way with the action in question. 
 
WHEN AND WHERE IS A HEARING HELD?  When the recipient’s Hearing Request Form is received, the Fair 
Hearing is scheduled as soon as possible.  The recipient will be advised in writing of the time, date and place of the Fair 
Hearing at least 10 days prior to the hearing.  Hearings are usually held in the city where the Nevada Medicaid office at 
which the decision to deny services was made.  If the recipient is unable to travel to the hearing or is unable to attend 
the hearing in person for other reasons, a hearing may be held at another location or may be conducted by telephone, 
when all parties are in agreement to do so. 
 
WHAT WILL A HEARING COST?  There is no charge for the fair hearing. 
 
CAN SOMEONE ELSE HELP ME WITH THE FAIR HEARING?  The recipient may represent him or herself or 
be represented at a preparation meeting/hearing by an authorized representative such as a friend, parent or other family 
member, or lawyer, or other responsible adult.  The recipient must sign a written authorization and it must be received 
at the Nevada Medicaid Office before the preparation meeting/hearing.  If the recipient is incompetent or incapacitated, 
a signature is not required.  Information regarding resources which may be able to help are listed on page 2 of this 
packet. 
 
HOW IS A DECISION MADE?  The Hearing Officer’s decision will be based on the evidence and testimony 
introduced at the hearing.  The Department of Administration will notify the recipient and Nevada Medicaid in writing 
of the decision within 90 days from the date of the request for the Fair Hearing.  Should the recipient abandon or 
withdraw his or her appeal or if the Hearing Officer agrees with Nevada Medicaid’s decision to deny the service, the 
denial decision will stand and any continued benefits the recipient may have received, but was not entitled to, will be 
subject to recovery by the Division of Health Care Financing and Policy. 
 
YOUR RIGHT TO JUDICIAL REVIEW:  If you are dissatisfied with the hearing decision, you may appeal your 
case to your local District Court of the State of Nevada within 90 days after the date the written decision was mailed.  
An official report of the hearing, together with all papers filed in the proceeding, will constitute the record of hearing.  
The record is on file in the Nevada Medicaid office, 1100 East Williams Street, Suite 102, Carson City, Nevada 89701. 
 

 
 



DMAS 
1/21/04 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
DEPARTMENT OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES 

600 East Broad Street, Suite 1300 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 

 
 

NOTICE OF DECISION FOR TRANSPORTATION SERVICES REQUEST 
 

Notice Date: «Notice_Date» 
 

«Clients_Name»   
«Clients_Address» 
«Clients_City_State_Zip» 
 
       Client’s Name: «Clients_Name» 
       Medicaid ID No.: «Medicaid_ID_NO» 
 
LogistiCare has made the following Medicaid decision effective      «Date_of_Action»
 
The transportation service you requested on   «Date_of_Request»   for a trip to   
«Name_of_Provider»   on   «Date_of_Service»   is being denied.  This decision is because: 

 
48 hours advance notice is required unless the non-emergency transportation   request is for 
an urgent service.  Urgent trips involve an unscheduled episodic situation in which there is 
no threat to life or limb, but the recipient must be transported on the day of the request.  
(Recipient Memo dated June 1, 2001) 
 

If you have questions about why your request was denied, please call LogistiCare toll-free at 
866-809-4620 between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m.   When the phone is answered, press “0” and 
ask for a Utilization Review Specialist, who will explain the reason for your denial.    
 
If you disagree with the action taken, you have the right to file an appeal. To request an appeal, 
please send written notification of the action you disagree with within 30 days of receipt of the 
agency’s notice about the action. You may write a letter or complete an Appeal Request Form. 
Forms are available on the internet at www.dmas.state.va.us, at your local Department of Social 
Services, or by calling (804) 371-8488. 
 
It would be helpful to include a copy of the notice or letter about the action you are appealing. 
Please be sure to sign the request, and mail to: 

Appeals Division 
Department of Medical Assistance Services 

600 E. Broad Street 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 

Appeal requests may also be faxed to: 
(804) 371-8491 

 
cc: DMAS Transportation 

http://www.dmas.state.va.us/
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BRIEF

Avaya Communication Manager
Enabling Intelligent, Highly Available and Open Communications 

Across Your Enterprise

Business Communications Applications Software will help you capture the benefits 

of advanced IP Telephony. 

To meet the changing needs of your enterprise network, Avaya powers converged 

infrastructures with the new Avaya Communication Manager. With this latest release of 

telephony software, Avaya delivers industry-leading intelligent call processing plus features 

that help improve network security, resiliency and extensibility at lower costs. And, it 

provides a flexible path to highly available converged voice and data networks while 

protecting your current investments.

Avaya Communication Manager gives you the power to introduce IP telephony when and 

where it makes the best sense for your business while leveraging your existing Avaya 

DEFINITY® Communications Servers and Avaya Media Servers.

A New Era of Intelligent Communications 

Avaya has introduced a new era of Intelligent 

Communications – simplifying and expanding 

communications so your business can gain strategic value 

and competitive advantage. Communication Manager 

offers advanced functionality to help you connect people, 

processes and applications throughout the extended 

enterprise and around the globe.

Leadership and Innovation  

in Communication

Avaya is a global leader and innovator in enterprise 

communications serving customers that require superior 

communications technology to power their business. Avaya 

Business Communications Applications provide intelligent, 

secure network infrastructures and reliable voice and 

data applications that help make people more productive, 

processes more intelligent, and customers more satisfied.

Intelligent Communications

Communication Manager offers advanced functionality 

to help you connect people, processes and applications 

throughout the extended enterprise and around the globe. 

IP Telephony

Contact Centers

Mobility

Services
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End-to-end, integrated business communications applications: 

Avaya delivers core business communications applications 

across the enterprise so users are not as dependant on 

isolated third parties to provide these capabilities. This 

design results in optimized efficiency through greater 

stability, consistency, and minimized redundancy.

Presence-enabled communications extended to every 

device: The entire enterprise can now be presence-

enabled versus only a few IP-based devices. The 

exchange of presence information improves productivity 

and optimizes communications, reducing the time to 

complete transactions, and enhancing the quality of the 

transaction itself.

Unified Access: Avaya offers a superior portfolio of User 

Agents and Smart Devices for unified communication 

access, enabling the elimination of redundant, peripheral 

applications and reducing management costs. End-user pro-

ductivity can also be increased through consistently avail-

able functionality, choice of device and ease of use. 

Network Intelligence: Communication Manager optimizes 

route selection and offers high availability through a unique 

ability to split signaling and bearer channels in a distributed 

network over a narrowband, versus broadband, connection. 

This normalized network access approach eliminates the 

requirement for an infrastructure upgrade for the realization 

of a converged communications solution, typically 40%-

60% of the total cost of the solution.

Call Routing Intelligence: The Avaya patented routing intelli-

gence can connect your customers to the correct knowledge 

worker. In the past this capability had been limited to the 

contact center environment, however, with the flatness of 

converged communications, this inherent intelligence is 

expanding beyond those boundaries; allowing the creation 

of an ever-increasing level of customer satisfaction and a 

differentiated, branded customer experience.

Adaptable Communications: Centralized configurations 

allow easy deployments across your locations and 

provide you with greater flexibility to accommodate 

dynamic business models.

Highly Available & Secure

Avaya Communication Manager is designed to meet 

traditional voice expectations for availability and 

security. Proactive management, self healing features 

and end-to-end global services support a high availability 

infrastructure throughout your extended enterprise for 

superior communications confidence. High availability is 

supported in a number of ways including:

Survivable capabilities for the distributed enterprise — 

including branches: The award winning survivability 

capabilities of Avaya Communication Manager deliver up 

to six times better performance in minimized downtime, 

with extremely fast call controller failover time. This level 

of availability helps to deliver business continuity across 

the business from edge to edge. 

Inter-Gateway Alternate Routing (IGAR): IGAR provides 

unique monitoring of latency and packet loss with 

automatic re-route to PSTN for optimal voice quality. 

Connection preserving upgrades for duplex servers: This 

capability provides greater flexibility for customization 

and changes by allowing uninterrupted communication 

service during an upgrade of duplex servers from 

Communication Manager 3.0 to a later release. 

Anytime, Any Place and Any Network: Ubiquitous 

access to resources including IP, PSTN, and Cellular, 

offers businesses and their customers anywhere, 

anytime access through virtually any device to key 

communication resources. 

avaya.com

Avaya Integrated 
Management for Avaya 
Communication Manager 
Powered Solutions
• Administration

— Avaya Site Administration

— �Avaya Voice Announcement 
Manager

• �Avaya MultiSite 
Administration

• Operation and Monitoring

— �Avaya Network 
Management Console–

• �Avaya VoIP Monitoring 
Manager 

• �Avaya Converged  
Network Analyzer 

• �Provisioning and 
Maintenance 

— �Avaya Software Update 
Manager 

— �Avaya Network 
Configuration Manager 

— �Avaya Provisioning and 
Installation Manager 

• Network Optimization

— Adaptive Path Controller

• Security

— �Secure Access 
Administration
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Self-healing Management for Quality of Service (QoS) 

assurance: This on-premise or Managed Service proactive 

feature provides a unique management capability 

for applications running on converged networks. It 

allows you to minimize the risk of deploying business 

communication applications by significantly increasing 

the ability to manage the prevention of system failures.

Flexible security choices over multi-vendor networks: 

Communication Manager offers “best of breed” security 

options in a multi-vendor network environment to 

accommodate ever-changing security needs. 

Avaya EXPERT SystemsSM Diagnostic Tools: These tools provide 

automated, remote resolution of problems, up to 96% of 

the time, often within minutes. With 30,000 artificial 

intelligent algorithms, Avaya EXPERT Systems provides self-

healing, 24 x 7 support, maximizing availability.

Secure Access and Control: This monitoring solution lets 

you control access to your network devices, gives you a 

detailed audit trail, and helps you comply with government 

regulations for security and privacy. Secure Access and 

Control lowers your costs by allowing for maintenance 

of converged infrastructure through a secure IP Virtual 

Private Network, and provides centralized access for up 

to 500 monitored servers. The connectivity between your 

site and the Avaya Remote Technical Center is secure, 

encrypted, and always connected.

Open Interoperability

Open Interoperability allows communications to be 

embedded into business processes, and enables more 

value to enterprises. Communication Manager supports 

interoperability through an extensive ecosystem of 

partners providing flexible support for virtually any 

application on any network through: 

End-to-End Standards-based Application Integration: 

The Linux based Communication Manager software 

solution provides integration of old (TSAPI, JTAPI) and 

new (CSTA, Web) standards. This ability allows you to 

flexibly embed communications into real-time business 

processes, while protecting investments. 

Full Coverage of Latest SIP Standards: Communication 

Manager provides an open SIP and H.323 call model, 

with SIP/SIMPLE presence and instant messaging 

extensions. Avaya provides full coverage of H.323 

support, Open API/SDK. This approach allows seamless 

integration of voice into other applications and flexibility 

to integrate third party endpoints, new carrier services 

and applications.

CSTA-Compliant Web Services Interface: Open, Web 

Services interfaces for Communication Manager expose 

the functionality of Communication Manager to an 

expanding developer and system integrator community. 

Resulting applications “communications-enable” critical 

business processes, making it possible for enterprises to 

create more agile, responsive organizations. 

Business Communications Applications 

Translate Into Business Benefits 

The intelligent communications, high availability and secu-

rity, and interoperability of Avaya Business Communications 

Applications lead to benefits for your business and the 

end-users you support. Flexible options enabled by IP 

Telephony and Communication Manager can keep your 

people, processes and applications connected in new ways. 

Boost End-User Productivity

Avaya Communication Manager enables dynamic call 

control and full telephony functionality plus the new 

applications, infrastructure, and communications 

devices your end users need to:

•	 Handle incoming calls effectively

	 The Call Coverage feature automatically redirects 

calls based on preset criteria such as time of 

day or type of call; Send All Calls allows users to 

temporarily redirect all incoming calls to coverage; 

priority queuing, backup alerting, timed reminders, 

and attendant vectoring help attendants route calls 

effectively even in the peak traffic hours; a night-

service console provides you with options in handling 

incoming callers after normal business hours.

•	 Increase efficiency

	 Abbreviated Dialing, Last Number Dialed, and 

Internal Automatic Answer are simple to use features 

that can save your enterprise hundreds of hours of 

call set up and answering time; Integrated Directory 

gives display telephone access to the system database 

for one-touch extension dialing; Intelligent Call 

COMMUNICATIONS 
AT THE HEART OF BUSINESS

Avaya Communication 

Manager Powered 

Solutions

Business Continuity

• 	 World-Class Routing

• 	 Enterprise Survivable Server

• 	 Local Survivable Processor

• 	 Intergateway Alternate 
Routing

• 	 Standard Local Survivability

Security

• 	 Advanced Media 
Encryption (AES, SRTP)

• 	 Access Security Gateway

• 	 Admin Authentication  
with RADIUS or other  
AAA server

• 	 Malicious Call Trace

• 	 Class of Restriction
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Routing sends calls along the best and most efficient 

path based on your rules or the time of day. 

•	 Improve collaboration

	 Meet Me Conferencing replaces third-party services by 

providing pre-established bridge numbers; encrypted sig-

nal links provide greater security for sensitive conference 

calls. Group Paging enables speakerphone announce-

ments to preset user groups. Combine Communication 

Manger, Avaya Converged Communications Server (CCS) 

software and the Avaya IP Softphone for secure Instant 

Messaging (IM) with a presence-enabled contact list 

that can be used to increase access and collaboration.

•	 Increase mobility

	 Remote Call Coverage/Forward Off-Net allows users 

to redirect calls through their office phones to 

another location; Personal Station Access allows 

telecommuters to activate their extension and 

preferences on a shared office phone. EMU provides 

users the ability to associate the features of their 

primary telephones to telephones of the same type 

anywhere within the customer enterprise.

	

	 Extension to Cellular allows incoming calls to 

simultaneously ring a user’s office phone and mobile 

phone, providing one-number access for mobile 

employees. IP Softphone is a Windows-based client 

applications that transforms an IP network-connected 

laptop PC into a fully-featured office phone that can 

be used at home, a client’s site or a hotel room.

•	 Improve Contact Center Management 

	 This robust Automatic Call Distribution (ACD) feature 

set available delivers call routing capabilities for 

contact centers of any size, from small, single sites to 

large, sophisticated, multisite deployments.

Scale to Your Current Size  

and Your Potential

Avaya Communication Manager allows any business 

to support its operations, simplify management, and 

significantly reduce total cost of ownership. Running 

on the powerful Avaya Media Servers and Gateways, 

Avaya Communication Manager scales effectively 

from fewer than 100 users to as many as 36,000 on 

a single system and more than 1 million users on a 

single network. Even the busiest corporations can get 

performance that meets their needs, with support for up 

to 12,000 trunks and up to 540,000 Busy Hour Call 

Completions (BHCC).

Rely on Your Communications

Avaya Communication Manager utilizes proven Avaya 

call processing combined with proactive network and 

application monitoring through Avaya EXPERT Systems 

and Enterprise Service Platform to provide up to 

99.999% reliability in an IP-based voice network. In the 

event of an emergency, World-Class Routing and Alternate 

Gatekeeper redirect calls away from trouble. Power 

Failure Transfer facilitates emergency communications 

avaya.com
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COMMUNICATIONS 
AT THE HEART OF BUSINESS

in the event of a total power outage while optional Avaya 

Uninterrupted Power Supply Units automatically provide 

alternative in-line power to your system if necessary, and 

IP Trunk with PSTN fail-over automatically bumps calls to 

the public telephone network to maintain communications 

during times of IP network congestion.

Local Survivable Processors (LSP) and Enterprise Survivable 

Servers (ESS) can be deployed where needed throughout 

your network to provide increased communications 

continuity in the event of an emergency. LSPs preserve 

telephony service in a branch office should the WAN 

link back to the main server fail. With an ESS in the 

network, the IP Service Interface card in the port network 

automatically obtains service from the ESS if the control 

signal to the main server is lost.

Security features include “challenge and response” 

login protocol security violation notification and LAN/

WAN voice privacy through real-time media encryption, 

Malicious Call Trace, Crisis Alert, and E911 compliance 

help protect your property and employees. Class of 

Restriction (COR) allows you to set different classes of 

privileges for making and terminating calls. And Access 

Security Gateway products help secure, monitor, and 

control ports used for remote access.

Be Flexible for Migration and Global 

Business Needs

Avaya Communication Manager lets you create a 

network that meets your business and budget needs by 

taking advantage of distributed networking to extend 

applications to the edge of your enterprise. 

•	 Deliver applications over IP, TDM, ATM, and wireless 

networks, and leverage existing devices whether 

they’re digital, analog, IP, or wireless.

•	 Support communications anywhere in the world via a 

variety of signaling methods including H.323, ISDN-

PRI, ISDN-BRI, multi-frequency, and Q.Sig.

•	 Support stations, port networks, remote offices, and 

gateways located in multiple countries using a single 

media server. Parameters that can typically vary by 

country can be specified for each country/location to 

enable support of features across national borders.

•	 Easily integrate third-party applications using open 

programming interfaces including TAPI, JTAPI, TSAPI, 

and ASAI. Expanded 13 digit dial plan support greatly 

reduces dial plan conflicts.

Uphold Your Reputation with Quality  

of Service (QoS)

Avaya Communication Manager features a high-

performance VoIP engine that maintains excellence in 

voice, video, and data quality. Utilizing industry-standard 

controls — H.323, H.248, and SIP — the software 

can provide the highest level of performance for all 

transmissions, with low latency and delay levels. Your 

most important communications, and especially voice 

traffic, are given highest priority by industry-standard 

QoS protocols including DiffServ, 802.1p/Q, VLAN, and 



�
RSVP. And Avaya reporting and system monitoring help 

ensure service quality.

Improving the End User Experience 

with Intelligent Clients and Devices

Avaya Communication Manager supports a variety of IP, 

wireless, digital and analog telephones and several client 

applications for a number of communications devices. 

These include;

•	 The Extension to Cellular feature of Avaya 

Communication Manager connects callers to mobile 

employees wherever they are. Extension to Cellular 

transparently bridges calls to any mobile phone over 

any wireless carrier network, providing employees with 

one business number access. Productivity enhancing 

Communication Manager features like conference 

calling and call transfer are also extended to mobile 

phones. The Avaya one-X Mobile client application 

enhances Extension to Cellular to provide a simple to 

use interface for accessing Communication Manager 

features from certain mobile phones.

•	 The Avaya 9600 Series IP Telephone family has been 

designed to provide the right phone for the right 

job and meet the specific communications needs 

of different workers. Created by users for users, 

the 9600 series features an intuitive user interface 

which helps make users proficient and confident in 

performing common telephone tasks such as setting 

up a conference call or completing a transfer. With 

enhanced high-fidelity audio, it’s much easier to hear 

and understand others, which speeds business while 

reducing fatigue and stress.

•	 Avaya IP Softphone is a flexible tool for accessing and 

managing all business telephony communications from 

any location with Internet access. It can operate on its 

own as a powerful telephone soft client or it can work 

with Microsoft Office Communicator to provide integrated 

telephony and instant messaging presence and enable 

click to call from an entry in a buddy list, an email, or a 

smart tag. Avaya IP Softphone also integrates easily with 

desktop and group video applications, making videocon-

ferencing as easy as a phone call.

Simplify Network Management

Avaya Integrated Management provides a comprehensive 

set of tools that make it easier for you to manage 

complex network infrastructures. The applications in 

Avaya Integrated Management manage both voice and 

data communications through a common web-based user 

interface designed for System Management, Network 

Management and Application Integration platforms. Avaya 

Integrated Management can improve network uptime; 

increase staff productivity and reduce operating costs.

IP Telephony Consulting and  

Integration Services 

Avaya employs a standard, time-proven delivery 

approach to support every customer implementation for 

Communication Manager solutions. Avaya Consulting & 

Integration services ensures you: 

•	 Choose the right solution for your business strategy 

•	 Get the most value from your total IP solution, 

including existing technology 

•	 Deploy a secure, available and manageable 

communication environment 

Learn More

To learn more about Avaya Communication Manager, 

Business Communication Applications, and Avaya Global 

Services, talk to your Avaya Client Executive or Authorized 

BusinessPartner. Also, visit us at avaya.com/iptelephony. 

For more information about Avaya and our other  

award-winning solutions, visit avaya.com.

avaya.com

www.avaya.com/iptelephony
www.avaya.com
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Avaya Communication Manager Capabilities

Employee Productivity

•	 Call Coverage

•	 Send All Calls

•	 Priority Queuing

•	 Backup Alerting

•	 Timed Reminders

•	 Attendant Vectoring

•	 Abbreviated Dialing

•	 Last Number Dialed

•	 Internal Automatic Answer

•	 Integrated Directory

•	 Universal Access—Phone Status

•	 Intelligent Call Routing

•	 Multi-party Conferencing  

(up to 300)

•	 Meet-Me Conferencing

•	 Group Paging

•	 Remote Call Coverage/Forward 

Off-Net

•	 Personal Station Access

•	 Automatic Call Distribution (ACD)

•	 Enterprise Mobility User

Unified Access Related

•	 SIP Telephony Support with SIP 

Enablement Services (SES)

•	 Avaya 9600 Series IP Telephones

•	 Avaya 3600 Series IP Wireless 

Telephones

•	 Avaya IP Softphone

•	 Avaya IP Softphone for  

Windows Mobile 5

•	 Avaya one-X Mobile

•	 Avaya one-X Desktop

•	 Avaya one-X Speech

•	 Avaya one-X Portal

Networking

•	 Q.Sig Management

•	 13-Digit dial plan

•	 T.38 fax over IP

•	 Modem over IP
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About Avaya

Avaya enables businesses to achieve superior  

results by designing, building and managing their  

communications infrastructure and solutions. For 

over one million businesses worldwide, including 

more than 90 percent of the FORTUNE 500®, Avaya 

embedded solutions help businesses enhance  

value, improve productivity and create competitive  

advantage by allowing people to be more productive 

and create more intelligent processes that satisfy 

customers.

For businesses large and small, Avaya is a world  

leader in secure, reliable IP telephony systems,  

communications applications and full life-cycle  

services. Driving the convergence of embedded  

voice and data communications with business  

applications, Avaya is distinguished by its  

combination of comprehensive, world-class  

products and services. Avaya helps customers  

across the globe leverage existing and new  

networks to achieve superior business results.

avaya.com
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  CentreVu Call Center ACD – Elite 
  Standard ACD Features 

  Queuing 
Automatic Call Distribution (ACD) provides automatic connection of 
incoming calls to specific split/skills (also referred to as hunt groups or 
queues). An ACD split/skill is simply a hunt group that is designed for 
use wherever a high volume of similar calls is received. Members of a 
split/skill are called agents. Calls to a specific split/skill are automatically 
distributed among the agents (hunt group members) assigned to that 
split/skill. An agent can be defined as a voice terminal extension, 
individual attendant extension, or non-human agents like Voice 
Response ports. 

If agents are not available, the call can queue to the split/skill to wait for 
an agent to become available. The routing and treatment received by the 
caller, the agent features for receiving and handling the call, and the 
supervisor options for monitoring and improving performance are 
described in detail in the sections following. 

Calls are queued to one split/skill at a time. Calls can overflow or be 
forwarded to other split/skills, extensions, an attendant, or voice mail based 
upon the number of callers in queue or the length of the oldest call wait in 
queue. Agents can be members of up to four split/skills simultaneously. 

  Algorithms for Hunting 
DEFINITY ECS supports two1 types of hunting that can be used to 
distribute incoming calls. They are Most-Idle Agent (MIA) hunting, also 
called Uniform Call Distribution (UCD) and direct hunting, also called 
linear hunting or Direct Department Calling (DDC). 

                                                      
1 DEFINITY ECS supports two types of hunting in the Basic and Deluxe packages. With the Elite package, 

three types of hunting are supported. 



 
 
 

CentreVu Customer Care Solutions 
CentreVu Call Center ACD – Elite 

 
 
 

  
Lucent Technologies Inc. 

 
 
 

P a g e
 
2 

  Uniform Call Distribution 
Uniform Call Distribution (UCD) uses the Most-Idle Agent (MIA) algorithm 
to route calls. The MIA algorithm creates a “queue” of agents who are 
available to receive calls. An incoming call is routed to the agent who has 
waited the longest time in this available agent queue. When an agent receives 
a call, the agent is removed from the queue. UCD ensures that calls to a 
split/skill are distributed evenly among agents logged into that split/skill. 

  Direct Department Calling 
If a split/skill is administered for direct hunting or DDC, an incoming call 
rings the first available extension number in the administered sequence. If the 
first agent in the sequence is active on a call (busy), or is in another ACD call 
work mode, the call routes to the next available agent, and so on. Incoming 
calls always try to complete at the first agent in the administered sequence and 
are not evenly distributed among the split/skill agents. 

  Agent Call Handling Features 
The agent call handling capabilities are as follows: 

  Agent Log-In and Log-Out 
To receive ACD calls, the agent must log into the system. An agent 
logging in the system automatically enters the Auxiliary Work mode 
(described later) for all assigned skills. An agent can be logged into as 
many as four skills at one time. An agent is required to enter a log-in 
identification number when logging in if the hunt group is measured via 
CMS or BCMS. If the hunt group is not measured, entry of a login ID is 
optional (sometimes required for security). 

  Agent Answering Options 
An agent can answer ACD calls by using a headset, handset, or 
speakerphone. An agent can be assigned one of two answering options: 
Automatic Answer or Manual Answer. 

The agent terminal can have audible ringing (Manual Answer) upon call 
arrival, which is normally used with handset operations; or can have zip 
tone (Automatic Answer), normally used with headset operations on 
automatic terminating line appearances. Zip tone or ringing is assigned 
on an individual voice terminal basis. 
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  ACD Work Modes 
At any given time a logged in agent, not active on an ACD call, can be in 
one of four work modes. An agent can change work modes at any time. 
If an agent is not active on a call or does not have a call on hold, the 
mode change is immediate. However, if an agent tries to change modes 
while he or she is active on a call or has a call on hold, the mode is not 
changed until the agent is disconnected from the call. An agent can 
change modes by using either button or dial access. The work modes are 
described in the following paragraphs. 

• Available (AVAIL) – The agent is available to receive an ACD call 
and is in one of the following work modes: 

− Auto-In – Upon disconnecting from an ACD call the agent 
automatically becomes available to answer new ACD calls. This 
mode provides a fast and efficient method to distribute calls. 

− Manual In – Upon disconnecting from an ACD call the agent enters 
the After Call Work mode and is not available for ACD calls; the 
agent must manually enter the Auto-In or Manual-In mode to 
become available for ACD calls. This mode is recommended if the 
agent always performs after call work activities. 

• After Call Work (ACW) – The agent has completed the ACD call 
and is handling wrap-up work associated with the call. The ACW 
button can be activated from any agent work mode. The agent is 
unavailable for ACD calls while in the ACW mode. 

• Auxiliary Work (AUX) – This is an additional work mode tracked 
by the call management system which indicates the agent position 
is logged in but not available to take a queued call. An agent 
should enter the Auxiliary Work mode for a particular split/skill 
whenever he or she is doing non-ACD activities such as taking a 
break or going to lunch. 

  ACD Call Disconnecting 
An agent can be disconnected from an ACD call in either of four ways: 

• The agent can press Release (if provided). Dial tone is not heard 
after Release is pressed. 

• The agent can press Drop (if provided). The agent hears dial tone 
after pressing Drop and is not available for calls. 
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• The calling party can drop the call. 

• The agent can go on-hook (hang up). Agents using Automatic 
Answer (zip tone) are logged out of all skills when they disconnect 
from an ACD call by going on hook (hanging up). The preferred 
method of operation is to use the Release button (if provided). 

All of the agent capabilities listed above are also supported through CallVisor 
Adjunct/Switch Applications Interface (ASAI). This means that agent states 
can be controlled with a Computer Telephony Integration application. 

  Recorded Announcements 
Recorded Announcements provide an announcement to callers under a 
variety of circumstances. Multiple announcements can be provided. For 
example, announcements can be used to let callers know that a call 
cannot be completed as dialed, that their call is in queue, or that all lines 
are busy. By letting announcements perform these tasks, attendants and 
other users are free to perform other operations. A call’s destination or a 
coverage point can be a recorded announcement that provides 
information only or a disconnect announcement. 

  Basic Announcements 
DEFINITY ECS supports a unique first-delay (forced or otherwise) and a 
unique second announcement that can be repeated at predefined 
intervals. The delay interval can be defined from 0 to 99 seconds. Intervals 
are defined indicating how long a call will remain in queue before the call is 
connected to the first announcement, the length of time between the first and 
second delay announcement, and the length of time between repetitions of the 
second announcement. Callers can also be disconnected after playing a 
recorded announcement. The first announcement played to a caller can be 
forced to complete before the call can be connected to an agent. 

  Advanced Announcements 
DEFINITY ECS Call Vectoring provides complete flexibility in choosing the 
announcement treatments for a call. Different announcements can be played 
based upon ANI, DNIS, Call Prompting, time of day/day of week, and/or 
current conditions. Multiple steps can be specified with different 
announcements or repeating announcements with user specified delay times to 
completely customize the call treatment received. Announcements can be 
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used in conjunction with the Collect Digits vector command to implement 
Call Prompting applications such as offering the caller the chance to leave a 
message instead of waiting. The Disconnect After Announcement vector 
command provides information only disconnect announcements. 

  Vector Directory Number (VDN) of  
Origin Announcement 
A Vector Directory Number (VDN) of Origin Announcement provides a 
whisper announcement to the agent of the VDN name or call purpose 
when a call is delivered. DNIS digits provided by the network are 
normally mapped to VDNs. The VDN name provides an indication of 
which application the caller dialed. In addition, ACD agents with 
display-equipped voice terminals can view this information and can greet 
each caller appropriately. This information is helpful when agents are 
taking calls from multiple split/skills. This allows each agent to know the 
purpose of each incoming call as the call arrives at the voice terminal. 

  Music on Hold 
The system Music on Hold source is available to all callers while waiting 
in queue on a system-wide basis. 

With the Call Vectoring feature found in the Deluxe or Elite call center 
packages, multiple audio/music sources can be provided to a caller in 
queue. The delay music heard while waiting can be queue specific based 
upon conditionals such as ANI, DNIS, Call Prompting choices, current 
conditions in the call center, or time of day/day of week. The caller 
treatment options while waiting include: 

• Silence 

• Ringback 

• Music (system music on hold) 

• Announcement XXX (where the announcement port is optioned as 
a music source, rather than a recorded announcement, with 
specific customer provided music/announcements). 

These wait steps can be used in conjunction with the normal conditional 
branching checks and Goto vector commands. The treatment can change 
at specified points based upon conditions or wait time to completely 
customize caller wait treatment as desired. 
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  Flexible Routing/Conditional Routing 
The DEFINITY ECS supports flexible routing based upon the Dialed 
Number Identification Service (DNIS) digits provided by the network. 
The DNIS digits can be directly translated as an extension of a split/skill 
(hunt group) or your business can create “soft” numberscan in the 
system, assign a name, and direct the call to the desired destination using 
the Call Coverage feature. 

  Overflow Routing  
Intraflow and Interflow allow you to redirect ACD calls from one 
split/skill to another split/skill. Intraflow redirects calls to other 
split/skills within the system using Call Coverage or Call Forwarding All 
Calls. Interflow redirects calls to an external split/skill or location using 
Call Forwarding All Calls. 

Call Coverage with Intraflow can be used to redirect ACD calls from one 
split/skill to another conditionally, according to the coverage path’s 
redirection criteria. For example, you can define a split/skill’s coverage 
path to automatically redirect incoming ACD calls to another split/skill 
when a terminal is busy or unanswered within a specified time period. 
Calls can be redirected to less busy split/skills for more efficient call 
handling. Call Forwarding can be used with Intraflow to unconditionally 
forward a split/skill’s calls. 

Interflow allows the redirection of ACD calls from a split/skill on one 
switch to a split/skill on another switch or external location. The Call 
Forwarding All Calls feature can be used with Interflow to 
unconditionally redirect calls to an off-premises location. Calls can be 
forwarded to destinations off the PBX (that is, phone numbers on the 
public telephone network). Thresholds can be assigned for each split/skill 
receiving Intraflow and Interflow calls. This threshold prevents a 
split/skill from receiving new ACD calls if the oldest call in the queue 
has been there longer than the threshold. 

A Coverage button can be assigned to an agent’s multi-appearance voice 
terminal. The agents use the button to identify a call that is intraflowed from 
another split/skill. When an agent receives such a call, the button lamp lights. 
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  Night Service 
A Night Service button may be administered on attendant or split/skill 
supervisor voice terminals to be used to activate or deactivate Night 
Service. All incoming calls will be redirected to the designated Night 
Service Extension (NSE) that can be another split/skill or a recording. 
Call Forwarding can also be manually activated to send calls to another 
geographical location after hours. 

  Queue Size Limiting 
Queue size can be designated on a per split/skill basis. Callers will then 
receive a busy signal when the queue is full or calls can overflow, using 
the Call Coverage feature, to alternate destinations. 

Queue size for each split/skill can be managed using vector commands. 
In addition to the number of calls in queue, the following conditions can 
be used to flexibly manage queue length: 

• Expected Wait Time 

• Average speed of answer 

• Oldest call waiting 

• Number of calls in queue 

• Number of agents staffed 

• Number of agents available 

• Time of day 

• Day of week 

If a call is not queued, the call can receive a forced busy signal, be 
disconnected (generally after hearing an announcement), or routed to another 
split/skill, an individual station user, the attendant console, or voice messaging. 

Queue size can be limited by the number of active calls in a specific 
application. With Call Vectoring, this is done by Vector Directory Number 
(VDN) which is usually the dialed number or the result of a prompt to the 
caller. This is great for applications that require a contracted or predetermined 
number of agent resources. When the number of calls exceeds the contracted 
or desired level, the caller hears a busy signal or announcement providing 
alternate choices. This capability can also be used to limit the number of 
incoming calls being held in queue, for example, by a toll free call center. 
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  Priority Queuing 
Priority Queuing assigns a priority status that allows calls with priority to 
be queued ahead of calls without priority. Priority Queuing is assigned 
by Class of Restriction (COR) of the incoming trunk group the call 
originates on, the directory number dialed for the split/skill, or the Dialed 
Number Identification Service (DNIS) received from the network. The 
two choices available are priority and no priority. 

When an ACD call overflows from one split/skill to a backup split/skill 
queue and “priority on intraflow” is assigned, the intraflowed call has 
priority over all non-priority calls in the backup split/skill queue. 

For a split/skill with Intraflow and Call Coverage assigned, you can also assign 
Priority on Intraflow. When an ACD call intraflowing from a split/skill with 
Priority on Intraflow to a covering split/skill enters the split/skill’s queue, that 
call is placed ahead of non-priority calls but behind other priority calls already in 
the queue. All priority calls are answered before any non-priority calls. 

Call Vectoring offers four levels of entry to an ACD queue (including 
AUDIX, CentreVu Response, and Message Center queues). The four 
levels of entry include: 

• Low priority 

• Medium priority 

• High priority 

• Top priority 

Using these four levels, the System Administrator can give preferential 
answering treatment to certain incoming calls based on various criteria. 
These criteria might include the cost of various trunking facilities, the 
amount of revenue generated by certain calls, and special courtesy to 
customer groups or executive personnel. 

Priority can be assigned at the incoming trunk group, by dialed number 
or by caller prompted information. Priority can also be changed on a 
dynamic basis, according to the following conditions: time call has been 
in queue, number of calls, number of agents available, number of agents 
staffed, time of day, and/or day of week. 

The various vector commands that are used to queue calls to split/skills or 
skills or re-route calls based on intraflow requirements (such as Queue to 
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Main, Route to, Goto, and Check Backup Split/skill) contain priority fields 
that will execute the command at the specified priority level. 

  Queue Status Indication 
DEFINITY ECS provides queue status indicators for ACD calls based on 
the number of calls in queue and the time in queue. These indicators are 
provided by lamps assigned to the voice terminals or consoles of 
split/skill agents or supervisors. Lamps can be programmed to light when 
any call is waiting in the specified queue and to flash when a pre-
programmed threshold is reached. In addition, an auxiliary warning lamp 
can be provided to track queue status based on time in queue and another 
to track the number of calls in queue. Display-equipped voice terminals 
and consoles can also display the time in queue of a split/skill’s oldest 
call and the number of calls in that split/skill’s queue. 

  Supervisor Assist 
An agent can obtain supervisory assistance during a call by pressing the 
Assist button to call the supervisor or putting the call on hold and dialing 
the Assist Feature Access Code followed by the split/skill group number. 
In addition, the agent can transfer the call to the supervisor or conference 
the supervisor into the conversation. 

Agent Assist calls generate a special three-burst Priority Ring at the 
supervisor voice terminal to indicate the type of the call. A request for 
supervisor assistance from an agent will display the name and extension 
number of the person needing assistance on the supervisor’s voice 
terminal. The individual agent assigns the Assist Feature. The supervisor 
is designated by split/skill. 

Assist type calls can be directed to a single supervisor or group of 
supervisors. Calls can also be redirected to an alternate destination if the 
primary person is not available. The alternate destination can also be a 
single station or group of stations. 

  Redirect on No Answer 
Redirection on No Answer (RONA) redirects an unanswered ringing 
ACD call after an administered number of rings. The call is redirected 
back to the split/skill. RONA can be used for live agent applications that 
use a manual answering operation as well as for VRU applications. 
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With Call Center Elite, Redirection on No Answer (RONA) can redirect 
the call back to the split/skill or to an alternate VDN destination after 
making the agent unavailable and notifying the call center manager. 
RONA applies to split/skill and direct agent ACD calls that are delivered 
to a manual answering agent extension from an ACD split/skill and are 
not answered within a reasonable time interval. An ACD call is routed 
back to the split/skill and positioned at the head of the queue (in front of 
all other priority calls) so that another agent can answer. Alternately, the 
call can be routed to another VDN destination if desired. 

RONA can be used for live agent applications that use a manual 
answering operation as well as for remote agents and VRU applications. 

  Auto Available Split/skill (AAS) 
Automatic Available Split/skills (AAS) provides a way for members of 
an ACD skill to be in a continuously Auto-In work mode. Although not 
restricted to such, this feature is intended to be used for skills containing 
only non-human members (for example, recorders or Voice Response 
Units). Its principal value is in bringing ACD members back into Auto-In 
work mode after a system restart. 

  Service Observing 

  Local Service Observing 
Split/Skill supervisors and other specified users can use the Service 
Observing feature to train new agents and to observe in-progress ACD 
calls. While observing calls, the supervisor can toggle between a listen-
only and listen/talk connection on the call. An optional warning tone can 
be administered on a system-wide basis to let the caller and agent know 
that someone is observing the call. Service Observing can be activated 
using a pre-programmed button or a Feature Access Code. This allows 
both the monitoring and monitored parties to have any type of voice 
terminal. Permission to access the feature can simply be granted in the 
user’s Class of Restriction. 
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  Remote Service Observing 
The Service Observing feature provides the option of being able to observe 
calls on a listen-only and a listen/talk basis from a local station or a remote 
location using Service Observing Feature Access Codes (SO FACs). The SO 
FAC allows authorized users to have dial-up access to Service Observing from 
any analog or digital station with or without a Service Observe button. The 
DEFINITY ECS Remote Access and Call Vectoring features can be used to 
provide security to prevent unauthorized system access. Once a remote 
observer is connected to a call, the remote observer has all the same features 
and functions as local observers. 

  Timed After Call Work 
Timed After Call Work is a split/skill option that automatically places an 
agent in an “after call” work state for a pre-defined period of time after 
each call. When the specified time expires, the agent is automatically 
returned to an available work state, ready to take another call. 

This feature can be used to provide a short pause between calls before 
the next call is delivered in order to pace the calls and provide a relief 
period for agents, especially agents who work in stressful environments 
or handle long, complicated calls. It also meets work rule requirements 
for certain countries that require agent breaks after each call. The feature 
can also be used to force the agent back to an available state after a 
preset time period. For example, each agent is allowed four minutes to 
complete after call work. 

  Service Observing on VDNs 
The Service Observing feature in the Elite package also supports monitoring 
of calls by application or Vector Directory Number (VDN). Trunk groups 
and/or DNIS numbers are directed to VDNs. This allows the observer to select 
a specific type of call and be bridged onto a call that has just started vector 
processing for that VDN. The observing connection is maintained throughout 
the life of the call. Once the caller is connected to an agent, the observer has 
both listen and talk capabilities. This feature allows complete evaluation of the 
end-to-end service received by your customers. Observers can hear all caller 
comments even while in queue; callers cannot hear the observer. Observers 
are also transferred with callers, regardless of whether the transfer is 
within the system or to a remote center. 
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  Vector Initiated Service Observing 
With Call Vectoring, an observer accesses a switch by dialing a VDN 
extension or a central office (CO) trunk that has a VDN extension as its 
incoming destination. Using route-to commands, you can design a Service 
Observing vector to allow a VDN call to directly access a specific extension to 
be observed or a Service Observing dial tone. At the dial tone, observers can 
enter any extension that they are authorized to observe. 

  Intelligent Call Routing 

  Enterprise-wide Best Service Routing™ (BSR) 
With the efficiency of CentreVu Virtual Routing’s “Best Service 
Routing,” your company can cut costs by reducing bandwidth 
congestion, reducing routing delays, and increasing agent occupancy. All 
these cost-cutting measures increase your revenues while you enhance 
your customer’s experiences. 

BSR delivers calls to the best place the first time based on Expected Wait 
Time (EWT), agent skills, and agent occupancy. Lucent Technologies’ 
patented EWT algorithm encapsulates the customer’s predicted “wait” 
time experience for use by applications to deliver exceptional customer 
service, multi-site load balancing, and network cost savings. BSR then 
uses breakthrough algorithms that scan multiple sites and accurately 
predict the best split/skill group to handle each customer’s call. The call is then 
routed to the designated site where the customer receives immediate attention 
through an agent, if available, or appropriate delay treatments. 

  Multiple Call Handling 
The Multiple Call Handling (MCH) feature allows an agent to be 
interrupted with an additional ACD call either after putting a call on 
hold, or when the agent is active on another ACD call. When MCH is 
optioned for a split/skill, the agent can either receive a call only when the 
agent requests; or, an additional call will automatically alert by ringing at 
the agent’s voice terminal. Forced Multiple Call Handling can also be 
used to automatically direct multiple calls to agents without any action 
on the part of the agent. Options for Forced MCH are: One Forced or 
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Many Forced,2 thus allowing flexibility in defining the types of calls and 
circumstances under which more than one ACD call is delivered to 
agents. These options are assigned by split/skill. Agents and supervisors 
can use features such as Queue Status Indicators and VuStats to 
determine if a waiting call must be answered immediately. 

  VuStats 
VuStats is a convenient, cost-effective way for call centers with minimum 
reporting requirements to measure results in real time. Anyone with a display-
equipped voice terminal, including call center managers and non-ACD 
personnel, can use VuStats to view real-time or cumulative daily call center 
statistics. More sophisticated call centers can use VuStats to supplement the real-
time reporting capabilities of Basic Call Management System (BCMS) and 
CentreVu CMS by giving additional supervisors access to performance reports. 
VuStats gives agents the power to judge their own performance and take steps to 
modify call handling skills to improve productivity. For example, agents with 
VuStats can: 

• View calls in queue and/or wait times to delay non-essential 
activities until call delays are acceptable 

• View their time in Auxiliary Work 
• Compare their productivity with call center objectives or the 

performance of other agents and know when to step up the pace 
• Keep track of their total cumulative performance for an entire day 
• Be automatically notified by a flashing lamp when defined 

thresholds are reached for individuals and groups3 
Up to 50 different 40-character display formats can be customized (each with up 
to 10 fields of data), thereby creating displays of information that are important 
to call center personnel. Thresholds can also be defined on all data items that 
will cause the VuStats lamp to flash when the displayed item exceeds a pre-
defined threshold. All data is cumulative up to the current second, combining 
current interval and historical data. Most data can be cumulative for the entire 
day or for the most recent 24 hours or half-hours. Redisplay formats can be 
linked so the agents can step through a series of displays to view their progress 
against different measurements. 

                                                      
2 With Call Center Elite, options for MCH are One Forced, One Forced per Split/Skill or Many Forced 
3 With Call Center Elite, agents can also: Notice when queues for a particular agent skill under Expert Agent 

Selection are lengthy and log into that skill to clear the queue and improve customer service 
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  Call Vectoring 
Call Vectoring is one of the most powerful and flexible methods of routing 
incoming calls and utilizing agent and system resources available in the call 
center marketplace today. Similar to computer programming but easier to 
administer, Call Vectoring consists of user definable, multi-step routing tables, 
or Call Vectors, which control the routing of ACD calls based on dynamically 
changing conditions that occur in a call center environment. These 
programmable call vectors direct calls to specific on- or off-network 
destinations, to queues in ACD split/skills or skills, or to treatments such as 
prompting, forced first announcements, multiple recorded announcements, 
forced busy or disconnect, delay treatment, or call coverage path. The 
intelligence of the DEFINITY ECS is exemplified through Call Vectoring. 
DEFINITY Call Vectoring charts the best possible path to the best possible 
service⎯automatically and transparently. 

Call Vectoring enables you to fine tune the organization of the call center 
and create a highly customized routing path for each call. Vectoring 
allows your organization to customize the pathway a caller will take 
based upon the calling purpose and the system conditions prevailing at 
the time. It goes far beyond load balancing and provides the optimum 
mix of service and resource utilization. Call centers with Call Vectoring 
can run on autopilot starting and stopping at specific hours of the day. 

  Call Vectors and Vector Directory Numbers 
Dialed Number Identification Service (DNIS) digits provided by the 
network are normally mapped to Vector Directory Numbers (VDNs) in 
the DEFINITY ECS thereby enabling specific call processing 
applications based upon the DNIS digits received from the network. 

Vector Directory Numbers (VDNs) are four or five digit extension numbers 
that provide a software link between DNIS digits received from the network 
and Call Vectors that direct the routing and processing of those calls. The 
incoming DNIS or DID number is mapped to an associated VDN, a “soft” 
extension number assigned an internal line number but not an actual port 
location. Each VDN is mapped to a specific Call Vector. VDNs can also be 
internal numbers used to direct calls to specific applications such as voice mail 
or voice processing scripts. 
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  Call Vector Routing Conditions 
Conventional methods of routing specify only call routing sequences, 
while Call Vectoring specifies the conditions under which this routing 
will take place. Using Call Vectoring, very sophisticated scenarios can be 
created to customize call center operations. Calls can receive a different 
treatment based on the following parameters: 

• Unconditional, the vector command is executed without checking 
any conditions 

• Time of day and day of week 

• Number of staffed agents in a specified split/skill 

• Number of available (idle) agents in a specified split/skill 

• Number of connected calls by Vector Directory Number (VDN) 

• Number of calls queued at a given priority to the specified 
split/skill. This condition tests for calls in queue at the specified 
priority level and higher. 

• Current Expected Wait Time for a specified split/skill for the call 
being processed. CentreVu Call Center has a patented Expected 
Wait Time (EWT) algorithm that calculates how long a call has 
been or will be in queue. Until now, expected wait time was 
calculated solely on historical data. The algorithm analyzes the 
following on a call by call basis to provide precise routing: call 
removal rate from the queue, number of agents available, and 
queue length as factors. It also considers priority queuing, calls 
queued to multiple split/skills/skills, call abandons, time in 
Auxiliary Work, pending agent moves, direct agent calls, and 
agents in multiple split/skills. 

• Rolling Average Speed of Answer for a specified split/skill 

• Amount of time that the oldest call in the specified split/skill 
queue has waited to be answered 

• Digits collected via the Collect Digits Call Prompting command 

• ANI and Information Indicator (II) Digits from the network. II 
digits are provided by network to indicate the origin of calls such 
as payphones, prisons, hotels, operator assisted, coin and cellular 
phones to mention a few. 
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• Comparator/threshold checking including less than or equal to, 
greater than or equal to, and unequal to 

• Caller INformation FOrwarding (also called CINFO). CINFO 
routing is supported by Call Vectoring to route based on digits 
supplied in an ISDN-PRI message. The digits have been entered 
by the caller via Call Prompting or provided by a call center’s 
database. CINFO is a DEFINITY Network Intelligent Call 
Processing service available only for domestic use. 

• The number of calls in queue that are eligible for interflow processing 
(using interflow q-pos). This conditional is used to effect First In First 
Out (FIFO) or near-FIFO interflowing between sites. 

With Call Vectoring, routing decisions and caller options are determined 
based on real-time, dynamic information, not on historical trending. Using the 
extensive list of conditions, calls can be queued to the splits or skills that will 
offer the lowest average speed of answer and best agent utilization. Conditions 
at alternate split/skill queues can be viewed before redirecting a call. Thus, 
groups of agents who may be designated as backup for a certain call type will 
not become overloaded with calls routed from another group. 

Enhanced comparator/threshold checking makes it possible to build vectors 
that include less than or equal to, greater than or equal to, and unequal to 
various factors. In addition, wildcards (+ and ?) can be used in digit strings to 
match collected digits or ANI digits for routing decisions. Digit matching can 
be done directly in the vector steps or Vector Routing tables can be used to 
store groups of selected ANI digits or other digit information used for 
matching and making routing decisions. All of this checking can be done 
within DEFINITY ECS, without an ASAI or computer interface, allowing 
instant implementation of geographic or demographic strategies. 

  Call Vectoring Commands 
The basic vector commands are listed below. Please note that most of 
these commands require one or more parameters (for example, an 
extension number is required with the Announcement command). 

• Adjunct Routing – used only with the Adjunct/Switch Applications 
Interface (ASAI) feature for Computer Telephony Integration (CTI) 
which allows the adjunct host to provide the routing destination 

• Announcement – (first, forced, multiple, delay, repeating at 
specified intervals, custom music/announcement, disconnect) 
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• Busy – provides busy signal to the caller 
• Check Split/skill – conditionally check for conditions in a backup 

split/skill and queue if conditions are met 
• Collect Digits – used in conjunction with Call Prompting to offer 

callers a menu of options for routing or to collect caller information 
such as account numbers 

• Consider – defines the resource (split, skill, or location) that is checked as 
a part of a Best Service Routing™ (BSR) consider series and obtains the 
data BSR uses to compare resources. After the consider series has been 
executed, a queue-to best or check best command can queue the call to 
the best resource identified. If the consider commands are in a status poll 
vector (in a multi-site BSR application), a reply-best step returns the data 
for the best resource found to the primary vector on the originating switch. 

• Converse-on split/skill – used in conjunction with a Voice Response 
Unit (VRU) such as CentreVu Response Solutions. Allows VRU 
scripts to be executed while caller maintains queue position. 

• Disconnect – normally used in conjunction with an announcement 
before terminating the call during vector processing. 

• Goto Step – normally used in conjunction with conditional branching 
• Goto Vector – used to chain vectors together to provide 

additional commands or to re-route callers to another vector for 
alternate processing 

• Messaging – connects the caller to Intuity AUDIX so that the 
caller may leave a message for the specified extension 

• Queue-To Split/skill – places the caller in queue for the specified 
split/skill at a defined priority level. 

• Reply-best – returns data to another switch in response to a status 
poll. Reply-best is only used in status poll vectors in multi-site 
Best Service Routing (BSR) applications. 

• Route-To – allows calls to be routed to any digits 
• Stop – ends vector processing 
• Wait-Time – allows definition of a specified number of seconds to wait 

and the treatment while waiting for example “wait 30 seconds hearing 
music”. Treatment choices are silence, ringback, music, or a custom 
music/announcement source. 
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  Call Prompting  
DEFINITY ECS Call Vectoring provides Voice Response, or Call 
Prompting, capabilities using Recorded Announcements along with Digit 
Collection features. Call Prompting can be used to offer a menu of 
choices for routing, collect caller information such as account numbers, 
automated attendants, to play unique announcements, or to create a 
digital display message for the call center agent receiving the call. Digits 
entered during the prompt can be displayed on the agent’s voice terminal 
or sent to a computer application for further routing instructions. Call 
Prompting provides a more flexible handling of incoming calls without 
requiring additional voice processing ports. 

Call Prompting uses the Collect Digits vector command to provide 
flexible handling of incoming calls based on information collected from 
the calling party or from an ISDN-PRI message. For example: “Collect 2 
Digits After Announcement 4200.” The following list gives a brief 
description of some call prompting applications. 

• Automated Attendant – Allows the calling party to enter the 
extension of the party that he/she would like to reach. The call is 
then routed to that desired extension. 

• Caller Menu – Allows the calling party to enter the desired routing 
choice such as “Press 1 for Sales, Press 2 for Service…” The call 
is then routed to that desired queue. 

• Data In/Voice Answer (DIVA) Capability – Allows the calling party to 
hear an announcement based on the digits that he or she enters, or to be 
directed to a hunt group or another system extension. 

• Data Collection – Allows the calling party to enter data that can then be 
used by a host/adjunct to assist in call handling. This data, for example, 
may be the calling party’s account number. 

• CINFO (Caller Information Forwarding) Routing – Allows a call 
to be routed based on digits supplied by the network in an ISDN-
PRI message. These digits are either entered by the caller or 
provided by the call center’s database. 

• Message Collection – Gives the calling party the option of leaving 
a message or waiting in queue for an agent. 
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Dynamic Call Prompting turns waiting time in queue into an opportunity to: 

• Present selling messages or other announcements 

• Obtain customer information⎯up to 10 digits⎯to speed call handling 

• Allow the customer to choose to leave a callback number during 
busy periods 

• Allow the customer to select a different destination for the call 
such as a specific application or person’s extension 

  Call Work Codes 
Call Work Codes are caller-defined codes such as account numbers, 
social security numbers, credit card numbers, call activity codes, or 
phone numbers. These numbers, or codes, are then stored by CentreVu 
Call Management System (CMS) to provide a record the events of the 
call. CentreVu CMS is required to supply Call Work Code reports. Up to 
1,999 codes can be tracked. 

An agent is always allowed to enter a Call Work Code for an ACD call. 
However, each split/skill can be administered so agents in that split/skill 
are forced to complete a Call Work Code entry before becoming 
available for another call. 

  Stroke Counts 
Stroke Counts provide ACD agents with the ability to record up to nine 
customer-defined events on a per-call basis. The feature also provides a 
tenth event count to track audio difficulty. Stroke Count “0” is reserved 
for Audio Difficulty and the other nine Stroke Counts are customer 
definable. For example, a stroke count may be used to track the number 
of inquiries about a specific item. Each time an agent receives an inquiry 
on a specific item, he or she can enter the Stroke count (one through 
nine) associated with that item. 

An agent is always allowed to enter a Stroke Count for an ACD call. 
However, each split/skill can be administered so agents in that split/skill 
are forced to complete a Stroke Count entry before becoming available 
for another call. 
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  Voice Response Integration 
Voice Response Integration is designed to enhance the integration of 
CentreVu Call Center systems with the capabilities of voice response 
units (VRUs), particularly Intuity CONVERSANT Voice Information 
System (VIS). 

Voice Response Integration can do the following: 

• Execute a VRU script while retaining control of the call in 
DEFINITY ECS vector processing 

• Execute a VRU script while the call remains in the skill queue and 
retains its position in the queue 

• Pool Intuity CONVERSANT ports for multiple applications. 
(Previously, this was possible only when CallVisor ASAI was present.) 

• Callback Messaging allows caller to leave a message and a 
callback number and the callback message waits in the queue so 
the caller does not have to. When an agent becomes available, the 
call back message is delivered to the agent and the customer’s 
phone number can be dialed automatically. 

• Use a VRU as a flexible external announcement device 

• Pass data between DEFINITY ECS and a VRU 

• Tandem VRU data through DEFINITY ECS to an ASAI host 

These Voice Response Integration capabilities are provided by the 
Converse command⎯an enhancement to Call Vectoring. The Converse 
Call Vectoring step is specifically designed to integrate a VRU with the 
DEFINITY Automatic Call Distribution (ACD). Voice Response 
Integration allows VRU capabilities to be used while keeping control of 
the call in the DEFINITY ACD. The inclusion of VRUs with vector 
processing provides the following advantages: 

• Access to local and host databases 

• Validation of caller information 

• Text to speech capabilities 

• Speech recognition 

• Increased recorded announcement capacity 
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• Audiotext applications 

• Interactive Voice Response (IVR) applications 

• Transaction processing applications 

  Universal Caller Identifier (UCID) 
Universal Call Identifier (UCID) is a feature that tags a call with a unique 
center sites from the first entry into your network until the call is terminated 
within the network. Because UCID provides the basis to support reporting 
across multiple sites and products, this unique feature provides the ability to 
create a more holistic perspective of your call centers. You now have the 
management advantage of seeing the total picture, quickly and easily. UCID 
can be used with both single and multi-site call centers, however passing 
UCID to other sites requires CentreVu Virtual Routing and Call Center 
Deluxe or Elite software packages. 

  Expert Agent Selection 
Lucent Technologies’ patented Expert Agent Selection (EAS) builds on the 
power of Call Vectoring and expands the capability of ACD by allowing 
incoming calls to be routed to specialized groups of agents within a larger group 
of agents. EAS provides a method of matching the needs of the caller with the 
skills and talents of the agents. A skill represents a level of competence, such as 
the ability to speak Spanish or knowledge about a particular product. Call 
Vectoring is used to route the call based on the identified need of the caller (such 
as the caller's selection of a Call Prompting choice), the priority ordered skills of 
the agents, or the number the caller dialed (Vector Directory Number or VDN). 

EAS defines how calls are distributed by administering skills for VDNs, 
agents and callers. A skill represents a level of competence for each of 
these entities, and is identified by a number assigned by the System 
administrator. Assigning skills is another way of defining priorities for 
matching callers to agents. The ACD manager and supervisors have 
complete control over the skill assignment. 

When the system is optioned with EAS, the agents can be monitored 
based on their logical agent ID rather than by the extension number of 
the physical voice terminal where they are located. Observing via the 
logical agent ID allows every ACD, personal, and Direct Agent call 
delivered to or placed by the agent, including calls placed to the voice 
terminal to be monitored. 
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  Expert Agent Distribution or Skills Based Routing 
EAS allows distribution of calls by Expert Agent Distribution (or Skills 
Based Routing). Calls which require certain agent skills (such as ability 
to speak a certain language, understanding of a particular product) to be 
matched to an agent who has the necessary skill. Up to three skills can be 
assigned to each VDN and four skills to each agent. Agent skills can be 
designated as primary and secondary. A vector can, in addition, consider 
more than three VDN-assigned skills when necessary for the application. 

  EAS Preference Handling Distribution (EAS-PHD) 
The EAS feature has been enhanced significantly to improve the agent 
retrieval process under skills-based routing. With EAS-PHD, the number 
of skills per agent is expanded to 20 and the number of preferences (skill 
proficiency) per skill is increased to 16. 

  Logical Agent 
The Logical Agent feature of EAS allows an agent to log into a skill from any 
voice terminal in the system. The agent's skills and features follow to that 
voice terminal. Also, an agent can be called without the caller knowing the 
extension number and/or location of the terminal where the agent is logged in. 
The agent’s activity is tracked by the call management system regardless of 
which voice terminal is used from shift to shift. 

With the Logical Agent feature an agent’s ACD Login ID is associated 
with a particular voice terminal only when the agent actually logs in at 
that terminal. When the agent logs off, the association of an agent’s ACD 
Login ID with a particular voice terminal is removed. The ACD Login 
IDs used are numbers used out of the DEFINITY ECS’ normal station 
numbering plan. Agents become logical entities and not physical entities. 
Physical attributes of a voice terminal, such as button administration and 
automatic answer, do not follow the agent. 
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In addition to skills, the following capabilities are associated with agents’ 
login IDs: 

• Calls − Calls to the Login ID reach the agent independent of the 
voice terminal the agent is currently using. These can be Direct 
Agent calls (calls to a particular agent treated as an ACD call). 

• Name − Calls to the Login ID display the name associated with the 
Login ID and not the name associated with the voice terminal. This is 
also true for calls made from a voice terminal with an agent logged in. 

• Coverage − Calls to the Login ID go to the coverage path associated 
with the agent and not the voice terminal. Calls go to coverage when 
the agent is logged out, or when the agent is busy or does not answer. 
Direct Agent calls and other non-ACD calls will go to coverage. ACD 
calls do not follow the agent’s coverage path. 

• Message Waiting Lamp − Messages for the Login ID will light the 
message waiting lamp associated with the agent while he or she is 
working at that voice terminal. When the agent logs out, the lamp 
reverts to the primary owner of the voice terminal. This allows agents 
to know when they have messages regardless of their work location. 

• Restrictions − Calls to the Login ID or from the agent use the 
restrictions associated with the agent and not the voice terminal. 

• Work Modes − A single work mode button applies to all the skills 
assigned to the agent currently logged in. The agent in the 
Multiple Skills feature allows agents to log in to up to four skills. 

Anytime agents share a voice terminal, for example, when working shifts 
or job sharing, each person has his/her own extension and calls go to the 
coverage mailbox when the agent is logged out. 

Also, when agents use multiple voice terminals because they have 
multiple offices or rotate desks (such as guards), using Login IDs allows 
them to be reached independent of their desk location. 
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  Service Observing on Logical Agents 
When the system is optioned with Call Center Elite’s Expert Agent Selection 
(EAS), the agents can be monitored based on their logical agent ID rather than 
by the extension number of the physical voice terminal where they are located. 
Observing via the logical agent ID allows every ACD, personal, and Direct 
Agent call delivered to or placed by the agent to be monitored, including calls 
placed directly to the voice terminal. 

  Direct Agent Calling 
The Direct Agent Calling feature of EAS allows calls to be routed to a 
specific agent (through DID, vector prompting, or transfer from another 
agent, VRU, or computer) and treated as an ACD call. Agents are 
notified that a Direct Agent Call is waiting. 

If the receiving agent is not available to answer an ACD call, (for 
example, the agent is busy on a call, in the After Call Work mode, or in 
the Auxiliary Work Mode), the receiving agent is notified with a ring-
ping if the agent has a multifunction voice terminal or is on-hook. The 
ring-ping is given only once per call when the call is queued. The 
currently lit work mode button lamp for the associated split/skill on the 
receiving agent’s voice terminal flashes, indicating a direct agent call is 
waiting. Flashing starts when the call queues and stops when all direct 
agent calls leave the queue (answered, abandoned, or sent to coverage). 

Usually Direct Agent calls are queued and served in a first-in, first-out 
order before any non-Direct Agent call (including priority calls). 
Therefore, when an agent becomes available, the switch first checks for 
any Direct Agent calls before serving normal ACD calls in queue. 

When using EAS-PHD (Preference Handling Distribution), Direct Agent 
calls must be assigned the highest priority for them to be delivered before 
other ACD calls. Otherwise, calls with a higher level will be distributed 
before Direct Agent calls. 

Direct agent calls follow the receiving agent’s coverage and call forwarding, if 
activated. Once the call goes to coverage or is forwarded, the call is no longer 
treated as a direct agent call. The optional CentreVu Call Management System 
(CMS) is informed that the call has been forwarded. 
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  Add/Remove Skills by Feature Access Code (FAC) 
This feature allows agents using EAS and other authorized users to 
dynamically add or remove skills by dialing a feature access code (FAC) 
to meet the real-time needs of incoming call volumes by type. 
Information provided by the management system about the incoming 
calls alerts supervisors and agents to the need to change agent skills. 
When an agent adds or removes a skill, the system displays on the voice 
terminal the updated set of skills currently assigned to the agent. 

  Reason Codes 
This feature allows an agent to enter a code of 0-9 when entering the Auxiliary 
Work Mode (AUX work mode) or logging out of the system. The code can be 
used to identify activities such as training or breaks. Reason codes give call 
center managers detailed information about how agents spend their time. 
These data can be used to develop more precise staffing forecasting models or 
used with schedule-adherence packages to ensure that agents are performing 
scheduled activities at the scheduled time. 

CentreVu CMS and VuStats will track the currently active Reason Code 
and the time associated with each code during the AUX Work state. 
Managers can also define names for each Reason Code for a clearer 
description in VuStats and CentreVu CMS. 
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TASKE solutions access the data stream from Avaya 
products (described below) to gather and process call 
information. Contact center managers use this information 
to enhance contact center performance and coordinate 
resources. In addition, call centers and businesses can 
report on all extensions using TASKE solutions.

The solutions are designed to work with the following 
Avaya products: 

• Avaya Communication Manager – Integrates telephony 
call processing, call control, messaging, contact center 
and a widely accepted application programming inter-
face into a highly scalable architecture designed to sup-
port both circuit-based and IP-based telephony within a 
distributed enterprise communications network.

• Avaya MERLIN MAGIX® Integrated System – A private 
branch exchange (PBX) with a built-in ability to  
emulate a traditional key system.

TASKE Contact

TASKE Contact is a comprehensive call management 
solution ideal for small call centers (under 100 agents). 
Key features include: 

• Web-based interface allowing for global access

• Real-time queue and agent activity monitoring for 
inbound, outbound and internal calls

• Call Visualizer for detailed call analysis  
(cradle-to-grave reporting) 

• Historical reporting on all calls

• Workforce management integration  
(IEX, Blue Pumpkin, Left Bank Solutions) 

TASKE Essential

TASKE Essential is a complete call reporting application 
ideal for the small-to-medium-sized business without a 
call center. Key features include:

• Web-based interface allowing for global access

• Historical extension/trunk reporting

• Real-time extension viewer: inbound, outbound and 
internal calls

• Call Visualizer for detailed call analysis  
(cradle-to-grave reporting) 

myTASKE Reporter 

A Web-based, reporting-only solution for the contact  
center with up to 50 agents, myTASKE Reporter includes 
Call Visualizer and all TASKE reports. It is available on 
Avaya MERLIN MAGIX only.
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TASKE Analytics provides call data analysis options, 
including: 

• Open Database Connectivity (ODBC) interface for SQL 
applications

• XML generator for advanced application integration

• Call Visualizer for detailed call analysis

• Data cube (online analytical processing, or OLAP) 
generator for industry-standard, business intelligence 
applications 
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Founded in 1989, TASKE Technology 
Inc. provides real-time call management 
and historical reporting solutions for 
small call centers and general business  
environments. TASKE solutions provide 
the insight necessary to improve call 
center service levels and enhance cus-
tomer retention strategies.

With thousands of installations world-
wide, TASKE offers superior technical 
support and expert services for all its 
products. TASKE has an excellent repu-
tation for offering proven, robust and 
affordable products for Avaya platforms. 
TASKE software has been compli-
ant tested on Avaya Communication 
Manager and MERLIN MAGIX. 

Notable achievements include:

•  Call Center Magazine’s Product of the 
Year and Editor’s Choice awards

•  TMC Labs Innovation award for 
myTASKE Web interface

For more information, visit  
www.taske.com.
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and managing their communications 
networks. Over one million businesses 
worldwide, including more than 90 
percent of the FORTUNE 500®, rely on 
Avaya solutions and services to enhance 
value, improve productivity and gain 
competitive advantage.

Focused on enterprises large to small, 
Avaya is a world leader in secure and 
reliable IP telephony systems, com-
munications software applications and 
full life-cycle services. Driving the con-
vergence of voice and data communica-
tions with business applications — and 
distinguished by comprehensive world-
wide services — Avaya helps customers 
leverage existing and new networks to 
unlock value and enhance business 
performance.

For more information about Avaya, visit 
www.avaya.com.

The DeveloperConnection Program 
(DevConnect) is a comprehensive set of 
innovative sales, support, marketing and 
services programs through which Avaya 
works with members to develop and 
promote their products and solutions 
that interoperate with Avaya solutions.

For more information, visit DevConnect 
at www.devconnectprogram.com.
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Avaya Integrated Management 

Overview

Avaya Integrated Management provides a complete  

solution for system administration, network  

management, and provisioning of converged networks –  

including both voice and data communications – while 

•  lowering management costs through simplified 

administration features, 

•  increasing productivity through a centralized manage-

ment architecture, and 

•  maximizing network reliability with network-wide 

monitoring and fault management tools. 

The solution helps you achieve more efficient system 

management, less system downtime, and a communica-

tions infrastructure that adds more value to your  

organization than ever before.

As a core component of the Avaya Communication 

Architecture, Integrated Management encompasses 

the entire scope of Avaya offerings, including Avaya 

DEFINITY® Communications Servers, Communication 

Manager software, media gateways and servers,  

converged infrastructure switches, and a wide  

variety of Avaya adjuncts such as INTUITY® AudixTM, 

Conversant, Call Management System (CMS),  

MultiPoint Conferencing Unit (MCU), Intuity 

Interchange, and Modular Messaging.

Avaya Integrated Management
A comprehensive set of tools that simplify management 
of converged network infrastructures

Avaya Integrated Management applications can help your enterprise more effectively  

manage converged network infrastructures. This comprehensive set of applications is 

designed to simplify system administration, provisioning and network management, and 

fault and performance management operations. As a result, Avaya Integrated Management 

helps you improve network uptime, increase staff productivity and reduce operating costs.  
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Standards-based for greater flexibility, 

greater scalability, and lower TCO

Integrated Management applications are based on  

standard protocols, providing the flexibility to operate  

as a standalone solution or integrated with your  

existing Network Management System (NMS). Integrated 

Management applications comply with widely accepted 

standards, such as Simple Network Management 

Protocol (SNMP), and run on standard operating  

systems such as Red Hat Linux, Microsoft Windows 

2000/2003, and Sun Solaris.

A Web-based interface for intuitive 

access to powerful features

Avaya Integrated Management helps your network  

administrators maximize productivity through web-based 

network reporting and management tools, accessible 

from virtually any station on your network or the Internet. 

Devices and network maps, quality of service (QoS)  

performance, device status and faults, and monitoring 

are presented through intuitive graphical displays, while 

task wizards simplify many common administrative tasks. 

For security, user authentication is supported in order to 

access Integrated Management applications, and custom 

roles and access rights can be defined for up to 13  

different administrator group levels through Avaya 

MultiSite Administration. 

Network Management System (NMS) 

Integration for End-to-End Management 

Support 

Avaya has joined forces with Hewlett Packard to offer a 

joint management solution that allows your enterprise to 

control and monitor network infrastructure and IP tele-

phony through a single Network Node Manager (NNM) 

console. Through the HP Network Node Manager Smart 

Plug-in for Avaya IP Telephony, HP OpenView can receive 

alerts from Avaya devices and Integrated Management 

tools, which can then be launched, in context, from 

within HP OpenView Network Node Manager. With this 

consolidated event console, network operators can be 

alerted to potential problems, identify Voice over IP 

paths in the network, and launch specific IP telephony 

views for quick problem identification.

Avaya Integrated Management also works seamlessly 

with Extreme Networks EPICenter to provide an  

end-to-end converged management infrastructure. 

Integrated capabilities include joint device discovery, 

sharing of network inventory and status monitoring  

information, and forwarding of traps. Both applications 

are designed to co-exist and be cross-launched from the 

same server platform.

Capabilities Overview

The applications within Avaya Integrated Management 

focus on three areas: 

•  Application Administration

•  Provisioning and Network Management

•  Alarming and Monitoring

Avaya Network Management Console with VoIP 

SystemView is the central launching point for Avaya 

administration tools, device managers and network  

management applications. It serves as the main  

management console for device discovery, SNMP-based 

fault monitoring, and network display. For enterprises 
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deploying IP telephony, the VoIP System View feature 

within the Console displays a hierarchical and logical 

view of the VoIP network, ranging from the Avaya voice 

server level down to individual resource components, 

gateways, and IP phones. With this end-to-end view, 

administrators can quickly and easily locate users any-

where in the enterprise and identify their logical VoIP 

connection path through the converged network.

The Network Management Console can operate as the 

main network management system, or integrate with the 

HP OpenView Network Node Manager 7.01/7.5 on either 

Windows 2000 /2003 or Solaris 9. The Management 

Console will also discover and display switches from 

Extreme Networks, and import network inventory,  

status monitoring information, and SNMP traps from 

the Extreme Networks EPICenter network management 

application. 

Application Administration 

These applications enable administration of site and 

network system features, user moves, adds and changes, 

and distribution of voice announcements for converged 

networks, ranging from a single voice system to large 

complex multi-site deployments administered by  

distributed global support organizations.

Avaya Site Administration is a PC-based application  

providing comprehensive tools for administration and 

maintenance of individual Avaya Media Servers and 

Avaya messaging platforms. Running on Windows 

2000/2003 or XP, Avaya Site Administration presents a 

graphical user interface along with special task wizards 

that simplify basic administration functions by reducing 

repetitive tasks for moves/adds/changes, finding exten-

sions, monitoring, and a variety of other functions. A 

Graphically Enhanced DEFINITY Interface (GEDI) tool 

provides access to more advanced administrative tasks.

Avaya MultiSite Administration is a server-based applica-

tion designed to help network administration teams  

centrally manage large, complex voice networks con-

sisting of multiple Avaya media servers and gateways. 

Graphical station and administration screens combined 

with wizards enable system administrators to rapidly 

learn and perform tasks that were previously difficult 

and time-consuming. To help global support organiza-

tions control access, up to 13 custom management  

privilege levels can be defined to map groups of  

administrators and their defined access rights to groups 

of voice systems. For additional security, an advanced 

logging feature provides management with transaction 

records of each administrator. 

Voice Announcement Manager is a Windows 2000/2003/ 

XP application that helps your enterprise gain better 

control over the content, quality, and timing of recorded 

voice announcements – anywhere on the network. Voice 

Announcement Manager provides a secure reposi-

tory for voice announcements by storing them as WAV 

files. Announcements can then be copied, backed-up, 

or restored to Avaya Media Servers and Gateways over 

the LAN, and scheduled for broadcast. An easy-to-use 

graphical interface provides a centralized point of  

management, making it easy to get the right  

announcement to the right location, at the right time.

Provisioning and Network Management

Avaya provisioning and network management  

applications simplify the deployment, configuration  

and ongoing maintenance of media gateways and  

converged infrastructure switch devices.

Provisioning and 
Installation Manager
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Provisioning and Installation Manager helps your enter-

prise save time and money on large-scale branch  

office deployments by replacing error-prone and  

time-consuming device-by-device provisioning. This tool 

enables the definition of customized templates applied 

to large groups of gateways at one time. As part of 

the staging and installation process, Provisioning and 

Installation Manager allows network experts at your  

staging center to quickly create configuration templates 

and individual device profiles with unique parameters 

for each gateway. 

These templates and profiles, stored in advance as part 

of an initial staging process, can be applied to groups  

of gateways as part of a bulk provisioning process  

during deployment. Thus, large-scale branch office 

deployments can be performed faster, with fewer errors, 

and with reduced need for on-site technical expertise. 

Provisioning and Installation Manager can also be used 

for ongoing provisioning tasks by the Network Operation 

Center (NOC) that require configuration changes to 

groups of gateways.

Secure Access Administration provides a centralized 

console for managing user access rights and privileges 

to Avaya branch office gateways and converged infra-

structure switches. With Secure Access Administration, 

defined user lists can be deployed to multiple devices 

in parallel, eliminating error prone device-by-device 

configuration. Avaya Secure Access Administration also 

supplies an internal API to network management 

applications for authenticating Avaya devices and  

gateways using SSH public keys.

Software Update Manager simplifies software mainte-

nance operations in your distributed network by  

helping administrators analyze and update software/ 

firmware of Avaya media gateways, media modules, 

wireless devices, and converged infrastructure switches. 

Software Update Manager will automatically retrieve 

the latest software updates from the Avaya support site, 

highlight devices running outdated versions, and  

schedule updates that can be distributed to multiple 

devices at a time. Software Update Manager also  

manages the distribution of IP phone firmware updates 

to remote branch offices, reducing bandwidth usage 

over the WAN by allowing remote IP phones to get their  

configuration updates from the local TFTP server 

embedded in Avaya branch office media gateways.

IP Address Manager provides network-maintenance  

tools to quickly locate IP addresses or hosts within  

the network. It automatically displays a centralized list  

of hosts discovered in the network and correlates 

between IP address, MAC address, and device-port  

connectivity. This enables network managers to  

instantly locate switch ports related to specific hosts; 

automatically discover duplicate IP addresses or port 

policy violations; and generate, print, and export reports.

Avaya Device Managers provide a complete set of tools 

for managing individual Avaya media gateways and 

converged infrastructure switches. These powerful, yet 

easy-to-use, mouse-driven tools give network managers 

the ability to set up and configure all device parameters, 

including standard port settings, port security, redun-

dancy modes, and device-specific functions.

Alarming and Monitoring Fault and 

Performance Management

Avaya alarming and monitoring fault and performance 

management applications help to maintain converged 

network health by providing a comprehensive set of VoIP 

and network traffic monitoring tools, along with network 

device health and alarm management that quickly iden-

tify, localize, and correlate application QoS or network 

device issues anywhere in the network.

avaya.com

Fault and Performance 
Manager
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Fault & Performance Manager provides a complete solu-

tion for fault and performance management of Avaya 

voice systems and adjuncts. Operating independently, 

or integrated with the HP OpenView Network Node 

Manager 7.01 and 7.5 on either Windows 2000/2003 

or Solaris 9, Fault & Performance Manager provides a 

hierarchical view of all voice systems in the network; 

drill-down capabilities provide configuration, fault, and 

health data of individual systems and adjuncts in text, 

tabular, and graphical formats. For enterprises planning 

the deployment of fault-tolerant networks, Fault and 

Performance Manager includes support for monitoring 

of Enterprise Survivable Servers (ESS) and the manage-

ment of port network moves between servers

Fault and Performance Manager is also a poweful  

reporting tool, with system-wide administration of 

parameters that allow the network manager to quickly 

define settings for data collection, logging, and alert  

levels, and a flexible report manager that provides 

detailed information on performance, configuration, 

and exceptions/alarms. To help simplify interpretation 

of system messages and alarms as they appear, an 

integrated helpdesk feature automatically launches the 

Communication Manager maintenance manual with the 

specific alarm in focus.

VoIP Monitoring Manager is a VoIP QoS monitoring and 

feedback tool offering a detailed graphical visualization 

of VoIP network health. The application collects Real-

Time Control Protocol (RTCP) packets sent from Avaya  

IP phones, media gateways, and media processor 

resources during actual calls, and makes the information 

available in real-time or stored for time-based analy-

sis. This allows network managers to quickly specify 

endpoints and time periods in which to examine data 

through easy-to-read graphical displays of call session 

For enterprises with a distributed network of gateways, 

VoIP Monitoring Manager can identify and monitor calls 

between endpoints through a particular media gateway, 

as well as VoIP traffic between gateways. VoIP Monitoring 

Manager also provides detailed historical performance 

information that can be used to baseline performance and 

validate Service Level Agreements (SLA).

Beyond trouble-shooting and monitoring, VoIP 

Monitoring Manager is also a pro-active notification 

solution that warns the network manager of potential 

degradation of voice quality in their network – providing 

valuable time to identify, localize, and fix issues in the 

network as they arise. In this scenario, VoIP Monitoring 

Manager can be configured to automatically send SNMP 

(Simple Network Management Protocol) traps to a 

Network Management System (NMS) based on a number 

of QoS threshold policies.

SMON Manager provides traffic monitoring designed for 

networks that incorporate the point-to-point transmission 

schemes of Avaya Ethernet and gigabit Ethernet  

switches. It provides a top-down view of your network 

traffic that drills down to individual switches, VLANs, 

and ports. Administrators can display voice endpoints, 

view all enterprise alarms and performance history 

reports, customize alarms and thresholds, and tie alarms 

and thresholds to alerts—all with no effect on switch 

performance. For VoIP trouble-shooting, a VoIP port 

monitoring feature works with Avaya VoIP Monitoring 

Manager’s real-time call session information to help  

network managers more quickly identify, diagnose, and 

fix network IP telephony issues by filtering network  

information to display only traffic on ports that have 

connected IP phones.

COMMUNICATIONS 
AT THE HEART OF BUSINESS

VoIP Monitoring Manager
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Integrated Management Offer Structure

Avaya Integrated Management applications are 

packaged within specific offers. The standard 

Integrated Management offer ships with most Avaya 

Communication Manager new systems and upgrades. It 

incorporates SNMP agents, devices managers, and one 

license for Avaya Site Administration, which provide the 

core capabilities needed to administer a single voice 

system. 

Four additional Integrated Management offers include 

value-added advanced application options aligned by 

functionality, allowing your enterprise to flexibly match 

management capabilities to specific requirements:

•  Basic Administration Tools 

•  Enterprise Network Management 

•  Communication Manager System Management 

•  VoIP Monitoring 

Basic Administration Tools 

Basic Administration Tools are an ideal solution for 

enterprises with a small network of voice systems. The 

offer expands upon standard management by adding  

a license for Avaya Site System Administration. It also  

provides a solution for managing adds, changes, back-

ups, and broadcasts of recorded announcements to 

voice systems over the enterprise network with Avaya 

Voice Announcement Manager. For flexibility, additional 

Basic Administration license options are available to 

meet the needs of larger campus environments and 

multi-country deployments. 

Enterprise Network Management

Enterprise Network Management is a super-set of Basic 

Administration Tools, encompassing the core applica-

tions in all key areas of management. The offer is 

ideally suited for enterprises with mid to large-scale 

branch office VoIP deployments. Enterprise Network 

Management starts with the Network Management 

Console. The console is the launch point for  

centralized management tools designed to simplify  

provisioning/installation, access security administration, 

software and firmware upgrades, and trouble-shooting 

tasks required to support a distributed network of IP 

telephony locations. The offer also incorporates SNMP 

agents, devices managers, and a single license each 

for Avaya Site Administration and Voice Announcement 

Manager. Additional license options provide flexibility to 

match a variety of network scenarios.

Communication Manager System 

Management

Communication Manager System Management can be 

added to any of the other Integrated Management offers. 

It is designed for enterprises with multiple voices  

systems from Avaya DEFINITY® Communications Server 

Release 9.5 up to and including Avaya Communication 

Manager software. The offer includes comprehensive 

traffic analysis and system information tools to trouble-

shoot and perform long term trending and performance 

base-lining of larger networks, along with advanced 

Helpdesk functionality that provides managers with key 

information for trouble resolution. This solution also 

offers advanced management support for Enterprise 

Survivable Servers (ESS), making it ideal for enterprises 

with high-availability requirements. It is also designed 

for enterprises with distributed management groups  

that desire advanced control over how they structure 

administrative roles and access. 

VoIP Monitoring

The VoIP Monitoring offer helps any enterprise deploying 

VoIP to better manage the performance of the applica-

tion through their converged network. VoIP Monitoring 

Manager is designed as a standalone solution for use 

with any Avaya Communications System Release 11 or 

higher. 

avaya.com



7

Integrated Management Offers

Basic Administration Tools Enterprise Network 
Management

Communication Manager 
System Management

VoIP Monitoring

Application Administration

Site Administration √ √

MultiSite Administration √

Voice Announcement Manager √ √

Alarming and Monitoring Fault and Performance Management

Fault & Performance Manager √

VoIP Monitoring Manager √ 
(90 day trial)

√ 
(90 day trial)

√

SMON Manager √ 
(90 day trial)

Provisioning and Network Management

Network Management Console 
with VoIP System View

√

Provisioning and Installation 
Manager

√

Software Update Manager √

Secure Access Administration √

Network Configuration 
Manager

√

QoS Manager √

IP Address Manager √

Device Managers √

COMMUNICATIONS 
AT THE HEART OF BUSINESS

Maximize Converged Network 

Investments with Avaya Global Services 

Maximize the benefit of converged network solutions by 

leveraging the award-winning expertise of Avaya Global 

Services to plan, design, and implement reliable and 

secure, advanced solutions. Working with Avaya can help 

you cut costs and increase productivity. Whether it’s  

day-to-day network or system administration or a l 

ong-term strategy for voice and data convergence—a  

one-time project or an extended relationship—Avaya 

Global Services provides you with resources, expertise, 

and state-of-the art tools that are simply not available  

anywhere else.

Avaya Global Services provides you the assistance you 

may need to implement and utilize the Avaya Integrated 

Management solutions. Avaya Global Services can  

provide onsite or remote support to install the applica-

tions and configure them to work with your various  

applications and business locations. In addition, Avaya 

Global Services upon request can provide knowledge 

transfers to your primary administrators to help them 

maximize the business benefits of the Avaya Integrated 

Management suite. 

Learn More

To learn more, talk to your Avaya Client Executive or 

Authorized Avaya BusinessPartner. Or visit avaya.com. 
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About Avaya

Avaya enables businesses to achieve superior  

results by designing, building and managing their  

communications infrastructure and solutions. For 

over one million businesses worldwide, including 

more than 90 percent of the FORTUNE 500®, Avaya’s 

embedded solutions help businesses enhance  

value, improve productivity and create competitive  

advantage by allowing people to be more productive 

and create more intelligent processes that satisfy 

customers.

For businesses large and small, Avaya is a world  

leader in secure, reliable IP telephony systems,  

communications applications and full life-cycle  

services. Driving the convergence of embedded  

voice and data communications with business  

applications, Avaya is distinguished by its  

combination of comprehensive, world-class  

products and services. Avaya helps customers  

across the globe leverage existing and new  

networks to achieve superior business results.

COMMUNICATIONS 
AT THE HEART OF BUSINESS

avaya.com



 Visit  www.cacticom.com for more information.

Search, Audit, Replay Voice and Screen Recording

Edit or  Scan Voice and Screen Recording using Enhanced Replay

quality assurance made simple...

Cacti FocusRecord™ Continuous Recording
Contact Center Server Based Solution

Contact Centers today are being asked to interact with
customers via more mediums such as audio, fax, web and
email. This gives their companies competitive advantages
in the marketplace, while increasing the complexity of
managing performance, efficiency, validation of information
and the protection of company’s assets.                                  0

Solution Summary

Continuous Recording of Voice and Screen
On-Line Auditing
Management Performance Reporting

The New Era of Contact Center Recording

FocusRecord provides your  organization with a highly reliable server-based recording
solution. FocusRecord continuously records, achieves, stores and provides high-speed
access to thousands of hours of customer interactions. FocusRecord allows multi-user
access capabilities enables playback of voice and screen sessions and real-time
monitoring of any agent, by any number of supervisors. Simply stated, it records all
transactions or conversations made by  any  agent  or  trader  within the contact  center.
0
FocusRecord is a non-proprietary, completely server based (Windows NT or 2000 system
and can support up to 192 individual channels or 8 T1s of recording on a single Voice
Recording Server (VRS) Module. Each FocusRecord server  can be configured to perform
as a  single server recording platform supporting analog, digital, VOIP and trunk side
recording. As an added benefit, FocusRecord also supports digital station taps with
D- channel  signaling support.  FocusRecord provides centralized archiving of recordings
using our intelligent mass storage module or other storage devices such as network
storage, CD-ROM, DVD-RAM or Tape.                                           0

Continuous Recording Return On Investment

FocusRecord is not  simply an investment in technology,  it is an investment in the people
of your  organization and your  future.  Increasingly ,companies  recognize customers as
their most valuable assets, therefore each customer interaction is an investment towards
the future of the company. FocusRecord will grow with your business and provide scalability
on standard platforms with no proprietary hardware. Your business will benefit from the

changes in technology and our continued product enhancements.                                0
                                              0

Cacti Continuous Recording Solution

Cacti offers a single source for your solution and helps you to implement FocusRecord

within your  environment.  The added value is your  organization will receive the following:

BUSINESS BENEFITS                                                                               0

Total/Continuous Multimedia Recording Solution
All In One Server  Solution
Non-Proprietary Open Architecture Solution
Can Perform Selective/Continuous Recording On Same Platform
Increase Customer Satisfaction and Retention
Identify Training Needs
Automate the Monitoring and Evaluation Process
Identify Agent Strengths and Weaknesses
Generate fair and Concise Reports
Increase Agent Moral and Reduce Staff Turnover
LAN/WAN based Client/Server Technology
Supports Oracle, SQL or  any  ODBC Compliant Database
Supports Rules Based Recording and Auditing
Cost Effective, Easy to Install and Maintain

Did we provide the correct information?                        o
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Cacti FocusRecord Continuous Recording

Major System Benefits
FocusRecord provides your organization a user-friendly quality

assurance solution that enables you to measure performance concisely.

Windows GUI Interface and/or Web Enabled

File Storage Mechanism *One call one file*

Utilizes state of the art GSM compression (1.67KB per sec)

Supports embedding of training content documentation, video,
interactive test, scripts, html)

Easy Agent Scheduling by group, agent, date time, call count,

               call type, minimum call duration and more

Optional Built In Online QA Audit Tool

Single Replay Screen Voice and Screen Replay and QA

Auditing

Supports 100% Screen and Voice Recording

 Visit  www.cacticom.com for more information.

Easy to use customizable QA Templates

Supports Selective and Total Recording on same platform

Supports playback from workstation and dial-in replay from

via any telephone

Supports embedding of voice recordings into any document

Supports emailing of all recordings and reports

Supports Windows NT and Windows 2000

Supports Enterprise trunk side or station selective recording

Comes standard with Enhanced Replay Enhanced Replay Enhanced Replay Enhanced Replay Enhanced Replay tool that allows

editing
of recordings and depiction of silence and the ability to gauge

sensitivity of call (i.e., irate callers)

3D, List and 2D management reports

Reports On Demand

FocusRecord reports provide invaluable information on the auditor, agents, and groups.  In  addition, FocusRecord
provides your  business with tools to enable them  to make critical business decisions based on evaluated performances
and quality assurance scoring. You will have capabilities to conduct  a detailed analysis and gather trending information
related to performance with a click of a mouse. Your business will discover hidden gaps and become performance driven.
Our reports provide proof of performance and validate your quality assurance practices. FocusRecord has a superior

reporting engine and allows you to design and build critical reports with a click of a mouse.

Automate Quality Assurance

FocusRecord provides a user-friendly scheduling tool that
offers ultimate flexibility.  Administrators can  configure
FocusRecord to record all calls of groups or individuals or
elect to have specific groups randomly recorded for quality
purposes. Auditors can use the search tool to define any
number of recording samples (i.e., search for  500th call of
specific group).                                                   0

FocusRecord integrates with standard CDR (Call Detail
Records), CTI/CRM packages or workforce management
applications to automate the recording process!
FocusRecord  scheduling interfaces enables you to
schedule a  specific agent, group  or  entire contact center
automatically to record randomly or based on your preset
time criteria. The voice and screen recording are delivered at
the supervisor’s desktop for replay and audit.                      0

minimum requirements

FocusRecord Performance Server

Single or Multiprocessor Pentium 500 mhz or better
512 MB RAM with 4 to 700 GB Hard Drive
Windows NT Service Pack 5.0 or better
Ethernet, Token Ring
Optional CD-ROM, DVD-RAM or Tape
Tower or Rack-Mount

Client Workstation

Microsoft Windows NT, 95, 98, ME, 2000, XP
Pentium or Better
128 MB RAM or Better
TCP/IP Connectivity
Auditors required sound card with audio outputs

Integrations

All Major PBX/ACD(s), T1, E1, Digital/Analog, Station Side
Recording Avaya, Nortel Meridian, DMS-100, 5ESS, EIC, Cisco
and etc.
SMDR/CTI Connectivity (Serial/TCP/IP)
SMDR/CTI Connectivity (Serial/TCP/IP)

Contact Us Today for a Free Demo!
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Language Line Services 
I N T E R P R E T I N G  Y O U R  N E E D S
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Language Line Services can help you communicate with each one.
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A Life in the Balance 

IN THE MIDDLE OF THE PACIFIC OCEAN, more than a thousand nautical 

miles from the nearest help, a Japanese fisherman falls gravely ill. Seriously 

worried, his crewmates send out a distress signal. A U.S. Coast Guard vessel 

responds, but no one on board speaks Japanese. Without a moment to 

waste, the Coast Guard contacts a Japanese interpreter and, with his help, 

is able to perform a preliminary medical diagnosis. The fisherman needs a 

doctor, and fast. An immediate rescue is his only chance. The interpreter 

quickly helps coordinate the details of a complicated plan that will require   

the combined efforts of the Coast Guard, a U.S. Air Force Para-Rescue  

Team, and every crew member on board the Japanese troller. Before long, 

the rescue team arrives on the spot. They rappel onto the fishing boat, 

stabilize the patient, and then airlift him to the nearest medical facility. The 

ordeal lasts ten, long hours. It’s a close call. But the Japanese fisherman’s life 

is saved. 

This really happened. And the interpreter works for Language Line Services.

24/7/365 
ON AVERAGE, WITHIN SECONDS, 

A CONNECTION IS MADE  

BETWEEN OUR INTERPRETER  

AND YOUR CUSTOMER
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Top ten languages spoken  
in the US after English are: 

Spanish

Chinese

French	

German

Tagalog

T H E  R I S I N G  N E E D  F O R 

G L O B A L  I N T E R P R E T A T I O N 

S E R V I C E S

The melting pot is alive and well. According 

to the U.S. Census Bureau, the foreign-born 

population of our country has grown from 9.7 

million in 1970 to 35 million in 2005. That 

represents 12% of our current population. 

And the number continues to grow as a new 

non-English speaking immigrant enters the 

United States every 19 seconds. 

When you consider that almost one out of 

five (or 52 million) U.S. residents speaks a 

language other than English at home, and that  

these residents are nearly four times more 

likely to purchase products and services from 

companies that communicate with them in 

their native language, it’s easy to recognize 

the significant revenue opportunities. 

And the U.S. isn’t alone. Statistics are similar 

in other English-speaking countries. Canada 

has the highest per capita immigration rate 

in the world, driven by economic policy and 

family reunification; Canada also accepts 

large numbers of refugees. Newcomers 

settle mostly in the major urban areas of 

Toronto, Vancouver and Montreal. By the 

1990s and 2000s, almost all of Canada’s 

immigrants came from Asia.

Non-official languages are important in 

Canada, with  5,202,245 (1 in 6) people 

listing one as a first language. Some 

significant non-official first languages include 

Chinese (853,745 first-language speakers), 

Italian (469,485), German (438,080), and 

Punjabi (271,220).

In the United Kingdom since 2002 more than 

2.5 million new workers arrived from abroad. 

One new immigrant worker registers every 

minute and this does not include non-workers 

such as spouse or other dependents.

Vietnamese

Italian	

Russian	

Polish	

Korean

A  C O M M I T M E N T  

T O  C O M M U N I C A T I O N

Language Line Services was initially a 

volunteer organization when it  was founded 

back in 1982. Throughout the years, 

an ongoing commitment to multi-lingual 

communication has made us the world leader 

in over-the-phone interpretation. Each day, 

20,000 customers around the globe rely on 

the quality, accuracy, and professionalism of 

our highly skilled interpreter workforce.

The Language Line® Over-the-phone 

Interpretation Service enables you to 

communicate clearly with your customers, in 

more than 170 languages, within a matter of 

seconds. Our services are available 24 hours 

a day, 7 days a week, from any phone in any 

country. And our experienced interpreters 

are trained and certified to meet the specific 

needs of the major business services and 

medical industries.

Language Line Services is there to help 

bridge the language gap, quickly and 

conveniently, day or night, anywhere in  

the world. 

“Language Line Services 

has shown a tremendous 

commitment in the fight to 

eradicate breast cancer 

through this effort. The 

‘Speak Pink’ telephone 

will be both a means 

of communication for 

limited English speaking 

patients, and a tool to raise 

awareness among this  

at-risk population.”

—Tammy Wagner,  

Vice President of the 

American Breast Cancer 

Foundation

Source: U.S. Census Bureau
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Not a Moment too Soon

AN OFFICER GLANCES UP FROM HIS COFFEE and sees a yellow flash. 

As a taxi speeds past, the frightened-looking driver makes eye contact but 

doesn’t slow down. The officer and his partner jump into their patrol car, 

hit the siren, and engage in pursuit. The taxi swerves suddenly to the side 

of the road, and a panicked driver leaps out waving his arms. “Hurry! She’s 

in labor,” the driver screams, motioning the officers to his cab. The officers 

race over to discover a terrified young Asian woman lying in the back seat. 

She apparently speaks no English, so the officer radios dispatch for a 

Chinese interpreter. After a brief exchange with the woman, the interpreter 

announces the woman is speaking Mandarin, and she’s about to give birth to 

her first child, right there, and right then. Keeping the interpreter on the line, 

the officer promises the woman everything will be fine as he prepares for the 

delivery. Minutes later, the child is born. It’s a boy. An ambulance arrives, and 

mother and child are transported safely to the hospital. 

It really happened. And the interpreter worked for Language Line Services.

11 BABIES EACH DAY  
AVERAGE NUMBER OF NEW LIVES BROUGHT INTO  

THE WORLD BY OUR INTERPRETERS

Page 5 of 11



T H E  S T R E N G T H  O F  

L E A D E R S H I P  A N D  

I N N O V A T I O N

In 1982, the City of San Jose was having 

trouble keeping pace with its expanding need 

for interpretation services. We came to the 

rescue with a service that met their specific 

needs, and the over-the-phone interpretation 

industry was born.

Since then, many others have entered the 

industry, but no one has built the same 

track record of innovation nor the breadth 

of products to keep pace with us in this 

constantly growing and evolving market. But 

words alone won’t adequately tell the story. 

Below is an abbreviated list of some of the 

innovative services we offer today.

Language Line® Over-the-phone 
Interpretation Service – With one 

toll free call, you can have your English 

interpreted into more than 170 languages 

within moments, 24 hours a day, 7 days a 

week. 

Language Line® Video Interpreter 
Service – We partner with Cisco and 

Paras & Associates to offer video-based 

interpretation for use with sign language and 

spoken languages where a visual component 

is important.

Language Line® Phone – Language Line 

phones facilitate face-to-face interaction, 

in thousands of locations, by eliminating 

language barriers with the touch of a button. 

Language Line Services is also proud to 

partner with the American Breast Cancer 

Foundation in providing the “Think Pink” 

dual-hand-set phones. Proceeds from these 

phones are helping to fight breast cancer.

Language Line® Document Translation 

– We’re not limited to spoken and visual 

language interpretation services. Our document 

translation services can meet all of your written 

translation needs, ranging from signage to legal 

documents. 

Language Line® Language Trak – 

Language Line Services allows customers to 

get alerts regarding changes in demographic 

and language patterns throughout the world. 

With 25 years of data on language access 

and demographic patterns, this unique and 

patent-pending service enables businesses, 

governments and health care providers 

around the world to better plan and prepare 

for imminent changes within their respective 

regional, national, and international markets.

Language Line® University – We can 

also train and test your staff to ensure 

your customers receive competent service 

and support. International industry experts 

recognize Language Line University as the 

most effective tool in testing and assessing 

interpreter skills. Any place. Any time.  

Any industry.

Language Line® HealthPort – We 

are the exclusive provider, in partnership 

with Polyglot Systems, of HealthPort web-

based, pre-programmed, healthcare set 

of instructions. This service is easy to 

deploy and enables nurses and medical 

practitioners to focus on medicine rather 

than interpretation.

Language Line® Direct Response – Our

interpreters are also able to greet your 

callers in their own languages, identify their 

needs, and then introduce your English-

speaking company’s representative for 

further servicing. 

Your World. Your Language.SM – This is 

the first multi-cultural lead generation service 

ever developed. This unique service enables 

limited-English speaking callers to access a 

free interpreter who helps them carry out a 

call to a host of businesses and consumer 

services. 

Language Line® On-site Interpretation 
Service – A video-based interpretation 

for American Sign Language and spoken 

languages provided in partnership with Cisco 

and Paras & Associates.

“Your World. Your 

Language.SM service has 

received a very positive 

response. Over 57% of the 

calls received have resulted 

in sales, proving that this 

line is not only beneficial 

to consumers, but to 

businesses as well.” 

—Jody C. Garcia,  

Vice President,  

AT&T Diverse Channels
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210,
506,
824
CUSTOMERS SERVED  

IN THE PAST 25 YEARS

Millions on the Line

A NERVOUS FINANCIAL INVESTOR hovers above the phone on his desk. 

He’s about to make a call to Madrid that could secure his firm a lucrative 

new account, or cost it tens of millions of dollars. This is his last chance. He 

has to get it right. And the person on the other end of the line doesn’t speak 

a word of English. To make things worse, his company’s interpreter isn’t 

available. But he can’t afford to wait. It’s now or never. So he enlists the help 

of a third-party Spanish interpreter to help him navigate the subtleties of his 

conversation. He explains the nuances of his proposition. He emphasizes the 

gravity of its outcome. And he informs her it might be a very long call. It won’t 

be a problem she assures him as she dials the number he’s provided. “Hola,” 

answers a voice at the other end. Several emotionally exhausting hours later, 

the investor hangs up his phone and exhales a deep sigh of relief. The deal 

is complete. All parties are happy. He immediately calls the interpreter back 

and implores her to accept a thank-you gift. She refuses. It’s all in a day’s 

work she insists. 

This really happened. And the interpreter works for Language Line Services.
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S E R V I N G  T H E  G L O B A L 

V I L L A G E  W I T H  G L O B A L 

E X C E L L E N C E

Our Experience
We created over-the-phone interpretation. 

So you can count on Language Line Services 

to provide the most accurate, objective, and 

confidential interpretation available. Our 

expertise spans virtually every industry from 

banking to emergency healthcare. Our world-

renowned interpreter certification program 

is unmatched in the industry. And our testing 

and training services ensure you’re working 

with only the highest caliber professionals.

Our Flexibility
We can supplement your existing in-house 

resources or be your sole source of 

language interpretation. With our constant 

call monitoring and our round-the-clock, 

scheduled staff, we can adapt quickly to any 

volume of calls. 

Our Compliance
Language Line Services interpreters deal 

with sensitive information on a daily basis—

everything from personal medical records 

to privileged corporate financial information. 

So we ensure that the highest standards of 

information security are strictly enforced. 

Our services comply with Sarbanes Oxley, 

Gramm-Leach-Bliley, and other security 

requirements as well. In addition, our 

healthcare interpreting services are bound 

by HIPAA agreements, which guarantee the 

privacy of patients. 
 

Our Protection
Language Line Services set the industry 

standard for protection. Our insurance 

policies, which provide global coverage in 

excess of $15 million, include coverage 

for Theft and Disclosure of Confidential 

Information as well as other critical insurance 

concerns. And we’re proud of the pristine 

reputation we’ve established for protecting 

clients and their sensitive data.

Our Technology
To our clients, interpretation is mission 

critical. Our services and systems must 

be available at all times, regardless of 

worldwide events. To meet these needs, 

we invest millions of dollars annually to 

ensure 24/7/365 worldwide coverage and 

nonstop business continuity. With redundant 

technology centers, located in three 

geographically distinct regions, our clients 

remain protected even in the event of natural 

disaster or other regional service disruptions.

Our People
Language Line Services is comprised of more 

than 3,000 interpreters worldwide. And our 

employee workforce will soon double. 

Each interpreter we hire must possess fluent 

native language skills. They must also be 

fluent in English, have keen cognitive memory 

skills, demonstrate excellent customer 

service skills, and undergo a comprehensive 

background check. Only 1 out of every 12 

who apply meet those qualifications. 

Once hired, employees are then trained to 

field every kind of call they may encounter. 

They must pass rigid internal certification 

programs, including the only medical 

certification program available in the 

marketplace. And they are also routinely 

monitored and evaluated.

Top Ten languages spoken in 
Canada after English & French:
 
Chinese

Italian

Cantonese

Punjabi

Spanish

German 

Arabic

Portuguese

Tagalog

Polish

“We are committed to 

making sure that we bring 

all communities together. 

With (Language Line 

Services’) Your World. 

Your Language.SM and 

1-877-TU-LINEA, we are 

knocking down barriers 

and uniting people in a way 

that has never before been 

accomplished. In doing 

so, we are strengthening 

our ability to be more 

competitive in the global 

marketplace.”

—Fabian Núñez,  

California State  

Assembly Speaker

Source: Census of Canada
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Our Commitment
We created this industry. We refined it. And 

we continue to lead the way. Each and every 

day, our interpreters enrich the world around 

them. They enable business opportunities. 

They help save lives. They even help bring new 

lives into the world—interpreters assist, on 

average, in the delivery of 11 babies each day. 

In times of emergency, or in times of 

commerce, seconds count. And Language 

Line Services responds within seconds. Our 

staff interprets more than 170 languages 

and takes calls from all over the world. Quality 

and experience matter as well. It’s no wonder 

the Chief Interpreter of the United States 

State Department tells new hires who want 

a career in the diplomatic field to perfect 

their skills with a three-year assignment at 

Language Line Services. 

Our Quality 
We are the proud recipient of the prestigious 

Malcolm Baldridge and Eureka Quality 

Awards. And we’ve received numerous other 

accolades for performance, from institutions 

such as J.D. Power and The California Health 

Interpreters Association. After 25 years of 

service, we remain dedicated to providing our 

global customers with the best interpretation 

quality and services in the marketplace. 

The difference we offer is our employee 

workforce. Unlike some new entrants into 

the marketplace which use an outsource 

contractor staffing model, we hire, train, and 

schedule our own employee workforce. Only 

the best interpreters answer our client calls. 

Why is this important? Employees can be 

trained, scheduled, and directed to offer the 

best global service possible.

Our Promise
Our 25 years of dedicated service to clients 

around the world means a great deal to 

us. Our ongoing leadership is the result of 

listening to customers and staying abreast 

of technology, immigration, and global 

demographics. We will continue to provide 

innovative solutions to the world’s language 

barrier challenges to ensure that our 

customers’ needs never go unfulfilled. 

Top Ten languages spoken in 
the U.K. after English:
 
Polish

Turkish

Portuguese

Somali

Czech

Russian

Bengali

Arabic

French

Kurdish

“Being able to communicate 

with our clients in their 

own languages is a critical 

part of effectively serving 

our clients,” said Mori 

Taheripour, Vice President 

of Corporate Diversity at 

the American Red Cross. 

“As a volunteer-based 

organization, the American 

Red Cross is grateful to 

be able to rely upon the 

affordable and immediate 

support that Language 

Line Services provides, 

especially in the wake of a 

major disaster when time 

is of the essence.”

—Mori Taheripour,  

Vice President of Corporate 

Diversity at the American 

Red Cross

Source: U.K. National Statistics
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1982

1983

1984

1985

1986

1987

1988

1989

1990

1991

1992

1993

1994

1995

1996

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

LLS Founded by a San Jose, CA Police Officer

Strategic Business Unit of AT&T

Surpassed 1 Million Interpretations

Malcolm Baldridge Award

Atlanta Olympic Games

LLS Pre-paid Interpreter Card (patent pending)

Over 2 Million Interpretations

 

10,000th Customer Obtained

Court and Medical Certification Introduced

Language Line® Phone Introduced

Acquired Online Interpreters

ABRY Partners Aquired LLS

J.D. Power Recognition

Acquired London Language Line

Implemented 3rd Redundant Site

California Healthcare Interpreting Association Award

Acquired Institute of Cultural Competency

Rapid Connect Platform

National Medical Certification Task Force Convened

Launch Language Line® HealthPort

Launched Global Advisory Council

Influx of Hispanic and Asian Population

Loma Prieta Earthquake

Language Line® Document Translation Introduced

Northridge Earthquake

Launched into Canada

California Eureka Award

Providence Equity aquired AT&T LLS

Launched into the United Kingdom

9-1-1 and Aftermath

Language Line® University Introduced

Implemented 2nd Redundant Site

Video Interpreting Service Introduced

Hurricane Katrina

20,000th Customer Obtained

Indonesia Tsunami

Your World. Your Language.SM Introduced

Breast Cancer Awareness Phone Introduced

Spanish Rage Study Published

Launched into Australia

Acquired TeleInterpreters

Acquired Coto Solutions

L A N G U A G E  L I N E  S E R V I C E S / T W E N T Y - F I V E  Y E A R S
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World Headquarters: One Lower Ragsdale Drive, Building Two • Monterey, California 93940 USA 
United States : Telephone: 800 752-6096 • Email: info@languageline.com • Web: www.languageline.com

Canada: Telephone: 800 731-6415 • Email: info@languageline.com • Web: www.languageline.com/ca
Latin America: (Panama) Telephone: (+1) (507) 303-6022 • Email: info@languageline.com • Web: www.languageline.com/pa

United Kingdom: Telephone: 0800 169 2879 • Email: enquiries@languageline.co.uk • Web: www.languageline.co.uk
Australia: Telephone: +1 800 221-985 • Email: info@languageline.com/au  

© 2007 Language Line Services
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     Network Development 
     503 Oak Place, Suite 550 
     Atlanta, Georgia 30349 
     Phone (866) 431-4635, Fax (877) 352-5641 
    
Dear Iowa Transportation Provider 
 
As you may know, the Iowa Department of Human Services has issued an RFP for a company to 
provide for administrative services for non-emergency medical transportation and related services 
for covered recipients in the state. 
 
LogistiCare, the largest most experienced Medicaid transportation management company (or 
“broker”) in the country, would like you to consider joining our network. We are inviting you to 
fill out and return the enclosed Network Provider Questionnaire, Letter Of Intent (LOI) and Rate 
Proposal Sheet at your earliest convenience.  After receiving these materials from you, we will 
make every effort to call you or visit with you one on one prior to the proposal due date. In the 
next few days you will receive an invitation to join us for an orientation meeting so we can meet, 
introduce ourselves and open the lines of communication. Working together we represent 
professional management and an experienced Iowa team of providers. 
 
The attached Questionnaire provides us with essential information about your operation, which 
will help us in our network planning efforts.  The LOI indicates your interest in joining our 
network, but does not represent any kind of binding commitment.  You remain free to terminate 
the contracting process at any time, or to sign as many similar letters with other bidders as you 
may wish. The Rate Request Sheet will give us a better understanding of your particular market 
and the rate structure for your organization. 
 
LogistiCare prefers to operate as a “pure broker” which means we do not provide direct 
transportation services, own vehicles or hire drivers.  We rely 100% on local transportation 
companies and organizations to provide service.  In order to be successful, LogistiCare needs 
relationships with transportation providers like you to provide the actual transportation in sedans, 
vans, wheelchair vehicles as well as stretcher vehicles and ambulances.  
 
All you need to do to start the process of joining our network is fill out and return to us the 
enclosed Network Provider Questionnaire, non-binding Letter of Intent and Rate Request 
Sheet as soon as possible to allow us time to include your company and properly prepare our 
proposal..   
 
These completed forms should be mailed and faxed to the following address: 
 
LogistiCare Provider Network  
503 Oak Place, Suite 550 
Atlanta, GA 30349 
(877) 352-5641 (FAX) 
 
For questions about this process, please contact our office at (866) 431-4635 or via email at 
networks@logisticare.com or directly to rayb@logisticare.com or laurap@logisticare.com. 
For further information about LogistiCare, please visit our website at www.logisticare.com.   
 
Thank you for your interest. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Ray Blanco & Laura Beth Pumphrey, Network Development 

mailto:networks@logisticare.com
mailto:rayb@logisticare.com
mailto:laurap@logisticare.com
http://www.logisticare.com/


Network Development 
503 Oak Place 
Suite 550 
Atlanta, GA. 30349 

 
LOGISTICARE PROVIDER NETWORK QUESTIONNAIREROVIDER NETWORK QUESTIONNAIRE 

Please provide all the requested information to the best of your ability via fax AND mail the original.  
 If you need more space, please write on the back or attach a separate sheet.  Thank you. 

 
COMPANY CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
COMPANY NAME:              

 
STREET ADDRESS:              

 
MAILING ADDRESS:              

 
CITY:        STATE:      ZIP CODE:       

 
PHONE:           FAX:        
 
EMAIL:         WEB SITE :       

 
Which of the following best describes your company?  Private____ Not for Profit_____ Taxi _____ Transit Agency______ 
  
Human Services Agency_____ Agency on Aging _____ Faith Based Organization______ 

 
NAME OF PERSON AUTHORIZED TO ENTER COMPANY INTO CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS: 

 
NAME:                      TITLE:       
 
PHONE #:                                  FAX:                       EMAIL:        
 

BASIC OPERATIONS INFORMATION 
In what State do you operate? ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
How many total vehicles do you operate in the state? __________________________________________________________ 
 
How many vehicles do you operate per county by type (Total must equal number above)? Please fill below: 

County 

Sedan 
– Non 
Taxi Taxi 

Mini 
Van 

Full 
Size 
Van 

ADA 
Wheelchair 
Van 

Non-emergency 
Stretcher/Gurney

BLS 
Ambulance 

ALS 
Ambulance

Other 
(please 
specify)

Please complete with number of vehicles by type in each county 
                    
                    
                    
                    
                    
                    
                    
                    
                    

 

How many drivers do you employ? ______ How many office personnel? ______ How many other? ______ 



 
 
Please describe your hours of operation: 
 

  Hours of Operation 
Day From: To: 
Monday     
Tuesday     
Wednesday     
Thursday     
Friday     
Saturday     
Sunday     

 
What type of 2-way communication system do you use to talk to your drivers? _____________________________________ 
 
                  
 
Please describe your routing and dispatch technology and procedures:         
 
               
 
                            
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________           
 
Please describe your vehicle insurance coverage limits:_________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

MEDICAL TRANSPORTATION EXPERIENCE 
Do you currently provide Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (NEMT) Services?  ___________   

Please list all local, state or other permits or licenses you hold. ____________________________________________ 

Are you licensed as an ambulance service? ___________   

Have you ever been terminated from a State/Federal program or convicted of Medicaid/Medicare fraud? ___________   

Approximately how many WEEKLY one-way MEDICAL trips do you currently provide? _________ Other? ________ 

 If you would like to increase this amount, what number of weekly one-way trips would you like to provide? _________    

How many additional vehicles would you need to manage that level of operation?______________________________  

Are you able to offer services in a language other than English?  If yes, please indicate the language: ______________ 

If you currently provide NEMT services, please list the facilities you currently serve. (Attach separate list if needed) 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
DRIVER MANAGEMENT 
Please describe your driver hiring and screening process: _________________________________________________________ 



_______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Please describe your driver training and evaluation process: _______________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
QUALITY ASSURANCE PROGRAM 
What steps do you take to monitor and ensure the timeliness, safety, and sensitivity of your transportation services? 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DWMBE STATUS 

If your company qualifies, or is certified as one of the following please check the appropriate box and complete the 
attached DWMBE questionnaire. 
Type Check Designation Ownership Definition 

SBE  Small Business Enterprise Business with less than 500 employees 

MBE  Disadvantaged Business Business with 51% or more certified defined US minority ownership 

WBE  Woman Owned Business Enterprise Business with 51% or more certified woman ownership 

VET  Veteran Business Enterprise Business 51% or more certified US military veteran owned 

DVBE  Disabled Veteran Business 
Enterprise Business 51% or more certified disabled US veteran owned 

DBE  Disabled Business Enterprise  Business 51% or more certified disabled persons owned 

 

OTHER COMMENTS OR CLARIFICATIONS: _____________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
COMPLETED BY:          TITLE:     
 
E MAIL:                  TELEPHONE:      
 
DATE:       
 
PLEASE FAX FORM TO 877-352-5641, AND MAIL ORIGINAL 
ATTENTION: NETWORK DEVELOPMENT 
Email questions network@logisticare.com  



Network Development 
503 Oak Place 
Suite 550 
Atlanta, GA. 30349 

DWMBE QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

Company Name:           Date:     
 
A SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (SBE) is any corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, individual, or other 
business enterprise operating for profit with 100 employees or fewer, including employees employed in any subsidiary 
or affiliated corporation which otherwise meets the requirements of the federal small business innovation research 
program, except for the limitation regarding a maximum number of company employees.   
 
Does your company qualify as a SMALL BUSINESS?      Yes______ No______    
Is your company certified as a SMALL BUSINESS?          Yes______ No______ 
 
A WOMAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (WBE) is at least 51% owned by a woman, or in the case of a publicly 
owned enterprise, a business enterprise in which at least 51% of the voting stock is owned by minority group members; 
or any enterprise that is approved or certified as such for purposes of participation in the contracts subject to minority 
business enterprise requirements involving federal programs and federal funds. 
 
Does your company qualify as a WOMAN OWNED BUSINESS?      Yes______ No_______ 
Is your company certified as a WOMAN OWNED BUSINESS?          Yes______ No______ 
 
A MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE) is at least 51% owned by minority group members, or in the case 
of a publicly owned enterprise, a business enterprise that is approved or certified as such for purposes of participation in 
the contracts subject to women owned business enterprise requirements involving federal programs and federal funds. 
 
Does your company qualify as a MINORITY OWNED ENTERPRISE?      Yes______ No_______ 
Is your company certified as a MINORITY OWNED BUSINESS?                 Yes______ No______ 
 
A DISABLED VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DVBE) meets all of the following: 
1. The business is at least, 51 percent owned by one or more disabled veterans or in the case of a publicly owned 
business, at least 51 percent of its stock is owned by one or more disabled veterans; a subsidiary which is wholly 
owned by a parent corporation but only if at least 51 percent of the voting stock of the parent corporation is owned 
by one or more disabled veterans; or a joint venture in which at least 51 percent of the joint venture’s management 
and control and earnings are held by one or more disabled veterans. 
2. One or more disabled veterans manage and control the daily business operations. The disabled veterans who 
exercise management and control are not required to be the same disabled veterans as the owners of the business 
concern. 
3. A sole proprietorship, corporation, or partnership with its home office located in the United States, which is not 
a branch or subsidiary of a foreign corporation, foreign firm or other foreign-based business. 
 
Does your company qualify as a DISABLED VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DVBE)?  Yes_____ No ______ 
Is your company certified as a DISABLED VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DVBE)?  Yes_____ No ______ 
 
A VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (VBE) is at least 51% owned by a veteran, or in the case of a publicly owned 
enterprise, a business enterprise in which at least 51% of the voting stock is owned by veterans; or any enterprise that is 
approved or certified as such for purposes of participation in the contracts subject to minority business enterprise 
requirements involving federal programs and federal funds. 
 
Does your company qualify as a VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (VBE)?  Yes______ No _______ 
Is your company certified as a VETERAN BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (VBE)?  Yes______ No ______ 
 
A DISABLED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) is at least 51% owned by a disabled person, or in the case of a publicly 
owned enterprise, a business enterprise in which at least 51% of the voting stock is owned by disabled persons ; or any 
enterprise that is approved or certified as such for purposes of participation in the contracts subject to minority business 
enterprise requirements involving federal programs and federal funds. 
 
Does your company qualify as a DISABLED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)?  Yes______ No _______ 
Is your company certified as a DISABLED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)?  Yes______ No _______ 



Letter of Intent to Participate in the Iowa 
 Medicaid Non-Emergency Transportation Program 

 
 

To Whom It May Concern: 
 
LogistiCare Solutions, LLC, a transportation management company, has asked me to 
contract with them to provide transportation services under the NEMT program for the 
state of Iowa. 
 
My company intends to contract with LogistiCare to provide Non-Emergency Medical 
Transportation services.   I understand that any contract with LogistiCare for services 
under the NEMT brokerage program will be subject to the Hennepin County Department 
of Human Services and Public Health and the Metro Counties Consortium rules and 
regulations.   
 
This Letter of Intent indicates only our willingness to provide transportation services 
under a future contract, and does not bind either my company or LogistiCare to any 
particular terms or conditions. 
 
 
Name and Title 
 
 
Transportation Company 
 
 
Address, City, State, and Zip Code 
 
 
Signature      Date 
 
 
 
Please return signed form to: 
 
LogistiCare Provider Network  
503 Oak Place, Suite 550 
Atlanta, GA 30349 
(877) 352-5641 (FAX) 



RATE PROPOSAL 
Please include your proposed rates for the Iowa Non Emergency Transportation program: 

(Extra passenger does not include attendant or escort) 

Class of  
Services 

0-3 Miles 
(Average 2) 

4-6 Miles 
(Average 5) 

7-10 Miles 
(Average 8) 

11-15 Miles 
(Average 13) 

16-20 Miles 
(Average 18) 

21 - 25 Miles 
(Average 23) 

26 - 30 Miles 
(Average 28) 

31-35 Miles    
(Average 33) 

36 - 40 Miles 
(Average 38) 

41 – 45 Miles 
(Average 43) 

Over 45 
Miles 

Ambulatory  $            $           $           $            $           $          $          $          $          $         

plus $           
a   mile 
over 45 

Wheelchair  $            $            $            $           $           $          $          $          $          $         

plus $           
a   mile 
over 45 

Extra Pass - 
Ambi  $            $            $           $            $           $          $          $          $          $         

plus $           
a   mile 
over 45 

Extra Pass - 
WC  $            $            $            $            $            $          $          $          $          $         

plus $           
a   mile 
over 45 

Stretcher  $            
BLS  $             
ALS  $             

 
 
Mileage Plus Drop rate:      Company Info: 

 
Ambulatory Drop: __________________    Company: __________________________________ 

  
Ambulatory Per Mile: _______________     Contact Name: ______________________________ 

 
Wheelchair Drop: ___________________    Phone: _____________________________________ 

 
Wheelchair Per Mile: ________________        Date: ______________________________________ 

 
Stretcher Response: _________________  

 
Stretcher Per Mile: __________________ 

 
 
Other Method/Explanation: 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Fax Completed form to: 1-877-352-5641 



Rate Sheet Explanation 
 
Definitions: 
 
Class of Service:  This is the authorized method of service and travel.  Ambulatory, wheelchair, stretcher etc are all class of 
service designations.  This is also referred to as Level of Service or LOS. 
 
Mileage Bucket:  The designated mileage brackets, “0-3”, “4-6”, “7-10” etc. 
 
Ambulatory:  A passenger able to ride in a conventional vehicle without specialized equipment like a ramp or lift and capable 
of getting to and from the vehicle with minimal assistance. 
 
Wheelchair:  A passenger that is confined to and must ride in their wheelchair and cannot transfer to a regular seat in a vehicle 
and requires the use of a lift or ramp to load their wheelchair into the vehicle. 
 
Extra Pass-Ambi:  An ambulatory person that rides the vehicle on a shared trip, which is more than one individual on a multi-
loaded singular route with the same or nearby destination address at the same time.  (Nearby is defined as within ½ mile of each 
other.  This would account for all programs in the same facility, including the same hospital grounds complex, medical facility, 
etc.) 
 
Extra Pass-WC:  A person confined to a wheelchair that rides the vehicle on a shared trip, which is more than one individual on 
a multi-loaded singular route with the same or nearby destination address at the same time.  (Nearby is defined as within ½ mile 
of each other.  This would account for all programs in the same facility, including the same hospital grounds complex, medical 
facility, etc.) 
 
Escorts:   An authorized person that must ride to assist a passenger who otherwise would not be able to travel via NEMT.  No 
Payment for this ride.  See explanation below. 
 
Stretcher:  Stretcher service shall be provided to an individual who cannot be transported in an ambulatory vehicle, a taxi, or 
wheelchair van and who does not need the medical services of an ambulance. Stretcher van service does not provide emergency 
medical transport and does not include any medical monitoring, medical aid, medical care or medical treatment during transport. 
 
A driver and an assistant shall staff the vehicle, which is specifically designed and equipped to provide non-emergency 
transportation of individuals on an approved stretcher. A stretcher van is used for an individual who: 
i) Needs routine transportation to or from a non-emergency medical appointment or service, and 
ii) Is convalescent or otherwise non-ambulatory and cannot use a wheelchair, and 
iii) Does not require medical monitoring, medical aid, medical care or medical treatment during transport.  Self-administered 
oxygen is permitted as long as the oxygen tank is secured safely. 
 
Each “Class of Service” has its own rate structure.  Note the Class of Service is the first column and the per mile rate for that 
Class of Service should be written into the space beside the Class of Service under the appropriate mileage bucket.   
 



In the case of mixed Class of Service or LOS in a shared ride, the first passenger in each LOS gets first per mile rate and all 
others are at EP per mile rate for their LOS. 
 
Authorized “Escorts” provided by the passenger are not paid for as passengers.  If the transportation provider has to provide an 
attendant or monitor, then a separate negotiated and agreed rate will be paid for the services. 
 
Rate Calculations: 
 
The rate within each “bucket” is calculated based on the average mileage of all trips within the range of the bucket. This number 
is usually around the middle of the bucket. This results in a higher per mile reimbursement on trips in the lower part of the 
“bucket” and lower reimbursement on the higher end.  
 
Every trip has set administrative costs associated with it that do not vary regardless of the distance of the trip. In the shorter trips 
this cost, in addition to the operational costs that do vary based on the distance, must be accounted for within those few miles, 
this results in the need for a higher per mile cost in the shorter trips. The longer the trip, the more miles the administrative cost is 
diluted into, resulting in a lower per mile cost the longer the trip.  
 
In order to calculate the rate for each bucket, the provider must determine all costs associated with the trips to cover the costs 
plus a reasonable profit margin. This cost is based on the average miles within the “bucket”, remembering that the revenue will 
be higher in the shorter trips and lower in the longer, but resulting on an average. As the buckets increase, the average per mile 
will decrease.  
 
The rate is per leg not per round trip. A 4 mile round trip would be reimbursed at the rate in the 1 to 5 bucket X 2. In a multi-leg 
trip each leg would be reimbursed at the rate in the in the corresponding bucket. 
 
Purpose: 
 
The purpose of the buckets is to simplify the billing as well as minimize mileage disputes. Since the miles for each trip are 
calculated by third party software prior to assigning the trips to the provider, the buckets minimize the instances where any 
mileage discrepancies will result in revenue variance. If a trip is determined to be 5.6 miles by LogistiCare’s vendor and the 
provider believes the trip to be 9.6 miles the reimbursement would be the same. The same would apply to the reverse 
circumstance.  
 
 
Per Mile: 

You also have the option of  submitting and per mile or base plus per mile in the appropriate area. 

 











































Transportation Provider: ___________________________________________     Vehicle #__________________

Vehicle Make: ____________________________  Year: ______  Capacity:_______________

VIN #: ______________________________ New        Add        Delete  (circle one)

Insp. Date: ____________ Insp. Time: ____________        Odometer Reading: _______________

Pass Service Fail Pass Service Fail
Exterior Safety Signs
Horn** Exterior Signage
2 Exterior Mirrors** "NO SMOKING/EATING/DRINKING"
Brakes** "All passengers wear seat belts"
Brake Lights** Plackard Signs (Interior)
Headlights** Structural
Turn Signals** Wall Padded/Headliner
Parking Brakes** Internal Fish-eye Mirror
Tires -3/32** Vehicle Body Intergrity
Communication Doors Operational**
2-way Radio** W/Chair Lift Vehicle    Hydraulic  Drop Fl. (circle one) 
Cellular Phones** 56" Headroom**
Interior Safety Equipment Hydraulic/Electric Lift
Step/Running Board Hand Rails**             
Seat Belts** Controls Inside**
2 Seat Belt Extensions Shoulder Restraint**
Seat Belt Cutter** Lap Belt**                         
Child Seats 4 Floor Straps-Forward Facing**
Rubber/Carpet Floor Lift Lock In Up/Position**
Spill Kit Engine Interlock**
First Aid Kit Lift Reflector Tape
Fire Exting. Mounted** Lift Control Securement**
Fire Exting. Tagged Metal Mesh Non-Skid Plate**
3 Emer. Reflectors 56" h X 30" w Door Opening**
Interior Lights Emergency Manual Lift**
Upholstery Stretcher Vehicle
Clean Interior Gurney - 400 lbs. Capacity**
Windows** Gurney Lowering and Raise
Operational A/C** Gurney - 3 belt minimum
Operational Heat** Manufacturer Gurney Mounts**
Functional Speedometer Comments:_____________________________________
Functional Odomoeter
Information Package
Cab Card _______________________________________________
Registration _______________________________________________
Insurance ID Card _______________________________________________
Accident/Incident Forms _______________________________________________
Map - Service Area ________________________________________________
**Vehicle may be Red-lined
VEHICLE STATUS: Pass      Pass w/Qualification Fail/Redline (delete)

RE-INSPECT DATE:_____________________ (If status is "Pass w/Qualification", re-inspect within 10 days)

FIELD MONITOR SIGNATURE:_____________________________________________

DRIVER SIGNATURE:_____________________________________________________

Check Items Check Items

(Circle one of the above)

I: Provider Manual/Vehicle Inspection Form 10-02



Inspection Stickers

JAN JUL

FEB AUG

MAR SEP
___________________________

APR OCT
___________________________

MAY NOV
2010 2011 2012

JUN DEC

JAN JUL

FEB AUG

MAR SEP
___________________________

APR OCT
___________________________

MAY NOV
2010 2011 2012

JAN JUL

FEB AUG

MAR SEP
___________________________

VIN #
APR OCT

___________________________
License Plate #

MAY NOV
2010 2011 2012

JUN DEC

License Plate #

VIN #

VIN #

License Plate #



        503 Oak Place, Suite 550 
                              Atlanta, GA 30349 
        1-800-486-7642    
        www.logisticare.com 

April 16, 2010 
  
Dear Medicaid Member, 
 
On September 1, 2004, LogistiCare began using vouchers to pay gas reimbursement.  
  
Accompanied with this letter is a blank voucher. Please fill free to make as many copies as you need for 
all future doctor appointments.  Your doctor/counselor must sign the voucher to show that you were at 
your appointment in order for your driver to get paid.  We will only except vouchers with original 
signatures no copies allowed.   
 
Here’s how it works: 

1.      When you call in a trip, you will be given a job/trip number.  
2.      Write the job/trip number and the trip date on the Voucher.
3.      Fill in all of the other blanks except the doctor/counselor signature space. 
4.      Take the Voucher with you and have the doctor or counselor sign it. 
5.      If you go more than once a month you can put several trips on one form.  
6. Only the person designated as the person to be paid when your reservation 

was set-up would be paid.  If you have different people being paid you must 
submit a separate voucher form for each person. 

7.      Mail the signed form(s) to:  
Billing Department - GA Gas Reimbursement 

503 Oak Place, Suite 550 
Atlanta, GA  30349 

8.      Vouchers must be received within 30 days of your appointment or they may be 
denied. 

  
If you change the date of your appointment, you must call the Reservation Line or payment could be 
denied. 
 

VOUCHERS DUE IN OUR 
OFFICE BY 

CHECK MAILING 
DATE 

VOUCHERS DUE IN 
OUR OFFICE BY 

CHECK MAILING 
 DATE 

12/13/04 01/10/05 06/06/05 07/08/05 
12/27/04 01/24/05 06/20/05 07/22/05 
01/10/05 02/08/05 07/04/05 08/08/05 
01/24/05 02/22/05 07/18/05 08/22/05 
02/07/05 03/08/05 08/08/05 09/08/05 
02/21/05 03/22/05 08/22/05 09/22/05 
03/07/05 04/08/05 09/05/05 10/10/05 
03/21/05 04/22/05 09/19/05 10/24/05 
04/04/05 05/09/05 10/10/05 11/08/05 
04/18/05 05/23/05 10/24/05 11/22/05 
05/09/05 06/08/05 11/07/05 12/08/05 
05/23/05 06/22/05 11/21/05 12/22/05 

 
If you have any questions, please call Sonya Mul-key, your gas reimbursement representative, at 1-800-
486-7642, ext.438 or Quen Curry, the Billing Department Supervisor at ext. 473. 
 
Thank you 
   

 



 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT TRIP LOG AND INVOICE FORM 

DRIVER NAME:              RELATIONSHIP TO MEMBER:       
 (Must be the payee designated when the trip was set up) 
 
DRIVER MAILING ADDRESS:                  DRIVER PHONE #:     
 
CITY/STATE/ZIP:           
 
MEMBER NAME:                 MEDICAID MEMBER ID #:      
 
IS TRIP A STANDING ORDER?     Y      N  IF YES, CIRCLE THE DAYS TRAVELED WEEKLY:  S   M   T   W   T   F   S  
           

Trip Date Trip/Job # Medical Provider Name & Phone #  Physician/Clinician Signature* TOTAL 
MILES 

 
 

 Name: 
  
Phone #: 

  

 
 

 Name: 
  
Phone #: 

  

 
 

 Name: 
 
Phone #: 

  

 
 

 Name: 
 
Phone #: 

  

 
 

 Name: 
 
Phone #: 

  

 
 

 Name: 
 
Phone #: 

  

*Each date of service must have a physician or clinician signature in order for reimbursement to be approved.  
NOTE: Each trip will be confirmed with the physician’s office before payments will be made. 
 

Office Use Only: Do not write in this space. 
Total  mileage to be paid:_________________________                Total amount for this invoice:______________________                          Batch #: ___________        Batch date:_______________ 

I hereby certify the information contained herein is true, correct and accurate.   Signature        
I:\Administrative\Business Development\CorpMgrShare\RFP Folders by State\Iowa\Attachments\A. 17a2 GA GAS Mileage Reimbursement Form.doc  
 

**PLEASE FILL OUT A SEPARATE FORM IF THE PAYEE IS DIFFERENT FOR EACH TRIP** 



 
VOLUNTEER DRIVERS NEEDED 

 
Sooner Ride coordinates volunteer drivers for the Oklahoma Sooner Ride Program to 
transport Medicaid recipients to and from their medical appointments anywhere in the 

state of Oklahoma. Drivers volunteer their time, but are paid $.40 per mile, per qualified 
Medicaid recipient for the use of their personal vehicle.  

 
DESIRABLE CHARACTERISTICS 

 
Dependable, professional, courteous, caring, cordial, and independent 

individuals that enjoy people and like to travel. 
 

REQUIREMENTS: 
1. Must be 21 years of age or older. 
2. Have a valid Oklahoma driver’s license. 
3. Provide copy of Motor Vehicle Record with no more than two (2) 

driving violations within the past 12 months and no more than one (1) 
at fault accident within the past 2 years. 

4. Provide proof of a clean criminal background and drug screen. 
5. Insurance: $100,000 liability per person  

                              $300,000 liability occurrence 
                              $50,000 property damage 

6. Must have a clean safe vehicle with working seat belts, and working 
heating and air conditioning. 

7.  Must carry a first aid kit, spill kit, seatbelt cutter, fire extinguisher, 3 
triangle reflectors and a cell phone. 

 
 

IF INTERESTED PLEASE CALL 1-800-435-1034 EXT 603 
FOR MORE INFORMATION 

 



 

Welcome 
 

Thank you for your interest in the Sooner Ride 
volunteer driver program. This packet will tell you a 

little about the program and the requirements. Please 
take a moment and read over all of the information. If 
you feel that this is the type of job for you (Full-time or 
Part-time), fill out the attached forms in their entirety 

and return them with the other requested information. 
(See checklist) 

 
Please feel free to call at any time with any questions or 

concerns you might have. 
 
 

Jim Young 
Utilization and Review Coordinator 

1-405-499-0060 Ext. 603 
1-405-499-0090 Fax 

 
Kim LaFevers 

Transportation Manager 
1-405-499-0060 Ext. 604 

1-405-495-1665 Fax 
 
 



 
 
 

VOLUNTEER DRIVER SYSTEM – OKLAHOMA 
 

                                  DRIVERS NEEDED 
 
SoonerRide, administered by Logisticare, Inc. coordinates volunteer drivers to 
transport Medicaid members to and from their medical appointments anywhere in  
the state of Oklahoma into surrounding states. Drivers volunteer their time, but 
are reimbursed $.40 per mile, per qualified member for the use of their personal 
vehicle. Reservations for transportation will usually be for 50 miles or more since 
contracts exist with transit companies for local trips. SoonerRide does not 
guarantee a specific amount of trips or mileage per day. 
 
DESIRABLE CHARACTERISTICS: 
Dependable, professional, courteous, caring, cordial, and friendly individuals that 
enjoy people and like to travel. 
 
REQUIRED EQUIPMENT: 
Cell phone or pager. 
 
Fax machine for transmission of trip reservation information.  Due to telephone 
numbers, addresses, appointment times and dates, fax machines reduce the 
chances of errors when verbally transferring information. 
 
REQUIREMENTS: 
1. Must be 21 years of age.  
 
2. Valid Oklahoma driver’s license 
 
3. No more than two (2) driving violations within 12months. 
 
4. No more than one (1) at fault accident within 12 months. 
 
5. Criminal background check and Motor Vehicle Record (MVR) run within the 

last 30 days. 
 
6. Clean Drug Screen run and submitted within the last 5 days.   
 



7. Insurance:   $100,000 liability per person    
                         $300,000 liability occurrence 
                          $ 50,000 property damage 
 
8. Clean, safe vehicle with working seat beats, and working heating and air 

conditioning. 
 
9. Carry at all times a First Aid Kit, seatbelt cutter, fire extinguisher, spill kit, and 

3 emergency reflectors. 
 
10.  Visible signage stating no smoking, eating, or drinking in vehicle. 
 
IN ADDITION ALL VEHICLES MUST PASS INSPECTION BY LOGISTICARE 
AND MEET ALL SAFETY REQUIREMENTS. VEHICLES ARE ALSO 
REQUIRED TO BE INSPECTED ON A YEARLY BASIS TO INSURE 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL SAFETY GUIDELINES. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 

DRIVER INFORMATION SHEET 

 
 
NAME:  ______________________________________________ 
 
ADDRESS:  ___________________________________________  
 
                     ___________________________________________ 
 
 
PHONE NO. ________________________  CELLULAR NO. ________________________ 
 
PAGER NO. ________________________  FAX NO.  ______________________________ 
 
DRIVER’S LICENSE NUMBER. _____________________  STATE:  ________________ 
EXPIRATION DATE:  ____________________________ 
 
 
1. Do you plan to transport in a car or a van? ___________________________________ 
 
 
2. Please note the make, model, & year of the vehicle. _____________________________ 
 
 
3. How many passengers does your vehicle hold? ________________________________ 
 
 
4. What days are you available to transport recipients? _____________________________ 
 
 
5. What hours are you available to transport? ____________________________________ 
 
 

 
 

NOTE: (It is against Sooner Ride’s policy for a volunteer 
driver to hire or utilize additional drivers.)  
 

 



 

 
 

VOLUNTEER DRIVER REGISTRATION 
 
Any person desiring to volunteer his or her time to transport Medicaid members 
residing in Oklahoma, must complete and sign this Volunteer Driver Registration 
form and return it to the following address: 

    
SoonerRide 
Attention: Sherry Peters  

  6101 W Reno Avenue, Suite 550-A 
    Oklahoma City, OK  73127 
 
(Please Print Clearly) 
Volunteer Name: _________________________________________________ 
   First    Middle Initial   Last 
 
Mailing Address: _________________________________________________ 
   Street Address      P.O. Box/Apt. 
 
______________________________________________________________________________________
 City    State     Zip Code 
 
Home Address: __________________________________________________ 
(If different from  Street Address      P.O. Box/Apt. 
          your 
mailing address) _______________________________________________________________________ 
   City  State     Zip Code 
 
Telephone # (     )______/___________ Pager # _________________________ 
 
Social Security # ______/________/_______ Date of Birth _____________________  
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
I have signed my name below to indicate that I desire to volunteer to transport 
Medicaid members to medical appointments.  Naturally, I may refuse to volunteer 
for any specific transport and may stop volunteering to provide transportation all 
together at any time.  Because I am a volunteer, I retain the right to volunteer my 
time as a volunteer driver only at such times I wish to make myself available. 
(conditions apply see attached). I UNDERSTAND THAT I AM STRICTLY A 
VOLUNTEER AND NOT AN EMPLOYEE OF SOONERRIDE OR 
LOGISTICARE, INC., and agree I do not have any benefits available to 



employees of LogistiCare, Inc., including but not limited to wages, health 
insurance, accident insurance, worker’s compensation and retirement benefits. I 
agree that anytime I my vehicle to perform volunteer transportation, I am 
responsible for making certain that the vehicle is properly insured. If I fail to do 
so, I, not LogistiCare, Inc. will be responsible for any costs, expenses or losses 
resulting from an automobile or other accident that might occur while I am 
providing volunteer transportation services and that the insurance on my owned 
vehicle shall be primary.  I expect to be reimbursed solely for my mileage 
expense associated with using my own vehicle.  I understand that I will be 
reimbursed by LogistiCare, Inc. only for the number of miles driven.  I have read, 
understand, and agree to the entire above paragraph.    
   
 
Signature_________________________                      Date_______________ 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
VOLUNTEER DRIVER INFORMATION FORM 

 
LogistiCare, Inc. 

Attn: Sherry Peters 
6101 W Reno Avenue, Suite 550-A 

Oklahoma City, OK  73127 
Phone: 405-499-0060 or 1-800-435-1034 

Fax: 405-499-0090   
 

FAILURE TO ADHERE TO THIS POLICY COULD RESULT IN THE DENIAL OF 
PAYMENT FOR TRIPS COMPLETED BY THIS VOLUNTEER. 

 
 

Name of Volunteer:             
 

Today’s Date:      Date of Birth:      
 
Social Security Number:           
 
Home Telephone: (      ) ______________ Pager: (     )       
 
Cell Telephone: (      ) ________________    Fax:  (      )       
 
Oklahoma Drivers License Number: _____________________ Expires:   
  
 Please attach a copy of the following items to this form: 

 
• Motor vehicle report for the last three (3) years 
• Criminal Background check 
• Drug Screen 
• Drivers License 
• Social Security Card 
• Insurance certificate and vehicle registration 
 

TERMINATION OF VOLUNTEER STATUS 
For Logisticare office personnel ONLY  

Volunteer Name:            
 
Effective Date of Termination:      Reason, if any:    
             
 
             
 
DL Number: ____________________ Social Security Number: __________________ 



 
 

CERTIFICATE AFFIDAVIT 
(SELF ATTESTATION) 

 
TO:  LogistiCare, Inc. 

Attn: Sherry Peters 
  6101 W Reno Avenue, Suite 550-A 
  Oklahoma City, OK  71327 
FROM: _____________________________ 
  _____________________________ 
  _____________________________ 
 
RE:  VOLUNTEER DRIVER PROGRAM 
 
DATE: ____________________________ 
 
I, ______________________ (print), certify that I meet and agree with the 
following requirements: 
 
• Have a valid Oklahoma driver’s license (copy attached). 
 
• Have no more than two (2) moving violations and/or more than one (1) 

chargeable accident within the past 12 months (3 year MVR attached). 
 
• Have a clean drug screen and criminal background check (copy attached). 
 
• Have the required vehicle insurance as required (copy of insurance 

certificate attached). 
• Have a valid Oklahoma vehicle registration. 
 
• Will not be under the influence of alcohol and/or drugs while transporting 

patient’s to/from their medical related destinations. 
 
 
VEHICLE REQUIREMENTS 
 

1. All vehicles are required to be inspected prior to being used for the Volunteer 
Driver Program for SoonerRide. Yearly inspections of all vehicles is also 
mandatory. You will be notified when it is time for your vehicles yearly 
inspection. 



2. All vehicles are required to have signage posted in their vehicle stating there 
is no smoking, eating, or drinking allowed. 

3. Carry at all times a First Aid Kit, seatbelt cutter, fire extinguisher, spill kit, and 3 
emergency reflectors. 

 
 
_______________________________   _____________________ 
 Signature (Do not sign without notary present     Date 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Notary Signature and seal                    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
VOLUNTEER DRIVER CHECKLIST 
 
 
1.) Driver information sheet 
2.) Volunteer Driver Registration 
3.) Volunteer Driver Information Form  
4.) Certificate Affidavit  (Notarized) 
5.) Copy of (OK.) driver’s license 
6.) Copy of Social Security Card  
7.) Copy of (3 year) M.V.R  
8.) Criminal background check (1 years prior to date)  
9.) Drug screen 
10.) Copy of insurance policy w/ necessary requirements 
11.) Copy of Oklahoma vehicle registration.  
 

Please mail all of the above to:       
Logisticare, Inc. 
Attn: Sherry Peters                                                          
6101 W Reno Avenue, Suite 550-A 
Oklahoma City, OK 73127 

 
 
All faxes containing confidential information (drug screen, MVR, & criminal 
background check) should be faxed to Sherry Peters at: 1-405-499-0090 
 
NOTE: You must provide all the required information to become eligible to drive. 
Your information will be reviewed and you will be contacted in reference to the 
status of your eligibility 



 

Welcome 
 

 
Driver Name: __________________ 
 
Thank you for your interest in the Sooner Ride Volunteer Driver 
Program. You have passed all of  the eligibility requirements 
and can now begin transporting Medicaid recipients. Please fill 
in the space below with the date you are ready to begin 
transporting and fax this back to Sooner Ride 1-405-495-1665 
Attention: Jim Young as soon as possible. 
 
Start Date: __________________________ 
 
Please feel free to call anytime with any questions or concerns 

that you may have. 
 

Your Provider Representative is: _____________________ 
Toll Free Phone: 1-800-488-0817 Ext ______ 
Direct Phone: 1-405-499-0060 Ext _______ 

Fax: 1-405-495-1665  
 

Kim LaFevers 
Transportation Manager 

Toll Free Phone: 1-800-488-0817 Ext 604 
Direct Phone: 1-405-499-0060 Ext 604 

Fax: 1-405-495-1665 
Logisticare Solutions 6101 West Reno Avenue, Suite 550-A, Oklahoma City, Ok 73127 
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POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
It is Sooner Rides mission to provide safe, courteous, and on-time 
transportation for Medicaid eligible members. As a volunteer driver for the 
Sooner Ride Program it is also your responsibility to be as safe, courteous, and 
on-time as possible. Sooner Ride expects you as a Volunteer Driver to be a 
professional and to treat the Sooner Ride staff  as well as the Medicaid 
recipients in a respectful and courteous manner. 
 
Members have the right to complain and they will notify Sooner Ride if  a driver 
is not courteous, safe, and on time. Complaints regarding bad attitudes, 
profanity, late pickups, and no-shows are all grounds for dismissal from the 
Volunteer Driver Program. We also require a minimum 48-hour notice if  you 
are unavailable to work on a certain day. Failure to adhere to this policy will 
result in (1) week suspension. 
 
Members are expected to conduct themselves in a mature and courteous 
manner as well. Please communicate immediately any problems or concerns 
you may have about any member that you transport to the Oklahoma City 
office. 
 
If  you have to pick up a member earlier or later than what is printed on the trip 
manifest that you receive from Sooner Ride you are required to call that 
member in a timely manner to confirm that they agree with the change. You 
must also call Sooner Ride so any change can be documented. If  the member 
does not agree with the proposed change you must reroute the trip to the 
Oklahoma City office immediately. If  you are too late to pick up a member and 
they have to reschedule their appointment this will be considered a no-show 
complaint against you and you will not be reimbursed. Please call the Sooner 
Ride office as soon as possible anytime you will not be able to complete your 
scheduled trips. 
 
We are required by the Oklahoma Healthcare Authority to keep driver 
information updated. When you receive a request for updated driver 
information such as insurance, MVR, or drug screens it is your responsibility to 
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provide this information in a timely manner. If  you do not comply you will not 
be able to participate in the Sooner Ride Volunteer Driver Program until such 
information is received. 
 
 

 Blank Runs – A Blank Run is considered a trip where you have driven 
from your home to the member’s home and they are either not at home 
or they cancel the trip when you arrive. When this happens you will 
need to call your Volunteer Driver representative at 1-800-488-0817 as 
soon as possible. You are also required to send in a cancellation sheet 
for documentation. Sooner Ride will not pay for Blank Runs that were 
not called into our office and documented immediately.  

 
 Wrong information on your trip logs: You are required to fill out a 
Sooner Ride Trip log for each trip that you do for Sooner Ride. You will 
receive instructions in your orientation on the proper way to fill out a 
trip log. Trip logs with incorrect information will be denied. Trip logs 
must be turned in with the correct dates, correct trip numbers, and the 
Medicaid member’s signature on both legs of  the trip. It is solely your 
responsibility to send in accurate and correct information. The billing 
department is not allowed to make corrections for you. If  you see that 
mileage is incorrect on any trip please contact your Volunteer Driver 
representative to have the error corrected before you send your billing 
in. 

 
 48 Hours Notice: All Volunteer Drivers are required to give a 
minimum of  48-hours notice if  you cannot work on a specific date. 
Failure to give Sooner Ride 48 hours notice can result in suspension or 
termination from the Volunteer Driver Program. You will also be 
required to fill out a re-route sheet for any trips that you have already 
received. That sheet must be faxed to the Sooner Ride office at  

     405-495-1665. 
 

 Rerouting Trips: If  you receive a trip on one of  your regularly 
scheduled work days that you cannot do because it either conflicts with 
trips that you may already have or you have to many trips you are 
required to fill out a reroute form and fax it to your Volunteer Driver 
representative at the Sooner Ride office at 1-405-495-1665 no later than 
1pm the day before the scheduled trip. If  the trip is on a Monday the 
trip should be rerouted by 1pm on the previous Friday. Saturday and 
Sunday are not recognized as business days. 
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 Switching trip: Each driver is expected to transport the patients that 
were assigned to him or her. If  there a problem and you cannot do the 
trip please use the re-route form supplied to you and send the trip back 
to the Sooner Ride office. Never let another Volunteer Driver transport 
a Sooner Ride member that has been assigned to you. Doing so will 
result in your immediate dismissal from the Sooner Ride Program. 

 
 Allowing others to drive: It is against Sooner Rides policy for a 
Volunteer Driver to utilize or hire additional drivers to work for them. 
When you are approved for the Volunteer Driver Program you and you 
alone are covered to drive your vehicle while transporting a Sooner Ride 
member. If  you are found violating this rule you will be immediately 
dismissed from the Sooner Ride Program. If  you have a friend or family 
member that wants to participate in the Volunteer Driver Program 
please have them contact the Sooner Ride office. 

 
 Additional Passengers and Escorts:  An escort is medically necessary 
individual whose presence is required to assist a member during 
transport and/or while at the place of  treatment. The escort must 
remain with the member at all times. Only one escort is allowed per 
member and the escort must be over the age of  18. Minor children may 
not serve as a medically necessary escort. Any adult member that has an 
appointment is not allowed to bring any minor children with them 
unless they have an appointment as well. You must have a trip number 
for each person that you transport (except a medically necessary escort). 
Any child under the age of  18 is required to have a parent or guardian 
with them at the time of  transport. 

 
 Transporting to and from other destinations: Only pick up and drop 
off  locations scheduled and sent to you by Sooner Ride will be 
approved for reimbursement. Making additional stops for a member 
such as to the grocery store, mall, friends or family members homes 
may not be included in your mileage. If  a member needs to stop at the 
pharmacy to pick up a prescription please contact the Sooner Ride 
office immediately and an additional leg will be added to your trip. 
Failure to do so will result in non-payment of  any additional mileage. 

 
 Transporting without a trip number: You must have a valid trip 
number to receive reimbursement for a trip. Do not accept any trip 
assignment from any Sooner Ride staff  member without getting a trip 
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number. If  there is a pattern shown of  transporting members without a 
trip number you may be dismissed from the Volunteer Driver Program. 

 
 Billing Process:  In order for billing to process trip logs for payment 
they must have the original signature from the member. Because of  this 
policy we cannot accept any trip log by fax. The original trip log must be 
mailed to: 

 
     Logisticare, Inc. 
     503 Oak Place, Suite 550 
     Atlanta, GA 30349 
 
If  any trip log is received by fax it will not be processed. Instead it will       
be sent back to the driver. This will cause a delay in payment, because all    
trips are verified prior to payment. 
 
 
 
If  you have any questions or concerns please contact you provider 
representative at 1-800-488-0817 or 1-800-488-0817. 
 



    
        1-800-486-7642    
        www.logisticare.com 
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January 31, 2007 
  
Dear Medicaid Member, 
 
We enclosed a blank voucher with this letter. You can make as many copies as you need. Your 
doctor/counselor must sign the voucher to show you were at your appointment in order for your 
driver to get paid.     
 
Here’s how it works: 

1.      When you call in a trip, you will be given a job/trip number.  
2.      Write the job/trip number and the trip date on the Voucher.
3.      Fill in all of the other blanks except the doctor/counselor signature space. 
4.      Take the Voucher with you and have the doctor or counselor sign it. 
5.      If you go more than once a month you can put several trips on one form.  
6. Only the person designated as the person to be paid when your reservation 

was set-up will be paid.  If you have different people being paid you must 
submit a separate form for each person. 

7.      Mail the signed form to:  
Billing Department- GA Gas Reimbursement 

503 Oak Place, Suite 550 
Atlanta, GA  30349 

8.      Vouchers must be received within 30 days of your appointment or they may be 
denied. 

You must call the Reservation Line if you change the date of your appointment 
or payment could be denied. 

Gas 
Reimbursement 
Vouchers Due 
In Our Office 

Gas Reimbursement 
Check Disbursement 

Date 

 Gas 
Reimbursement 
Vouchers Due     
In Our Office 

Gas Reimbursement 
Check Disbursement 

Date 

12/18/06 01/15/07  07/05/07 08/01/07 

01/04/07 02/01/07  07/18/07 08/15/07 

01/18/07 02/15/07  08/07/07 09/04/07 

02/01/07 03/0107  08/20/07 09/17/07 

02/15/07 03/15/07  09/04/07 10/01/07 

03/05/07 04/02/07  09/17/07 10/15/07 

03/19/07 04/16/07  10/04/07 11/01/07 

04/03/07 05/01/07  10/18/07 11/15/07 

04/17/07 05/15/07  11/05/07 12/03/07 

05/04/07 06/01/07  11/19/07 12/17/07 

05/18/07 06/15/07  12/05/07 01/02/08 

06/04/07 07/02/07  12/18/07 01/15/08 

06/18/07 07/16/07  01/04/08 02/01/08 

 
Please call 1-800-486-7642, ext.488 or 481, if you have any questions. 
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